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CITY OF AMARILLO

OFFICE OF THE
CITY MANAGER January 22, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor and City Commission,
City of Amarillo,
Amarillo, Texas

1,adies and Gentlemen:

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Amarilio
(the City) for the year ended September 30, 2012 in compliance with Article 111, Section 27 of the City Charter.
The purpose of the report is to provide the Mayor, City Commission, City Staff, citizens, bond holders, and
other interested parties with useful information concerning the City's operations and financial position. The City
is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of the data presented in this report.

To the best of our knowledge, the following report is accurate in all material respects. It has been
prepared in accordance with standards prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and other rule-making
bodies. We believe the report contains all disclosures necessary for the reader to understand the City's financial
affairs.

The City Manager, through his appointee, the Assistant City Manager for Financial Services, is
responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure to ensure that the assets of the
government are protected from loss, theft or misuse, as well as to ensure that adequate and reliable accounting
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of accurate financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met, and it is continually modified to
accommodate new technology and other changing conditions. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. In our opinion, the City employs sound
accounting and control policies that fulfill these responsibilities.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related
to those programs. In our opinion, the City employs an appropriate level of control and review procedures to
ensure compliance with all applicable requirements.

We believe that this report is accurately and fairly presented, and that alt disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

Independent audits are an essential element of financial control and accountability. The City Charter
requires an annual audit to be made of the financial records of the City by a Certified Public Accountant selected
by the City Commission. The City has complied with this requirement and the auditors' opinicn has been
included in this report. The auditors performed their examination in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and stated that in their opinion; the financial statements are presented fairly, in ali material
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. Information related to the City's

i
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single audits, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the auditors’ reports on the internal
control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in separate federal and state
"single audit" reports.

To facilitate the study of the City's financial affairs, the CAFR is divided into three parts:
s An introductory section, which includes this letter of transnuittal.

+ A financial section, which includes the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
combining and individual fund statements and related schedules, required supplementary
information regarding budgetary compliance and pension trend data, and other supplementary
information such as details concerning capital assets, investments, ad valorem taxes, and outstand-
ing debt. The report of the independent auditors is focated at the beginning of the financial section
and is followed by Management's Discussion and Analysis. Also provided, as "Supplementary
Information” in the financial section is certain historical and detailed information concerning our
water and sewer system, mvestments by funds, and ad valorem tax schedules.

s A statistical section, which includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. Information included in the statistical section is not part of the
City's financial statements, although the material is part of the CAFR.

Effective with the 2010/11 fiscal year, the City implemented Statement No. 51, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
This statement established accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets to reduce
inconsistencies. The statement considers a variety of assets to be intangible under the guidance put forward by
GASB Statement No. 51, including:

e Computer software: Internally developed or licensed software purchased from external sources.
e Land use rights: Easement, water, timber, mineral rights and other land use rights.

e Intellectual rights: Patents, trademarks and copyrights.

Most of the City's computer software is not internally developed, and the City does not own any patents
or copyrights. The City's intangible assets consist of right-of-way easements. The right-of-way easements have
an indefinite life and, accordingly, are not subject to amortization. GASB Statement No. 51 encouraged
retroactive reporting for intangible assets acquired in fiscal years ending after June 30, 1980; however, it was
not required for intangible assets with an indefinite life. The City elected to report these assets prospectively.
Details relating to the City's intangible assets are provided at Note 6.

This will be our fifth annuval report under the GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Post-
Employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits, Both statements deal with the accounting of post-
employment benefits other than pensions. The City's most significant post-employment benefit, other than the
pension benefit, is that retirees are allowed to continue their medical and dental plan coverage, including
dependant coverage, after retirement. Historically; cities, including the City of Amarillo, have accounted for
other post-employment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go basis. Using the pay-as-you-go method, the benefit
is not recognized during the career of the employee when it was earned. Moreover, the pay-as-you-go method
does not recognize the liability for the future benefit. With the pay-as-you-go method, the expense is recognized
afier employment, which can shift the burden for the expense to different groups of taxpayers or customers.
With GASB 45, the cost of the benefit is recognized as an expense over the working career of the employee and
the related obligation for the future benefit is recognized as a liability. While the City is required to recognize
this cost, the City can still fund the benefit on a pay-as-you go basis. The annual cost and liability for Other Post
Employment Benefits is recognized in our Employee Insurance Fund.



The GASB in their Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting, required some additional
information in the statistical section. This will be seven years of reporting under GASB Statement No. 44.
There are more schedules and more detailed information in the statistical section of the report. The purpose of
GASB Statement No. 44 was to improve the understandability and usefulness of statistical section information
by addressing the comparability problems that have developed in practice and by adding information from the
new financial reporting model for state and local governments required by Statement No. 34. In order to clarify
that the requirements are applicable to all types of state and local governmental entities that prepare a statistical
section, this statement establishes the objectives of the statistical section and the five categories of information it
contains—financial trends information, revenue capacity information, debt capacity information, demographic
and economic information, and operating information. In addition to the items required by GASB Statement
No. 44, we have added a schedule of building permits issued to the demographic and economic information.

Effective with the 2002 fiscal year, the City implemented Statement No. 34 issued by the GASB. This
statement established a new accounting model for governmental entities, which made significant changes in
such matters as fund definitions, measurement focus and basis of accounting. Readers who are familiar with the
City's financial statements for prior fiscal years will notice a significant difference in presentation resulting from
this new standard.

For many years, the City discharged treated effluent wastewater into a playa lake in full compliance
with a State of Texas issued environmental discharge permit. A plume of water developed beneath the playa
and has slowly migrated outward. The most notable quality of this plume is that it contains slightly more
chloride than the ambient groundwater in the vicinity. The City has been monitoring nearby homeowners’ water
wells for about twenty years. When the chloride content tests above a certain amount, the City has routinely
drilled replacement wells that are deeper than the plume and have encased the wells to prevent the plume from
affecting the taste of the well water. The City has also installed reverse osmosis treatment systems for
homeowners to enhance the taste of their well water. The cliloride in groundwater does not meet any state or
federal definition of pollution or contamination; the water is safe to drink. The City intends to continue this
practice in the future as a good neighbor to surrounding homeowners. The City has, accordingly, recorded a
liability of $3.26 million for the future practice of monitoring wells and providing replacement wells and
treatments systems in the Water & Sewer Fund.

Following the report of the independent auditors is Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A").
Although the Securities and Exchange Commission has required public companies to present MD&A for many
years, this requirement, promulgated by Statement No. 34, is new to governmental Tinancial reporting. The
objective of the MD&A is to provide an objective and casily readable analysis of the government's financial
activities based on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. The Statement specifies the topics that must
be included in the MD&A, and we believe that our presentation s in conformity with this new standard.

Profile of the City of Amarillo:

The City of Amarillo is geographically located within the boundaries of both Potter and Randall
Counties in the center of the "Crown" or "Panhandle” of Texas, and now contains an area of 101.26 square
miles. Located on Interstate Highway 40 at the crossroads of a number of other highways and railroad lines, the
City is the trade, banking, transportation, medical services and marketing center of the entire Panhandle, as well
as for portions of New Mexico, Oklahoma, Colerado and Kansas. The estimated 2012 population is 194,375.

In accordance with its current Charter, adopted 1 1913, the City of Amarillo operates under a
commission-manager form of government. As the legislative body, the City Commission is responsible for
enacting all ordinances, resolutions and regulations governing the City, as well as for appointing the members of
the various statutory and ordinance boards, and appointing the City Manager. As chief administrator, the City
Manager s responsible for enforcement of the laws and ordinances, as well as for supervising all offices and
departments created by the City Commission.
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The City provides the full range of municipal services normally associated with a municipality,
including police and fire protection, street paving and maintenance, traffic engineering, enforcement of building
and sanitary codes, a civic center complex, parks, golf courses, swinuning pools and other recreational facilities,
and five public libraries. The City provides solid waste collection and disposal services, and operates a transit
system, which operations are accounted for as general governmental functions. The City maintains the water
and sewer systems and an international airport, the operations of which are accounted for as enterprise funds.

Effective October 1, 2012 the City established a Drainage Utility System. The System encompasses the
entire City. While there was no revenue in 2011/12, the City did incur some expense in preparing the Utility for
October billing.

Overview of the Financial Reporting Entity:

In accordance with governmental accounting standards, various governmental entities with which we
have relationships were evaluated to determine whether they should be reported in the City's combined financial
statements as a part of its reporting entity. Based on standards established by the GASB, an entity should be
considered to be part of the City's reporting entity if it is concluded that the nature and significance of the
relationship between the City and the entity is such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete.

Based on the accounting standards, the financial affairs of the Amarillo Hospital District, the Amarillo
Economic Development Corporation, the Amarillo-Potter Events Venue District, the Amarillo Local
Government Corporation and Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 (TIRZ #1) are reported as component units
in the City's financial statements. The Amarillo Local Government Corporation was created in 2011/12. The
Amarillo Local Government Corporation's mission is to oversee the construction and operation by contract of
the Downtown Convention Hotel, parking garage, and multiple-purpose event venue, on land leased by the
f.ocal Government Corporation from the City. The City appoints the Amarillo Local Government Corporation
Board, approves their budget and is the only funding source for the Corporation. The Amarillo Hospital District
is a separate political subdivision of the State of Texas, but is considered part of the City's financial reporting
entity because the City Commission appoints the District's Board of Managers and has final authority over its
budget and tax rate. Similarty, the Amaritlo Economic Development Corporation is organized as a nonprofit
corporation under the laws of the State of Texas, but is included in the financial statements because of the City
Commission's authority to select its Board of Directors and approve its budget. The Amarillo-Potier Events
Venue District, approved by the voters on January 17, 1998, is considered part of the City's financial reporting
entity because the City's Mayor appoints four of the seven members of the District's Board of Directors.
Moreover, through a facility lease agreement, the City has financial responsibility with respect to the Venue
District's debt service payment(s) if the related tax revenues were not sufficient to make the payment(s).
TIRZ #1 has a ten-member board. The City of Amarillo appoints three board members, Potter County appotnts
three members and Amarillo College, Amarillo Independent School District, Amarillo Hospital District and the
Panhandle Groundwater District each appoint one board member. While TIRZ revenues can be pledged to
support debt, only the City can issue the debt and pledge the TIRZ revenue. Moreover, the City Commission
crealed the TIRZ and has final approval authority on the budget and all TIRZ projects. However, only
summarized information regarding these entities is presented in our financial statements. Complete financial
statements are available in separately issued reports for each of these entities.

The affairs of the Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation are included in our financial reporting entity
because of the City Commission's appointment of its Board of Directors. The activities of this corporation are
limited to issuance of housing bonds under provisions of the Texas Housing Finance Corporation Act, and its
bonds are not general obligations of either the corporation or the City. [t does not publish separate financial
statements. Since none of the component unit operations are integral to the operations of the City, their affairs
are segregated from the financial presentation of the primary government. As provided by the new accounting
model, the aggregate component unit information is reflected "discretely” in the city-wide financial statements.



Operating and Capital Budgets:

Budgetary controls serve two main purposes. First, the annual appropriated budget approved by the
City Commission satisflies our legal obligation to review and adopt an annual budget. Second, budgetary
controls provide management with an effective means of managing the financial activities of a particular
function or department. Activities of the general fund, debt service funds, and major grants in existence at the
beginning of the fiscal year, internal service funds, enterprise funds, and other special revenue funds are
included in the annual budget. The General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Compensated Absences, Public Health
Fund, Law Enforcement Offices Standards and Education Training (LEOSE), Local Seized Property Fund, and
Court Technology Fund, Court Security Fund and the Public Improvement Districts budgets are legally adopted
and represent appropriation of funds. The internal service fund budgets and enterprise fund budgets are for
management purposes only and do not represent appropriations. Grants included in the budget are estimates
included for presentation purposes only to give the budget reader a better understanding of the financial scope of
the entire organization. Budgets are adopted for grant funds at the time formal acceptance of the grants is made
by the City Commission, such budgets generally being adopted for the time period covered by each grant.

The City prioritizes the funding of capital projects on the basis of five-year capital improvement plans.
A capital improvement is any expenditure for the purchase, construction, replacement, expansion, or major
renovation of the physical assets of the City when the project is relatively expensive (more than $25,000), long-
term, and permanent. Some common examples are streets, libraries, traffic signal systems, fire stations,
specialized equipment, and water and sewer lines. Capital needs of less than $25,000 (minor replacement items)
are provided for in the department's annual budget. The first year of the five-year plan is the City's annual
capital budget, which is approved by the City Commission, along with the annual operating budget. Capital
Improvement expenditures are controlled by means of individual project appropriations, and all funds needed to
complete a project are reserved no later than the inception of the project.

As an enhancement of budgetary controls over expenditures, the City also maintains an encumbrance
accounting system, which assures that adequate funds are set aside as commitments are made in the form of
purchase orders. Open encumbrances for both purchase orders and construction contracts are reported as
reservations of fund balances at year-end.

Budget and Financial Reporting:

The City of Amarillo was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
for our 2010/11 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. Moreover,
the CAFR must satisfy generally accepted accounting principles, applicable legal requirements, and the
Government Finance Officers Association's (GFOA) program standards.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to program requirements, and we are submitting it to the review process of GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual
budget document. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government's
budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial
plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. Our latest budget has been submitted for review, and
we expect that our budget will earn the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.

Our most significant financial achievement this year is affirmation by Standard & Poors of the City's
AAA General Obligation debt and upgrading the City's Water & Sewer Revenue Bond debt to AAA. The City
also enjoys Moody's ratings of Aal on both the City's General Obligation debt and Water & Sewer Revenue
bonds. The AAA rating is the Standard & Poors highest rating debt rating. The Aal Moodys' rating is one-third
step below Standard and Poors.



Cash Management and Investments:

State statutes govern the City's investment policies as well as the City's own written investment policy
and strategy. In accordance with State law and the City Investment Policy, the City's investment objectives are
to preserve capital, to provide liquidity, and to optimize earnings within the constraints of capital preservation
and liquidity. City funds are deposited in an FDIC-insured bank located within the City. Permissible
investments include the following:

I. Interest bearing accounts and bank money market accounts at the City's authorized depository.
Certificates of deposits including CDARS (Certificate of Deposit Accounts Registry Service).

2. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. The investment in agencies and
instrumentalities is limited to 75% of the portfolio.

4, No-load money market mutual funds that are continuously rated AAA or AAAm by at least one
nationally recognized rating agency, has a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less,
and seeks to maintain a stable net asset value of §1 per share.

5. Taxable municipal securities rated not less than AA- or its equivalent by a nationally recognized rating
agency. The total investment in taxable municipal securities would be limited to 10% of the pertfolio,
To the extent that the investment in taxable municipal securities is not fully utilized in the portfolio, the
unused portion can be invested in agencies' securities in addition to the 75% limit.

The City will not employ any investment strategy that is inherently risky and will not invest in any
securities that are inherently risky. Prohibited securities include mortgage-backed securities that pay only
interest; mortgage-backed securities that pay only principal; obligations where the interest rate is determined by
an index that adjusts opposite to changes in a market index; obligations related to foreign currency or foreign
markel interest rates or indices and obligations with maturities greater than five years.

The City's demand deposits, time deposits, and certificates of deposits balances that exceed FDIC
insurance are collateralized by securities held by the Federal Reserve. The City uses third party safekeeping for
its investment securities.

The City began using a securities lending program in 2005 as a means to increasing investment income.
Securities are fent to select brokerage firms for which collateral is received that exceeds the fair value of such
investments during the period of the loan. Collateral may be cash or high-quality securities. Securities loans are
initially collateralized at 102 percent of the fair value of the securities lent; the collateral cannot fall below 100
percent during the duration of the loan. Cash collateral received from the borrower is invested by the lending
agent, as an agent for the City, in short-term investments including money market mutual funds. These short-
term investments are included as investments in the statement of net assets for governmental type funds and on
the balance sheet of proprietary funds. The City records a corresponding liability for the return of the cash
collateral held for securities lending in the statement of net assets for governmental type funds and on the
balance sheet of proprietary funds. Since the asset and corresponding liability are equal, the impact on net assets
would be zero. At September 30, 2012, there was no cash collateral held for the securities lending program and,
therefore, there was no adjustment to investments and the corresponding liability.

Long-term Financial Planning:

As mentioned above, in conjunction with cur annual operating budget, we develop a five-year capital
improvements estimate. When feasible, the City uses pay-as-you-go financing for capital. When debt is needed
to finance capital assets, the City strives to schedule bond issues so that level payments are made over no more
than the useful life of the assets. Historically, the excess of revenues over expenditures are earmarked for future
capital needs, and the available resources of the general fund are transferred to capital project funds during the
budgetary process.
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Recent Debt Issuances:

While the City historically uses available funds from the excess of revenues over expenditures to
provide for its major capital improvement needs, our capital needs exceeded our ability to generate internal
funds for capital. Starting in 2007, we had several debt issuances.

Our new air terminal was funded with approximately $23 million from grants, approximately $8 million
from Airport reserves and $16.1 million in Certificates of Obligation. While these certificates have an ad
valoremn tax pledge, it is the City's intention to repay the certificates from an Airport Passenger Facility Charge
(PFC). The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) approved the new $4.50 PFC in 2008. The PFC, along
with some future entitlement funds, should be sufficient to service the Airport Certificates of Obligation, and the
City should not have to levy a tax to support this debt in the future.

Our Potter County Well Field came into service this year. The well field is capable of producing 20 to
22 million gallons of water per day. Eventually, the well field can be expanded to produce about 40 million
gallons per day. The Potter County Well Field project is the largest single capital project in our history. The
Potter County Well Field will be a new water supply for the City of Amarillo. The new well field would be able
to supply the Cily's current water needs without using our surface allocation from Lake Meredith and provide
for future growth. The Water & Sewer System committed $5.7 million to the well field. In 2009, we were
successful in obtaining funds from the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) in two issuances to complete
the project through the Water Infrastructure Fund (WIF) program. In both issuances, the TWDB purchased the
City's Certificates of Obligation and is the only bondholder. The first issuance was for $38,885,000 and the City
received an overall interest rate of 2.10% on 20-vear debt. The City increased its Water & Sewer Rates by 10%
to service the debt. In the second issuance, the City received 1.97% on $47.4 million on 20-year debt.

We added a high service pump station to our water treatment plant. The project was shovel ready and
qualified as a "green" project due to the projected energy savings. Using current pricing, the new pump station
should save approximately $200,000 in electricity. The City was also able to take advantage of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) along with funding from Texas Water Development Board. The City
issued $18,075,000 in Certificates of Obligation at zero percent interest. The project was substantially complete
at the end of calendar year 2011. The City had to increase water & sewer rates by 10% in 2010/11 for the
increased debt service on the Potter County Well Field project and the high service pump station,

2010 Certificates of Obligation:

The City also received funding from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for 2 much-
needed bridge over the BNSF railroad tracks at the intersection of S.E. Third Avenue and Grand Street. Grand
Street is one of the main north-south arterial streets for the east side of Amarillo. When the Grand Street cross-
ing is blocked due to rail traffic, the other main north-south arterial, Eastern Street, is often also blocked, The
proposed bridge would remedy the problem on Grand Street and even help relieve congestion on Lastern Street,
as well. The project is estimated at approximately $9 million, with most of the funding coming from the
Amaritio MPO and TxDOT Amarillo District ARRA funds (about $8.3 million). The balance of the project cost
will be paid from City funds. Potter County contributed $241,000 to the project. The City issued $1,392,000 of
Recovery Zone Build America Bonds, Series 2010 for its portion of the project cost. These bonds were issued
with a true interest cost of 3.194%. The City's portion of the project is $967.472; the balance of the bond
proceeds will be used for street improvement projects within the Recovery Zone.

With the Recovery Zone Buitd America Bonds, the City receives an interest credit of 45% of the interest
paid for each interest payment made. This credit was used in calculating the above, 3.194% true interest cost.
These credits are not exempt from the "fiscal ¢liff" legislation and could be reduced. However, the issue size is
so small; it would not significantly impact the tax rate for debt service.
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2011 Certificates of Obligation:

During January 2011, the City issued the 2011A Certificates of Obligation in the amount of $3,750,000
and the 2011B Certificates of Obligation in the amount of $2,210,000. The proceeds from the 2011 A issue are
for improvements to the Ross Rogers Golf Course. These certificates have a continuing tax pledge, but the City
anticipates that the issue will be repaid from golf course improvement and renovation fees. The proceeds from
the 2001B issue are for improvements in the TIRZ #1. These issues have a continuing tax pledge, but the City
anticipates that the issue will be repaid from revenue generated from the TIRZ #1.

2011 Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds:

In August 2011, the City issued $16.3 million in Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds. The bonds were
issued to purchase additional water rights adjacent to the City's existing water rights in Roberts County. The
City purchased 32,350 acres of water rights in Ochiltree County, which is north of the City's existing water
rights in Roberts County. When the City develops these rights, the City will have a very large contiguous area
to develop,

2012 Debt Issuances:

On December 12, 2012 the City closed on two debt issues. The first debt issue is $6,260,000 in
Combination Tax and Drainage Utility Revenue Certificates of Obligations (COs). The 2012A issue is mainly
for drainage improvements on Farmers Avenue. The City is leveraging state funds and the State will participate
with approximately $1.7 million for paving improvements on the Farmers project. There should still be some
remaining funds for other drainage improvements. In addition to the tax pledge, the Drainage COs have an
unlimited net pledge of the Drainage Utility System of 1.25 times net revenue. The City intends to fund the debt
entirely from the Drainage Utility and not levy a property tax for the COs. Thus, the debt is structured similar to
the City's Water & Sewer revenue debt. The City needed the tax pledge because there had not been one full
month of Drainage Utility revenue when the debt was issued, However, the City needed to fund the Farmer's
project or risk losing State funding.

The second issue in 2012 is to purchase rolling stock for our municipal garage. Rolling stock
replacement was delayed during the recent economic downturn. The 2012B issue has a five-year maturity and
the proceeds will be used to purchase rolling stock with at feast a five-year life, The 2012B issue is for
$2,790,000 in Combination Tax and Sanitation Revenue Certificates of Obligations. The COQOs have a $1,000
limit pledge of Sanitation Revenues and a property tax pledge. The City intends to pay for the COs from
Municipal Garage Rental Revenues and not levy a tax for the debt.

Using the CO structure, the City got very attractive rates on the debt. The 2012A issuance has a 20-year
maturity and has a true interest cost of $1.763%. The 2012B has a five-year maturity and has a true interest cost
of 0.686%.

Our Local Economy:

Historically, major industries of the area include grains, cattle, beef processing, natural gas, oil, helium
and other petroleum by-products, refining operations, and nuclear weapons processing. These industries are still
very important to Amarillo; however, Amaritlo has a more diverse economy. Food processing, defense industry,
manufacturing, distribution, traffic and transportation, general retail, banking, criminal justice, medical facilities,
administrative and back-office operations, and higher education are all important industries in Amarillo.

Amarillo is also a regional trade center for a very large five-state region. Thus, retail sales, banking and
medical services are significant activities in Amaritlo. Moreover, because of Amarillo’s central location in the
United States and being traversed by 1-40, 1-27 and State Highway 287, traffic & transportation and travel &
tourism are important industries to Amarillo.
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Natural gas and petroleum are major industries in the City of Amarillo and the Panhandte. There was a
significant increase in the price of oil compared to last year. According o the dwmarillo Economic Analysis,
prepared by Amarillo National Bank, September 2012 oil was at $87.25 per barrel compared to September 2011
at $76.36 per barrel last yeart”. Natural gas prices dropped compared to last year. Natural Gas was at $3.79 per
mmbtu last year compared to $2.82 per mmbtu at September 2012". Since we are both a producer and a
consumer of natural gas, part of our economy benefits from higher gas prices while it is detrimental to another
part of our economy. Increases in natural gas prices mean higher royalty payments to landowners, but it also
means higher energy costs for our area farmers that use natural gas for irrigation and other industries.

While there is some benefit to lower oil and gas prices to the economy in general, changes in oil and gas
prices have a direct impact on drilling activity in the Panhandle. At September 2008, there were 95" active
drilling rigs in the Panhandle compared to 29% at September 2009 and 74" at September 2010. In September
2011, there were 78 active drilling rigs compared to 75 in 2012,

According to the Texas Cattle Feeders Association, our cattle feeding area produces about 7,000,000 fed
cattle annually, which is about 30% of the nation's beef. Cattle prices have improved in 2012. At September
2012, fed cattle prices were $123 per hundredweight compared to $112.50 per hundredweight in 2011,
However, due to increased costs, fat cattle are losing about $200 per head coming out of the feedyard”.

Dairies have become major industries in the Panhandle. According to FirstBank Southwest's
presentation on Panhandle Economics, dairies have increased from 3,700 head in 2000 to 141,400 in 2009,
September 2012 milk prices dropped to $17.50 per hundredweight from $21.67 a year ago'". However, the

September 2012 milk prices are at their highest levels since January 2012,

The majority of principal area crops cannot be grown without irrigation and natural gas is the main fuel
used for irrigation. The major crops grown in the Panhandle are wheat and corn. This has been a very good
year for farmers and there are some reports of some strong corn crops in the western panhandle with prices at
$7.90 per bushel compared to $7.61 last year. Corn prices have more than doubled compared to 2009.

Wheat prices have also done well. Wheat was at $7.67 per bushel at September 2011 compared to
$8.48 per bushel at September 201207, At September 2010, wheat had significantly increased to $6.37\" per
bushel from $3.94""” at September 2009. Wheat was at $6.43" per bushel at September 2008 and $4.87" per
bushel at September 2006.

Cotton has become a more important crop in our area and cotton prices dropped this year. Cofton was at
$70.40 cents per pound at September 2012 compared to $94 per pound in 201 10 At September 2010, cotton
was at $87.14"" cents per pound compared to $53.5'" cents per pound in 2009, At September 2006, cotton was
at $47.2'" cents per pound compared to $42.1°V cents per pound at September 2005. Historically, cotton has
been grown south of Amarillo. However, new hybrids can be grown in our area.

Our Economic Development Corporation:

In order to diversify and grow our local economy, in 1989 Amarillo citizens approved a %2 percent sales
tax dedicated to the promotion of economic development and financing of industrial, manufacturing, distribution
and regional wholesaling projects that will result in new jobs in Amarillo. The half-cent sales tax currently
generates about $16 million annually. To manage these funds, the Amarillo Economic Development Corpora-
tion {Amarillo EDC) was created and became fully operational when the first tax proceeds were received in June
1990.

The Amaritlo EDC's mission is; "Tao promote business expanston i the greater Amarilio area that builds
a stronger, more diversified economy and increases the economic vitality and wealth of the community.” The
organization accomplishes its mission by attracting new business and industry to the Amarillo area that will cre-
ate skilled, high-wage primary iobs, assisting existing primary business and industry with growth and expansion
plans through a pro-active business retention and expansion program and creating a business environment



conducive to entreprencurialism by providing financial support and technical assistance to primary businesses i
collaboration with partner agencies.

In the past 21 years, the Amarillo EDC has engaged in over 100 projects with over 100 companies,
building a Portfolio of Success. including new industrial locations, retention and expansion and entre-
prencurialism projects. The portfolio includes: 42 retention & expansion projects, 14 relocation projects and 40
entrepreneurialism projects. The Perryman Group, an independent economic consulting firm, recently evaluated
the combined investment each company has contributed to the community. The study stated, "The Amarillo
EDC has successfully attracted new businesses to the local area and encouraged existing firms to stay and
expand. In fact, about one in three jobs in the local area is linked to a company the Amarillo EDC has assisted
in some way. The long-term economic vitality of Amaritlo and the surrcunding area have clearly been enhanced
by the Amarillo EDC."

Amarillo EDC's Five Target Industries:

1. Aviation/Acrospace — Aircraft Manufacturing; Aircraft Engine and Engine Parts Manufacturing. The
Amarillo EDC will continue efforts to market to the suppliers of current Amarillo aviation companies
encouraging support industry to flourish. Portfolio of Success: Bell Helicopter, TACAir, Tradewind
Turbines, Leading Edge Aviation Services, Headsets Inc.

2. Business & Financial Services — Companies continue to search for strong work ethic and favorable
natural conditions that will allow for a secure location for their sensitive business operations. Amarillo
provides both for interested prospects. Porifolio of Success: AlG-Western National Life, Nationwide
Insurance, SITEL, Dental Network of America, CS Stars.

3. Diversified Manufacturing ~ Primary Metal Industries, Fabricated Metal Products, Industrial Machin-
ery, Electronics and Instruments. Companies under this category manufacture mid-value, mid- to-high
bulk products, which are under extreme pressure to reduce costs.  Portfolio of Success: Sage Oil Vac,
GTM, Tech Spray, SciCron Technologies, and Alstom Power, Inc.

4, Transportation & Logistics — Amarillo's transportation assets are well suited for this industry.
Companies are currently looking for ways to reduce cost by locating within the central part of the
United States. Portfolio of Success: Ben E. Keith, Affiliated Foods, Hastings, Anderson Merchandisers,
and AmeriCold Logistics.

5. Food Technologies — Amarillo's location, industry clusters and resources are well suited for this
industry. Portfolio of Success: Tyson, Plains Dairy, Hilmar Cheese Company, and Pacific Cheese o,

Major Industries and Employers:

The Amarillo Chamber of Commerce lists 29 employers with 400 or more employees in Amarillo. This
is a very diverse group of employers cousisting of governmental entities, manufacturing, defense, industry, food
processing, healthcare, peneral retail, traffic & transportation, energy companies, public utilities, higher educa-
tion, financial services, retirement services, the travel industry and computer services®™

Two of our largest employers are in the defense industry: Bell Helicopter and B&W Pantex. The
Pantex Plant, located 17 miles northeast of Amarillo, in Carson County, is charged with maintaining the safety,
security and reliability of the nation's nuclear weapons stockpile. The Pantex Plant is managed and operated by
B&W Pantex for the U.S. Department of Energy/National Nuclear Security Administration. Pantex's work fails
within three main missions: Stockpile Stewardship. Nonproliferation and Safeguards and Security. As stewards
over the nation's nuclear stockpile weapons, Pantex evaluates, retrofits, and repairs weapons in support of both
life-extension programs and certification of weapons safety and reliability. Pantex also develops, tests, and
fabricates high-explosive components for weapons. Pantex dismantles surplus weapons, sanitizes components
from dismantled weapons and provides interim storage and surveillance of plutonium pits in conjunction with
their Nonproliferation mission. Pantex's safeguard and security mission entails protecting the Plant personnel,



facilities, materials and information. Al work at Pantex is carried out under these overarching priorities: the

security of weapons and information, the safety and health of workers and the public, and the protection of the
. . 3

environment . Approximately 3,233 people are employed at Pantex .

In 1998, Bell Helicopter announced their decision to locate the Bell Helicopter Tiltrotor Assembly Cen-
ter in Amarillo, Texas. Initial investment was $30,000,000 along with the construction of a world-class facility.
In this short period of time, the invested amount in this facility has surpassed $100,000,000. Amarillo is very
proud of Bell Helicopter and the continued success their company has created for the region. Bell Helicopter's
Military Aircraft Assembly Center in Amarillo is building the revolutionary V-22 Osprey, the Kiowa and Huey
military helicopters . The V-22 has the speed of an airplane and the hovering of a helicopter ®. The Amarillo
EDC issued bonds to help with the project. Under the terms of the lease, Bell's lease payment is abated so long
as they meet local compensation and spending requirements.

According to a September 27, 2012 Globe News article, Bell will also build the new Relentless 525
civilian helicopter in Amaritlo. According to Bell officials, the Relentless 525 helicopter in Amarillo will help
stabilize the plant's work force even if military aircraft production slows. Bell officials estimated civilian
aircraft production would add 100 jobs in Amarillo. However, if defense cuts impact the plant, military aircraft
workers can switch fo civilian aircraft production, thus stabilizing the workforce. Potential uses for the aircraft
include offshore oil and gas exploration, firefighting, emergency medical flights, paramilitary operations and
hauling corporate VIPs. Earlier this year, City officials approved a $4.2 million AEDC investment in the new
plant. Textron, Bell's parent company, will pump the remaining $22.8 million into the new 249,000-square-foot
production plant near Rick Husband Amarillo International Airport. According to the article, Bell currently
employs 1,462 in the Amarillo operations.

ASARCO was organized in 1899 as American Smelting and Refining Company. Originally a
consolidation of a number of lead-silver smelting companies, the Company has evolved over the years into an
integrated producer of copper and other metals. Asarco’s Amarillo Copper Refinery is among the world's most
modern. The refinery is recognized internationally as an important producer and supplier of copper. The
Company's Amarillo Copper Refinery in Amarillo together with the SX/EW plants at the Ray and Silver Bell
mines produce approximately 375,000,000 pounds of refined copper per year. ASARCO employs 3457
workers in Amarillo.

Other manufacturing operations in Amarillo include Owens Corning Fiberglass, which employs about
433 people. Owens Corning produces fiberglass for building products. Amaritlo Gear has been in continual
operation in Amarillo since 1917 and manufactures the largest range of spiral bevel right-angle gear drives in

the world since 1934, Amarillo Gear is a Marmon Walter/Berkshire Hathaway Company " and employs 160,

Merrick Pet Care, Inc. was founded in 1968 and produces pet food products for dogs and cats. The
company offers its products through pet specialty stores and online retailers in the United States. Merrick Pet
Care, Inc. employs 350,

International Paper Company produces containerboard packaging in Amarillo and employs 101%
people. Arden Corporation produces cushions for patio furniture and employs 130", Tech Spray specializes in
cleaners, coatings, and other chemicals and tools that improve efficiency, safety, and performance @Y Tech
Spray employs about 118", Crouse-Hinds is a division of Copper Industries. Cooper Crouse-Hinds has grown
into a diversified worldwide provider of electrical products that perform reliably and safely in harsh and

hazardous environments. Cooper Crouse-Hinds employs 108 in Amarillo'”.

Food distribution is also an important industry to Amarillo. Affiliated Foods employs 1,200% workers
in its facility. Ben E. Keith, a distributor of food service products, employs 250% persons. Our largest single
employer is also in the foed industry. Tyson Foods has 3,700% employees operating its plant in northeast
Amarillo.
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Both ranching and cattle feeding are important 1o our area. There are several advantages to cattle
feeding operations in our area. ‘The area's central location reduces transportation costs. There are locally grown
feed grains and volume shipments from the Midwest which ensure a plentiful supply of feed. Relatively mild
winters and good summer weather have helped the three-state area earn its reputation as "Cattle Feeding
Country.” Local lenders in the area understand the industry and are willing partners. According to the Texas
Cattle Feeders Association, 30% of the nation's beef is produced in the Texas Panhandle. Both Cactus Feeders
and Friona Industries are headquartered in Amarillo. Cactus Feeders has ten large-scale cattle feed yards across
the Texas High Plains and Southwest Kansas. Since its founding in 1975, Cactus Feeders has grown into a $750
million company that employs approximately 500 people. Cactus Feeders is the world's largest cattle feeding
operation . Founded in 1962, Friona Industries owns four feed yards in northwestern Texas with a feeding
capacity of more than 290,000 head of cattle ™. Friona Industries employs 1787,

Amarillo is a regional medical center for a five-state geographic region and the healthcare industry is
one of the largest employers in Amarillo. The Harrington Regional Medical Center in Amaritlo was the first
specifically designated city hospital district in Texas. From the beginning, the Medical Center was planned to
include health care, the training of doctors and nurses, and medical research programs. The Harrington
Regional Medical Center had 410-acre campus and was supported by the Don and Sybil Harrington Regional
Medical Center at Amarillo, had 22 resident facilities, five acute care units (High Plains Baptist Hospital,
Northwest Texas Hospital, Psychiatric Pavilion, Department of Veterans Affairs Medical Center, and Texas
Panhandle Mental Health Authority-Crisis Stabilization Unit), three long-term care units (Texas Department of
Mental Health and Mental Rehabilitation Amarillo State Center, Bivins Memorial Nursing Home, and Texas
Panhandle Mental Health Authority-Outpatient Facility), four education and research units (Don Harrington
Discovery Center, Texas A&M Agricultural Research and Extension Center, Texas A&M Veterinary Diagnostic
Laboratory, and Amarillo Garden Center), six medical and health related units (Coffee Memorial Blood Center,
Amarillo Speech, Hearing and Language Center, Children's Rehabilitation Center, and Potter/Randall County
Medical Society, Ronald McDonald House, and Medical Center Park), three combination patient care, medical
research, and medical education units (Texas Tech Universily Regional Academic Health Sciences Center,
Texas Tech Clinic, and Don and Sybil Harrington Cancer Center), and one medical center support facility {child
care facility for children of employees)!'”.

The Medical Center complex is home to several of our major employers: Baptist St. Anthony's Health
Care System with 2,330 employees and Northwest Texas Healthcare System with 1,393% employees. Both
Baptist St. Anthony's Health System (BSA) and Northwest Texas Healthcare System (NWTHS) offer integrated
acute care hospitals. BSA offers a full range of medical and surgical services at their 451-bed®” acute care
patient facility located within the Harrington Regional Medical Center. BSA is also a partner in Physicians
Surgical Hospitals, LLP, which offers two additional acute care hospital facilities near the Medical Center'V.

Northwest Texas Healthcare System (NWTHS) is a designated tertiary care academic institution. The
hospital provides physicians and patient diagnosis and treatment of the most acute clinical conditions. The
emergency department is a certified Level-IIl Trauma Center and sees approximately 57,000 patients annually.
NWTH has 404-bed general medical hospital, a community health center including an 85-bed behavioral health
facility”. NWTHS is one of our largest taxpayers.

Our VA Medical Center employs approximately 860 people. The Amarillo VA Health Care System, a
division of the Southwest VA Health Care Network, provides primary specialty, and extended care of the
highest quality to veterans throughout the Texas and Oklahoma panhandles, eastern New Mexico, and southern
Kansas. Approximately 25,000 patients are treated annually. The health care system maintains 69 acute care
inpatient beds for general medical, surgical, and intensive care. Geriatric and extended care is provided in the
120-bed skilled nursing home care unit. A modern ambulatory care center and medical arts building facilitates
the delivery of primary care, specialty care and preventive health services. The Amarillo VA Health Care
System also ensures health care is accessible to those veterans residing in rural areas through three community-

based outpatient clinics focated in Lubbock, Clovis, New Mexico, and Liberal, Kansas™.
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Other large medical employers include the Texas Panhandle Centers Behavioral & Developmental with
415" employees, the Plum Creek Specialty Hospital with 300 employees, Panhandie Eye Group with 149
employees, the Amarillo Diagnostic Clinic with 190" employees, Family Medicine Centers with 242"
employees, Amarillo Heart Group with 155" employees, the Don & Sybil Harrington Cancer Center with 165
employees, Kindred Hospital, Amarillo 147 employees, Regence Health Network with 165 employees and
Physicians Surgical Hospitals with 123" employees.

Mild weather, excellent medical facilities, and low living costs make Amariilo an excellent location for
retirement living. There are several large retirement communities in Amarillo including Baptist Community
Services with 400” employees, Park Central Retirement Community with 3009 emplovees, Ussery-Roan Texas
State Veterans Home with 100 employees, Bivins Memorial, the Craig Methodist Retirement Community with
140" employees, and Ware Living Center with 1417 employees.

Administrative and back-office operations are also included in Amarillo's major employers. Western
National Life Insurance Company provides fixed annuity products through financial institutions in the United
States. The company was founded in 1944 and is based in Amarillo, Texas. Western National Life Insurance
Company operates as a subsidiary of AIG (American International Group, Inc.)"". Western National Life
employs about 1,002 people.

For 27 vyears, Insurance Management Services (IMS) has been a leader in Health Benefit
Administration for employer groups of all sizes. IMS is locally owned and operated exclusively out of
Amarillo ™ and employs 107%. IMS started as a small business with manual claims administration and has
evolved into a full-service Third Party Administrator with 45,000 covered lives ™.

Major retail stores draw customers from a wide region into our city. Amarillo is currently home to
four Wal-Mart supercenters and a Sam's Club. Wal-Mart employs a total of 1,099 people and Sam's Club
employs 150, United Supermarkets is a large employer and employs a total of 466" in their seven stores in
Amarillo. Toot'n Totum has several convenience stores in Amariflo and employs 700%, Founded in 1968,
Hastings Entertainment, Inc. is a feading muitimedia entertainment retailer that combines the sale of new and
used books, videos, video games and CDs, and trends and consumer electronics merchandise, with the rental
of videos and video games in a superstore format. Hastings currently operates 146 superstores, averaging
approximately 24,000 square feet, primarily in medivm-sized markets throughout the United States.
Hastings also operates an e-commerce Internet Web site that makes available entertainment products'?. The
Hastings retail chain headquarters is located in Amarillo and has 510 employees.

Customer support and back office operations are also large employers. SITEL has telemarketing
services in Amarillo and employs 337%. Anderson Merchandisers has 338 employces. Maxor National
Pharmacy Services Corporation is a pharmacy benefit management company headguartered in Amarillo and
has 172% employees. The American Quarter Horse Association is also headquartered in Amarillo and
employs 302 The Atmos Energy customer support center in Amarillo employs 333%.  Nationwide
Insurance also has a customer support center in Amarillo with 430™ employees. AT&T is also one of our

larger employers with 320 employees.

MecCoy Myers was acquired by Computer Services, Inc (CSI) in 2005 and is now under the CSI brand.
CSI has a data center operation in Amarillo and offers both in-house and outsourced turnkey data center
services to banks ', CSTemploys 1 13 people.

Amarillo also serves as a regional banking center. Bank of America, Citibank, Chase and Wells Fargo
have branches in Amarillo, along with regional banks and local banks. The banking industry is very
important to Amarillo and banks are some of our larger employers. Amarillo National Bank is on our list of
top ten taxpayers and employs approximately 558 Wells Fargo employs approximately 1007; Bank of
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America employs 1ﬁ()5m. FirstBank Southwest employs 78, Herring Bank employs 125 and Happy State
Bank employs 263,

The Texas Department of Criminal Justice has two prison units in Amarillo and is a major emplover.
The two prisons provide 1,246 jobs.

Higher education is a major employer in the Amarillo area. Our community college, Amarillo
College, offers both vocational training and associate degree programs and has 644% employees. Texas
Tech University has a large presence in our community. The Texas Tech Health Science Center in Amarillo
has both a medical school and pharmacy school in Amarillo and employs 962", Texas Tech University
provides training in our community for medical doctors earning specialty accreditation in family medicine.
Texas Agrilife Research & Extension Center employs 787, West Texas A&M University in nearby Canyon,
which is a part of the Texas A&M University System, employs 755", West Texas A&M also has a campus
in Amarillo.

As mentioned earlier, the oil and gas industry is important in the Panhandle and energy companies are
also major employers. Centergas Fuels, Inc. employs 250, Valero Energy Corp. employs 105% and
Davidson Oil Company employs 108",

The traffic and transportation industry has been important to Amarillo from its beginning in 1887.
Amarillo was founded near a bend in the Fort Worth and Denver (FW&D) Railroad tracks, which were under
construction. The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is still one of our major employers with 830%
employees. Trucking is also important to Amarillo. Baldwin Distributing Services, Inc, and Plains
Transportation, Inc. are also in the trucking industry; Baldwin employs 150 and Ptains employs 101,
Support for the trucking industry is a larger employer in Amarillo and includes companies like Amarilio
Truck Center, which employs 112, Roberts Truck Center with 76" employees, and Bruckner's with 70%
eniployees.

Today, Amarillo's airport has the third longest commercial runway in the world. There are numerous
direct daily flights from Amarillo to major hub airports having direct flights to foreign countries. You can get to
Dallas-Ft. Worth Regional Airport in one hour; Houston Intercontinental in about an hour and a half, Denver
International in an hour; Las Vegas in two hours; and LAX in four hours. Amarillo is a hub for major highways
that connect to the rest of the region; [-40 to Oklahoma City and Albuquerque, U.S. 287 to Dallas and Fort
Worth and U.S. 87 to Denver'”.

Because of Amarillo's location on Interstate 40, Interstate 27, and State Highway 287; along with
attractions in and nearby Amarillo, hospitality and tourism are significant industries. Approximately eight
million people travel through Amarillo annually and dine in over 500 local restaurants. The Amarillo hotel
industry has 86 hotels with over 5,100% rooms to rent. One of our farger employers is a hotel facility. The
Ambassador Hotel employs 120 people. Amarillo has an amusement park and an art museum. The American
Quarter Horse Museum is located on Interstate 40. The Panhandle Plains State Historical Museum is in nearby
Canyon, Texas. Palo Duro Canyon and the Alibates Flint Quarry are also nearby. Wonderland Amusement
Park is located in north Amarillo.

Two of the larger employers are engineering firms.  Talon/LPE is a full-service environmental
consulting and engineering corporation and employs 95, while Zachry Engineering Inc. employs 185" The
construction industry is also a major employer. J. Lee Milligan, Inc. employs 225%, L. A. Fuller & Sons
Construction Inc. employs 150 and Denman Building Products, LTD employs 100 people.

In summary, Amarillo's tocal economy is broadly diversified. While Amarillo has several large indus-
tries and employers, no single industry or emplayer dominates the Amarillo economy.
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Current Economic Climate and Trends:

Amarillo has fared much better than most cities during the recent recession. We had netther a reduction
in service nor any reduction in available hours to our citizens. In 2011, the City's Water & Sewer revenue debt
was upgraded to AAA by Standard & Poors. Amarillo is one of the few cities that has AAA General Obligation
debt and AAA Water & Sewer revenue debt by Standard & Poors.

The recovery has been most dramatic on our sales tax. We had another record high in 2011/12 besting
the previous record in 2010/11 fiscal year. Our 2011/12 sales tax was $48.3 miltlion compared to $46 million in
2010/11. Moreover, every month in 2011/12 exceeded the corresponding month in the previous year. Generally,
sales tax is erratic on a month-to-month basis, with some months exceeding their corresponding previous year
month and some months being down compared to their corresponding previous year month. Amarillo also had
another record year in hotel occupancy tax revenue. Our 2011/12 hotel tax revenue was over $5 million
compared te last year's revenue of $4.8 million.

Unemployment has also improved. Amarillo's unemployment rate is 4.4% compared to 5.9% last year
and 5.8% the year before ", However, Amarillo's unemployment was better than the State of Texas at 6.8% and
our national unemployment at 7.8 % '%.

We had another good year in our water and sewer fund. Rates were increased by 6% to fund the debt
service on our portion of the CRMWA water rights and the City of Amarillo water rights purchase. The total
increased need is 11% with 5% in 2011/12 and another 5% in 2012/13. 2011/12 water and sewer revenue was
$69.76 million in utility sales and service revenue and operating income of $22.4 million. After nonoperating
costs of $6.4 million, the water and sewer fund netted $15.9 million compared to $27.6 million in 2010/11.
However, the City sold a portion of the water rights purchased in 1954 in Hartley County in 201/11 for a net
gain of $6.9 million. Most of the City's water rights are in Roberts County, and we did not feel that the City
would develop the Hartley County rights.

Our property tax base continues to grow. Moreover, the base did not decrease during the recesston. As
of January 2011, we had just over $10.3 billion in value compared to approximately $10 billion the previous
years. In 2011/12, the City had $155 million in property value compared to $157 million in 2010/11.

Building was very flat in 2011/12. The City had $192.5 million in permits compared to $192.3 million
in 2010/11. Commercial permits increased to $56.5 million in 2011/12 compared to $48.3 million in 2010/11,
but residential permits decreased. Residential permits were at $136 million in 2011/12 compared to $143.9
million in 2010/11. However, 2011/12 residential permits were better than 2009/10 (§128 million) and 2008/9
($124.9 million).

For our 2011/12 budget, sales tax 1s estimated at $46 million, which is about the same as actual 2010/11.
However, at the time we were building the budget, it was a slight increase over our revised forecast. Other
revenues were left relatively flat for the 2011/12 budget. We had a one cent increase in our property tax rate in
the 2011/12 budget. Most of the tax increase will go toward maintaining and repairing our streets.

Amarilto continues to enjoy strong sales tax receipts and increasing property values. Amarillo has a
very goad quality of life and a lot of opportunity. Amarillo has a strong diversified economy with plenty of
jobs. We have major employers and industries for professionals, skilled craftsman, and laborers. Amarillo has
the best-funded Economic Development Corperation in the State and Chamber of Commerce to help attract and
retain industry and support tourism. Amarillo has great public education and higher education. Amarillo has
excellent medical facilities and very nice retirement facilities. We are well represented by national, regional,
and focal banks. Retail availabifity is diverse and strong in Amarillo; anything you need and most everything
you want can be found in Amarillo. We have amusement parks, regional parks, and neighborhood parks. We
have sports teams, museumns, arca lakes, and other attractions. In short, Amarillo is a great place to live and
work.
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We wish to thank the Mayor and members of the City Commission for their responsible manner of
conducting the financial operations of the City.

Yours very truly,

Dean Frigo W. JarTett Atkinson

Assistant City Manager for Financial Services City Manager
City of Amarillo, Texas City of Amarillo, Texas
Sources:

(1)  Amarillo Economic Analysis, courtesy of Amarillo National Bank
(2) B&W Pantex

(3) Amarillo Chamber of Commerce includes only full-time employees
(4) Cactus Feeders

(5) Friona Industries

(6) Amarillo VA Health Care System

(7)  Amarillo Economic Development Corporation

(8) Bell Helicopter

(9) Harrington Regional Medical Center

(10) Amarillo Gear

(11) Western National Life

(12) Hastings

(13) Insurance Management Services

(14) Baptist St. Anthony's Hospital

(15) Northwest Texas Hospital

(16) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

(17) Computer Services, Inc

(18) Texas State Historical Association

(19) U.S. News Health Hospitals

(20) Tech Spray
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CONNOR ® McMILLON ¢ MITCHELL® SHENNUM
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Amarillo, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Amarillo, Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of September 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 22,
2013 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules of funding progress on pages 5
through 21, page 102, and 103 through 105 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
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during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coliectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining statements,
schedules and other information, supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining
statements, schedules and other information, and supplementary information are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or o the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Conmert), Fhe e tlon, fruterotl < 58 en numes PLAC

Amarillo, Texas
January 22, 2013
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Amarillo's (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAIR) presents an
overview, through Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), of the City's financial activities and
performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. As the management of the City of
Amarillo, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.

Financial Highlights:

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $779.25
million {net assets). Of this amount, $696.25 million is invested in capital assets and infra-
structure net of related debt. $11.28 million of this amount is restricted for debt service and other
purposes. The remaining $71.72 million is unrestricted net assets.

The City's total net assets increased by $11.20 million. Of this amount, $6.43 million decrease is
atiributable to governmental activities, and an increase of $17.63 million is attributable to net
operating revenues of the water and sewer system and airport fund, which revenues are
attributable to rates/fees established to fund both current operating needs and future development.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $100.17 million, an increase of $220,665 from the beginning fund
balance. The General Fund's fund balance increased by $2.46 million. The decrease in fund
balance for capital projects funds was $710,535. This decrease was a result of construction starts
associated with issuing $25 million in Certificates of Obligation and transfers from the General
Fund. Decreases in other governmental funds, which include many grants and special revenue
funds, were $1.53 million.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for the General Fund was $46.26 million, or
34.31% of total general fund expenditures. Expenditures and transfers out of the General Fund
were $143.94 million, which amounts included transfers of general revenues to capital outlay,
compensated absences, internal service funds, grant funds, and other funds which carry out
general governmental operations. The General Fund remains in good financial condition with
unassigned fund balance of $44.34 million.

General Fund revenues had a marked increase over the previous fiscal year. The City recorded a
record level of sales tax collections for fiscal year 2012. Total sales tax collections exceeded $48
million. The City continues to see strong sales tax collections into the first quarter of the 2012/13
fiscal year. This trend is being seen in most Texas cities despite the continued weak national
cconomy and high unemployment rates in most parts of the country. Management keeps a close
watch on sales tax collections to assist in making changes during the year, if needed. The City
also had a record year for hotel occupancy tax revenue in 2011/12, recording slightly over
$5 million.

In August 2011, the City issued $16.3 million in Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds. The bonds
were issued to purchase additional water rights in fiscal year 2011/12. The City purchased
34,609.52 acres of water rights in Ochiltree, Roberts and Lipscomb Counties. When the City
develops these rights, the City will have a very large contiguous area to develop.



e During the current year the City Commission approved the creation of a Drainage Utility Fund to
be used for drainage improvements. The residential rate structure includes Smatl, Typical and
Large classifications, The Typical classification represents fifty percent of parcels in the City
with a monthly fee of $2.51. All nonresidential properties will be billed at $2.51 for every 2,800
square feet of impervious cover on the property. Assessments begin October I, 2012 and we
anticipate for the first year this new fee will generate approximately $4.5 million in additional
revenue.

s On December 12, 2012 the City closed on two debt issues. The first debt issue is $6,260,000 in
Combination Tax and Drainage Utility Revenue Certificates of Obligations (COs). The 2012A
issue is mainly for drainage improvements cn Farmers Avenue. The City is leveraging State
funds and the State will participate with about $1.7 million for paving improvements on the
Farmers project. There should still be some remaining funds for other drainage improvements.
In addition to the tax pledge the Drainage COs have an unlimited net pledge of the Drainage
Utility System of 1.25 times net revenue. The City intends to fund the debt entirely from the
Drainage Utility and not levy a property tax for the COs. Thus, the debt is structured similar to
our Water & Sewer revenue debt. The City needed the tax pledge because we did not have one
full of month Drainage Utility revenue when the debt was issued. However, we needed to fund
the Farmer's project or risk losing State funding. The second debt issue is to purchase rolling
stock for the City's municipal garage.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

Effective October 1, 2001, the City adopted the provisions of Statement No. 34 issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial presentation promulgated by that
statement is very different from the governmental financial presentation that was generally accepted
before the issuance of Statement No. 34. This discussion is intended to serve as an introduction to the
City's basic financial statements presented in conformity with the new accounting standard.

The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition fo the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The governmeni-wide financial siatementy are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the finances of the City in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as met assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities — functions of the
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues - from busimess-type
activities — functions of the City that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges. The governmental activities of the City include public safety, streets and
traftic, culture and recreation, solid waste, transit, urban redevelopment and tourism, as well as general
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government and staff services. The business-type activities of the City include a water and sewer system
and an international airport.

In addition to the financial statements of the City, the government-wide financial statements include
information concerning six legally separate entities that are part of the City's financial reporting entity
because of the City's oversight responsibility for their affairs. These entities include the Amarillo
Hospital District, the Amarillo Econromic Development Corporation, the Amarillo-Potter Events Venue
District, the Amarillo Housing Financial Corporation, Amarille Local Government Corporation and the
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1. This information is presented separately from that of the primary
governmeni (the City of Amarillo) because such component units are not fegally or functionaily an
integral part of the City.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City like other state and
local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. Al of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: government funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Government funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Accordingly, these statements do not reflect capital assets or long-term debt,
and they report capital outlay as opposed to depreciation and report proceeds and principal reductions of
long-term debt as sources and expenditures which increase or decrease fund balance. Such statements are
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statement. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the govermmental fund balance sheet and the governmentai fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

In addition to a general fund, the City maintains special revenue funds, 2 debt service funds, 10 capital
projects funds, and 1 permanent fund. These funds have been categorized as either major or non-major
based on the significance of their financial position or operations. For the current fiscal year,
management has determined that the General Fund and the Capital project funds meet the criteria for
major fund classification.

The City adopts annual appropriated budgets for most funds, other than funds controlled by the five-year
capital improvement program or funds controlled by project-fength grant budgets.

Proprictary funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer system and for its
international airport. [nrernal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among a governmental entity's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to
account for its fleet of vehicles, its management information systems, and its general and employee health
self-insured programs. Because over 80% of these services benefit govermmental functions as opposed to



husiness-type functions, their net assets and unallocated (investment) earnings have been included with
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benetit of parties outside
of the government. Fiduciary funds are wof reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The
accounting used for fiductary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund
statements can be found on pages 38 and 39 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information: As the budgetary comparison schedules of the major governmental funds are not a
part of the basic financial statements, this information is presented after the footnotes as reguired
supplementary information. This report also presents required supplemeniary information concerning the
City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its firefighters through the
Firemen's Retirement and Relief Fund and its other employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement
System and its progress in funding other postemployment benefits.

Government-Wide Financiat Analysis:

Changes in assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. Prior to
the effective date of Statement No. 34 issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, capital
assets used in governmental fund activities were accounted for in a "general fixed assets group of
accounts” and were not depreciated. Effective with its adoption of Statement No. 34 as of October 1,
2001, the City computed the accumulated depreciation on all governmental activity capital assets,
including infrastructure. Therefore, changes in assets of both governmental and business-type activities,
including capital assets as well as current assets, provide meaningful information to the reader, The table
below reflects the City's net assets as of September 30, 2012 compared to the prior year:

City of Amarilio, Texas - Net Assets
{in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Percent
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Current assets 5168245 § 168,496 $ 51820 5 48932 $ 220065 F 217,478 18.17%
Restricted assets 3671 - 33,768 65,446 37,439 85 446 3.08%
Capital assets 352 877 346,628 601,353 532,587 953 930 BY9,083 78.73%
Total asseis $524493 $ 515,022 $ 686,941 § 646,985 $1.211,434  $1.162,007 10000%
Current fiabilities $ 21225 % 22613 $ 23753 § 24560 $ 44978 & AT T3 10.41%
Nencurrent liabilities 142,182 126,269 245,021 221,892 387,203 348,161 89.59%
Total liabilities § 163,407 § 148882 $ 268,774 § 246452 $ 432,181 § 395334 100.00%
Netassets:
Invested in capital asseis
net of retated debt $ 320391 § 308957 $ 375863 § 363,032 $ 696254 $ 671,988 B8935%
Reservedfrestricted 5576 4,707 5,703 6,021 11,278 7,728 1.45%
Unrestricted 35,119 55476 36,601 31,480 71,720 856 956 9.20%
Total net assets $ 361,086 $ 366140 $ 418,187 $ 400,533 $ 779,263 § 7668673 10000%




The City's net assels increased by $11.20 million during the current fiscal year. The following table

reflects the eleinents of this change:

City of Amarillo, Texas - Changes in Net Assets
(in thousands}

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total Percent
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 43,109 & 42,571 § 78632 § 77444 & 121,741 § 120015  4527%
Operating granis
and contributions 19,724 19,658 - - 19,724 19,858 7.33%
Capital grants
and contributions 12,682 3,889 7,698 8,410 20,580 12,209 7.65%
General revenues:
Property taxes 35,102 33,349 - - 36,102 33,349 13.42%
Other taxes 59,693 57,331 - - 69,893 67,331 25.98%
Gain on saie of property - - - 6,975 - 6,875 0.00%
Invastment earnings, ete. 735 1,111 217 206 952 1,317 035%
Total revenues 182,245 168,109 86,747 93,035 268,992 261,144 100.00%
Expenses:
General/staff services 15,527 15,303 - - 15,527 15,303 6.02%
Public safety 87,643 82,194 - - 87,643 82,194  34.00%
Streetsfraffic 21680 20,357 - - 21,680 20357 8.41%
Culture and recreation 25808 24,380 - - 25,808 24,380 10.01%
Solid waste 13,734 13,212 - - 13,734 13212 5.33%
Transit 5,122 4,703 - - 5,122 4,703 1.99%
Tourism/ urban deveiopment 14,627 16,837 - - 14,627 16,937 567%
Information technology 2,704 2538 - - 2,704 2538 1.05%
Interest on long-term debt 2,218 2,350 - - 2,218 2,350 0.86%
Water and sewer - - 58,280 52,873 58,280 52,873 2261%
Drainage utility - - 47 - a7 - 0.02%
Airport - - 10,389 8,480 10,389 8,480 4.03%
Total expenses 189,063 181,874 68,726 651,353 257,789 243,327  100.00%
Excess (deficiency} before transfers {6,818) (13,865} 18,021 31,682 11,203 17,817
Transfers 387 1 (387) (1) - -
Change in netassets {6,431) (13,864) 17,634 31,681 11,203 17,817
Net assets, beginning 366,140 380,004 400 533 368,852 768,673 748,856
Prior period adjustment (see Note 1) 1,377 - - - 1,377 -
Net assels, beginning, as restated 367,517 380,004 400,533 363,852 768,050 748,856
Net assets, ending $361,086 $ 388,140 3 418,187 § 400,533 $ 779,253 § 7BGGY3

Governmental activities: Unrestricted net assets of the Governmental Activities were $35.12 million. Of
this amount, approximately $37.56 million is reserved for capital projects. Unrestricted net assets of the
Business-type Activities, which are comprised of the Water and Sewer Fund, Drainage Utility Fund and
the Airport Fund, totaled $36.6 million. The unrestricted net assets of the Business-type Activities are
used to provide working capital and fund capital projects.

The decrease in net assets for the Governmental Activities is attributable to the allocated cost of
postemployment benefits required under GASB 45. Additional decreases in net assets were attributable
to increased liability for compensated absences, accrual of self insurance losses, increased tong term debt
and depreciation of capital assets.

The accompanying bar chart entitled Expenses vs. Revenues — Governmental Activities - reflects the
extent to which each of the major governmental functions of the City is supported by revenues destgnated
for that purpose. These revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, and citizen
participations and contributions. Charges for services include fees of the solid waste disposal utility and

9



transit system, revenues of the auditorium-coliseum complex and park department, and permits, licenses,
and fines. For the current vear, expenses of the governmental functions were in the total amount of
$189.06 million. Program revenues consisting of charges for services, operating grants, and capital grants
were in total amount of $75.51 million, resulting in a net cost of governmental functions in amount of
$113.55 million to be supported by general revenues of the City which include property taxes and sales
tax revenue. General revenues totaled $106.95 million. General revenues and program revenues
combined were $182.63 million representing total revenues derived from governmental activities.

The chart below titled Expenses vs. Revenues Governmental Activities shows the expenses and revenues
by activity. For most activities, expenses exceed revenues. General revenues such as sales tax and prop-
erty taxes are used to fund most of the governmental activities.

Expenses vs Revenues
Governmental Activities

Expenses
Activity B Revenues

The accompanying pie chart entitled Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities — reflects the major
components of both revenues as described above ($179.93 million).

Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities

Gainonsaie

0% Investment
Other taxes sarpings

12% 0%

Chargesfor
services
24%

Cperating
grants
Sales tax 1%
27%

Property taxes
20%
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Business-type activities: Business-type activities, which include the Water and Sewer Fund, Drainage
Utility Fund and the Airport Fund, increased the City's net assets by $17.63 million. The increase in net
assets for the Business-lype Activities is attributable to increased revenue in the Water and Sewer fund.
Operating net income of the Water and Sewer fund was $22.43 million compared to $24.49 million in the
previous fiscal year. The operating income remains high due to increased water and sewer rates, as well
as the extreme drought conditions which attributed to the record amount of water sold and consumed by
our citizens. Airport net assets increased by $1.37 million, which is mainly attributable through increased
operating revenues and increased passenger facility charge revenue. The Drainage Utility Fund is
reporting deficit net assets of $46,588. The Drainage Utility Fund was approved in late fiscal year
2011712 and will have assessment income starting October 1, 2012,

As can be seen from the above tabulation, §89.35% of the City's net assets are invested in capital assets
(land, buildings, pipelines, streets and runways, etc.), net of any related debi that is outstanding.
Management reviews the use of these assets on an ongoing basis, and determines whether any should be
disposed of. All of these assets are either being used in current City operations or, as in the case of
underground water rights, are being held for planned future use.

$11.28 million of the assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may
be vsed. These restrictions primarily represent accounts established in accordance with bond covenants
together with bond proceeds held pending construction expenditures. Other restrictions include amounts
to be spent in accordance with grant agreements. The balance of net assets is available to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Water and Sewer System: Water metered sales decreased by $515,115. Water revenues are unpredictable
because they are affected by the amount and timing of local rainfall. Puring 2011-12, the Texas
Panhandle was still experiencing drought conditions. While the drought was not as severe as the previous
year, large volumes of water were consumed during the hot summer months. The increase in water
volume sold combined with rate increases implemented for fiscal year 2010/11 and 2011/12 and a new
rate tier for high consumption residential customers increased water sales. Changes in water usage have
little effect on sewer revenues, however this revenue source increased by $822,565 due to rate changes
and growth within the City.

Airport: The Airport has been in process of expanding facilities, and the Federal Aviation Administration
funds a significant part of the cost of this expansion. While the Airport generally attempts to operate on a
break-even basis, its net assets increased by $1.37 million. This increase is attributable to increased
operating revenues and an increase passenger facility charge revenues. The passenger facility charge is
approved to collect up to $19.2 million, which will be used to pay back general obligation bonds issued
on September 3, 2009 in the amount of §16.14 million. During 2011/12, the Atrport collected $1.64
million in passenger facilities charges, which is $89,302 over the previous year. Airport operating
revenues increased slightly from $6.20 million to $6.74 million. Operating revenues are derived from
airlines, fees and comnussions and other building rentals,

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds:

Government funds: The focus of the financial statements of govermmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City's financing requirement. In particular, wnassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As
management has long adhered to a policy of financing construction out of unreserved fund balances
available after all current needs have been met, these balances algo serve as an indication of the amounts
available for expansion or replacement of infrastructure and other capital improvements.



At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $100.17 million, an increase of $220,665 from the prior year. Beginning in fiscal year ending
September 30, 2011, the City implemented and began reporting the fund balance structure under
guidelines established by GASB 34, GASB 54 requires the fund balances of governmental funds be
segregated into five major components. These are: Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and
Unassigned. Of the total fund balances, approximately half has been designated by management for
specific purposes, and is being accounted for in governmental funds established to control the expenditure
of the funds for designated purposes. These funds consist primarily of the Capital Project Funds and the
Compensated Absences Fund, which was estabhshed to currently fund the City's Hability under its sick
and annual leave policy. The balance is avatlable to fund current expenditures, or to fund future capital
improvement or operating needs.  All of this unassigned fund balance is accounted for in the General
Fund, which is the primary operating fund of the city. At the end of the current fiscal vear, the total fund
balance of the General Fund was $46.26 million, of which $44.34 million was unassigned.

The fund balance of the General Fund increased by $2.46 million during the current year, The fund
balance of the Capital Projects Funds decreased by $710,535. This decrease is due to expenditures being
made on active projects, including the completion and work being done on the projects funded by the $25
million in Certificates of Obligation issued in fiscal year 2006/07. The capital projects funds had
restricted and assigned fund balances of $37.56 million at September 30, 2012. These funds are restricted
and assigned for construction projects in progress and for projects currently in the planning stages and in
the City's five-year capital plan.

The HUD Programs fund accounts for funds administered by the City for the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, including block grants, housing assistance, and various smaller low income
programs. Most of the grants awarded to the City are expenditure~-driven; thus, for most programs,
revenues equal expenditures.

Proprietary funds: The financial statements of the proprietary funds provide information for the two
types of funds — the business-type (enterprise) funds and the internal service funds. The internal service
fund financial statements reflect net assets in amount of a deficit of $30.59 million. The purpose of
internal service funds is to provide services within a government on a break-even basis. Funds classified
as internal service are: Municipal Garage, Information Technology, Risk Management and Employee
Insurance. The net income or loss from these internal service funds has been allocated back to the using
departments or funds for the city-wide financial statements. The unrestricted net assets of the internal
service funds are generally used fo replace capital assets. Net assets of the internal service funds
decreased by $18.21 million due in large part of recording the liability and related expense in compliance
with GASB 45 for post employment health benefits in the Employee Insurance Fund. The recording of
this liability in the Employee Insurance fund has created the overall deficit in net assets for the internal
service funds as a whole. Net assets for the Municipal Garage Fund, Information Services Fund and Risk
Management Fund remain positive and provide adequate resources for ongoing operations.

The accounting principles applied to these funds are similar to that of the private sector. Consequently,
with the exception of the allocation of internal service fund losses to business-type activities, the net
assets and changes in net assets of the enterprise funds in these financial statements is identical with the
net assets and changes in net assets in the city-wide financial presentation,



Capital Assets and Debt Administration:

Capital assets: The City's investment in capital assets as of September 30, 2012, was $953.93 million,
net of accumulated depreciation. The following tabulation summarizes the City's capital assets at
September 30, 2012:

City of Amarillo, Texas - Capital Assets
{in thousands - net of depreciation)

Governmental Acfivities  Business-type Acfivities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land, easments and water rights $ 11,786 & 9,214 $ 88976 § 72,948 $ 100,762 § 82,162
Infrastructure 137,257 133,943 - - 137,257 133,943
Library resources 4625 4,576 - - 4625 4578
Water and Sewer other - - 395,086 361,584 395,086 361,584
Airport facilities - - 70,952 74,888 70,952 74,888
Buiidings and other improvements 148,914 154,308 - - 148,914 154 308
Machinery and equipment 25455 27,224 1,897 2,200 27,352 29,424
Construction in progress 24 540 17,261 44 442 20,577 68,882 37,838

Total capital assets $ 352577 § 346,526 $ 601,353 § 532,187 $ 953,830 § 878,723

For this purpose, the vehicles, management information systems, and other assets of the internal service
funds are classified as assets used in govermment activities. Refer to footnote number 6 in the notes fo
basic financial statements for additional information related to capital assets.

The City of Amarillo attempts to fund its capital needs on a pay-as-you-go basis to the extent possible.
The City from time to time will borrow funds in order to complete significant infrastructure projects, The
City attempts to take advantage of favorable interest rates and use debt only when conditions are
favorable. Footnote 11 to the financial statements discloses in detail the debt activities of the City. In
addition a Combined Schedule of Outstanding Debt Issuances is provided in the supplemental section of
the CAFR. The following table shows the City's total amounts due under bond agreements as of
September 30, 2012:

City of Amaritlo, Texas - Outstanding Debt
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
General obligation bonds $ 5420 & 5818 % - & $ 5420 % 5818
Certificates of obligation 21,620 22,600 106,965 111,490 128 585 134,080
Special assessment debt 8,680 9,009 - 8,680 9,009
Water and sewer revenue bonds - - 48,085 50,455 48,085 50,455
Water autherity debt - - 98,802 65,664 98 802 65,604
Airpert - - 13,289 14653 13,289 14,653
Total outstanding debt $ 35720 § 37,427 $ 267141 $ 242262 $ 302861 $ 279689

Refer to footnote numbers 10 and 11 in the notes to basic financial statements for additional mformation
related to long-term debt and other commitments.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The primary purpose of the General Fund is to account for general revenues such as property taxes, sales
taxes, and other taxes and expenditures related to essential city functions and programs. The General
Fund is comprised of multiple departments that carry out many of the City's essential functions from
street repair and maintenance, traffic, fire and police protection, sanitation collection and disposal, and
other administrative functions just to name a few.

General Fund Revenues: The total General Fund revenues budgeted for fiscal year 2011/12 was
$143,292,515. Certain reclassifications of interdepartmental reimbursements are made from the approved
budget for financial reporting purposes. Sales tax revenue accounts for 33% of the General Fund total
revenue excluding transfers. Sales tax revenues were budgeted for $46,000,000. Actual sales tax
revenues for 2011/12 were $48,256,664. Sales tax revenues exceeded expected budgeted amounts by
$2,256,664, Despite the struggling national economy, our local economy has seemed to be weathering
this well with the significant increase in sales tax revenues., Most cities in Texas have experienced the
same growth in Sales Tax Revenue. Another major component of General Fund revenues is ad valorem
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes were budgeted at $31,881,594. Actual ad valorem taxes were
$32,361,774. Other General Fund revenues are comprised of charges for services, business taxes, fines
and forfeitures, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues. In total, the actual General Fund
revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $3,030,025. The attached chart shows the major sources of
General Fund revenues:

General Fund Actual Revenues
Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Actual
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General Fund Expenditures: The total General Fund operating expenditure budget excluding fund
transfers for fiscal year 2011/12 was $139,216,771. Total actual expenditures and approptiations against
the operating budget for 2011/12 were $135,003,093. This resulted in under-spending the budget by
$4,213,678. Police and Fire protection combined, account for 43% of the General Fund expenditure
budget. Operating transfers to capital projects funds and other funds were budgeted for $9,634,298,



Actual transfers to capital projects funds during the year were $9,080.216. The following chart shows the
breakdown by functional area of the General Fund actual expenditures for 2011/12:

General Fund Expenditures
Fiscal Year 2011/2012
Percents of Total
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The City's primary source of funding the annual General Fund CIP program is through re-allocation of
excess revenues and unspent monies from the preceding fiscal year. The goal is to maintain an adequate
level of fund balance or reserves within the General Fund for contingencies and operations and to allocate
any excess funds to the capital improvement program.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

There are numerous issues that our organization must be cognizant of in the 2012/13 Budget. Budgetary
challenges to monitor for the upcoming year include:

e Public Safety: For the 2011/12 budget, we were able to focus on additions to Public Safety. We
added 12 additional police officers for the 201 1/12 budget and have included an additional 10 for the
2012/13 year. This continues significant progress towards the Police Department's goal to add
officers each year until we have a staffing ratio of two officers per 1,000 in population or until the
crime rate statistics show that we have had a positive impact in the City.

With the planned construction of Fire Station Number 13, we intend to add a second engine
company to provide a two company ‘hub' station to support several existing stations. Three
additional firefighter positions were added 2011/12 year and the 2012/13 budget includes four
additional firefighter positions. In total, fifteen firefighters will be needed to staff the second engine
company at Station 13 and future budgets will include additional firefighters to reach the necessary
number.



¢+ Enhancement of the City's Pay Plan & Benefits: Cities are service-based organizations in which
attracting and retaining qualified employees is critical in accomplishing our mission. For 2012/13,
the budget proposes a 2.75% pay increase. While a 2.75% pay increase is modest, it is significant
when you consider many cities had to cut pay, layoff employees, and have unpaid furlough days.
We also retained the Discretionary Retention Pay (DRP). The DRP is paid in a lump sum to civilian
employees and is equivalent to the state-mandated longevity pay for Police Officers and Firefighters.
Overall, we believe the City is salary competitive in our local market in most positions, with the
exception of entry-level positions. Turnover in these positions has remained steady despite
enthancements in fast year's budget. This will be a constant focus for future budgets.

» Stabilization of Employee Health Care Costs: The City uses a multi-prong approach to managing
healthcare costs. While we have stop loss coverage for claims above $750,000, the City is largely
self-insured for employee and retiree medical. Thus, any savings we achieve directly impacts Plan
costs. Prescription medicines are a significant cost to our Plan. In early 2007, we contracted with a
local Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM) to obtain favorable pricing. Prescription medications
that have satisfactory over-the-counter alternatives have been removed from the formulary and the
pharmaceutical co-pays encourage usage of generic drugs. Currently, the Plan has over 80% generic
utilization.

The Plan further provides access to initial care through the CityCare Clinic. The goal of the Clinic is
access to care for those who were not accessing this needed service, disease management, and
wellness services. Beginning in 2009, the City brought the clinic in-house and empirical data
suggests the Clinic is meeting its goals Tor both employees and the Plan.

Included in the 2012/13 budget is a 1.0% increase in employer and employee contributions to the
health plan. We will continue efforts to maintain stability and additional cost savings in our health
plan. However, the federal healthcare reform bill has and will continue to add future costs to the
Plan. In January 2011, the Plan added 63 children over age 19, but under age 26. Access to the Plan
for those between the ages of 19 and 26 is limited to individuals that do not have insurance offered
where they work, to mitigate the impact on the Plan. However, in many instances, we added covered
members without adding premium dollars since we have one rate for family coverage. We will
monitor the Plan in the upcoming year for overall costs and for the impact of healthcare reform and
will appropriately consider future contribution increases.

¢ Drainage Utility Fee: During the current year the City Commission approved the creation of a
Drainage Utility. The primary need for a Drainage Utility is to provide a dedicated funding source
for the operations and maintenance of the existing storm-water system. This Utility will allow the
City to provide additional capacity through investment in capital projects, and to provide for the
future growth of the City. Of equal importance is that this program will provide a dedicated funding
source for the ongoing operations, repair and preventative maintenance of the existing storm-water
system. The City's drainage system currently includes over 180 miles of storm drain pipe and
roadway culverts, 15 miles of constructed ditch and channels, and over 3,300 curb inlets. A large
portion of the City's storm-water system is based on the traditional curbs and gutters of the streets,
which are often at or over their carrying capacity due to downstream flow limitations. The Drainage
Utility provides a means to address both the current system and provides for the ability to enhance
the existing system to alleviate current problem areas.

Based on evaluation of the impervious area on residential properties in Amarillo, a three-tiered rate
structure was developed for single-family properties. The residential rate structure includes smatl,
typical and large classiftcations. The typical classification represents fifty percent of parcels in the
City with a monthly fee of $2.51. All nonresidential properties will be billed at $2.51 for every



2,800 square feet of impervious cover on the property. We anticipate for the first year this new fee
will generate approximately $4.5 million in additional revenue.

e Capital Needs: The City continues to face an aging infrastructure. The new Drainage Utility Fund
will allow us to address improvements to the storm-water drainage system. We aaticipale
addressing capital needs in the approximate amount of §6.1 million for the first year of this fund.
The City's General Fund capital program includes $1.75 million to rehabilitate Southwest 58" Street
from Washington to Georgia and $2.2 million to address repairs and upgrades to City Facilities. The
General Fund capital program also provides for additional police cars for the new officers,
improvements to the Park system, and other items.

We have had significant pressure to keep budgeted expenditures as low as possible in prior budget
fiscal years. With that in mind, we lowered Municipal Garage rental rates for the user departments
in the 2009/10 fiscal year and 2010/} fiscal year. For the near term, the Municipal Garage has a
strong fund balance; however, we recognize with rising replacement costs we will need to review the
equipment rate structure. In both the 2011/12 and 2012/13 fiscal year budgets, we have increased
the equipment rental rates by 5% and will continue to monitor those rates in future budgets. This
same scenario applies to the City's Information Technology fund, with appropriate enhancements
made to this fund as well.

The City Water and Wastewater Utility, or Utilities Fund, had an excellent year. The Utilities fund
includes over $13 million in capital projects that will be fully funded by system-generated revenues
with no debt being acquired for these purposes. These projects cover both expansion and the
ongoing maintenance and repair associated with the systems. Amarillo now has nearly 1,100 miles
of water mains in the city and an additional 931 miles of wastewater mains. The City's water and
wastewater systems are very robust and have excellent capacity. Efforts will continue to be focused
on addressing aging infrastructure and ensuring future capacity.

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET

Our 2012/13 fiscal year budget is $271,270,199, which is a 4.74% or $12,276,898 increase compared to
our 2011/12 budget of $258,993,301.

The areas of specific increase/decrease in this budget are:

FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 % Change

General Fund M&O $ 147,392,222 $ 152,303,266 3.3%
Water & Sewer M&O 42,285,169 43,366,468 2.6%
Capital 36,354,395 40,769,015 12.1%
Special Revenue M&O 21,471,015 19,851,112 (7.5Y%
Municipal Garage M&O 8,424,625 §.192,085 9.1%
Insurance M&O 22,117,380 22.687.813 2.6%
Debt Service 22,358,617 23,385,461 4.6%
Airport M&O 6,175,597 6,333,861 2.6%
Drainage Utility M&O e 1,691,756 -




FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 % Change
Info Technology M&O 3,813,492 3,838,349 0.7%
Capital Transfers 1,522,988 341,413 {(77.6)%
Less Interfund Transfers (52.922,198) (52,490,400) {0.8)%
Total Budget $ 258,993,301 $ 271,270,199 4.7%

Municipal government is a service provision business and the predominant expense category in our
budget is always personnel and associated employee salaries and benefits expense. Personne! costs
comprise 48% or $130.8 million of our 2012/13 net budget. The second largest category is Capital
Improvements Projects of $40.8 million or 15% of our budget. The third highest category of expenses is
Debt Service, which accounts for 8.6% or $23.4 million of our budget. Debt service expenditures include
all funds, including Water.

Property and Sales Taxes

As discussed earlier, after three years with the same property tax rate, the City Cominission increased the
property tax rate by one cent to $0.32009 for the 2011/12 fiscal year. Even with the increase, our
$0.32009 tax rate is one of the lowest rates in the State. [t is interesting to note that while the property tax
rate and associated levy is often in the public eye, it raises less revenue than is required to operate only
the Amarillo Police Department for the upcoming fiscal year.

The sales tax is the City's largest revenue source. Amarillo has long enjoyed a history of steadily
increasing sales tax, which has offset our fow property tax rate. However, for the 2008, 2009 and 2010
fiscal years, the City had seen flat or declining sales tax receipts. We were very pleased to report that the
sales tax receipts received for the 2010/11 and 2011/12 fiscal years were at the highest levels ever at §46
and $48.3 million, respectively. We have an estimated budget for the 2012/13 fiscal year of $48.7
million. Even so, the sales tax budget of $48.7 million for the 2012/13 fiscal year is not sufficient alone
to fund the budgets for the Police and Fire Departments. The City relies on multiple revenue sources to
fund the General Fund operations.

Franchise Fees, User Fees and Charges

During the 2010/11 fiscal year the City issued water and sewer bonds to fund water rights purchases, as
well as participating in a CRMWA debt issue for the purchase of ground water rights. Funding of this
debt service necessitated an 11% increase in the water and sewer rates. This rate increase was
implemented over two budget cycles. Thus, rates were increased by 6% in the 2011/12 budget and we
have included 5% increase to follow for the 2012/13 fiscal year budget. The water rate structure is
designed so that customers who only use water for domestic use still have very reasonable rates. A
residential 10,000 gallon water user will have a monthly rate of $28.09 which is very low compared to
other Texas Cities.

For 2012/13, we have included an increase on the landfill collection charges from $27.50 to $29.00 per
ton. The additional revenue from this is dedicated to covering the increasing cost of regulatory
compliance at the Landfill. Revenue from the electricity and gas franchise fees has been relatively flat.
The revenue estimates for 2012/13 include only slight increases from these sources.



Emnplovee Staffing

This 2012/13 budget consists of 2,045 permanent and 346 part-time employee positions.  Permanent
positions have increased by 25 positions over the current year and part-time positions have increased by
six. The largest single increase is in Public Safety, with a total of 14 new positions. With the increase in
the sales tax revenue, we have been able to continue addressing staffing concerns.

Personnel Additions Department Full Time
Officer Police Department 7
Sergearnt Police Department 3
Administrative Assistant Il Civilian Personnel 1
Electrical Inspector Building Safety ]
Van Operator Trangit 1
Park Maintenance Mechanic Park Maintenance 2
Utility Worker (reclass to part time) Park Maintenance -6
Zoo Keeper 11 Zoo Maintenance 1
Firefighters Fire Department 4
Fire Mechanic Fire Civilian 1
Electrician | Water Production 1
Meter Service Representative Water Distribution 1
Utility Worker Wastewater Collection 2
Street Supervisor | Drainage Utility 1
Street Foreperson 11 Drainage Utility ]
Utility Worker Drainage Utility 4
Equipment Operator 11 Drainage Utility 1
Security Operations Agent Alrport =
Total Additions D

For the 2012/13 year we have proposed an additional 10 new officers. The Police Department will now
have 345 police officers, which is an increase of 28 since December of 2010. Our goal is to add 10 to 12
officers each year for the next four years. During the 2011/12 fiscal year, we added three additional
firefighters to begin staffing a second engine company at Station 13. For the 2012/13 year, we are
including an additional four firefighters for a total of 251. Collectively, the Police and Fire Departments
account for approximately 43% of the General Fund budget and is a major service priority of our
residents. The authorized strength of the Police Department has fallen behind the growth rate over the
last several years and this is an area that has received considerable attention in the 2012/13 budget.

The City Water and Sewer Utility has 260 full-time employees and seven part-time employees. We have
124 full-time and 200 part-time employees in the Parks Department and at our golf courses, 58 employees
at the Airport, 58 full-time and 20 part-time employees in the five libraries, 31 full-time employees in
Building Safety, 35 full-time and nine part-time employees in the Civic Center Complex. and 52
employees to maintain and clean City facilities. The Solid Waste Collection and Disposal operation has
139 full-time and eight part-time employees. The Street Department has 86 full-time and 13 part-time
employces and the Traffic Engineering Department includes the school crossing guard program and has
44 part-time and 24 full-time employees. The Transit Department has 63 full-time and the Municipal



Garage has 53 full-time employees. The Drainage Utility Fund has 16 full-time and one part-time,
mcluding nine positions transferred from the Street Department.

Emplovee Compensation

1} 2.75% across the board for Police and Fire

2y 2.75% as pay-for-performance based on annual evaluations.

2y Continuation of the Civilian Discretionary Retention Pay Program (DRP).
3) Continued funding of employee incentive pay programs.

The total cost of these Pay Plan improvements and benefits is $3,680,000. Most of the cost ($2,925,000)
is in the General Fund.

Capital Projects

The recommended Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for the 2012/13 fiscal year is $40.8
million, which has increased from the $36.4 million available in 2010/11. Included in the 2012/13
Capital Program is $6.1 million in Drainage Utility Projects. The most significant is $4.2 million to fund
the Farmers Avenue project. The most significant general fund projects include: $1.75 million for
rehabilitation of 58" Strect between Washington and Georgia, $2.3 million to fund improvements to City
owned facilities, $1.2 million for street overlay, plus an additional $1 million to fund improvements to
area parks.

We are very pleased to continue funding Water and Sewer capital at $13.1 million. Included in this
amount is $2.65 million for water main replacement and extensions and an additional $2.65 million for
sewer main extensions and improvements. We have also included $1.25 million to address dam
improvements at the Palo Duro Well Field. The Airport has budgeted $5.7 million for capital; of that
amount, we anticipate $2.9 miflion from Federal Aviation Administration grant funding. We have
included $2.3 million for the final phase of construction of a consolidated service center for rental car
operations.

Featured Programs

The City of Amarillo and the Amarillo Local Government Corporation (L.GC) continue the development
of the downtown convention center hotel, parking structure, and multi-purpose venue. Several other
entities such as the Amarillo Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 and Center City of Amarillo are also
contributing to these efforts. As the projects develop, the downtown core of Amarillo and the City as a
whole will have an opportunity for significant growth and economic development.

The 2012/13 budget continues improvements to the City's Transit System. Each of the last two budgets
has expanded the capacity of the Spec-Trans system. This system provides direct door-to-door service for
qualifying riders and provides the only accessible transportation for many Amarillo residents to access
health care and other important basic services.

The City will continue its focus on street repair and improvements in the 2012/13 budget year. Funding
from the one cenl tax rate increase last year is carried forward into the current year to allow for a larger
arterial overlay program. This program maximizes the lifespan of our arterial streets and delays or
prevents expensive reconstruction projects. The City has several reconstruction projects scheduled, with
the focus this year being the completion of 58" Avenue from Georgia Strect to Washington Street.
Completion of this segment will have the full span of Hillside/58" in excellent condition and suitable for
future overlay work rather than reconstruction.



Request for information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Amarillo's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, City of Amarilio, P.O. Box 1971, Amarillo,
Texas 79105-1971.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These statements present an overview of the financial position and transactions of the entire reporting
entity. The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities report information on all of the
nonfiduciary resources and activities of the primary government and its component wnits. These
statements, as well as the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities of the component uaits, are
presented on a basis of accounting promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which
is similar to the gemerally accepted accounting principles applicable to commercial enterprises. The
financial statements of the governmental funds, proprictary funds, and the fiduciary funds are presented in
accordance with generally accepted governmental accounting principles to the types of funds presented.

o
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activitics Activities Tatal Units
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents % 41,885,416 $ 16,124.217 $ 38,009,633 $ 20,108,256
Investments 94,467,793 431,912,452 136,380,245 212,854,590
Receivables, net 10,420,433 11,358,277 21,778,710 6,322,124
Internal balances 18,537,969 {18,537,969) - -
[nventories and prepaid expenses 2,933,075 063,335 3,896,610 5,338,011
Otber current assets - - - 1,332,781
Total current asscts 168,244,686 51,820,512 220,065,198 246,009,162
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,671,462 33,423,967 37,095,429 6,060,143
Receivables, net - 343,950 343,950 G3,635,823
(Other noncurrent assets - - - 17,037,626
Land and building held for future incentives - - - 9,479,215
Capital assets:
l.and 8,641,254 4,530,161 13,171,415 -
Contributed right of way casements 3,144,986 570,218 3,715,204 -
Water rights and contracts, net of amoriization - 83,875,458 83,875,458 -
Infrastructure, net of depreciation 137,256,656 - 137,256,650 -
Buildings and improvements, net of depreciation 148,913,440 466,037,739 614,951,179 28,155,950
Equipment and vehicles, net of depreciation 25,455,117 1,897,292 27,352,409 95,048
Library resources, net of depreciation 4,624,967 - 4,624,967 -
Clonstruction in progress 24,540,485 44,442 427 68,982,912 -
Total noncurrent assels 356,248,367 635,121,212 991,369,579 154,463,805
TOTAL ASSETS $ 524493053 $ 686,941,724 $1,211,434,777 $ 400,472,967
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses § 12,079,278 $ 10,641,079 $ 22,120,357 b 1,082,269
Current portion of long-term obligations 1,763,860 4,866,248 6,630,108 4,330,000
Estimated liability for seif-insured fosses, current portion 5,934 870 - 5,934,870 65,000
Bonded debt current maturity - 8,620,000 8,620,000 -
Current portion of compensated absences 1,446,493 225,883 1,672,376 -
Total current liabilities 21,224,501 23,753,210 44,977,711 5,477,268
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - - - 342,424
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 34,093,516 239,724,931 273,818,447 79,650,385
Other accrued expenses - 3,109,196 3,109,196 -
Estimated liabilities {or:
Compensated absences, net 16,843,768 1,426,889 18,270,657 183,447
Seif-insured losses, net of current portion 9,764,732 - 9,764,732 215,183
Landfill closure and postclosure care 2,106,502 - 2,160,502 -
Postemployment benefits 74,568,830 - 74,568,830 -
Net pension obligation 4,804,502 759.813 3,564,315 -
Total noncusrent liabilities 142,181,850 245,020,829 387,202,679 80,591 439
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 163,406,351 % 268,774,039 $ 432,180,390 $ 86,008,708
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 320,390,991 $ 375,803,333 $ 696,234,324 $§ 13,340,320
Restricted for:
Debt service 1,763,860 5,702,750 7,466,610 1,079,681
Other purposes 3.812.464 - 3,812,464 4,611,677
Unrestricled {deficit) 35,119,387 36,601,602 71,720,989 295,372,581
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 361,086,702 § 418,167,685 §  779.254,387 $ 314,404,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Program Revenues
Operating Grants

Capital Grants

Charges for and and
Fanctions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government $ 3,875,862 A 5,876,609 $ 794 -
Staff services 11,650,494 4,146,479 312,421 305,453
Public safety and health
Pelice protection 43,265,529 1,455,660 332,107 “
Fire profection 28,891,617 1,706,827 - -
Other 15,486,136 4,341,010 4,620,456 543,365
Streets, raffic and engineering 21,680,105 804,886 47,000 10,945,190
Culture and recreation
Auditorium/Celiseum 5,587,869 2,020,669 398,004 14,506
Libraries 4,852,897 162,154 272,530 -
Parks 9,012,175 1,133,575 1,200 413,677
Participant recreation 6,354914 2,507,018 1,294 222,060
Salid waste 13,734,078 18,644,949 - -
Transit 5,121,742 213,849 2,693,749 7328
Informaticn technology 2,703 716 - - -
Economic development 2,847,958 - - -
Urban redevelopment/housing 11,779,399 95,458 11,044,151 30,075
[nterest on long-term detst 2,217,767 - - -
Total governmental activities 185,062,258 43,109,143 19,723,706 12,681,594
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water and Sewer 58,290,620 70,233,887 - 4,587,476
Drainage Utility 46,588 - - -
Alrport 10,388,942 8,398,060 - 3,311,359
Total business-lype activities 68,726,156 78,631,953 - 7,808,835
TOTAL PRIMARY GOYERNMENT 3 257188414 $ 121,741,096 $ 19,723,706 $ 20,580,429
COMPONENT UNITS
Amarillo Hospital District $ 8,510,747 $ - $ 278,842 $ 28,667
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation 20,091,297 7,771,947 - 550,796
Amarillo-Potter Events District 3,102,810 47,192 - -
Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation - 338 - -
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 1,270,527 - - -
Amarillo Local Government Corporation 60,985 - - -
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS 3 33,066,366 $ 7,825.477 3 278,842 $ 579,463
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property laxes, levied for debt services
Sales taxes
Mixed beverage taxes
Hotel occupancy Laxes
Gross receipts business taxes
Unrestricted investment carmings
TRANSEERS
Total general revenues and transfers
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (NOTE 1)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements,

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR
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Net (Expense) Revenne and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

2,001,541
(6,686,141)

(41,477,762)
(27,184,790)
(5,98130%)
(9.883,029)

(3,154,690)
{4,418,213)
(7,463,723)
(3.624,602)

4,910,871
(2,206,816}
(2,703,716)
(2,847,958)

{609,715)
(2,217,767)

(113,547,815)

{113,547,815)

33,255,011
2,846,83)
48,256,664
533,575
5,002,18)
16,100,508
135 440
387,328

107,117,547

{6,430.268)

360,139,632
1,377,338

307,516,970

361,086,702

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

$

Business-lype
Activities

16,530,737
{46,588)

1,320,483
17,804,632

17,804,632

217,027
(387,328)

(170,301)

£7,634.331
400,533,354
400,533,354
418,167,683

Total

2,001,541
(6,686.141)

{41,477,762)
(27,184,790)
(5.981,305)
(9,883,029)

(3,154.600)
(4,418,213
(7,463,723)
(3,624,602)

42910.871
£2.206,816)
{2,703,716)
(2.847,958)

(609,715)
(2,217,767

{113,547.815)

16,530,737
(46,588)
1,320,483

17,804,632

(95,743,183)

33,255,011
2,846,831
48,256,664
533.575
5,002,181
16,100,508
952,476

106,947 246
11,204,063
766,672,986
1,377,338
768,050,324
779.254 387

$

Component
{Inits

(8,203,238)
(11,762,554)
(3,055,618)
338
(1,270,527
(90,985)

(24.382,584)

589,735

16,085,554

2295432
7,865,154

26,835,875
2,453,291
311,950,968

311,930,968
314,404.259



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS
BALANCLE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Capital Other Totad
General Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,312,730 $ 16,610,085 b 7,270,049 % 27,192,864
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 3,671.462 - 3,671,462
fnvestments, at fakr values 39,661,593 18,115,031 10,262,008 68,038,632
Receivables, net of aliowances for uncollectibles
Property taxes 475,581 - 11,334 486,845
Accounls 1,345,421 (180) 306,643 1,651,884
Accrued interest 141,217 41,783 13,122 196,122
Other accrued revenue 1,378,977 - 36,181 1,415,158
Due from other funds unrestricted 1,534,198 - 24,351 1,358,549
Pue from other governments 4,411,310 8.440 1,313,059 5,732,769
Inventory of supplics 1,546,717 - - 1,546,717
Prepaid items 7.742 1,6G0 651,712 660,454
TOTAL ASSETS $ 53815416 § 38,447,621 $ 19,888,419 % 112,151,456
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable h 1.188,182 § 222257 $ 385472 % 1,793,911
Accounts payable 2,070,187 444,535 437.851 2,952,573
Accrued expenses 2,936,607 91,254 5,466 3,033,387
Deposits 76,182 - 1.268,954 1,345,136
Due to other funds - unrestricted 672 127,329 1,294,045 1,422,046
Due to other governments 780,308 - 39,202 419,510
Defesred revenues - property taxes 404,544 - 4.825 409,369
Deferred revenues - other 94,109 - 103.79G 199,899
Total liabilities 7,550,851 885,375 3,541,605 11,977,831
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items 7,742 [,000 651,712 060,454
[nventory 1,546,717 - " 1,546,717
Uncollected taxes 70,967 - 6,509 77,476
Restricted fos:
Debt service - - 375,156 375,156
Captial projects - 3,671,462 - 3,671,462
Special purpeses - - 3.812.464 3,812,464
Committed for:
Compensated absences - - 11,500,973 11,500,973
Encumbrances 295,059 - - 295,059
Asgsigned for:
Capital projects - 33,889,784 - 33,889,784
Unassigned 44,344,080 - - 44,344,080
Total fund balances 46,264,563 37,362,246 16,346,814 160,173,625
TOVAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 53815416 % 38447621 $ 19,888,419 % 112,151,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 100,173,625
The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of the municipal garage, information services, risk (50,262,651)

management and employee health services to other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The assets and liabilities, excluding capital assets, of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 368,801,704
assets in governmental funds. Current year capital cutlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements,

but they should be shown as increases in capital assets in the government-wide financial statements. The net

effect of including the balances for capital assets {net of depreciation} in the governmental activities is to

increase net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and compensated absence liabilities, are not due and payable (60,060,671)
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. In addition, long-term debt

principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as reductions

in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of including the long-term

liabilities and the debt principal payments is to decrease net assets. Those liabilities consist of:

Long-term debt $ 35,857,376
Compensated absence 17,573,126
Landfill closure and postelosure 2,106,502
Net pension cbligation 4,523,667

3 60,060,671

The 2012 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect of the current year's (16,224,799)
depreciation is to decrease net assets.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of 18,659,494
accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing deferred revenue as revenue,

eliminating interfund transactions, and recognizing the receivable from the business-type activities for

services provided by the internal service funds. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to

increase net assets,

Deferred revenue 5 609,268
Accrued inferest payable (487,743}
Internal balances 18,537,969

3 18,659,494

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 361,086,702

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2012

REVENUES
Taxcs
Ad valorem taxes
Sales {axcs
Mixed beverage taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Gross receipts business taxes
License and perraits
Interfund revenues
Intergovernmental revenues
Citizen contributions
Construction participation
Other entity participations
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other rentals and commissions
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Staff services
Public safety and health
Police protection
Fire protection
Other
Streets, traffic and engineering
Culture and recreation
Audijtorium - Coliseum
Libraries
Parks
Participant recreation
Solid waste
Transit system
Urban redevelopmient and housing
Information technology
Tourism
Capitai outlay
Dcebt service
Principal retirement
[nterest and fiscal charges

Termination vacation and sick feave pay

Total expenditures

Excess (delicil) of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total other (inancing sources (uses)

Net change in fond batances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YIAR

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, as restated
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Other Total
General Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 32,361,774 $ - § 2,846,831 $ 35,208,605
48,256,664 - - 48,250,604
533,575 - 533,575
5,002,181 - - 5,002,181
16,100,508 - 16,100,508
2,315,185 - - 2,315,188
1,584,965 - - 1,584,965
3,388,112 3,028,497 16,303,333 24,719,942
7,363 - 2,781 16,144

- 4,654,768 30,285 4,685,053

- - 808,345 808,345
30,428,631 174,736 1,385,107 31,985.474
4,955,058 - 1,205,323 6,160,381
391,254 117,356 58,070 566,680
395,662 (13,350) - 382,306
601,608 1,200 68,755 671,563
146,322,540 9,960,201 22,708,830 178,991,571
3,314,660 - - 3,314,666
8,755,786 - 324,126 9,079,912
37,036,816 - 400,257 37,443,073
24,583,803 “ - 24,583,803
8,965,884 - 4.825299 13,791,183
13,683,894 - 13,683,804
2,857,382 318,393 3,175,775
3,578,900 - 274,471 3,853,371
6,477,760 438 561,115 7,039,333
4,921,714 - 20,719 4,942,433
11,063,271 - - 11,063,271
3957318 - - 3,957,318

- - 11,942 850 11,942 850

2,703,716 - - 2,703,716
2,847,958 - - 2,847.958
106,906 14,304,500 973,957 20,385,363

- - 1,706,708 1,706,708

- 1,730,024 1,730,024

- - 1,313,015 1,313,015
134,855,774 19,304,958 24 396,934 178,557,660
11,466,766 (9,344,757 (1,688,104) 433 905
70,281 9.431.166 618,802 10,120,249
(9,080,216} {796,944) (456,329) (10,333,489
(9,009,935} 8,034,222 162,473 (213,240)
2,456,831 {710,535) (1,525,631) 220,665
43.807.734 38,272,781 16,495,307 98,575,622
- - 1,377,338 1,377,338

43,807 734 38,272,181 17,872,445 99,952 450

$ 46,264,565 3

37,362,246

$ 16,346,814

$ 100,173,623

The accompanying noles are an integrat part of the basic financtal statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS

The City uses an internal service fund to charge the costs of the municipal garage, information services, risk
management and employee health services to other departments of the City. The net income (loss) of the
internal service fund is inciuded in the governmental activities in the Statement of Activities, except for net
income (loss) allocated to the business-type activities for services provided by the internal service funds to
those activities. The net effect of this consolidation is to decrease net assets.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial
statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the
government-wide financial statements. Issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds; however, it should be shown as an increase in long-term labilities in the government-
wide financial statements. The net effect of including the 2012 capital outlays, issuance of long-term debt,
and debt principal payments is to increase net assets.

Capital outlay $ 20,385,363
Residual value of assets disposed of (633,461)
Library books additions 506,895
Contributed capital 2,572,766
Long-term debt principal payments 1,706,708

5 2453971

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in the governmental funds since it does not require the use of
current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net assefs.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to canvert from the modified accrual basis of
accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing deferred revenue as revenue,
eliminating interfund transactions and the net loss on services provided to the business-type activities by the
internal service funds. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net
assefs.

Compensated absences $ {643.433)
Deferred revenue 893,237
Net loss of internal service funds

allocated to business-type activities 3,871,231
Landfill closure and post-closure care (109.609)
Accrued interest payable (487.743)
Deferred amount for issuance

prewmiums/costs 4,678
Additional ARC allocation (285,636)

b 3,242,703

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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220,605

(18,207,110}

24,538,271

(16,224,799)

3,242,708
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
investments, at fair values
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other accrued revenue
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory of supplies

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash ar

Other noncurrent

Capital assets
Land

nd cash equivatents
receivable

Contsibuted right of way easements
Underground water rights
Accumulated depletion water rights

Water supply ¢
Accumulated a
suppiy contr

ontracl
mortization - water
act

Pipelines and plant
Accumulated depreciation -
pipetines and plant

Runways, buildings and improvements
Accumulated depreciation - runways,

buildings and improvements

Improvemenis

Accumulated depreciation imprevements

Equipment and vehicles

Accumulated depreciation - equipment

and vehicles

Construction in progress

Total can

ital asscts. net of

accumulated denrectation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 38, 2012

Business-Tvpe Acfivities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Brainage

Governmental
Activities Internal

Sewer Utility Airport Tatat Service Funds

§ 13,337,634 $ 510 § 2,786,073 $ 0 16,124217 $ 14,692,552
35,148,563 - 6,763,889 41,912,452 26,429,161
5,002,192 - 203,048 5,895,240 742,863
60,022 - 5,833 65,855 58,792
3,788,401 - 259,436 4,047,857 -

- - - - 162,685

- - 1,349,345 1,349,345 -

- - - - 384,809

063,535 - - 963,535 341,095
58.900.347 540 11.457.624 70,358 481 42,811,957
33,050,537 - 373,430 33,423,967 -
343,950 - - 343,950 -
1,752,820 - 2,777,341 4,530,161 -
570,218 - - 570,218 -
56,700,214 - 56,700,214 -
(4,107,495} - - (4,107,495} -
50,336,389 - 50,336,389 -
(19,053,650} - - {19,053,650) -
545,610,923 - 545,610,923 -
(150,524,679} - (150,524,679} -
- 140,136,680 140,136,680 -

- (69,185,185) {69,185,185) -

- - - 4,732,818
- - - - (2,844,526)

3,770,282 4,665,779 8,436,001 35,939,655
(3,151,223 - (3,387,5406) (6,538,769) (39,343.414)
36,349,481 102.935 7.990.011 44.442.427 1,189 881
318.253.280 102,933 82,997,080 601.353.295 19.074.414
551647767 102,955 83,370,510 635121212 19.674.414
$ 610548 114 §_ 103445 $ 94828 134 § _7035.479.693 & 02,486,371

The accampanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

32



LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITEES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Depostts
Consumer security deposits
Sharc of Water Authoritly debt -~ current
Due to other funds - unrestricled
IEstimated fiability for incurred Josses
Bonded debt current maturity
Current poriion of compensated absences

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonded del, net of cursent portion
Water Authority debt, net of curent portion
Provision Tor compensated absences, net
Other accrucd expenses
Estimated liabilities for incurred loss, net
Postempioyment benefits
Net pension obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
invested In capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for debl service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Amounts due governmental activities for
allocabie share of net expenses of certain
internat service funds

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-

TYPE ACTIVITIES IN STATEMENT
OF NET ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS, CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise unds

Sovernmental

Water and Prainage Activities Internal
Sewer Utility Airport Tatal Service Funds
5 1,753,994 % 449 h) 283,703 $ 2,038,140 $ 359,260
1,630,633 - 197,496 1,828,129 1,120,899
2.336.336 13,576 420,713 2,773,625 164,859
32,740 - 87,786 120,526 -
3,144,653 - 3,144,653 -
4,866,248 - - 4,866,248 -
- 136,000 - 136,000 163,188
- - - - 5,934,870
7,290,000 - 1,330,000 8,620,000 -
187,561 - 38,322 225,883 73,340
21245165 150.025 2.358.020 23753210 7.816.,422
133,829,081 - 11,958,789 145,788,770 -
03,936,161 - - 93,936,161 -
1,249,273 - 177,616 1,426,889 643,789
3,109,196 - - 3,109,196 -
- - - - 9.764,7132
- - - - 74,568,830
635,209 8 124,596 759,813 280,835
232,759,820 8 12.261.001 2435.020.829 85,258 186
g 254 004,985 $ 150033 $ 14019021 § 268774.036 § 93.074 608
$ 306,052,107 $ 102,935 $ 69,708,251 $ 375,863,333 % 19,674,414
5,329,320 - 373,430 5,702,750 -
45,161,702 {149.523) 10,127,362 55,139.571 (50,202,651)
$ 356.543.129 § (46.58%) § 80209 113 436.705.654 4 (0S8R A3TY
(18.537.969)

§ 418.167.685

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES

Axrfield fees and commissions
Charges for scrvices

Employees' benelit pian contributions
Intermal charges

Miscellancous revenues

Other building and ground rentals
Rents and miscellaneous

Tap tees and frontage charges
Terminal building area rental
Utility sales and serviee

Drainage ullily agsessments

Total operaling revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplics

Fuel and oil

Fuel and power

Contractual services

Water Authority charges

Other charges

Claim and loss adjustinents
Postemployment expense
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss}

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Gain (loss) in disposal of property
Interfund reimbursement
Passenger facility charge

Interest earnings

Change in value of investiments
Other miseellaneous revenues
Interest expense and fiscal charges

Tolal nonoperating revenues
{expenses}

Income {loss) before contributions

and fransfors

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMDBER 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Gavernmental
Water and Drainage Activitics Internal
Scwer Utility Aidrport Total Service Funds

$ - $ - $ 538,756 538,756 $ -
- - - - 1,224 593

- - - - 4,883,820

- - - - 31,388,787

- - - - 3.641

- - 1,464 486 1,464,486 -

310,142 - - 310,142 -
242,732 - - 2427732 -

- - 4,733,224 4,733,224 .
69,103,211 - - 69,103,211 -
69,656,085 - 6,736,466 76,392,551 37.500.841
11,394,284 26,714 2479141 13,900,139 5,016,960
1,303,399 1,704 199,335 1,504,438 2,387,181

- - - - 3,875,439
4,476,328 - 563,208 5,039,536 -
4,216,512 18,170 463,355 4,698,037 1,528,293
4,682,183 - - 4,682,183 -
8044314 - 2,096,691 10,141,605 2,285,094

- B - . 18,906,619

- B - - 17,615,147
13,110,658 - 4,587.212 17,697,870 5,122,344
47,227,678 46,588 10,388.942 57,663,208 56,737,077
22,428 407 {46.588) (3.652.476) 18,729,343 (19,236,236)
(161,536) - - (161,536) 246,680
577.802 - - 577,802 -

- - 1,639,556 1,639,556 -

170,434 - 52,772 223,206 178,869
- - {6,179} (6,179) (10,100)

- - 22,044 22,044 13,111
(7.030.181) - - (7.030,181) -
(6,443 481) - 1,708,193 {4,735.288) 428 560
15.984.926 (46.588) (1.944.283) 13.994.055 {18.807.676)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS, CONTINULED
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Business-Type Activifies - Enterprise Funds

Govermmental
Water and Drainage Activities Infernal

Sewer Utility Airport Total Service Funds

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES), CONTENUED

Capilal contributions $ 4,587476 $ - g 3,311,359 3 7,898,835 $ -
Translers from other {unds - - - - 620,966
Transfers to other funds (387.328) - - {187.328) {20.400)
Change in net assels 20185074 (46,588) 1,367,076 21,505,562 {18,207,.110)
NEY ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 336,358.055 - 78,842,037 415,200,092 {12.381.127)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 356,543,129 3 (46.588) §  80.209.113 436,705,654 $ {30.588.237

Allocation of net expenses of certain
internat service funds to business-lype

activities (18.537.969)
NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES IN STATEMENT OF
NET ASSETS $ 418167085

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Fxpenditures, and Changes
in Fund Net Assets of Proprictary Funds to the Statement of Activities

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Proprietary Funds $ 21505562
Internal service fund allocation for proprictary funds (3.871.2313
Change in net assets for Primary government business-type activities $ 17634331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from third partics

Cash recetved from Cily departiments

Cash payments to supplicrs for goods
and services

Cash payments o cmployees

Cash payments for claims and loss
adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

CASTH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (to} from other funds
Amounts barrowed fram or repaid by
other funds

Amgeunts repaid or leaned to other funds

Cash payments reeeived for passenger
facility charpe
Chher

Net cash provided {used) by noncapital

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTEVITIES

Acquisilion and construction of capitat
assels

Capital grants received

Proceeds from issuance of bonds

Bond issuance cost

Prineipal paid on bond maturities

Prineipal paid on proportionate share off

Water Authorily debt
Noncurrent receivable
Interest expense
Proceeds from insurance
Proceeds from sale of capitat assets

Net cash provided (used} by capital
and related financing activitics

CIFY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Business-Type Actividies - Knterprise Funds

Governmental

Water and Drainage Activities Internal
Sewer Utility Airport Total Service Tunds

$ 68801986 ¥ - $ 7,201,753 $ 76,003,739 b3 -

A - - 37,166,436
(25,151,729 {19.425) (4,104,148) (29,275,302) (10,521,867
(11,321,429 {13,130 (2,447.297) (13,781 856) (4,918,559
: R ; - (19,806,149

32,328,828 (32.555) 650,308 32,946,581 1,820,261
{387.328) - - (387,328) 600,566
577,802 136,000 - 713,802 (29,074)
- - - - (259)

- - 1,639,556 1,639,556 -

190,474 136,000 1,639,556 1,966,030 570,333
(82,224,385) (102.935) (3,643,683} (85,971,003} {5,123,812)
4,587,476 - 2,139,643 6,727,119 -
38,222,252 - - 38222252 -
(473,755) - - (473,755) -
(7,210,000) - (1,280,000} (#,490,000) -
(4,386,3066) - - (4,386,366) -
16,042 - - 16,042 -
(7,799,662) - (588,188} (8,387 850) -

. - - - 13,111

18,785 - 65,797 84,582 804,059
(59.249.613) (102 935) (3306431 (62.658.979) {4.306.642)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CiTY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and

Drainage

Governmental
Activities [nternal

Sewer Utility Airport Tatal Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTFIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and malurities of
investiment securities $ 25956459 - 3 4,000,000 $ 29,956,459 £ 25,625,000
Purchase of investiment securitics (31,093 280) - (4.004,724) (35,098,004) (25,133,037
Tnlercst and gains on mvestments 443,961 49 481 513,442 295,702
Net cash provided (used) by
nvesting activities (4.692.860) b 64,757 (4.628.103) 788,665
Net increase {decrease) in cash
and cash eauivalents {31.423.171) 510 (951,810 (32.374.471) {1.027.383)
CASIL AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR T1.811.342 - 4.111.313 81,922,655 15.719.935
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT END OF YEAR (RESTRICTED
AND UNRESTRICTED) $ 46388 171 310 b 3.1592.503 $ 40548184 3 14,692,552
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating income (loss) 5 22428407 (46,588) $ (3.652,476) 5 18,729.342 $ (19,236,236)
Adiustments 1o reconcile operating
income (loss} to net cash provided by
operating activilics:
Depreciation and amortization 13,110,658 - 4,587212 17,697,870 5,122,344
(Increase) decrease in accounts recgivable (954,343) - 530,012 (423,731) {334,005)
(Increase) ¢dlecrease in other accrued revenue 100,244 - (65,325} 34,919 -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (939,039} - - (939,039) (58.135)
{Increase) decrease in inventories - - - - {6,345)
Increase (decrease) in vouchers payable (774,430} 449 (295,183} (1,069,164) (878,197
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (1,843,033) - (768,684) 2,611,717 496,817
Increase (decrease) in acerued eperaling -
exXpenses 1,145,443 13,576 287,679 1,446 698 35,570
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 98,668 - 11,629 110,297 -
Increase (decrease) in provision lor -
compensated absences (6,836) 8 13,983 7,155 61,101
Increase {decrease) in net pension ebligation 3,893 - 861 4,754 1,730
Increase (decrease) in IBNR accrual - - - - (273.056)
Increase {decrease) in olher acerued labilities (40,804) - - (40,804) -
Inerease {decrease) in estimalted clams
Habilities - - - 16,988.673
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities § 32328828 (32.555) $ 650,308 $ 329406581 $ 1.920.261
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amortization of bond issuance costs $ 165 943 - ] - % 165943 5
Decreases (increases) in fair values of
investments 14 463 - (6,179} 8.284 {10,100)
Interest expense capitalized 603,538 - 503,595 1,107,133 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Private-
Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,176 $ 745,550
Accrued interest receivable 3 -
Investments, at fair values 30,000 -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 63,184 b 743,550
LIABILITIES
Due to agencies $ - 3 745,550
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - $ 745,550
NET ASSETS
Held for other governments, individuals, entities $ 63,184 $ -
TOTAL NET ASSTES 3 63,184 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2012

ADDIT{ONS
Investment earnings

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Supplies

Total deductions

Change in assets
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net
Inventories and prepaid expenscs
Other current assets

Total current assels

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables, nel
Unamortized bond issuance cosls
Other assets
Land and building held (or future incentives
Capital assets:
Buildings and improvements, net af
depreciation
Equipment and vehicles, net of depreciation
Consliuction in process

Tatal noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payvable and accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term obligations
Estimated liabiity for incurred losses -
currenl porlion

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities payable fiom testricted assets -
accrued fmierest
Noncurrent poztion of long-ten obligations
Estimated liabilities
Compensated absences
Self-msured tosses, net of current portion
‘Tolat noncurrent Habilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
hivested in capital assets, net of retated debi
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMUNT OF NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 34, 2012

Amartllo Amarillo- Amarillo Tax Amarillo
Amaritlo Economic Potter Housing, inerement Local
Ttospital Develepment Events Venue Finance Investment Government
District Corporation District Cerporation Zone #1 Corporatien Tutal
i) 3800676 % 13892716 5 230,631 S 127216 % 1414997 8§ - 20,108,250
203,354 990 8,750,000 750,000 . - - 212,854,990
- 6,130,596 185,528 . - - 6,322,124
3331011 - - - - - 5331011
1,289,074 43,414 - - 253 - 1,332,781
213,977,751 28,522,726 2,166,179 121216 1,415,290 - 246,009,162
52,790 4,043 438 763,618 - 1,200,271 - 6,060,143
- 93,635,823 - - - - 03,635,823
- - 93,375 - - - 93,375
16,944,251 - - - - - 16,944,251
- 9,479,213 - - - - 9479215
87118 12,609,461 13,192,171 - - - 25,888,750
- 45,740 49,308 - - - 95,048
- 2,267,200 - - - - 2,267,200
17,084,165 122,080,897 14,098,472 - 1,200,271 - 154,463,805
$ 230861916 § 150,603,623  § 16264651 § 127216 $ 26i5361 § - 400,472,967
$ 213230 % G09518 & 236,066 $ - 3455 1,082,269
- 3,870,000 460,000 - - - 4,330,000
65,000 - - - - - 65,000
278,230 4,479,518 716,066 - - 3453 3,477,269
- 542,084 - - 340 - 342,424
- 67,579,020 12,071,363 - B - 79,650,385
- 183,447 - - - - 183,447
215,183 - - - - - 215,183
215,183 68,304,351 12,071,363 - 340 - $0.591.439
493413 72,784,069 12,787,431 - 240 3,455 86,068,708
87118 12,655.202 98,000 - - - 13,340,320
- 142963 703,618 - 173,300 - 1,079,681
52,793 3,358,611 - - 1,200,271 - 4,611,677
230,228,590 61662978 2,115,602 127,216 1,241,650 (3.433) 393,372,581
230,368,503 77,815,354 3477220 127,216 2,615,231 (3,43%) 314,404,259
§ 230861916 5 150,603,623 § 16264651 % 127216 % 2615561 5 - 400472967

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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REVENUES
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Sales taxes
Gross veceipts business laxes
Granl revennes
Revenue [rom participating taxing entities
Intergovernmental revenues - operating
Charges for services
Gain on disposal of property
Investment earmings
Miscellansous

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Functions:
Public health
Urban redevelopment and housing
Economic development - industrial
Economic development - lourism
General governiment

Debt service:
fnterest and fiscal charges

Total expenses
Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenscs

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 212

Amaritlo Amaritlo- Amarillo Tax Amarillo
Amarillo Economic Patter Housing [ncrement Local
Hospital Development Events Yenue Finance Reinvestment  Government
District Corporation District Corpuoration Zone #1 Corporation Total
$ 3944 % -8 $ - S 3 - 8 3,944
- 16,085,554 - - - - 16,085,554
- 2,295,432 - - - 2295432
- §50,796 - - - - 550,796
- - - 494,761 80,030 583,701
278,842 - - - 278,842
727,124 - - - 3,271,124
- 506,231 - - - - 300,231
7,839,586 17,769 3,833 10 3,956 - 7.865,154
28,667 592 47,192 138 - - 76,789
8,153,039 24,432,000 2,346,457 348 498,717 89,030 33,519,657
8,510,747 - - - - - 8,510,747
- 15,497 803 - - - - 15497865
- - 3,102,810 - - 90,985 3,193,795
- - B - 1,270,527 1,270,527
- 4,593 432 - - 4,593,432
8,510,747 20,091,297 3,102,810 - 1,270,527 90,985 33,006,300
(357,708 4,340,769 (756,353} 348 {771,810 {1,953) 2453291
230,726,211 73,478,785 4,233,573 126,868 3,387,03) {1,500) 311,930,968
S 230,368,503 5 77,819,554 § 3477220 % 127216 § 2615221 % (3455) 3 314404259
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Definition and Scope of Reporting Entity

The City of Amarillo (the City) was chartered in 1913, as authorized by a statute enacted by the Texas
Legislature that year, as the first city in Texas and fifth city in the United States to adopt the commission
form of govermment. The principal services accounted for as general governmental functions include
public safety and health, streets, solid waste, culture and recreation, planning and zoning, a transit system
and general administrative service. In addition, the City maintains the water and sewer system and the
airport, the operations of which are accounted for as enterprise funds.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, in Statement 14, as amended by GASB 39, established
standards for defining the financial reporting entity. Under such standards, the following entities,
although legally separate from the primary government of the City, have been determined to be
component units of the City for financial reporting purposes because of their operational or financial
relationships with the City. Consequently, their affairs are discretely presented in the combined financial
statements of the City's comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR).

Amarillo Hospital District

The Amarillo Hospital District (the District), the first city hospital district in Texas, was established on
March 24, 1959, by an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Texas. Its area is co-extensive with
the incorporated limits of the City of Amarillo. The facilities built by the District constitute a regional
center, serving the populace of an area that extends far beyond the boundaries of the City and county,
across the entire Panhandle of the State of Texas and even surrounding states, Because of economic
changes in the healthcare industry, in May 1996 the physical plant of the District was sold to a for-profit
hospital entity, Northwest Texas Healthcare System, which, as one of the conditions of the sale, assumed
responsibility for medical care of indigent citizens of the District to 2021 in exchange for inflation-
adjusted, annual payments in the range of (in 1996 dollars) $6 millien to $8 million. The inflation
adjustment ceased in 2006 and the payment is fixed for the balance of the contract, which will be an
additional 10 years unless the provider opts to extend the contract an additional 15 years. The quarterly
payment to the provider is currently fixed at $1,735,385 per quarter or $6,941,540 annuaily. Certain
public health services, which had been provided by the District, were assumed by the City. The District
has no employees, but continues to exist as a governmental entity. Effective October 1, 1996, the City
assumed responsibility for serving the District as its fiscal agent for purposes of maintaining its financial
records. However, since the sale of the hospital, the District has not had to levy an ad valorem tax. The
earnings from the sales proceeds together with the funds on hand at the time of the sale have been
sufficient to fund indigent care payments and other expenses of the District.

The District currently colaborates with Northwest Texas Healthcare System to ensure both parties best
allocate their resources for the provision of care to the low income and needy residents in their
community. As part of this collaboration, Northwest has proposed that the District fund payments to
Northwest under the Medicaid upper payment limit program ("Medicaid UPL"). Accordingly, the
District suspended the "Indigent Care Agreement," which was past of the sales agreement and replaced it
with an almost identical agreement called the "Health Care Services Agreement." With the suspension of
the "Indigent Care Agreement,” the District was no longer obligated to make indigent care payments.
However, the District funded Northwest Texas Hospital's Medicaid program. Afler year-end, the
"Indigent Care Agreement” was amended to extend the suspension through November 8, 2015, with a
payment of $1,360,000 to Medicaid UPL funding. The District has provided $51.6 million in funding to
the Medicaid program versus $62.5 million in indigent care payments that would have been due under the
contract.

The District is considered to be a part of the City's financial reporting entity because its Board of
Managers is appointed by the City Commission and, additionally, the City Commission has final
authority over any tax levy and the total amount of the annual budget.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

NOTE i - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Definition and Scope of Reporting Entity (Continued)
Amarillo Econonic Development Corporation

The Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC) is a nonprofit corporation that was formed in
1990 for the purpose of increasing employment opportunities, primarily through assisting qualifying
enterprises with funds provided by a portion of the local sales tax. Assistance may be in the form of
incentive grants, loans, or leases which call for either discounted rates or rebates based on job
development and or local spending. The City serves as fiscal agent for AEDC's funds as well as its
accounting records.

AEDC is considered to be a part of the City's financial reporting entity, because the City Commission
appoints its Board of Directors, approves its budgets, and exercises final authority over its operations,

Amarillo-Potter Events Venue District

The Amarillo-Potter Events Venue District (Venue District) was established in January 1998, upon the
approval of the voters of the City of Amarillo and Potter County to create a vehicle for financing a
livestock arena and expansion of the Civic Center. In December 1998, the District issued $10 million in
bonds to finance the first phase of this construction, consisting of the livestock arena, and in December
2000 the final $6.75 million of bonds were issued to fund the Civic Center expansion. In November
2005, the District refunded the 2000 bond issue. The 1998 Bonds were refunded in 2009. Debt service is
provided by a 2% hotel occupancy tax and a 5% short-term motor vehicle rental tax, which became
effective April 1, 1998, Should such tax revenues be insufficient, a rental payment from the City for use
of the expanded Civic Center facilities is required. The City's rental obligation is the greater of any $10
per month or any shortfall in the debt service fund due to insufficient Venue District tax receipts.

The Venue District is considered to be a part of the City's financial reporting entity, because the City's
mayor appoints four of the seven members of the Venue District's Board of Directors, and the City has
pledged its general revenues to make lease payments should the Venue District's revenues be msufficient
to cover the bond obligations as they come due.

Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation

Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) was established to provide funding for home purchases
by low- to moderate-income persons and families. Under the current program, mortgage loans are
restricted to first-time homebuyers in targeted areas of the City. Beginning in April 1996, it has issued
single-family mortgage revenue bonds in the principal amounts of $15,700,000, and $10,000,000 in 2003,
The bonds are purchased by Freddie Mac, loans are made by local lending institutions, and the funding of
the mortgages with the bond proceeds is handled by the trust department of a financial institution. The
City serves as fiscal agent for AHFC.

AHFC is considered to be a part of the City's financial reporting entity, because the City Commtission
appoints its Board of Directors and has discretion over their terms of office as well as the programs and
activities of the Corporation. Several City officials serve as officers of AHFC.

Amarillo Local Government Corporation

Amarillo Local Government Corporation {ALGC) is a nonprofit corporation that was formed March 2011
for the purpose of aiding and assisting the City to promote the development of the geographical area of
the City.

ALGC is considered to be a part of the City's financial reporting entity, because the City Commission
appoints its Board of Directors, approves its budgets, and exercises final authority over its operations.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Sepfember 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Definition and Scope of Reporting Entity (Continued)

Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone # 1

The Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One was created in FY 2007 pursuant to the Texas
Tax Increment Financing Act, Tax Code, Chapter 311. The purpose of the zone is to promote the
development of or redevelopment of certain contiguous geographic areas in the City.

While the above-named entities are considered part of the City's overall reporting entity, they are
discretely presented in a separate column of the City's combined financial statements to emphasize that
they are legally separate from the City. Separately issued financial statements may be obtained by
contacting the Director of Finance, City of Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amarilio, Texas 79105.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain fegally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds on the basis of
accounting applicable to funds-based financial statements. A separate financial statement is also provided
for fiduciary funds, which with respect to the City comprise only cash and investments which are handled
by the City in the capacity of an agent. These assets are excluded from the Statement of Net Assets
because they do not represent resources of the City.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprictary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
fevied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that only current assets and
current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheets. The reported fund balance (net current
assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating
statements present increases (revenues and other financiat sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, including employee termination payments made by the
Compensated Absences Fund, are recorded only when payments are due.

Sales taxes are considered "measurable” when in the hands of the State Comptrotler and are recognized as
revenue at that time. Other major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include
property taxes, utility franchise taxes, interest, rentals, charges for services and intercity charges. Waste
collection fees are recorded as revenue when billed, which is on a cycle billing basis. Intergovernmental
grants or revenues based on the "reimbursements of expenditures" concept are recorded as revenues when
the related expenditures are made. Other intergovernmental revenues are reflected as revenues at the time
of receipt or earlier if the availability criterion is met.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Projects Fund is a combination of all capital outlay funds, which accounts for construction
projects that are financed primarily by general revenues, as well as accounts for the resources set aside to
fund the City's capital plans with respect to projects including streets.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "flow of economic resources”
measurement focus, This means that all assets and all liabilities (including capital assets and long-term
debt) associated with their activities are included on their balance sheets. Costs of providing goods and
services during the period include depreciation on capital assets. All proprietary funds follow generally
accepted accounting principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Consequently, their affairs are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

The City reports the folowing major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to residents and
commercial enterprises of the City and proximate area.

The Drainage Utility Fund provides for a dedicated funding source for the operations and maintenance of
the existing storm-water system.

The Airport Fund accounts for the operation of the City's international airport, which provides runway
and passenger services as well as leases former U. S. Air Force facilities to commercial tenants.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Four internal service funds account for municipal garage, information services, risk management, and
employee health services provided to the other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others.
Trust funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust agreement.

The private purpose trust funds account for activities that are not City programs, but are programs
sponsored by individuals, private organizations or other governments. Although the City serves as fiscal
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agent, the funds received and held under the Centennial Parkway fund, the Indigent Dog Bite Victim
fund, the Amarillo Industrial Development Corporation, and the Amarillo Health Facilities Corporation
are not available to support the City activities and programs, but are received and held for individuals,
private organizations or other governments.

The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement
focus. The Civic Center Operations fund is used to account for assets that the City holds for others in an
agency capacity.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December §, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance,

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are administrative service charges and payments in lieu of
taxes between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than
as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes and investment revenues,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Water and Sewer Fund, the Drainage Utility Fund and the Airport Fund are charges to customers for
sales and services, including tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
water and sewer system. The principal operating revenues of the infernal service Junds are charges to
other funds for services and alfocations of self-insurance costs. Operating expenses for these funds
incfude the direct costs of personnel, supplies, and similar items needed to render the sales and services,
including depreciation on capital assets, as well as administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition, such as investment earnings and passenger facility charges, are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Estimates Inherent in Financial Statements

Preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

The estimated liabilities related to self-insurance costs and other postemployment benefit costs are
material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant changes in the near tern.
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Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
Depaosits and Investments

With the exception of certain restricted and special funds, the City pools the resources of the various
funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Records are maintained that reflect each fund's
equity in the pooled account.

For financial reporting purposes a portion of the investment portfolio is classified as equivalent to cash.
Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly lguid imvestinents that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less, which present an
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.

Debt securities held by the City's various operating and reserve funds are valued at fair value.
Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds generally represent payment of charges to various departments for services
rendered by other departments, reimbursements for allocated shares of expenditures, transfers of the
City's unrestricted resources to supplement the inter-governmental grants and similar restricted resources
of special revenue funds, and transfers of resources set aside to fund the long-term capital plan.
Outstanding balances of these activities are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances.”

Other Receivables

Receivables of both governmental and proprietary funds are reported in the government-wide financial
statements on the accrual basis of accounting.

In the governmental fund financial statements, receivables are comprised of those amounts that are
considered to be both measurable and available as defined under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
As a city ordinance prohibits the appropriation of property taxes until collected, the entire amount ot such
taxes considered measurable and available has been reserved. Taxes receivable other than property taxes
are reflected as accounts receivable (gross receipts business taxes) or due from other governments (sales
taxes collected and disbursed by the State). Solid waste disposal fees are recorded when billed on a cycle
billing basis. Most intergovernmental grants provide for reimbursement of actual costs, and the related
revenues are recognized in the fiscal period of the underlying expenditures, Because payments on paving
notes and assessmenis are uncertain and often long deferred, they are reflected as revenues when
cotlected.

Receivables of proprietary funds are recorded when earned. Unbilled water and sewer revenues are
estimated and accrued at year-end.

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Inventories, Prepaid and Deferred Items

Inventories of supplies are reflected at cost, determined on an average-cost basis. Inventories of motor
fuel and oil are maintained by the Municipal Garage (an internal service fund), while all other inventories
of materials and supplies, including water and sewer pipeline and related stores and automotive parts, are
maintained by the General Fund, being recorded under the "consumption method” as inventory
acquisition (current assets) at the time the invenlory items are purchased, and charged {o the various funds
and departments of the City on the basis of requisitions.
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Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Such items include payments of
the housing assistance program which must be disbursed before fiscal year-end in order to be received by
the vendors on Qctober 1, but are obligations of the fiscal year beginning on that date.

Deferred revenues reported in the governmental fund financial statements generally represent delinquent
taxes in excess of amounts currently available and advance rentals collected by the City's auditorium-
coliseum complex.

Provision is made in the Risk Management and Employee Insurance funds (internal service funds) for the
estimated amounts of liabilities related to incurred claims, including provisions for future settlement
payments of both known and unknown loss events.

Restricied Assets

Certain resources of the Water and Sewer Fund, the Drainage Utility Fund and the Airport Fund are set
aside for the construction and purchase of capital assets as well as repayment of its revenue bonds under
applicable bond covenants. Such resources and the related liabilities payable out of those resources are
reported in the financial statements as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Capiial Assels

Capital assets consist of property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (streets, alleys, overpasses,
curbs and gutters and drainage systems), as well as the cost of construction projects in process. Items
having a value of more than $2,500 are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of assets or materially extend their lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets of the proprietary funds are also reported in the
applicable financial statements, but capital assets are not included in the governmental fund financial
statements.

Capital assets are stated at historical cost or at estimated fair value at date received, if donated, net of
applicable depreciation. Material interest costs incurred during capital construction performed by propri-
etary type funds are capitalized, Interest expense incurred by the governmental funds is not capitalized.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against
their operations. Depreciation of capital assets used in governmental fund activitics is reporied only in
the government-wide financial statements.

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure are depreciated or depleted over the estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are generally within the following ranges:

Buildings and improvements 30-40 years Sewer pipelines 75 years
Streets and related infrastructure 50 years Runways and related improvements 10-30 years
Traffic signais 30 years Motor buses 7 years
Landfill improvements 40 years Automobiles, vans 3-7 years
Water supply contract 85 years Data processing equipment 5 years
Water rights 20-100 years Machinery and other equipment 7-30 years
Water pipelines 50 years Office equipment 5-10 years

Library books 15 years
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Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
Intangible Assels

Intangible assets consists of right-of-way easements. The right-of-way easements have an indefinite life
and, accordingly, are not subject to amortization. Details refating to the City's intangible assets are
provided at Note 6.

Compensated Absence

City employees are entitled to paid vacation and sick leave, based on length of service, which accumulate
and partially vest. The City's vested obligations under this policy are accrued and are reflected as
liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Employees eligible for time-and-a-half overtime can accumulate paid time off in lieu of overtime pay. In
addition to amounts for accumulated paid vacation and sick leave, comp time in lieu of overtime is also
reflected as a liability in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. Bonds payable are reported net of related discounts and issuance
costs, which are amortized over the terms of the related debts,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the proceeds of debt issuances, net of
bond issuance costs and discounts, during the current period as other financing sources.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

In the government-wide financial statements, the difference between the City's total assets and total
liabilities represents net assets. Net assets displays three components — invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; restricted; and unrestricted, Unrestricted net assets represent the net assets available for
future operations.

In 2011, the City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Government Fund Type Definitions.

In the governmental funds financial statements, fund balance consists of nonspendable fund balance
which includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or they are legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balance includes amounts that are
restricted to specific purposes. Committed fund balance includes amounts that have been formally set
aside and can only be used for specific purposes as pursuant to official action by the City Commission
prior to the end of the reporting period. Commitments are made and can be rescinded only via resolution
by the City Commission. Assigned fund balance comprises ammounts the City intends 1o use for a specific
purpose but is neither restricted nor committed. The formal budget as approved by the City Commission
authorizes the City Manager to assign fund balance. Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund.

When restricted and other fund balance resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned amounts, respectively.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information

As provided by state law, the City follows these procedures in establishing the annual budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements,

At least 30 days prior to the time when the City Commission makes its tax levy for the commencing fiscal
year beginning October 1, the City Manager, as budget officer, files a proposed operating budget,
including proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Such budget is available for the
inspection of any taxpayer, and public hearings are conducted subsequent to the time of filing. Prior to
October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. Under the City's budget
ordinance, the City Commission has authority to make such changes in the budget as it deems warranted.
Additionally, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts among departments and
among expenditure codes within any department or fund. The legal level of control (the level at which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each fund is the fund's total expenditure budget.
Accordingly, revisions that increase the total expenditures of a fund must be approved by the City
Commission. Except for the employment of encumbrance accounting, budgets are adopted consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

The annual formal appropriated budget as described above is employed as a management-controf device
during the year for the General Fund, the debt service funds, and special revenue funds, and those grant
funds, which are necessarily budgeted on a contract-period basis differing from the City's fiscal year.
Expenditures for the public improvement districts are being controlled by long-term service plans
allocated in relation to available, property-owner assessments. The service plan is the approved budget
for the individual Public Improvement District. The following funds with legally adopted budgets have a
budgetary comparison presented: the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Compensated Absence Fund and
certain non-major special revenue funds. The non-major special revenue funds with legally adopted
budgets are as follows: Court Technolegy, Court Security Fund, Public Health Fund, LEOS Training
Fund, Local Seized Property Fund and the Public Improvement Districts. Budgeted amounts reflected
therein are as originally adopted or, if applicable, as last amended by the City Commission.

Grant funds not included in the annual appropriated budget are subject to management control by means
of project-length budgets authorized by the City Commission in the grant application processes.
Cumulative expenditures through September 30, 2012 were within the limits prescribed by such budgets.

Capital outlay is controlled through formal, job cost accounting, in which available monies are ailotted
among the planned construction and capital acquisition undertakings, and costs are accumulated subject to
such allotments. Unencumbered appropriations do nof lapse at year-end for Capital Projects Funds. The
City adopts five-year, capital outlay plans to budget such projects.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances, since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities.

Deficit Fund Equity

The Emergency Shelter Fund, reported as a non-major governmental fund, has a $1,597 deficit fund
balance. The Colonies Public Improvement District {PID), also reporied as a non-major governmental
fund, has a $27,812 deficit fund balance. The Colonies has raised rates significantly for fiscal year
2012/13 to address the increasing costs associated with maintaining the PID. Beginning with the fiscal
year ending September 30, 2008, the City adjusted for postemployment heaith benefits as required by
GASB Statement No. 45. This adjustment is $14,682,580 for 2008, $15,248,490 in 2009, $13,463,957 in
2010, $13,558.656 in 2011 and $17,615,147 in 2012 resulting in a deficit fund balance of $66,483,873 i
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
Deficit Fund Equity (Continued)

the Employee Insurance Fund. The new Drainage Utility Fund has a $46,588 deficit fund balance.
Revenue to support this enterprise fund will begin being collected on October 1, 2012, The ALGC, a
component unit, has deficit net assets of $3,455, which is expected to be covered by future revenues.

Restatement of Fund Balance and Net Assets

The City's beginning fund balance for Other Governmental Funds has been restated to include the Public
Library Bush Collection, the Library Trust, the Flood Hazard Fund, the Centennial Plaza Trust, the Civic
Amarillo Fund, the Zoo Trust, the Center City Trust, the Rick Husband Memorial Fund, and the Keep
Amarillo Beautiful Fund which were previously reported as fiduciary funds. Each of these funds are used
to support the City's programs and, therefore, are now included as special revenue funds. Fund balances
at September 30, 2011 were $16,495,107; an additional $1,377,338 has been included related to the above
special revenue funds to restate the fund balances at September 30, 2011 as $17,872,445.

Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide statement of net assets and beginning net assets
are also being restated to include the above listed funds now considered to be special revenue funds, Net
Assets at September 30, 2011 were $366,139,632; an additional $1,377,338 has been included to restate
net assets at September 30, 2011 as $367,516,970.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

All of the City's demand deposit and time accounts are held in a local banking institution under terms of a
written depository contract. All of the City's demand and time accounts are insured or registered or held
by the City or its agent in the City's name.

Under the Revised Statutes of the State of Texas, all deposits, to the extent not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), must be collateralized by securities or insured by a bond. At
September 30, 2012, demand deposit and time deposits held by the depository institution, before
reduction for checks issued and not presented, were in the total amount of $41,205,206, of this amount
$14,223.416 is insured by the FDIC, and the balance of the accounts are collateralized by securities in the
amount of $32,027.728. The City has a secondary depository institution with demand deposits of
$762,516. These amounts are collateralized by securities in the amount of $1,356,653.

Time certificates of deposit with original maturities of more than three months are classified as invest-
ments for financial reporting purposes.

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the
area of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. With the
exception of the assets of the deferred compensation plan and pension assets, all investments are
administered by City management under terms of an investment policy and strategy that is updated to
conform to the Texas Public Funds Investment Act {the Act) as last amended. The preservation of capital
is the Cily's most important investment objective. Other objectives include providing liquidity and
maximizing earnings within the constraints of the other objectives. The City is in substantiat compliance
with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Under the City's policies, the maximum dellar weighted-average maturity of the investment portfolio may
not exceed one year, and 80% of the portfolio must be in investments with maturitics of two years or less.
At September 30, 2012, the weighted average maturity of the City's total investment securities was .69
years, excluding the securities lending investments.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The City will only invest in the following types of securities:
« Bank money market funds and other interest-bearing accounts at the City's authorized depository.
+ Direct obligations of the United States government.
- Obligations of agencies and instrumentalities of the United States, limited to 75% of the portfolio.
+ Highly rated investment pools and no-load money market mutual funds (AAA or AAAm).
= Taxable municipal bonds, limited to 10% of the portfolio.
» Certificates of deposit including CDARS (Certificate of Deposit Accounts Registry Service).

+ For bond proceeds only, fully collateralized, flexible, repurchase agreements.

Investments are separately owned by the various funds. Under applicable bond ordinances, funds of the
Walerworks and Sewer Revenue bond redemption and reserve accounts may be invested only in U.S.
Government or agency obligations or in obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or by its
agencies. Funds not so invested are to be maintained in the City's depository and secured as provided by
law. The City's investment policy also sets forth specific, investment requirements and strategies for its
various fund types. The City does not enter into reverse repurchase agreements. All securities are held
by the City's agent in the City's name.

The City participates in a securities lending program as a means to augment investment income.
Securities are lent to select brokerage firms for which collateral is received that exceeds the fair value of
such investments during the period of the loan. Collateral may be cash or securities. Collateral securities
cannot be pledged or sold by the City unless the borrower defaults. Securities loans immediately
terminate upon notice by either the City or the borrower.

Loans of fixed income securities are initially collateralized at 102 percent of the fair value of the
securities lent. All borrowers are required to provide additional collateral by the next business day if the
value falls to less than 100 percent of the fair value of the securities lent.

The following represents the balances relating to the securities lending transactions at the financial
statement date:

Collateral
Fair Value of Received/Securities Cash Collateral
Securities Lent Underlying Securities Coliateral Value Investment Value
Lent for cash collateral 5 - h - § -
Lent for securities collateral - fixed
income securities 111,537.908 113.861.676
$..111,537,908 $..113.801.0676 S

Cash collaterat received from the borrower is invested by the lending agent, as an agent for the City, in a
money market mutual fund in the name of the City, with guidelines approved by the City.

At September 30, 2012, the City had no credit risk exposure to borrowers, because the amounts the City
owed the borrowers exceeded the amounts the borrowers owed the City. The City is fully indemnified by
its custodial bank against any losses imcurred as a result of borrower default.

The lending agent provides indemnification if the borrowers fail to return the underlying securities (and if
the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent) or fail to pay income distributions on them.
There were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions, no borrower or lending agent

o
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

default fosses, and no recoveries of prior-period losses during the year. There are no income distributions
owing on the securities lent.

Interest Rate Risk: In accordance with the Investment Policy, the City manages its exposure to declines
in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of the investment portfolio to less than twelve
months and requiring that 80% of the portfolio must be in investments with maturities of two years or
less. Also as stated in the Investment Policy the City will not borrow funds using investment securities as
collateral, will not take a position in a security for speculation and the City uses a buy and hold strategy
for most investments.

Credit Risk: The City invests in direct obligations of the United States and obligations of agencies and
instrumentalities of the United States. The Policy also allows for the investment in taxable municipal
securities rated not less than AA- (or equivalent). The City does not have any commercial paper or
taxable municipal security investments at this time. The City does invest in a treasury only and a
government agency no-load money market mutual fund that is continuously rated AAA or AAAm {or
equivalent).

Concentration of Credit Risk: As stated in the Investment Policy the City will diversify investments
when purchasing agency securities or commercial paper to avoid a concentration in one agency or
company.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City has tri-party agreements with both
depositorics and a third-party financial institution (Federal Reserve Bank) that holds pledged collateral in
a separate custody account for the benefit of the City. All City deposits are fully collateralized by these
pledged securities.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City contracts with an outside financial
institution as custodian for all investment transactions and all investment transaction are made on a
delivery versus payment method with the outside custodian. The securities are held in the City's name in
a separate account. Access to this account is limited to the approved Investment Officers.

A summary of investment securities of the City at September 30, 2012 and the corresponding weighted
average matutity is shown in Table 1 below:

Fair Value Weighted
Unrestricted Restricted Average
Assets Assets Total Maturity {Yeurs)
Investiment Securities
U.5. Government Sponsored Agencies § 114,200,059 $ - S 114,209,059 1.07
Munictpal Bond securities 1,001 990 - 1,001,990 1.8
Totad investment securities 115,211,049 - 115,211,049 1.08
Ne-load 115 Treasury -only mutual funds 28,931,739 36,721,999 65,653,738
Total investments 144,142 788 36,721,999 180,864 787 0.69
Add: Time deposits with original maturities over three months 21,169,196 - 21,164,196 0.73
Total investments 165,311,984 36,721,999 202033983 (6%
Dreduct: Cash equividents (28,931,739 {36,721 ,899) (65,653,738)
Net investments for financial reporting § 136,380,245 5 - 5 136,380,245 1.02

Fable I Pvestment Sceoesies aid Corresponding Weighted Average Mo ity
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NOTE 4 - TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1, are levied on October | of the
same year, and unpaid taxes become delinquent after the following January 31.

The City Charter provides for a maximum tax levy of $1.80 per $100 of assessed valuation, of which any
in excess of $1.30 is limited to debt service for waterworks bonds, and of which up to $0.05 is pledged for
Airport Maintenance to the extent Airport revenues may not be available.

The combined tax rate of the 2011 tax roll for the 2011/12 fiscal year was $0.32009 per $100 of assessed
valuation, resulting in a tax levy in the amount of $32,159,248 on taxable value of $10,257,946,329.

Property taxes receivable at September 30, 2012 are reflected in Table 2 below:

Year of Levy

2012 $ 405,725
2011 205,812
2010 155,987
2009 110,846
2008 74,193
2007 59,079
2006 51,166
2005 41,901
2004 43,513
2003 79,386
2002 37,941
2001 34,058
2000 19,677
Prior 57018

Total taxes receivable 1,376,302
Less: Allowance for estimated uncollectible portion 889,457

Net taxes receivable 486,845
Less: Provisions for collections deferred over 60 days __409.369
Amount available (reserved in accordance with City ordinances) $ 77476

Table 2 - Taves Receivable at September 30, 2012

Beginning July 1, 1996, Potter and Randatl Counties assumed responsibility of tax collections for various
taxing entities within their borders, including the City of Amarillo. The cost of this service is included in
the General Fund. The Potter-Randall Appraisal District performs the appraisal function.

The total City sales tax rate is 2%, which includes a 1/2-cent sales tax collected by the AEDC limited to
development purposes.

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND RESERVES

As required by bond indentures, Capital Projects, the Water Sewer System and the Airport maintain

separate accounts for revenue bond debt service/retirement which are reported as noncurrent assets and
related liabilities, and restricted net assets, as reflected in Table 3:
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NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Related Restricted
Assels Liabilities Net Assets

Capital Projects
Bond proceed accounl $ 3.671.462 § 3671462 $
Total bond debt service/retirement $ 3671462 § .3.071.402 b3
Water Sewer System
Bond escrow and proceed accounts $ 27.721,217 % 27,721,217 $ —
Revenue bond interest and redemption 3,381,140 - 3,381,140
Revenue bond reserve 1,948,180 - 1,948,180
Total bond debt service/retirement $. 33,050,337 $_ 21721217 $ 5329320
Airport
PFC funds $ 373,430 $ - 3 373,430
Total bond debt service/retirement b 373,430 5 - 3 373,430

Table 3 — Resiricted Funds/Reserved Retained Farnings

The Revenue bond reserve account reflects the amount required in the revenue bond covenants.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows:

Balances Balances
COctober 1, September 30,
2011 Additions Deletions 2012
Capital assets vsed by governmental activites,_ at cost
Capital assets, nol being deprecialed
Land & 8,641,254 $ - $ - % 8641254
Contribited ROW easments 572220 2572766 - 2,144,986
Capital projects in process 17,261,017 15897408 12,617,940 24,542 485
Fotal capitat assets, nol being depreciated 26474451 22470174 12 617.940 36320725
Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastructure 230,546473 8397391 928627 23015237
Buildmg and other improvements 242077879 4,024 631 1,125419 244 977091
Equipment and vehicles 81663215 5846763 4,736,194 82 773784
Library collections 70671423 506,895 189,133 7789 183
Totat capital assets, being depreciated 561 958990 18,775,680 7179373 373555297
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Infrastruciure 96,603 387 4662818 507,624 100,758,581
Buildings and other improvements 87769644 9412255 1118248 96,063,651
Eguipment and vehicles 34439278 6813823 3,934,434 57318667
Library collections 3095.104 438,247 380 133 1164218
Total accumulated depreciation 2441 907413 21 347143 3,940 439 257305 117
Total capital asscts, being depreciated, net 320051577 {2,5714063) 1.229.934 316,250,180
Net capilal assets used by governmental activitics 346,526,068 19898 711 13,847 8% 352,576,905
Capital assels used by business-lype actvilies, al cosl
Enterprise funds
Water and sewer utility plant 612 530,375 91 367 0062 8.807,110 695 090,327
Dramage uthity assets - 102935 - 102935
Adrporl assels 152 320480 i 538.093 | 288762 155569871
Total cost 764 850 855 6,008 0N 10,095,872 850,763,073
Less accumulated depreciation for
Water and sewer utility plant 163 814,038 13010658 £7.619 176 837,047
Alrport assets 68839.715 4,587,212 854,196 13572931
Total accumulued depreciation 232,653,753 17697870 941.84s 249409.778
Nel capital assets used by business-type activitics 332397102 78.310.220 9,154,027 601,353 295
Gove mment-wide net capital assets § 87873170 & 98 208.931 5 23001901 5 953930200

Fahle 4 Caprtedd Axser Actviry
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities

General government 3 114,687
Staff services 1,323,323
Palice protection 563,133
Fire protection 1,034,013
Other public safety and health 935,375
Streets, traffic and engineering 5,973,273
Culture and recreation 5,605,223
Solid waste services 625330
Transit services 650,442
Total governmental fund departments 16,224,799
Internal service fund depreciation allocable to
governmental activities based on predominant usage 5,122,344
Total governmental activities $ 21,347,143

Business-type activities

Water and sewer system $ 13,110,658
Airport 4587212
Total business-type activities $ 17,097,870

Water and Sewer System Capital Assets

The City of Amarillo is one of 11 cities that can receive surface water from a reservoir created by a dam
on the Canadian River, which river arises from the headwaters of the Sangre de Cristo mountains in New
Mexico and crosses the Panhandle of Texas before merging tuto the Red River in eastern Oklahoma. The
reservoir and related aqueduct system are operated by the Canadian River Water Municipal Water
Authority (CRMWA), a subdivision of the State of Texas. The reservoir has experienced a serious decline
in available water due to the drought conditions in the Texas Panhandle over the past three years.
Currentiy, the City of Amarillo is not allocating water from this source. The related infrastructure
recorded on the City's books for CRMWA assets at September 30, 2012 is $50.3 million. The related
amortized cost of these assets is $ 19.05 million.

The City owns §_56,700,214 of underground water rights in Roberts, Ochiltree, Hutchison, Potter,
Randall, Carson, Hartley and Dallam counties with the majority in Roberts and Hutchison counties,
Much of the water rights held in Potter, Randall and Carson counties have been developed and are
currently being utilized. The City owns undeveloped water riglits in Hartley and Dallam counties in the
northwestern portion of the Texas Panbandle. Due to the acquisition of the superior Roberts County and
Ochiltree County rights and existing water rights in Potter, Randall and Carson counties, the City does not
have plans to develop the water rights in Hartley and Dallam counties at this time. The City sold a
portion of the Hartley County water rights during fiscal year 2011. Proceeds from this sale were
$7,243,227. Proceeds from the sale are being held in a separate interest-bearing account and are being
held for future purchases of water rights. In fiscal year 2011/12, $991,758 of these funds were used to
assist in purchasing water rights, leaving a balance of $6,251,293 for future purchases. The City
purchased $17,206,287 of additional water rights in fiscal year 2011/12. These rights consisted of
34,609.52 acres of water rights in Ochiltree, Roberts and Lipscomb counties. These water rights were
purchased from bond proceeds and amounts being held for purchase from Hartley and Dallam county
water right sales.
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Water and Sewer System Capital Assets (Continued)

In accordance with financial accounting standards, the City capitalized interest costs applicable to its
outstanding water and sewer bonds as construction in progress in its Water and Sewer System Fund, as
follows:

Interest expense before capitalization $ 7.617,574
Interest expenses capitalized $ 603,538

The interest expense not meeting the capitalization criteria represents the $4,252,077 of CRMWA charges
associated with that entity's bonded indebtedness and $2,761,959 of Water and Sewer Revenue Bond
interest not subject to the capitalization requirements. The City prepaid the bond interest payment due
October 1, 2012 of $931,566.

Airport Capital Assets

Airport capital assets include runways, buildings, and related improvements constructed by the Federal
government for use as an Air Force Base on land contributed by the City, which was returned to the City
in 1967 and 1970 upon closing of the Base. Upon return of such assets to the City, the land was recorded
on the books of the Airport at $1,521,510, its original cost to the City, and improvements were recorded
at $14,356,430, representing construction cost less a provision for depreciation to date returned.

Certain lands and improvements not utilized by the City for airport purposes are leased to various
commercial enterprises and to approved economic development program applicants both directly and
through the AEDC.

The Airport substantially completed the new terminal facility at fiscal year-end September 30, 2011,
while some renovations were still ongoing at year-end. The Airport capitalized $45,450,327 of con-
struction cost at year-end.

The City capitalized interest costs in the amount of $503,595 applicable to its outstanding airport bonds as

construction in progress in the Airport Fund. Interest and amortization expense before capitalization was
$503,595.

NOTE 7 - LEASES

The City leases digital video red light camera equipment from American Traffic Solutions, Inc. under a
cancelable operating lease. Total costs for the lease were $329,805 for the year ended September 30,
2012,

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City participates in funding two retirement plans. The Texas Municipal Retirement System is an
agent, multiple-employer, public-employee retirement system which is a nontraditional, jomt-con-
tributory, hybrid defined benefit pfan. The Firemen's Relief and Retirement Plan is a single-employer,
contributory defined benefit plan. Substantially all employees of the City are eligible to participate in one
of these two plans.
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS {CONTINULD)

The City's total payroll for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 was $88,900,800 and the portion
covered by the two plans was as follows:

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) $ 70,516,310
Firemen's Rehef and Retirement System (FRRF)

Total covered payroll

Including current employees, annuitanis and terminated employees entitled to future benefits, the City had
3,262 members of TMRS and 426 members of FRRF as of the dates of the latest actuarial evaluations.

In addition to the two retirement plans funded by the City, employees may participate in a deferred
compensation plan. Details of the various plans are as follows:

Retirement Plans
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its ¢ligible employees who are not firefighters through a
nontraditional, joint-contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS), an agent, multiple-employer, public-employee retirement system. The plan
provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the governing state
statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed
explanations of the contributions, benefits, and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System.
This report may be obtained from the TMRS website at www. TMRS.com.

TMRS was created by the State of Texas and is administered in accordance with the Texas Municipal
Retirement System Act by six trustees appointed by the Governor of the State of Texas. The City joined
the System in 1948 to supplement Social Security. The Plan accounts for its affairs to its members and
provides actuarial information on the basis of the calendar year. Each of the municipalities has an annual
individual actuarial valuation performed. The plan provisions arc adopted by the governing body of the
City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were
as follows:

Changes effective
Plan Year 2011 Plan Year 2012 January 1. 2013

Employee Deposit rate % 7% 7%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2to 1 210l 2101
Years required for vesting 10 10 5
Service retirement eligibility (expressed as

age/years of service) 60/10, 0/20 60/10, 0/20 60/5, 0720
Updated Service Credit 100%, Transfers 0% 100%
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City-
financed monetary credits, with interest. Upon joining the Plan, the City granted its employees monetary
credits of a theoretical amount equal to two times whal would have been contributed by the employee,
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) (Continued)

with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a
percent (currently 200% for City of Amarillo employees) of the employee's accumulated contributions.
In addition, the City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary credit referred to as an
updated service credit. The updated service credit is a theoretical amount which, when added to the
employee's accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be
the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest, if the current employee
contribution rate and the City's matehing percent had always been in existence, and if the employee's
salary had always been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year before the
effective date. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as it the sum of the employee's accumulated
coniributions with interest and the employer-financed monetary credits with interest were used to
purchase an annuity, In conjunction with the 2010-11 budget process, the City dropped the repeating
Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) and repeating Updated Service Credit {USC) benefits. However, the
City approved the repeating Updated Service Credit during the 2012/13 budget process and added five-
year vesting. Both of these benefits will be effective January 1, 2013,

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 10 or more years of service or at any age with 20 years or
more of service. The plan also provides death and disability benefits. A member is vested after 10 years,
but he must leave his accumulated contributions in the plan. The plan provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within
the actuarial constraints also in the statutes. Effective January 1, 2013, members can retire at age 60 and
above with five or more years of service or at any age with 20 vears or more of service and a member will
be vested after five years of service.

Contributions

The contribution rate for the employees is 7%, while the City's matching percent is currently 2 to 1, both
as adopted by the City Commission.

Under the state faw governing TMRS; the City's contribution rate is annually determined by the System's
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost-
contribution rate and the prior-service contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of
payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's
projected benefit allocated annually. The prior-service, contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actuarial
liability over the applicable period for the City of the plan's amortization period (23.2 years for the City as
of the 12/31/2011 actuarial study).

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the
City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for
budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for
the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension
obligation are as Tollows:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 9,846,106
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 536,901
Adjustment to the ARC (4601,521)
Annual Pension Cost (APC) 9,921,486
Contributions Made _ (9,887.329)
Increase in net pension obligation 34,157
Net Pension Obligation at 09/30/2011 5272187
Net Pension Obligation at 09/30/2012 3 5,306,344
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The City's total payroll in fiscal year 2012, exclusive of firefighters, was $72,744,009 and the City's
contributions were based on a covered payroll of $70,516,310. Both the City and the covered employees
make contributions monthly. The City's contribution was $9,887,329. The employees' contributions of
7% of payroll were $4,936,214.

Funding Siatus and Future Changes in Actuarial and Amortization Methods

The financing objective of each TMRS plan is to provide retirement, death, and disability benefits for a
city's employees financed by a contribution rate which will remain approximately level as a percent of the
city's payroll from year to year. To test how well the financing objective is being achieved, annual
actuarial valuations are made, which valuations adjust each city's contributions for differences in the past
year between the actuarial assumptions and the actual experience.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Year Aunnual Pension Actual Percentage of APC Net Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributions Made  Contributed Obligation
9/30/12 $ 9,921,480 $ 9,887,329 99.7% $ 5,306,344
930411 9,250,388 10,585,466 114.4% 5,272,187
9/30/10 15,488,174 11,641,233 75.2% 6,607,265

The required contribution rates for fiscal year ending September 30, 2012 were determined as part of the
December 31, 2009 and 2010 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation, December 31, 2011, also follows:

12/31/2010 - Prior 12/31/2016 -
Valuation Date 12/31/2009 to Restructuring Restructured 12/31/201]

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit

Amortization Method

GASB 25 Eeuivalent Single
Amortization Period

Amortization Period for
New Gains/l.osses

Assel Valuation Method

Acteariel Assumptions:
[nvestment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increases

Includes Inflation at

Cost-of-Living Adjustments

Level Percent
of Payroll

28.1 years;
closed period

30 years

10-y car Smoothed
M arket

7.50%

Varies by
age and service

3.00%

2.10%

Level Percent
of Payroll

259 years;
closed period

30 years

-y car Smoothed
M arket

7.50%

Varies by
age and service

3.00%

(1LO0%Y
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level Percent
of Payroll

24.5 years,
closed period

30 years

10-y car Smoolhed
Markel

7.00%

Varies by
age and service

3.00%

{.00%

Level Percent
of Payroll

232 years;
closed period

30 years

10-year Smoothed
M arket

7.00%

Varies by
age and service

3.00%
0.00%
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Retirement Plans (Continued)

In June 2011, Senate Bill 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of the
TMRS funds. This legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed, as if restructuring had
occurred on December 31, 2010, In addition, the actuarial assumptions were updated for the new fund
structure, based on an actuariaf experience study that was adopted by the TMRS board at their May 2011
meeting. The review compared actual to expected experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006
through December 31, 2009. For a complete description of the combined impact of the legislation and
new actuarial assumptions, including the effects on TMRS city rates and funding ratios, please see the
December 31, 2010 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR).

Firemen's Relief and Ketirement Fund
Plan Description

The City of Amarillo contributes to the Amarillo Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund (FRRF), which is
a single-employer, contributory defined benefit plan maintained for members of the City of Amarillo Fire
Department. The benefit and contribution provisions of this plan are established under the authority of
the Texas Local Fire Fighters Retirement Act (TLFFRA). The Board of Trustees of the Fund consists of
three firefighters and two citizens elected by the members, together with the Mayor or the Mayor's
designated representative and the Director of Finance of the City. Within parameters established by
TLY¥FRA, the plan may be amended upon approval by the Board and a vote of the membership.

All persons who are under 36 years of age upon entering service as a firefighter must become members of
the plan. The plan generally provides for a lifetime pension expressed as a percentage of average pay,
available at age 50 after 20 years of participation. Early retirement and deferred retirement options are
also available. The actuarial valuation at January 1, 2012 incorporated all changes in plan benefits
effective through that date. The standard retirement benefit is 3.45% of average monthly salary
multiplied by years of service, payable in the form of a joint and 2/3-spouse annuity, but various other
forms of annuities may be selected. Disability benefits are also paid, the amount of which varies
depending upon age, years of service and whether the disability is duty-related. Dependent children may
also receive death benefits. A firefighter may elect to receive the return of his/her own contributions upon
termination of employment.

The tabulation below summarizes membership of the fund at January 1, 2012, the effective date of the
latest actuarial valuation;

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated

employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 183
Current employees:

Actives below assumed retirement age 229

Actives at or above assumed retirement age 14
Total L4206

Funding Policy and Contribution

Contributions are made to the FRRF by each member and by the City. While the contribution
requirements are not actuarially determined, state law requires that each plan of benefits adopted by the
fund must be approved by a qualified actuary. The actuary certifies that the contribution commitments of
the firefighters and the City provide an adequate financing arrangement. The entry age actuarial cost
method is used to determine the plan's normal cost as a percentage of payroll. This method does not
identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial habilities. The excess of the total contribution rate
over the normal cost rate is used to amortize the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any.
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Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund (Continued)

The firefighters' total payroll in fiscal year 2012 was $16,156,791 and the City's contributions were based
on a covered payroll of $15,723,096. The firefighters made required contributions of $1,733,976,
$1,761,713, and $1,643.416 for the fiscal years ending 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Funding Staitus

The most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of January 1, 2012. Valuations are performed
biennially. The actuarial accrued liability is developed by subtracting the present value of future normal
costs from the present value of total future benefits. Amounts are discounted for interest and for the
probability that they will ultimately be paid. Probabilities taken into account include death, disability and
termination. The unfunded actuarial liability represents the difference between (a) the present value of
future benefits and (b) the sum of the present value of future normal costs and fund assets.

The actuarial method and assumptions used in the actuartal valuation of the plan are the same as those
used to develop the actuarial present value under GASB Statement No. 25, 27 and 50. The actuarial cost
method used in the valuation is the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the accrued pension liability included the contribution rates of
17.83% by the City and 11% by employees, a 3.25% rate of inflation, compensation increases for
individual members of 5.5% per year, compounded annually, increases in total payroll of 5.5%, com-
pounded annually, retirement age of active firefighters of 54 and 20 years of service, and starting age for
benefits of terminated members to average age 50. The assumed rate of return on the actuarial value of
assets was 8.25%, compounded annually, based on a study of the historical yield of the trust fund, as well
as an estimate of future rates of return, given the nature and mix of current and expected plan investments.
Neither the plan nor the actuarial valuation includes a cost of living increase.

The amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was determined as a level percentage of
projected payroll. As of January 1, 2012 the amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is 102.1 years. The amortization period is an open amortization period. Guidelines published by
the Texas State Pension Review Board specify that the amortization period should never exceed 40 years,
with a 25 to 30-year period being preferable. The amortization period as of January 1, 2012 of 102.]
years is greater than the Pension Review Board Guidelines. During October 2012 the firefighters voted in
a 2% employee contribution increase from 11% to 13% to address the increased amortization period. The
estimated amortization period after the increase is 50.2 years. The annual pension cost, unfunded
actuarial liability, and net pension obligation which are calculated under a 30-year amortization period are
as follows:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 3,393,145
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (25.961)
Adjustment to the ARC _ 16,088
Annual Pension Cost (APC) 3,383,272
Contributions Made (2,810,617
Change in net pension obligation 572,655
Net Pension Obligation at 9/30/2011] (314,684)
Net Pension Obligation at 9/30/2012 $ 257971

The actuarial value of plan assets was determined vsing techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in the fair value of assets over a five-year period. At January 1, 2012, the actuarial value of plan
assets was $120,396,531 and the fair market value was $115,866,425.
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The investment return assumption and the projected salary increase use the same assumptions with
respect to inflation.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Actual Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributions Made Contributed Obligation
09/30/2012 $ 3383272 $ 2,810,617 83.1% $ 257971
09/30/2011 2,957,348 2,855,574 96.6% (314,684)
09/30/2010 2,589,313 2,601,843 100.5% (416,458)

Summary Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability — A} Plans
The City's unfunded obligation for both the TMRS and FRRF plans is summnarized in Table 5 below:

TMRS FRRF
12/31/2011 1/1/2012 Totals
Actuarial accrued liability $§ 330,594,097 $ 153,978,252 $ 484,572,349
Net assets available for benefits
asset valuation based on cost oradjustment cost (310,626.860) - (310,626,860}
Net asset available for benefits
asset valuation based on smoothed market - (120,396,531) (120,396,531}
Unfunrded (overfunded) actuarial acerucd liability 5 19,967,237 $ 33,581,721 $ 53,348,958
UAAL asa
Actnarial Actaarial Acerued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value Eiability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio rayroll Payroll
Date {a) (b} (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)c|
TMRS 12/31/11 $310,626,860 $ 330,594,097 $ 19,967,237 94.0% § 68,569,807 29.1%
FRRF 01/01/12 120,396,531 153,978,252 33,581,721 78.2% 15,058,726 223.0%

Table 5 - Unfunded (Overfunded) Actuariad Accrued Liahitity

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuariaf value of pian
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

Trend Information

Historical trend information is presented in order for a reader to assess the progress made in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become payable. This information, presented in
accordance with the standards of GASB Statement No. 25 and 27 as amended by GASB Statement No,
50, may be found in the Required Supplementary Information section of this report on page 103 (TMRS
an) and page 104 (FRRF plan).

Additional Information

All administrative costs of the TMRS plan are bome by that system. City management does not
participate in investment decisions, and there are no related party transactions, TMRS issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be
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obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149513, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677, in
addition, the report is available on TMRS/ website at www. TMRS.com.

Salaries for City personnel who help administer the Amarillo Firemen's Relief and Retirement
Fund (AFRRF) are borne by the City's General Fund. The Fund incurs the costs of the annual
actuarial and audit fees. The Fund has not held securities issued by the City. The Fund issues an audited
stand-alone annual financial report. This report, and further details concerning the plan, is available by
contacting the Board of Trustees, Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund, City of Amarillo, P.0. Box 1971,
Amarillo, Texas 79105,

Deferred Compensation Plan

In addition to the TMRS and FRRF plans, the City offers its full-time employees a choice of deferred
compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plans,
available to all City employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination of employment, retirement, death
or unforeseeable emergency. The employee liability for the related Federal income taxes is deferred until
the funds are paid to the participating employee or beneficiary under the terms of the agreement.

The laws governing deferred compensation plans require plan assets to be held by a trust for the exclusive
benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Because the assets held under these plans are not the
City's property and are not subject to City control, they have been exciuded from these financial
statements.

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2006,
The City does provide postemployment healith benefits to retirees within a single-employer plan. In addi-
tion, the City currently pays on a pay-as-you-go basis. In prior years, each respective fund has liquidated
their respective liability on a pay-as-you-go basis.

From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of postemployment healthcare benefits, like the cost of
pension benefits, generally should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in
the future year when it will be paid. In adopting the requirement of GASB Statement No. 45 during the
year ended September 30, 2009, the City recognizes the cost of postemployment healthcare in the year
when the employee services are received, reports the accumulated fiability from prior years, and provides
information useful in assessing potential demands on the City's future cash flows. Recognition of the
liability accumulated from prior year will be phased in over 30 years, commencing with the 2008 liability.

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost (OPEB)

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, the City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is $21,982,334.
Considering the annual expense less pay-as-you-go cost of $4,367,187 for retirees, the result was an
increase in the net OPEB cbligation of $17,615,147 for the year ended September 30, 2012.

Benefit Obligation and Normal Cost

Actuarial present value of henefits $ 407,711,186
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
Actuarial accrued liability $ 267,069,036
Actuarial value of assets e e
Unfunded actuarial accrued Hability $.267.069,030

Present value of future normal costs
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Annual Other Postemplovment Benefit Cost (OPEB) (Continued)

Annual required contribution

Notmal cost $ 10,995,493
Amortization of UAAL 11,120,824
Interest on above amounts to end of year 884,633

Annual required contribution

Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution

& 23,000,970

§ 21,980,372

Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,278,147
Adjustment to annual required contribution _{2276.18%)
Annual OPEB cost $ 21,982,334
Employer contributions with interest (4.367.187)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 17,615,147
Net OPEB cobligation, beginning of year 56.953.683

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Year Annual Employer Percentage Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
9/30/12 $ 21,982,334 $ 4,367,187 20% § 74,568,830
9/30/11 17,366,128 3,807,472 22% 56,953,683
9/30/10 16,622,608 3,158,651 19% 43,395,027

Funding Status

The current unfunded actuarial accrued Hability equals the actuarial accrued liability as the City currently
does not fund the plan in excess of the pay-as-you-go amount. Actuarial values of the program involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions of the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare
costs frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the program and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

UAAL asa

Actuarial Actluarial Acerued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Yaluation of Assets {AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b} {b-a) (a/b) (¢) [{b-2)/¢]
10/1/12 $ - $ 267,069,036 $ 267.069.036 0.0% $ 94400488 282.9%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial acerued liability of benefits.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point, The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of asscts, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The City hired an actuary to estimate the liabtlity of the City's current retiree health program. The date of
this study was October T, 2011. The actuarial liability was based on a 4.0% discount rate, pay-as-you-go-
funding. Projected Unit Credit level percent of pay actuarial cost method, 30-year closed amortization of
the UAAL, increasing at 3.00% per year (payroll growth rate). The healthcare cost trend rates are
assumed to decrease in future years ranging from a high of 9.00% for 2013 to 5.00% beginning 2021.
The actuarial liability for the retiree health program for both active and retired members is $267,069,036.
The annual required contribution to fund this actuarial liability is $23,000,970.

Financial Statements

The Plan does not publish separate financial statements. Further information regarding the Plan may be
obtained from the Finance Director, City of Amarillo.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS

The City has several ongoing commitments. One of the more significant commitments is the City's
commitment to the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority (CRMWA). The City is obligated to pay
its pro rata share of operating costs of the Canadian River Municipal Dam and Aqueduct System along
with the City's portion of the CRMWA debt. These costs are included in the Water and Sewer system. In
the event of the acquisition and financing of additional water rights, the City would be responsible for
confract payments to CRMWA for its proportionate share of the debt service on the bonds issued.

Due to the increasing decline of Lake Meredith, CRMWA began acquiring additional water rights in
Gray, Hutchinson, Roberts, and Wheeler Counties beginning in 2004. In the process of acquiring water
rights, CRMWA is now one of the largest water rights owners in Texas.

The City leases facilities adjoining to the City's Civic Center from the Amarillo-Potter Events Venue
District {the Venue District). Under the terms of the lease the City is obligated to pay the greater of §10
per month or any shortfall in the District's required monthly deposit to the debt service account. The City
has not had to pay more than $120 in lease payments since the inception of the District in 1998,

Moreover, the Venue District's tax revenues currently can cover debt service payments approximately two
times. Therefore, the City does not anticipate paying more than $120 in [ease payments in 2012-13.
However, the City has appropriated $1,110,841 of its available Fund Balance in the City's 2012-13 budget
for its potential commitment to the Venue District although City Management does not believe that any
payment beyond $120 will be necessary.

Most of the City's commitments are in capital projects. Many of these projects take more than a year to

design, bid, and construct; therefore, the appropriation and commitment do not end at year-end. Al
September 30, 2012, the City had commitments with respect to completion of various capital projects, as
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reflected in Tabie 6. For this purpose, commitments are defined as the difference between the appro-
priation for the project and amounts paid or recognized as liabilities at year-end; additional funding from
outside sources are shown as a reduction to the amounts reported as committed. Sufficient resources were
either on hand in the City's accounts or authorized and available to complete all committed projects.

Fxpected Qutside Complete at City's
Project Outside Funding September 30, Remaining
Authorizations  Funding Sources Received 2012 Committed
Governmental activities
Street improvements % 5068750 kS 2,769,886 % 200000 $ 2,390,057 $ 108,807
General construction 50,745,143 44 0277703 22.089.160 16,372,901 12,433,697
Solid Wasle improvements 13,130,574 3458,799 9671,775
Golf course improvement 75,200 44,905 30,205
Civic Center improvements 2,935 880 112,528 7.630 1,008,217 1,732.763
Taotal - governmental fund activilies 71955547 46,910,119 22,296,790 22,364,879 23,977339
Internal service fiand projects
Information scrvices 2,563,730 162,723 162,723 1,136,948 1,426,182
Municipal garage 523,390 460,708 62,882
Total - all governmental-type activities 75,042,867 47072842 22459513 24,962 535 25467003
Business-lype activities
Water and sewer system improvements 75,674,222 4271472 1,388,784 36,349.477 36442057
Adrport 58,647,033 2737,778 24,218,834 53,440,338 2,053,753
Total - all business-lype activities 134,321,257 31,643,250 25607618 86789815 38495810
Total - all city project § 209,364,124 $ 78716092 $ 48067131 $ 114,752 350 § 63962813

table 6 ~ Unfinished Canstruclion Projects

Funding assistance is being requested in connection with the development of a new well field located in
Potter County northeast of the City. The total estimated cost of this project is $92 million. During April
2009 the City issued $38,885,000 in the form of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
through the Texas Water Development Board's Water Infrastructure Fund Loan program at a favorable
interest rate of two percentage points below market or 2.10%. The additional $47.4 million needed for
the project was also funded through the Texas Water Development Board's Water Infrastructure Fund
Loan program at even better rates. The City issued $47.4 million in the form of Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligations 2009B at 1.97%. Also in November 2009, the City received funding
from the Texas Water Development Board as part of the America Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA) for funding improvements to the City's Water Treatment Plant. The City has issued the 2009C
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation in the amount of $18,075,000 at 0% interest.
These bonds are being issued in multiple settiements as the City continues the project. As of
September 30, 2012, $17,015,000 of this amount has been received and is recorded as a bond payable.

The City has established funding and commitments for a new Airport Terminal Building. A portion of
the project is included in the above amounts in the Airport Fund. The total cost of the project is expected
to be approximately $52.4 million. Funding for the project will be derived from $17.2 million in boad
proceeds and re-offering premium from the 2009A Combination Tax Revenue Certificates of Obligations,
$21.1 million in FAA entitlement grants, $3.4 million in a grant from Transportation Security
Administration (TSA), and $10.7 million from airport reserves. After the construction is complete,
repayment of the outstanding bond debt will be paid from the continuing passenger facilitics charges as
well as a portion of future AP entitlement grants.

The City currently has six Public Improvement Districts (PIDs). Five of the six PIDs are located in
residential areas of the City and the last PID is located in a business park. These PIDs were established to
provide and maintain enhanced amenities beyond what the City would normally approve in a standard
development. Most of thesc amenities take the form of linear parks with walkways, additional land-
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scaping, special features such as bridges and clock towers and special lighting. Since the residents
adjacent to these amenities benefit more than the general public, the residents adjacent to the enhanced
areas pay special assessments each year for these enhanced amenities.

The PIDs are responsible for the maintenance and ongoing upkeep of these enhanced faculties along with
the original cost of the improvements. The City has issued Certificates of Obligations to pay for
improvements at the Greenways Public Improvement District. The first issue was for $600,000 in 2001,
the second issue was for $620,000 in 2003, and a third issue was for $600,000 in 2008. The special
assessments paid by the residents are used to pay for the maintenance and upkeep of the special amenities
and to service the debt on the Certificates of Obligation. At the end of fiscal year 2012, there was
approximately $531,000 due the developer of the Greenways for unreimbursed improvements.

The City is obligated to issue additional debt and pay the developer when there are sufficient property
owners to support the debt service payments. All of the enhanced amenities at the Greenways were
originally estimated to be approximately $2.5 million and estimated expenditures for the 2013 fiscal year
are $149,500.

The Colonies Public Improvement District also has unreimbursed costs to the developer for enhanced
amenities. The City issued Certificates of Obligations to reimburse the developer for these enhancements.
The bonds were issued during 2006 in the amount of $585,000 and $1,500,000 during 2008. The special
assessments paid by the residents will be used to pay the debt service associated with this issue. Through
September 30, 2012 there was approximately $1,365,000 in unreimbursed cost to the developer. The City
is obligated to issue debt when there are sufficient property owners to support the debt to pay the
developer along with the ongoing maintenance and upkeep of the amenities. All of the enhanced
amenities at the Colonies were originally estimated to be approximately $4.6 million and estimated
expenditures for the 2013 fiscal year are approximately $1 million. The other PIDs are fully developed
and there is not an amount to be paid to the developer.

The City has committed $276,298 in the 2012/13 Budget to Downtown Amarillo Inc. (DAI) and
$135,000 to Center City for downtown redevelopment. Both work closely with the City, citizens and the
downtown developer to promote and improve the downtown area.

The City previously entered inio a development agreement, which was assigned to the Amarillo Local
Government Corporation {the Corporation) in 2011, The Corporation's charge is to work with the
developer on three downtown initiatives: a convention hotel, a parking garage and a multi-purpose event
venue that will also serve as a minor league ball park. The City will own all of the facilities. The City
anticipates that they will need to issue approximately $39.9 million in hotel tax revenue bonds in 2013 1o
finance the parking garage and multi-purpose event venue. This issuance may be split into two pieces
based on the construction sequence of the projects as they are developed. The City budgeted capital funds
for relocation of utilities in the 2011/12. At year-end this project was in process.

Unfortunately, the hotel tax revenue is already allocated. Currently, 3.5% of the 7% hotel tax revenues
are used 1o offset the operating loss at the Civic Center Complex, which includes the Globe News Center.
Also, about 3% of the hotel tax is allocated to the Chamber of Commerce's Convention and Visitor's
Counsel to promote tourism and conventions in the City. The half percent is used to subsidize events at
the Civic Center Complex. Generally, the 3.5% for the Civie Center Complex is more than enough to
offset the loss and the balance is transferred to the Civic Center Improvement fund for future capital
needs. Likewise, the City generally does not use all the funds allocated to subsidize events at the Civic
Center Complex and those excess funds are also transferred to the Civic Center Improvement fund.  Alf
three of the projects will be outsourced in a lease agreement with the developer, and the developer will be
responsible for the maintenance and operation of the facilities at no cost to the City.
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To free up additional hotel tax revenues, the City increased Civic Center Complex rents by 20% in the
2011/12 fiscal year and intends to increase rents another 20% in the 2012/13 budget. The City has also
added a 10% add-on fee to ticketed events at the Civic Center Complex. Since most events were under
contract in 2012713, the City will not see the full impact of this increase until 2013, Once the parking
garage is built, the City anticipates about $150,000 annually in special events parking and a lease from the
hotel of $360,000 annually for parking spaces. The Venue District has also approved a $100,000 increase
in the operating agreement for their portion of the Civic Center, which will also free up additional hotel
fax.

For the Civic Center, the net result of issuing the hotel tax revenue bonds will be fewer funds for future
capital. However, the Chamber's Convention and Tourism allocation was used mainly for operating the
program. The Chamber has retained significant unspent hotel revenues and will use those funds to offset
their reduction in future hotel tax revenue. The hotel taxes will ultimately have to grow to make up for
the shott fali to the Chamber. Fortunately, 2011/12 was the City's best year yet for hotel tax.

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Tax Supported Debt

On February 3, 2011 the City issued the 2011 A and 2011B Certificates of Obligation series. The 2011A
series was issued in the amount of $3,750,000 to fund the reconstruction of one of the City's municipal
golf courses. The debt service for this issue will be funded by revenue generated from the City golf
courses. These bonds were issued at 4.91%. The maturities range thru 2037 with annual principal
payments from $85,000 to $245,000. The 2011B series was issued in the amount of $2,210,000 to fund
streetscape Improvements in the City's downtown central business district. The streetscape project is part
of our "Downtown Strategic Action Plan" for our Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) #1.
Accordingly, the debt service for this issue will be funded by the TIRZ #1 revenue. These bonds were
issued at 4.93%. The maturities range thru 2032 with annual principal payments from $70,000 to
$170,000.

On April 15, 2010 the City issued $1,392,000 Recovery Zone Build America Bonds, Series 2010. These
bonds were issued at 5.81% with a 45% interest subsidy from the United States Treasury. The maturities
range thru 2030 with an average interest coupon of 3.196% (net of the subsidy). The proceeds are to fund
the City's portion of the construction of a bridge at Grand and 3rd Street, as well as street and drainage
improvements. The annual principal maturities range from $59,000 to $88,000.

On September 3, 2009 the City issued the Series 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $4,825,000. These bonds refunded the 2001 General Obligation Bonds, with the exception of
the August 15, 2010 principal payment of $285,000, which was paid by the City. The refunding met the
requirements of an in-substance defeasance and the applicable bonds were removed from the City's books
of account. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 13 years
by approximately $287,000, and resulted in an economic gain of approximately $231,000. Interest on the
2009 bonds is payable in semi-annual installments at rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%, and the serial
bonds mature annually to August 15, 2022 in amounts ranging from $345,000 to $485,000. The City has
reserved the right to redeem the bonds with maturities on or after August 15, 2019 on August 15, 2018 or
any date thereafter.

The City issued $24,575,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation bonds dated

September 25, 2007. The issuance of these bonds has greatly helped the City to respond to the substantial
growth pressures existing in Fire, Police, Public Health, Street, and the Parks and Recreation Departments
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Tax Supported Debt (Continued) i

to meet public facility and infrastructure needs. Interest is payable in semi-annual installments which
began November 15, 2008, at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.25%, and the serial bonds mature annually to
May 15, 2027 in amounts ranging from $1,020,000 to $2,000,000. The City has reserved the right to
redeem the bonds with maturities on or after May 15, 2018 on May 15, 2017 or any date thereafter. The
bonds are insured by the MBIA Insurance Corporation.

On Feb. 18, 2009, MBIA Inc. announced a restructuring plan that created new, separate legal entities
within the MBIA group. In this fransaction, National Finance Guarantee Corporation (National), formerly
known as MBIA Insurance Corporation of Hlinois, became a sister company of other MBIA entities that
maintain non-U.S. public finance risks. National became the U.S. public finance insurer within the MBIA
group, and it assumed the U.S. public finance book of business that was previously part of MBIA on a
reinsurance-cut-through basis. MBIA's other legal entities retained the global structured finance and
international infrastructure business. This restructuring had the goal of separating the more volatile
structured finance book of business from the lower-risk/lower-volatility U.S. public finance book. On
December 19, 2011, Moody's Investor Service downgraded the financial strength of National to Baa2
from Baal. This rating action has no affect on the City's underlying rating, nor did it affect the original
terms of the bonds. The City's General Obligation debt enjoys AAA by Standard and Poor's and Aal by
Moody's.

Special Assessment Debt

On December 20, 2001, the City issued $600,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation for the purpose of financing the construction of park facilities in the Greenways Public
Improvement District of the City. Debt service is to be funded out of special assessments on propertics
within the District. Under the terms of Certificates of Obligation, if the City did not levy the special
assessment or if the revenue from the special assessments was not sufficient to pay the debt service on the
Certificates of Obligations, the City would be obligated to levy a tax to make the debt service payments.
Interest is payable in semi-annual installments at 4.45%, and the certificates are subject to mandatory
redemption in annual amounts ranging from $43,000 to $55,000. Final maturity is August 15, 2016, and
the City has reserved the right to redeem the remaining outstanding certificates on or after August 15,
2010.

On November 26, 2003, the City issued $620,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation for the purpose of financing the construction of additional park facilities in the Greenways
Public Improvement District of the City. Debt service is to be funded out of special assessments on
properties within the District. Interest is payable in semi-annual installments at 3.70%, and the
certificates are subject to mandatory redemption in annual amounts ranging from $30,000 to $45,000.
Final maturity is August 15, 2023,

On May 24, 2006, the City issued $585,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
for the purpose of financing enhancements of the park facilities in the Celonies Public Improvement
District. Debt Service is to be funded out of special assessments on properties within the District.
Principal and interest are payable monthly at a rate of 4.75%, and the certificates are subject to mandatory
redemption in annual amounts ranging from $18,920 to $43,909. The final maturity is February 15, 2026.

On July 17, 2008, the City issued $600,000 (2008A) and $1,500,000 (2008B) of Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation for the purpose of financing enhancements of the park facilities in the
Greenways Public Improvement District and the Colonies Public Improvement District, respectively.
Debt Service is to be funded out of special assessments on properties within each District. For the 2008A
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issue principal and interest are payable monthly at a rate of 4.28%, and the certificates are subject to
mandatory redemption in annual amounts ranging from $25,000 to $45,000. The final maturity is
February 15, 2028. For the 20088 issue principal and interest are payable monthly at a rate of 4.08%. and
the certificates are subject to mandatory redemption in annual amounts ranging from $60,000 to
$110,000. The final maturity is February 15, 2028.

Summary of changes in the governmental activities debt for the year ended September 30, 2012 is as
follows:

Tax Special Assessment ‘Total
Supported Debt and Other Government
Debt Revenue Sources Activitics Debt
Principal balances outstanding, Octaber 1, 2011 $ 28418000 £ 9.008918 $ 37426918
New bond issue - - -
Principal maturities (1,378,000} (328,708) (1,706,708}
Balances September 30, 2012 27,040,000 8,680,210 35,720210
Balance of unamortized issuance cost (23,168) (42,416) (65,584
Balance of unamortized discount/premium 202,750 - 202,750
Net balances, September 30, 2012 $ 27219382 $ 8637794 $ 35857376

Water and Sewer Bonds

On December 28, 2006, the City issued Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2006A of $9,370,000 par value to refund the 1996 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Refunding.
The advance refunding met the requirements of an in-substance defeasance and the applicable bonds were
removed from the City's books of account. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service
payments by approximately $105,000 and resulted in an economic gain of approximately $67,000. The
2006A bonds mature annually through 2027 in principal amounts ranging from $1,010,000 to $1,350,000,
and the interest rates on the outstanding securities range from 4.25 % to 4.38%. In order to keep debt
service payments {evel the City's principal payments will begin in the year 2020.

On September 7, 2005 the City issued the Waterworks and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds in the
amount of $13,650,000 maturing through 2019, to advance refund a portion of the 1999 Waterworks and
Sewer Revenue Bond issue. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the
next twelve years by approximately $917,000 and resulted in an economic gamn of approximately
$769,000. The refunded bonds were removed from the City's books. The outstanding remaining
principal for the 1999 issue was paid off on April 1, 2007. The outstanding 2005 bonds mature annually
through 2019 with principal amounts ranging from $1,070,000 to $1,415,000 and provide for interest
rates ranging from 4.00% o 5.00%.

In 2003 the City issued Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds in the amount of $9,180,000 for
the purpose of funding capital projects, On August 1, 2011 the City issued General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2011 of $5,605,000 par value to refund $5,680,000 of the 2003 Waterworks and Sewer
System Revenue Bonds. The advance refunding met the requirement of an in-substance defeasance and
the applicable bonds were removed from the City's books of account. The refunding was undertaken to
reduce the total debt service payments over the next twelve years by $840,080 and resulted in an
economic gain of $716,618 with a net present value benefit of $337,772. $410,000 of the outstanding
remaining principal of the 2003 issue was paid off in 2012, The outstanding Series 2011 bonds mature
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annualtly thru 2023 with principal amounts ranging from $450,000 to $575,000 and provide for interest
rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.125%.

On December 28, 2006, the City issued $9,120,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue bonds,
Series 2006 for the improvement and expansion of the City's waterworks and sewer system. In order to
keep the debt service payments level, the principal payments will begin in 2013 and mature annually
through 2032 in principal amounts ranging from $305,000 to $655,000. The interest rates on the bonds
will range from 4.00% to 4.50%.

On April 1, 2009, the City issued $38,885,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
bonds, Series 2009 to help fund the Potter County well field project. The outstanding bonds mature
annually through 2028 in principal amounts ranging from $2,005,000 to $2,555,000 and provide for
interest rates ranging from .148% to 3.018%.

On December 29, 2009, the City issued the Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series 2009B in the amount of $47.400,000. The Series 20098 bonds mature annually through 2029 in
principal amounts ranging from $1,955,000 to $3,400,000 and provide for interest rates ranging from
21% to 2.587%. The City also issued Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series
2009C in the amount of $18,075,000. The Series 2009C bonds mature annually through 2031 with
annual principal payment of $905,000 and provide for a 0% interest rate. As of September 30, 2012,
$16,135,000 of these bonds have been settled and are reflected on the City's debt schedule. We intend to
close on the balance of this debt issuance during the 2012/13 fiscal year.

On August 1, 2011 the City issued the Waterworks and Sewer System New Series Revenue Bonds, New
Series 2011 in the amount of $16,300,000. The Series bonds mature annually through 2031 in principal
amounts ranging from $600,000 to $1,150,000 and provide for interest rates ranging from 2.00% to
4.125%. The proceeds were used to fund the purchase of Ochiltree County water rights.

A summary of changes in Water and Sewer System bonded debt for the year ended September 30, 2012,
is as follows:

Principal balances outstanding, October 1, 2011 $ 148,200,000
New bond issue 1,595,000
Principal maturities (7.210.000)
Balances, September 30, 2012 142,585,000
Balance of unamortized refunding and issuance costs (1,465.019)
Net balances, September 30, 2012 $ 141,119,981

The net revenues of the Water and Sewer System are pledged to secure this debt. In accordance with
bond covenants, the following special funds or accounts must be maintained:

« A revenue fund, to which all gross revenues are to be credited immediately upon receipt.

« An interest and redemption fund, to be funded by transfers from pledged revenues in
approximately equal monthly installments, sufficient to pay the next succeeding interest and
principal payments. The 2013 obligation is $10,522,174. At September 30, 2012, the amount
available 1 this account was $3,381,140.
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« A reserve fund, to be funded monthly by transfers from pledged revenues in the amount equal to
1/60th of the average annual principal and interest requirements of the bonds until the fair value
of the reserve fund is equal to the average annual debt service requirements of the then
outstanding bonds. At September 30, 2012, the combined requirement amounted to $1,948,179
and the amount available in this account was $1,948,179.

The interest/redemption and reserve funds required by the bond covenants are reported in the financial
statements as noncurrent assets and liabilities. The various revenue bond covenants require that the City
carry insurance against risks, accidents or casualties to the extent usually carried by corporations
operating like properties.

The City is subject to arbitrage provisions under the Internal Revenue Code, which requires that excess
earnings on invested proceeds from tax-exempt bond sales over interest expense paid to bond holders be
remitted to the Internal Revenue Service. The City did not have an arbitrage liability at September 30,
2012. The City has maintained its tax-exempt status during 2012.

The City has the right to issue additional Waterworks and Sewer Revenue Bonds, subordinate to these
issues. Moreover, the City can issue additional parity debt so long as the net Water and Sewer System
revenues exceed the debt service on the prior bonds together with any additional borrowings by 1.25
times.

During November 2012 the City received notice from the Texas Water Development Board that the City's
application for a $1.3 million mainstream loan thru the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund program is
being recommended for funding. This program allows the City to issue bonds at a 125 basis point
discount below that of the market.

Water Authority Obligations

In 1968 the City, together with 10 other cities, entered into a contract with the Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority (CRMWA) to reimburse it for the cost of constructing a dam and aqueduct system in
exchange for the water to be provided from the reservoir. The dam is located approximately 35 miles
northeast of the City.

In 1998 a portion of CRMWA's remaining obligation to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in connection
with the construction indebtedness was retired in exchange for a transfer of CRMWA's surface lands to
the National Park Service. In 1999 CRMWA issued revenue bonds maturing in the years 2000 to 2018 in
order to retire the balance of the U.S. obligation. In 2010 CRMWA issued refunding bonds maturing in
2018 in order to retire the 1999 issue. The City's share of the principal amounts range from $461,478 to
$941,547 and provide for interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 3.50%. The bonds are secured by a lien on
contract revenues, consisting of the member cities' project agreement payments. At September 30, 2012,
the City's proportionate share of this indebtedness was $3.449.756 and its share of the unamortized
discount obtained for early retirement of the Bureau of Reclamation debt was $1,952,717.

In 1999 CRMWA issued revenue bonds maturing in the years 2000 to 2010 to fund a salinity control
project with respect to the surface water basin. These bonds matured during the 2010 fiscal year.
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Water Authority Obligations (Continued)

In May 1996, member cities of CRMWA agreed to participate in a project to develop underground water
rights to supplement CRMWA's available surface water, and CRMWA then issued revenue bonds to fund
phase 1 of the project, which consisted of purchasing groundwater rights in the northeastern portion of the
Texas Panhandle. In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the 1996 bonds were defeased by a
portion of a new issue of revenue bonds (Series 1999) in the face amount of $52,825,000. During April
2005, the member cities of CRMWA agreed to participate in two CRMWA debt issues. The first issue
was the 2005 Contract Revenue Refund Series and was used to refund a portion of the Series 1999 issue.
During 2010 this issue was refunded with bonds maturing in 2020. The City's share of the annval
principal amount range from $213,418 to $521,567 providing for interest rates of 3.00% to 3.50%. At
September 30, 2012, the City's portion of the outstanding remaining principal for the 2010 issue is
$2,552,031 and the City's portion of the 2005 Refunding bonds is $12,492,567.

In addition to defeasing the 1996 issuance, the proceeds of the new issue were used to fund the drilling of
wells and installation of pipelines from the well fields to the existing CRMWA aqueduct system. While
two of the eleven member cities elected to pay for their proportionate shares of these costs from their own
resources, the City elected to participate in CRMWA's bond issuance. The City alse participated in the
2005 Contract Revenue Series issued in the amount of $48,125,000. The City's portion of this bond issue
is $19,467,586 at September 30, 2012. The participating member cities desired to have level debt service
payments. In order to keep the CRMWA debt service payments level, the City will only pay interest for
the first ten years on the 2005 CRMWA contract revenue bonds. Thereafter, the other obligations will be
paid off and the City will begin paying principal and interest on the 2005 CRMWA contract revenue
bonds. On January 22, 2013, CRMWA will refund the 2005 CRMWA Contract Revenue Series. The
refunding will reduce total debt service payments over the next thirteen years by $5,063,754 with
Amarillo's share at $2,443.576. The net present value of this fund is $4,259,006 with Amariilo's share at
$2,044,083. In total, the payments to CRMWA will remain constant throughout the term of the various
bond issues.

During 2006, the member cities of CRMWA agreed to participate in the 2006 CRMWA debt issue. The
Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 were issued in the amount of $49,075,000. The City's
proportionate share of this indebtedness is $16,412,256 at September 30, 2012.

During November 2009, CRMWA issued debt in the amount $21,105,000. The City participated in this
issue and the City's proportionate share of this indebtedness was $8,573,062. The City's portion of the
annual principal payments range from $268,606 to $951.547 with interest rates of 3.00% to 5.00%. The
City's proportionate share of this indebtedness is $7,735,762 at September 30, 2012. Bonds are secured
by a lien on the participating member cities' project payments.

During December 2011, CRMWA issued debt in the amount $81,630,000 to fund the purchase of
additional water rights in the Ogallala Aquifer. The City participated in this issue and the City's
proportionate share of the bond issue was $33,536,053. The bonds were issued at a premium and the
City's proportionate share was $3,091,199 with bond issuance cost of $473,755. The City's portion of the
annual principal payments range from $649,625 to $2,567,688 with interest rates of 4.00% to 5.00%. At
September 30, 2012, the City’s proportionate share of the outstanding indebtedness was $32,704,123.
Bonds are secured by a lien on the participating member cities' project payments.

The City increased Water and Sewer rates by 6% beginning October 1, 2011 and by 5% effective

October 1, 2012 to help pay for the purchase of the Ochiltree County water rights and the City's portion of
the CRMWA debt.
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Summary Information - Long-Term Bonds and Contracts

A summary of changes in the City's CRMWA debt for the year ended September 30, 2012

the following table:

Principal outstanding, October 1, 2011
New bond issue
Principal maturities

Principal outstanding, September 30, 2012
Proportionate share of related reserves,

unamortized issuance cost, and gain on refunding
Unamortized redemption discount/premium

Net balances, September 30, 2012

Airport Bonds

, 18 reflected in

$ 65,664,394
33,536,053

(4,386.,366)
04,814,081

(4,091,136)
8.079.464

On September 3, 2009, the City issued $16,140,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation Series 2009A bonds to help fund the terminal building project. The outstanding bonds mature
annually through 2020 in principal amounts ranging from $1,330,000 to $1,830,000 and provide for

interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%.

Principal outstanding, October 1, 2011
Principal maturities

Principal outstanding, September 30, 2012
Proportionate share of related unamortized issuance cost
Unamortized redemption premium

Net balances, September 30, 2012

Bond issues outstanding at September 30, 2012 are summarized in Table 7 below.

$ 13,745,000
(1,280,000)

12,465,000
(154,010)
977,799

Final Principal Annual
Interest Maturity Amount Prineipal
Rafces Date Qutstanding Installments
City of Amarilio indebtness
General Obligation debt
Payable from tax revenues
General Obligation Bonds, series 2009 2.00 - 5.00% 2022 4,136,000 345,000 — 485,000
Combination tax/revenue certiticates of
abligation, series 2007 400 - 325% 2027 21,620,000 1,020,000 -~ 2000000
Recovery Zone Build America Bonds, Series 2010 5.81% 2030 1,290,000 39,000 — 88,000
Payable from special assesments
Combination tax/revenue certificates of
obligation, series 2001 4.45% 2016 200,000 45,000 - 55,000
Combination tax/revenue certilicates of
obligation, sevies 2003 3.70% 2023 405,000 30,000 — 45,000
Combination tax/revenue certilicates of
obligation, series 2006 4.715% 2026 455,210 18,920 — 43,909
Combination tax/revenue certilicates of
obligation, series 20084 4.28% 2028 320,000 25,000 — 45,000
Combination tax/revenue certificates of
obligation, series 200813 4.08% 2028 1,295,000 60,000 — 110,000
Payable lrom other souvees
Combination tax/revenoe certificates of
obligation, series 201 1A 350 - 5.25% 2037 3,665,000 85,600 -~ 245,000
Combination lax/revenue certificates of
obligation, series 20113 3.50 - 6.00% 2032 2 144,000 70,000 - 170,000
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Waterworks and Sewer Bonds

2003 revenue issuance

2003 revenue issuance

2006 revenue issuance

200G A revenue 1ssuance

2011 revenue ssuance

Combination tax/revenuc certificates of
obligation, series 2009

Combination tax/revenue certificates of
obligation, series 20098

Combination tax/revenue certilicates of
obligation, series 2009C

General Obligation bonds series 2011

Airport Bonds

Combination tax/revenue certificates of
obligation, series 2009A
Total City of Amarillo ssuances

Canadian River Water Authority indebtedness

2005 reflunding issuance
2005 revenue issuance
2006 revenue ssuance

2009 revenue ssuance

2010 refunding issuance (Conjunctive Use Groundwalter)

2010 refunding ssuance (BUREC)
2011 revenue issuance

Total City share of Water Authorily indebiness

Total bond issues outstanding

Final Principal Anoual
1nterest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Cutstanding Fnstallments
3.38% 2012 -
4.06 - 5.00% 2019 8,620,000 1,070,000 — 1,415,000
4.00 - 4.50% 2032 9,120,000 305,000 - 655,000
425 - 4.375% 2027 9,370,000 1,010,000 - 1,350,00C
2.00 - 4.125% 2031 15,455,000 600,000 - 1,130,000
148 - 3.018% 2028 34,875,000 2,005,000 - 2,555,000
021 - 2.587% 2029 43,490,060 1,955,000 - 3,400,000
0.00% 2031 16,135,000 905,000
2.00-3.125% 2023 5,520,000 450,000 575,000
3.00 - 5.00% 2020 12,463 000 1,330,600 - 1,830,000
160,770,210
4.00 - 5.00% 2020 12,492,567 601,054 - 1,777,030
4.00-525% 2025 19,467,586 370,082~ 3,5358.140
5.00% 2027 16,412,256 517,896 - 1,529.487
3.00 - 5.00% 2026 7,735,762 268,006 - §51,547
3.00 - 3.50% 2020 2,552,031 213418 - 521,567
3.00 - 3.50% 2018 3,449,756 461,478 - 941,547
4.00 - 5.00% 2031 32,704,123 649,625 - 2.567668
294,814,081
$ 285,584,291

Table 7 - Deseription of fndividual Bond lssues Outstanding

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding, including interest, are shown in Table 8
below.

Yo Special Asyexsment Water & Sewer Arport
Sepiember 3 Va5 U pgearied el andd Other Soppweted Do [BME} Wuter Anthovity el Deln Total
Principal fnicrest Principal lnterest Principal Interest Prineyal flerest Pracipral Intorest Prmgipal Interest

20103 §  L4p00 % 1283072 % 3 O3I? % L2900 % 3021 % §  AMMEST 5 LGN § MZETE % 1RI00R F 0 9931295
W0k L4BS 1810 QY 736G (KA} 3155412 ERiRRRY 1. 3R M 95125 15.676.502 0.55.0.842
Pt N 15471000 FAGLON) 306147 F(HY. 245 RRA bl 16 106,035 snakHE
20106 | 67 (K} TA,000 24952984 2802501 1.3 16,000 16604572 #.362495
2007 1634 KK} . Z.OB0000 28305322 7 | SRILCHH 17. 17962 somm?
0182027 9 .608 (K 3906 7493 X 1443512 AL 117749838 31,713,082 34 3 5,223,000 39687 g 30215
HI-ART .43, [HH) 1552420 21500 b IRTEEN A5 1200000 6,588,780 27224445 35728 - 1642621
202382062 EAYRLE] 16582 [RxiGEtE) 26,4926 19 143,000 1200516 243,663 HWA35 2,613,557
05332037 - - 11100800 151,725 - - M - [RELAVID] 151,725
§OP7AM0000 S 1260206 5 RAS02I0 $ SUITA00 § LIDSEAI00 % 34801773 & O4RIA0SE 5 HLOZEI6T 124050600 5 ASEEORT 8 IRSARAAM] 8 U3 NMES

Tabile &

Anawal Debi Service Regumrements, fucluding Inkerest

On December 12, 2012 the City closed on two debt issues. The first debt issue is $6,260,000 in Combina-
tion Tax and Drainage Utility Revenue Certificates of Obligations (COs). The 2012A issuc is mainly for
drainage improvements on Farmers Avenue. In addition to the tax pledge, the Drainage Utility COs have
an unlimited net pledge of the Drainage Utility System of 1.25 times net revenue. The City intends to
fund the debt entirely from the Drainage Utility and not levy a property tax for the COs. Thus, the debt is
structured similar {0 the Water & Sewer revenue debt. The second issue in 2012 is to purchase rolling
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stock for the City's municipal garage. Rolling stock replacement was delayed during the recent economic
downturn. The 20128 issue has a five-year maturity and the proceeds will be used to purchase rolling
stock with at least a five-vear life. The 20128 issue is for $2,790,000 in Combination Tax and Sanitation
Revenue Certificates of Obligations. The COs have a $1,000 limit pledge of Sanitation Revenues and a
property tax pledge. The City intends to pay the COs from Municipal Garage Rental Revenues and not
levy a tax for the debt., The 2012A issuance has a 20-year maturity and has a true interest cost of
$1.763%. The 2012B has a five-year maturity and has a true interest cost of 0.686%.

Provision for Compensated Absences

The City provides for its full-time employees annual leave of two, three, four or five weeks, depending
upon years of service with the City. Up to 65 days of annual teave may be carried over to future years.

Uniformed police officers and firefighters are allowed 15 days of sick leave per year. Civilian, full-ime
employees are also allowed 12 days' sick leave per year. Employees whose date of hire is before
December 29, 1988, may accumulate up to 90 days of sick leave to be paid in a lump sum upon
termination of employment. Employees hired after December 29, 1988, must have ten years or more of
service before benefits vest. Employees who are eligible to retire may convert accumulated sick leave
benefits in excess of the eligible lump-sum termination amounts into an Individual Health Retirement
account. Employees hired after September 30, 2007 may accumulate up to 60 days of sick leave and 30
days of annual feave, which will be eligible to be paid in a lump sum upon termination.

The obligation of the City with respect to vested benefits at September 30, 2012 under the annual leave
policy was $10,103,658, compensated time policy was $933,675, and under the sick leave policy was
$8,921,075.

These obligations were recognized in the financial statements as summarized in the following tabulation:

Governmental  Proprietary

Funds Funds
Balances at October 1, 2011 $ 17,585,707 % 1,645,625
Terminations paid {1,355,559) (228,559
Leave accrued 2.060.113 235.706
Balances at September 30, 2012 $ 18290261 § 1652772

Of the above obligations, $1,446,493 in the Government Funds are estimated to be current and $225,883
in the Proprietary Funds. In prior years, the General Fund has liquidated the compensated absences
liability related to governmental funds.

In 1997 the City established a debt service fund to provide for the portion of the liability applicable to the
General Fund and certain special revenue funds. The net assets in the fund at September 30, 2012 were
$11,469,330; $717.135 of the obligation is funded in separate intemal service funds and is accrued as a
liability of these funds.
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Provision for Land{ill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The City owns a 662-acre rural site, which it operates for solid waste disposal purposes. Based on an
amended permit issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality dated August 22, 2007, the
site has an estimated total capacity of 43,098,100 tons. It is estimated that 16% of the revised capacity
was filled at September 30, 2012 and that the landfill has a projected remaining life of approximately 167
years at the current rate of usage. State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final
cover on the site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for thirty years after closure.

The City's design plans divide the landfill site into 12 cells. Five cells, representing 258 acres with a total
capacity of 17,541,300 tons or approximately 41% of the total site capacity, are currently open. It is
estimated that at September 30, 2012, these five cells were approximately 39% full. The construction as
well as the cost of wells, which have been installed for monitoring the underlying water table for any
impact on it of ongoing landfill activities, were funded by waste collection and disposal revenues of the
City's General Fund, and are included in capital assets of the governmental activities.

Governmental accounting standards require that, for periods beginning after June 15, 1993, governmental
entities recognize an accrued liability for the estimated cost of equipment, facilities, and services for
closure, and postclosure care expected to result in disbursements near or after the date that the facility
stops accepting solid waste. The amount of the hability is based on what it would cost to have all such
closure and postclosure care performed in the current year, and is assigned to periods based on cumulative
landfill use. The City engaged an independent engineer who estimated the cost of final cover at
$8.145,871 for a 100-acre, two-cell segment. The estimated cost of monitoring the entire 662 acres
during the statutory 30-year period is an additional $1,780,200. Both computations were made in
accordance with regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency, which require that the estimates be
based on the current cost of hiring third parties to perform the services. The actual cost of these
functions, when performed in future years, may differ because of inflation, changes in technology,
changes in environmental regulations, or performance of certain of the functions by City personnel and
equipment. Considering the change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and the addition of the Transfer
station, closure costs would be about $10 million and post-closure costs would be about $3 million for a
total of $13 million in toeday's dellars.

Based on the cumulative usage of 6,848,000 tons at September 30, 2012, together with the estimated
43,098,100-ton capacity of the landfill, the accrued hability consists of the following elements:

Provision for final cover costs $ 1,620,146
Cost of postclosure care and monitoring 486,356
Total estimated acerued liability $ 2,106,502

Under laws and regulations administered by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission,
owners and operators are required to provide financial assurances that the funds needed for the closure of
landfills will be available when needed. The City has elected to meet this responsibility by demonstrating
its compliance with the "local government financial test," which promulgates criteria regarding financial
strength, public notice, and record-keeping and reporting. The City fulfilled the financial strength test by
demonstrating a current Standard & Poors rating of AAA, together with a ratio of total annual revenues to
the gross estimated cost of environmental obligations in excess of 100/43, together with meeting certam
general conditions. It fulfills the public notice component by disclosure in this footnote, and fulfills the
record-keeping and reporting component by submission of reports to the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality.
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Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows:

Balwce Amortization/ Ralance Due vathin
Septl. 30,2011 Accretion Adduaions Reductions Sept. 30, 2012 One year
Bands pavable
Govemmental activities
Creneral obligation bonds $ 4 470,000 s 3 3 {340,000) k3 4,130,000 $ 35,000
Recovery Zone Build Anwnea bonds 1.348,000 (58,0000 1,290,000 59000
Tax-supported cenificates of obligation 22,600,060 - (980,000) 21,620,006 1,020,000
Unamortized debt issuance (68,505) 2921 - (65,584) -
Unamorbized gam on refuncding (183,090) 13,167 {169923)
Unamnortized offerhyg premium 393 435 (20,702 - 372673 -
Specnl assessment and other debl 9008018 - {128,70%) 8680210 339,860
Total govenunental activities 37,568,758 (4.674) 7 {1.706,708) 35,857,370 1,763,860
Busmess-lype activitics
Water & sewer bonds 146,042 250) 92,731 [59U3.000 {7,210,000) 141,119.981 7,390,000
Water suthonty obligations 67,203,052 (258,674 36,153497 {4.386,366) 8,802,409 4 866,248
Ajrpon bonds (84,503 - {1,280,0003 13,288,789 1,330,000
Total business 4y pe activities (250,536} 37,748 497 (12,876,360} 25328107 13,486,248
“Totat 266,158,342 (255,210} 37,748 497 (14,583,074 289,068,555 15,250,108
Other habilities
CGovernmental activities
Compensated absences 17,585,707 2,000,113 (1,355,559 18,290,261 1,446,493
Self-msurance hability 14,590 132 - (599,530 15699602 5934870
Previson for lindfill and
postelosure care costs 1,996,893 [UR3,609 - 2,106,502
Postemploviment benelits 56,953,683 24,258,549 (6,643,372) 74,568,830
Wei pension obligation 4,317,130 L0, 174,695 (9,587,329) 4 304,502 -
Total govemmental activities 97,652,551 36,602,936 18,785,790} 115,469,697 7,381,363
Bus mess-type achivities
Conmensated absences 1,645,625 235,706 {228,559 1,652,772 235883
her accrued expenses 3,150,000 (40,804 3,109,196 -
Net pension obligation 755,051 4,762 - 755813 -
Total business -ty pe activities 5,550,676 240,468 (269,363} 5,521,781 223 8B3
Totat 103,203,327 - 36,843,404 (12055, 150 120,901 478 7,607,246
Total longterm liabilitics T 3697361 569 $  (255210) S 4,591 90 3 (33638.237) $ 410060033 5 22857351

For the governmental activities, compensated absences, postemployment benefits and net pension obliga-
tion are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

NOTE 12 - INFERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The following tabulation reflects the composition of interfund balances at September 30, 2012,

Receivable Fund

General Fund

Nenmajor Govt. Funds

Internat Service Funds

Pavable Funds

$ 1,534,198

b 1,534,198

ey

$ 24,351

$ 162,685

162,085
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Internal Service
Capital Projects
Proprietary Funds
Nonmajor Govt. Funds

General Fund
Capital Projects
Noamajor Govt. Funds

Internal Service
Nonmajor Govt. Funds

$ 738
126,059
136,000

a2 11,401

$ 672

1,270
_..22,409
1

$ 162,450
235
162,685
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NOTE 12 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
All transactions between funds represent "due to/from other funds” caused by cash from one fund paying
for expenditures or expenses of another. The City did not incur transactions between funds that would

represent lending/berrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year.

The following tabulations summarize interfund cash transfers made during the year:

Transfers Qut Fund

General Fund

$ 9,080,216

Transfers In Fund

Capital Projects

$ 8935938

Nonmajor Govt. Units 52,793
Internal Service . 91,485

b 9.080.216

Capital Projects § 796,944 General Fund $ 70,281
Nonmajor Govt, Units 252,439

Internal Service 124,224

Capital Projects 350,000

Nonmajor Govt. Funds $ 456,329 Capital Projects $ 142,757
Nonmajor Govt. Units 313,572

Proprietary Funds $ 387328 Internal Service $ 384,857
Capital Projects ) 2,471

$ 387328 3 387328

Internal Service $ 20,400 Internal Service $ 20,400

In general, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects the money to the fund that
expends the money, (2) move receipts restricted or earmarked for debt service from the funds collecting
the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3} use unrestricted
revenues collected in a fund to provide operating advances to other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. The due to/from balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that transactions
are recorded in the accounting system and payments between funds are made.

NOTE 13 - WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT

The City's water is supplied by a series of underground wells, together with water that is purchased from
CRMWA.
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NOTE 13 - WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT (CONTINUED)

CRMWA is a water district that was created in 1953 by the Texas legislature for the purpose of supplying
water from the Canadian River to eleven cities that wished to participate in its activities. A board of
nineteen individual board members, two of whom are selected by the City, governs the affairs of the
District.

CRMWA was originally created for the purpose of operating a dam, which had been constructed on the
Canadian River approximately 35 miles northeast of Amarillo, the related water reservoir known as Lake
Meredith, and an aqueduct system for the purpose of transporting the surface water to the member cities.
The construction was performed under the direction of the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. Prior to
construction, each of the member cities was allotted a portion of the water rights together with a
proportionate share of the cost of the dam based on its contractual share of the water and a share of the
aqueduct costs based on its water allocation and distance from the reservoir.

In 1996 CRMWA initiated a project to purchase and develop underground water rights in the northeastern
portion of the Texas Panhandle to supplement CRMWA's available surface water. Water is transported
from the well fields to be mixed with the lake water before entering the aqueduct system. Water
deliveries of the well water to the member cities began in December 2001.

Each city is assessed for operating costs, which are accounted for by the City as an operating expense.
Fach member may sell part or all of its rights under the contract to other members of the aqueduct system.

The last audited financial statements of CRMWA, as of September 30, 2012 and for its fiscal year then
ended, reflect the following:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,389,615
Due from member cities and other receivable 10,272,943

Debt Service Funds

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 22.740,989
Due from cities 202,464,586
Bond issuance costs, net of amortization 2,365,132
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 334,613,023

Liabilities and Deferred Revenues

Current liabilities 14,677,385
Noncurrent habilities 219,434,045
Net Assets $.392,734.858
Revenues
User assessments for operations $ 12,675,143
Other
Expenditures
Operating expenses (14,841,350}
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net contributions from member cities 82,630,600
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 957,592
Transfer -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ 81421385
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CRMWA's debt consists of the approximately $7.5 million related to bonds issued to refund the
construction obligation to the Bureau of Reclamation and $211.2 million related to the underground water
project. The CRMWA's annual debt services requirements, including interest, range from $6.5 million to
$21.4 million with final repayment in 2031. Because certain member cities elected to fund their
proportionate shares of these costs on a separate basis, and the City's contractual share of the available
lake water is 37.058% and 40.621% of well water. The City's share of this debt is approximately $94.8
million. The City's contractual water rights and its proportionate shares of CRMWA's various debt
obligations are accounted for as assets and liabilities of its Water and Sewer System.

Because the cities that are members of the aqueduct system have the right to elect members of the
governing Board, this arrangement has one of the attributes of a joint venture. However, the City has not
reported this contract as a joint venture for the following reasons:

e CRMWA was created by the State of Texas and is a subdivision thereof, as opposed to having
been created by the members of CRMWA.

e The City has no vested rights in the assets of CRMWA, nor responsibility for its liabilities other
than its proportionate share of the contractual construction obligations.

e The affairs of CRMWA are accounted for on a "financial flow" measurement focus, which is not
consistent with the measurement focus required for the water and sewer enterprise fund.

NOTE 14 - HARRINGTON LIBRARY CONSORTIUM

The City is a member, as well as the fiscal agent, of a library consortium comprised of itself together with
the Amarillo Junior College District and Amarillo Independent School District.  The Consortium's
purpese is to maintain a computer-based, online automated system to enhance the delivery of library
information services to the citizens of the Panhandle of Texas. It provides a bibliographic database, an
online catatog system, intralibrary and interlibrary circulation systems, and similar services to citizens
through their local libraries. The Consortium is governed by a six-member council comprised of the chief
administrator of the library services for each member, the chairmen of two of its committees and a
representative of the Harrington User Group.

The original funding for the Consortiam was a grant from a local charitable organization, the Harrington
Foundation.  Continuing operations are financed through user fees from the members and from
subscribing libraties in the region. During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Consortium served
approximately 100 libraries in addition to its members. The condensed financial statements of the
Consortium at September 30, 2012 and for the year then ended are summarized in the table below.

Balance Sheet

Capital assets, net of depreciation $ 35710
Cash and other assets, net 912,980
Current liabilities (33.809)
Net assets $..914.881
Revenunes
Operating revenues $ 499,982
Nonoperating revenues _ 415
Total revenues 500,397
Expenses
Operating expenses 460,385
Change in net assets $....20,012
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NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Self-Insurance and Risk Management

The City's insurance coverage consists of self-insured programs supplemented by certain commercial
insurance policies maintained with various carriers. The City's insurance and self-insurance programs are
administered by a risk-management committee comprised of selected City management personnel. Each
type of potential claim is discussed below.

The City of Amarillo has a blanket all risk property insurance policy. While the sum of the scheduled
values is the policy limit, the blanket feature allows this limit to be used for one occurrence. Thus, if a
property's scheduled value was not sufficient to cover a loss, the entire blanket would be used to cover the
loss. The policy also treats rolling stock and vehicles as contents when on premises. The schedule of
values and the coverage have been increasing over the last three years as property is added to the
schedule, and replacement values have increased with increases in construction costs. Settlements of
insurance have not exceeded coverage in the past three years.

Health and Accident: The City self-insures medical benefits for employees, retirees, and their covered
dependents. The City purchases stop-loss coverage for specific claims over §750,000. The specific
coverage stops at $5 million.

Property: Property insurance is maintained with commercial carriers, with a self-insured retention per
occurrence of $250,000. Total blanket coverage for all buildings and contents including terrorism
coverage is $700,094,141. The property insurance policy also includes $100 million in flood and earth-
quake coverage and has a Terrorism endorsement.

The City has an endorsement to its property insurance coverage for Boiler and Machinery (explosion and
damage). Insurance is maintained with commercial carriers to the extent of $50,000,000 potential
tiability. The City has incurred no losses with respect to this risk.

Automobile Liability and Physical Damage: The City has elected to fully self-insure these risks.

Workers' Compensation: City employees are entitled to statutory workers' compensation benefits. The
City has a per accident self-insurance retention of $§1 million per occurrence with statutory fimits. The
Excess Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Indemnity Policy was purchased to cover a
major accident. Historically, the City has had one claim that exceeded $1 million self-insurance retention.

General Liability: The City has elected to self-insure public official, professional, and general liability
contingencies to the full extent of its statutory limits. Additionally, no insurance is carried for crime or
burglary losses or employee dishonesty, except for the minimal bonds required by faw.

Police Officer Liability: The City has purchased Police Officer Liability Insurance with a $100
deductible per occurrence and annual aggregate coverage of $16 million. This new coverage would be
sufficient to cover our largest claim. The City's fargest c¢laim has been a $5 million Police Liability
Claim.

Unemployment Benefits: The City fully self-insures unemployment benefits, reimbursing the Texas
Workforce Commission for claims on the basis of quarterly reports.

Two injernal service funds are used to account for the transactions associated with the various risks.

Employee Insurance Fund: All full-time employees are provided with health insurance and $10.000 life
insurance in the City's basic benefit package. Full-time employees can add dependents for health and life
coverage. Retirees are also allowed to retain their health insurance, including dependent coverage after
retirement along with the basic $10,000 life insurance benefit. While the City pays for the majority of the
health insurance benefit, the employee is also required to participate in the cost of the program.
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NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Self-Insurance and Risk Management {Continued)

Additional group life insurance is also available, but solely at the employee's expense. The City has a
third-party carrier for the life insurance benefit. The City currently has specific stop loss coverage with a
$750,000 annual deductible, but is essentially self-insured for employee and retiree health coverage.

The Employee Insurance Fund is used to account for the collection of employer and employee
contributions, and for payments of claims and insurance premiums. The City covers most of the cost of
employee only coverage and contributes to spouse and family coverage. Retirees contribute based on
their service with the City and retiree rates are also subsidized by the City. Liabilities are presented at the
estimated amounts of incurred losses outstanding, without discounting.

Employees have up to one year after services are rendered in which to present their claims for reimburse-
ment. The estimated current liability at September 30, 2012 related to incurred but not reported (IBNR)
claims was $2,630.876. The IBNR estimate was computed by management based on historical patterns
and reference to previous actuarial estimates. An actuarial study of the IBNR claims of the employee
insurance fund was done as of September 30, 2012. Management's estimate of the liability by the City
was within recommended liability and funding ranges of that study. A provision is also made for
estimated future costs of known loss events. This provision at September 30, 2012, was $1,688,899 and
was calculated by management based on historical costs associated with similar health conditions. The
postemployment fiability at September 30, 2012 was $74,568,830. The postemployment health benefit
adjustment was $17,615,147, which includes the annual required contribution of $21,980,372 plus interest
of $2,278,147, less an adjustment to the annual required contribution of $2,276,185 and less the pay-as-
you-go cost of $4,367,187.

After providing for incurred fosses, the Employee Insurance Trust had net assets of $(66,483,873) at
September 30, 2012. Included in the net asset caleulation is the adjustment discussed in the previous
paragraph for postemployment health benefits as required by Governmental Accounting Standards No.
45. This adjustment is $17,615,147 for the 2011/12 fiscal year.

The fotllowing tabulation reflects changes in the estimated aggregate liabilities for incurred losses of the
Employee Insurance Fund:

2012 2011
Estimated liabilities at beginning of year $ 61,899,932 § 49,190,356
Postemployment health benefits annual required contribution 21,982,334 17,366,128
Postemployment health benefits pay-as-you-go cost {(4,367,187) (3,807.472)
Claims during year and changes in estimates 16,446,326 14,059,450
Payments during year (17,072,800} __(14,908,530)
Estimated liabilities at end of year $ 78888605 $ 61,899932

Risk Management Fund

The tramsactions related to risk areas other than employee health are accounted for in the Risk
Management Fund, which is funded through assessments to City departments at rates developed by
reference to the actuarial studies of the self-insurance fund together with estimates of the charges by
private insurers for similar coverages. Risks considered included general and airport fiability, boiler and
machinery, police, auto, and excess liability; workers compensation; unemployment; crime/fidel-
ity/burglary; property insurance deductibles and various other risk groups.

Actuarial studies of the Fund are made at least biennially. The actuary's methodology includes review of

the City's historical experience with respect to cach type of risk, together with insurance industry patterns
and any amendments to the state workers' compensation laws.
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NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEDY)
Risk Management Fund (Continued)

An actuarial study of the self-insurance liability was done as of September 30, 2012. Management's
estimate of the liability by the City was within recommended funding ranges of that study. Management
estimated the liability for incurred losses at September 30, 2012 to be $11,379,827.

The City is self-insured for most exposures. The most significant risk assigned to third-party carriers is
the property insurance coverage in excess of the $250,000 retention. The City also carries Excess
Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Indemnity insurance with self-insurance retention of $1
million.

The following tabulation reflects changes in the estimated aggregate liabilities for incurred claims of the
Risk Management Fund:

2012 2011
Estimated liability at beginning of year $ 11,652,883 § 9,483,817
Claims during year and changes in estimates 2,460,293 4,326,562
Paymeuts during year (2,733.349) (2,157.496)
Estimated liability at end of year $ 11,379,827 §$ 11,652,883

Litigation

The City has been named as defendant in a number of other lawsuits or complaints arising out of the
ordinary course of conducting its operations. While several of these claims ask for the full amount
allowed by state statute, it has been the City's experience that such actions, if pursued, result in losses of
amounts substantially less than the claimed amounts. These complaints are similar to complaints resolved
in prior years, which settlements comprise the City’s historical experience that formed the basis for the
actuarial determination of the estimated liability for presented and unpresented claims payable at
September 30, 2012,

Pollution Remediation Obligation

In 2003 the City of Amarillo was notified that it is a Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) due to it
contributing waste oil some years earlier to the Double Eagle Refinery superfund site in Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma. By August 2004 the City of Amarillo, along with a coalition of approximately 43 other PRPs,
had reached a negotiated settlement in principal with the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) and
State of Oklahoma for the respective liability of each PRP. That settlement amount was $4.60 per gatlon,
Finally, in November 2007, after protracted negotiations, the DOJ and coalition counsel reached
agreement on precise wording of the settlement documents, and Amarillo tendered its payment of
$124,609. After a protracted period of court proceedings and regulatory delays, a consent decree was
signed by the federal court on December 6, 2010, confirming the originally negotiated settlement as to
Amarillo.

Upon completion of the Hollywood Road Wastewater Treatment in the 1960s, the City of Amarillo began
to discharge treated effluent into an on-site playa lake. This practice was in full conformance with all
environmental regulations, was conducted under a lawfully issued State of Texas environmental discharge
permit, and was subject to regular monitoring and reporting standards. Over time, a sub-surface plume of
water developed under the playa lake and has since slowly migrated outward, This plume is comprised of
water that contains a chioride level that is higher than the native groundwater in the area.
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NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Pollution Remediation Obligation

The City ceased pumping treated effluent into the playa and the chloride content of the plume, both
originally and currently, is below the federal and state limits for potable water. In fact, the water in the
plume is of equal or better quality than that in the City's potable water system, which is rated "Superior"
by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

As the plume migrated outward, it has seeped into some domestic water wells near the facility. Due to
this, the City has historically conducted a voluntary monitoring program of the nearby domestic wells and
continues to do so at this time. If this monitoring detects chloride content in a well that is higher than the
native groundwater, the City then either re-works the existing well, replaces it with a new well
constructed to current standards, or provides a reverse osmosis treatment system based on the
homeowner's preference.

Management believes that GASB 49 does not apply in this instance since there has been no actual
pollution by any legal definition of the term. However, the City intends to continue the practice of mon-
itoring the plume, providing replacement wells and treatment systems and pursuing options for
remediation in the future. The City has recorded a liability of $3.4 million to continue the voluntary mon-
itoring and well replacement program throughout this fiscal year. The estimated amount could change in
the future as the City evaluates various alternatives.

NOTE 16 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the City has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance in private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of commercial and health facilities deemed to be in the
public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The City is not obligated in
any manner for repayments of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

While the outstanding principal amount could not be determined, the original issues were as follows:

Number of Original issue

Issues issues amounts
Amarillo Health Facilities Corporation 2 § 123,155,000
Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation ] 10.000.000

$..133,155,000
NOTE 17 - AMARILLO HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Reporting Entily

The financial reporting entity represents a political subdivision of the State of Texas and a component unit
of the City. Its fiscal year coincides with that of the City.
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NOTE 17 - AMARILLO HOSPITAL DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

On May 7, 1996, the Amarillo Hospital District {District) sold its hospital facilities to a private hospital
management company for approximately $121,000,000 and discontinued assessing ad valorem taxes for
hospital purposes. With the exception of continuing the operations of a pediatric-specialty, nonprofit
entity until 2000, the functions of the District since the sale of the hospital facilities have consisted
primarily of investing the sales proceeds for future hospital purposes and funding indigent care costs. The
employee pension plan is held for payment of future benefits as former employees meet applicable
retirement requirements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The District follows the provision of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34.
While it is no longer engaged in hospital operations, it continues to use the accounting principles
applicable to enterprise funds.

The District follows GASB Statement No. 31, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investment Pools, which provides that investments generally are reported at fair value, and changes in fair
value are recognized as revenue.

Additionally, the District follows GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, as amended by GAS No. 50, Pension Disclosures. Accordingly, its pension
expense is recognized on the accrual basis.

The District has self-insured claims arising from professional malpractice.
Agreements with Respect to Hospital Sale

On May 7, 1996, the District sold its physical plant, patient receivables, and other operating assets to a
for-profit, hospital-management company which assumed all of its hospital operations, as well as
responsibility for healthcare services to indigent and needy persons within the District. The total sales
proceeds were approximately $121 million.

In return, the District will make indigent care payments to the buyer, payable in quarterly installments, for
the next 25 years. The payments were $8,000,000 per year through May 1999. Thereafter, through May
2006, payments varied between $6,000,000 to $8,000,000 per year, adjusted for inflation. Subsequent to
May 2006, the payments per year will generally be equal to the lesser of the payments per year made in
2005 or 2006. For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the District recognized approximately
$5,241.388 and $5,551,694, respectively, in indigent care expenses relating to the agreement.

The District currently collaborates with Northwest Texas Healthcare System to ensure both parties best
allocate their resources for the provision of care to the low income and needy residents in their
community. As part of this collaboration, Northwest has proposed that the District fund payments to
Northwest under the Medicaid upper payment limit program ("Medicaid UPL"). On November 9, 2006,
the District temporarily suspended the "Indigent Care Agreement,” dated May 7, 1996 for the period from
November 9, 2006 through November 8, 2008 and replaced it with the an almost identical agreement
called the Health Care Services Agreement. (HCA). The District remitted approximately $§2,712,000 on
November 20, 2006 to fund the Medicaid UPL program. On October 1, 2007, the parties entered into a
Second Suspension Agreement, amended in June 2008, where the indigent care agreement was suspended
through August 8, 2010 and the District provided $10,617,911 to the Medicaid UPL program. The
agreement was amended a third time in October 2008 suspending the indigent care agreement to August
2011 and $5,526,945 in Medicaid UPL, funding was made on December 1, 2009, The agreement was
amended a fourth time in June 2009 suspending the indigent care agreement to November §, 2012, The
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NOTE 17 - AMARILLO HOSPITAL DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Agreements with Respect to Hospital Sale (Continued)

District made payments of $2,695,249 in June 2009 and 33,896,364 in September 2009 for Medicaid UPL
funding. In January 2010, the agreement was amended to extend the suspension of the indigent care
agreement through August 8, 2013 with a payment of $4,007,690 in Medicaid UPL funding. Likewise,
the agreement was amended to extend the suspension of the indigent care agreement through
November 8, 2013 with a payment of $1,330,871 in Medicaid UPL funding in July 2010 and again in
November 2010. The November 2010 extends the agreement through February 8, 2014 at a cost of
$1,337,596.

In April 2011, the suspension agreement was amended to extend the suspension of the indigent care
agreement through May 8, 2014 with a payment of $1,359,466 in Medicaid UPL funding. Likewise, the
agreement was amended to extend the suspension of the indigent care agreement through August 8, 2014
with a payment of $1,360,959 in Medicaid UPL funding in July 201 1.

In October 2011, the suspension agreement was extended through November 8, 2014 at a cost of
$1,337.382. With the suspension of the "Indigent Care Agreement," the District was no longer -obligated
to make indigent care payments. Currently, the "Indigent Care Agreement"” and corresponding payments
have been suspended through November 2014. The District has provided $46.2 million in funding to the
Medicaid program versus $55.5 million in indigent care payments that would have been due under the
contract.

Deposits and Investments

The District's funds are required to be invested in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act.
Bank deposits are collateralized by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral. Governmental accounting
standards require the categorization of investments to give an indication of the level of risk assumed.
Based on the applicable criteria, a summary of the District's investment securities at September 30, 2012
are as follows:

Fair Value Weighted Average
Unrestricted Restricted Maturity (Years)
Assets Assefs Total (excluding securities lending)
Investment Securitics

U5, Treasury obligations $ 6,872,889 % - § 6872889 8.52
1.8, Government and government-sponsored agencies 180,995 744 - 180,905 744 14.89
Municipal bonds 13,486,257 - 15,486,357 8.62
Total investment securitics 203,354,990 - 203,354 990 10,12
No-load L. 8. Treasury-only mutual funds 3,782 084 - 3,782,084 -
Total investments 207137074 - 207137074 9.94
Deduct, Cash equivalents (3,782 084) - {3.782.084) -
Net investments for financial reporting 203354990 $ - § 203,354,990 10.12

Property Taxes

The District is co-extensive with the City, and the assessed valuations that have formed the basis for its
tax roll have been the same as that of the City. The assessment of ad valorem taxes ceased in 1996 with
the sale of the facilities. Ad valorem tax revenue of $5.944 for the year ended September 30, 2012
represents collections of delinquent taxes.
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NOTE 17 - AMARILLO HOSPITAL DISTRICT {CONTINUED)
Tobacco Settlement

During 1998 the State of Texas settled litigation against certain tobacco manufacturers, which entitles
political subdivisions with legal responsibility for providing indigent healthcare services to a portion of
the settlement proceeds. As a result of the settlement, in 1998 the District received a distribution of
approximately $2.9 million based on a per capita calculation (1990 federal census). Subsequent
distributions have been made based on each subdivision's total unreimbursed indigent healthcare
expenditures for the calendar year immediately preceding the year of distribution. As the various
calculations are not determinable by the District, these revenues are not accrued. In 2012 and 2011 the
District received approximately $279,000 and $240,000, respectively, in tobacco settlement funds.

Employee Retirement Benefits

Substantially all full-time employees of the District had been eligible for participation in the pension plan,
which is a single-employer, noncontributery plan. Upon the sale of the Hospital in 1996, the employee
pension plan was "frozen."

An actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2011 reflected an actuarial accrued liability of
$29.,993.879 and net assets available for benefits, at "smoothed" market, of approximately $17,656,087,
resulting in an unfunded liability of $12,337,792. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations
include a rate of return on investments of 8%. Compensation increases do not apply due to the plan being
frozen. For the year ended September 30, 2012, the District made a contribution of $2,000,000 to the
plan.

Participants vested 100% upon completion of five years of service and vested participants are entitled to
benefits upon retirement or upon termination of employment after 20 years of service. Upon sale of the
Hospital, as described above, substantially all employees of the District were offered employment with
the buyer or, with respect to certain public health functions, the Health Department of the City, both of
which alternatives are considered to be a continuation of employment for purposes of defining retirement
or termination. At October 1, 2011, the plan had 205 participants classified as "active" under this pro-
vision, although the plan was "frozen" as 1t relates to District participants, as well as 390 retirees and 243
terminated employees entitled to, but not receiving benefits.

It is anticipated that the plan's assets will be held intact to fund retirement benefits as determined under
this plan when the vested participants separate from service with the successor employers. The District is
responsible for the pension plan and intends to make annual contributions at least equal to the actuarially
determined contribution requirements to the plan.

Commitments and Contingencies

Although the District sold the Hospital on May 7, 1996, it retained the responsibility for certain claims as
of the date of sale. The District self-insures substantially all of the important risks.

In accordance with the limited liability provisions of the Texas Tort Claims Act, the District may be liable
for settlement of malpractice claims up to a limit of $100,000 per person. Claims have been made
alleging malpractice arising out of the ordinary course of business, and such litigation 1s in various stages
of progress. The District self-insures for claims arising from professional malpractice.

It is the opinion of management that estimated seff-insurance costs, including known claims and reserves
for incurred but not reported claims, are adequate to provide for potential claims.
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NOTE 17 - AMARILLO HOSPITAL DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

As of September 1, 2009, the District is no longer the contractor for the Poison Center in Amarillo. The
District had subcontracted with Texas Tech University (Texas Tech) to manage the Poison Center in
Amarillo. As of September 1, 2009, the State is contracting directly with Texas Tech. The Poison Center
is entircly grant funded and the District remitted the payments from the granting agency to Texas Tech.

The District has contracts with Northwest Texas Healthcare System (Northwest) and Northwest's affiliate,
Amarillo Clinical Services, Inc. (ACS), relating to pediatric, dental and tobacco prevention services.
Under the contract with ACS, ACS will provide pediatric physician healthcare services under the terms of
an arrangement with Texas Tech. Under the contract with Northwest, Northwest will provide non-
hospital healthcare services, including dental care services and tobacco prevention and control services.
For the vears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the District paid approximately $1,479,060 and
$1,474,000, respectively, for pediatric subspecialty care, indigent dental care, and our smoking cessation
and prevention program catled Tobacco Free Amarillo. The decrease in the expenditure is because the
District dropped the dental services portion of the contract in 2010-11 due to budgetary reasons.

At September 30, 2012, the District has committed to fund pediatric services, dental services and tobacco
prevention services for approximately $1,479,000.

Financial Statements

The District's financial offices were closed upon the sale of the hospital, and its Board selected the City of
Amarillo as its fiscal agent. Accordingly, the separately issued financial statements for this entity and for
its pension trust may be obtained by contacting the Director of Finance, City of Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971,
Amarillo, Texas 79105

NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Significant Accouniing Policies
Operations

Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC) was created by the City in 1990 under provisions
of the Development Corporation Act of the State of Texas. Its operations are financed by the proceeds of
a 1/2-percent economic-development, sales tax. It is governed by a five-member Board of Directors
appointed by the City Commission. The City serves as fiscal agent for AEDC, providing such services as
accounting, investment, and management information services.

Because of the City's excellent mid-continent location and its year-around flying weather, together with
the availability of the land and improvements of a former U.S. Air Force Strategic Air Command base,
many of the early projects of AEDC have focused on the City's International Airport. As one of its first
economic development projects, AEDC issued sales tax revenue bonds to fund the construction of a
hangar on ground leased from the City's Airport. The hangar is capable of accommodating a Boeing 747
airplane and is being leased to a qualifying private enterprise. Additional other leases have been entered
into involving existing hangars, nearby buildings and construction of facilities.

Other projects have taken the form of grants or interest waivers on loans to industrial enterprises based on

meeting targeted, job-creation levels, as well as grants and contracts supporting research and promotional
activities.
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NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUED)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Preparation

The AEDC's fiscal year coincides with that of the City. AEDC follows the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. Accordingly, it presents government-wide financial
statements using accounting principles similar to those used by commercial enterprises.

Investments are valued at fair market value, Grants are generally recorded as expenses and liabilities at
the time of the awards. Grants subject to significant performance criteria are recorded when the funds are
disbursed or the criteria satisfied, whichever is earlier.

The maximum potential job creation credits available against Joan interest are recognized as development
expense in the period in which the loans are made. Development notes receivable are reported at their
stated principal amounts, reduced by the estimated effect of the potential interest waivers as well as by an
allowance for uncollectible amounts. Direct financing leases are reported at the lower of the Corpora-
tion's investment in the property or the present value of the future minimum lease payments to be received
plus the estimated residual value of the leased property. Income from finance leases is credited to income
based on a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, and donated property is recorded at fair value at date of
receipt. Property and equipment consists primarily of hangars and related improvements located at the
City's airport, as to which the estimated useful lives are 30 years. Depreciation is provided on the
straight-line method. Assets restricted by interest and sinking fund indenture agreements are segregated,
and are presented as restricted assets.

Deposits and Investments

The AEDC's cash and investments are managed by the City, which accounts for its liquid assets and its
receipts and disbursements as one of its agency funds. The AEDC's uninvested cash is held in the City's
depository in the City's name as agent for AEDC. All such cash is insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation and other insurers.

The AEDC's investments are administered by City management under terms of an investiment policy and
strategy that has been updated to conform to the latest amendments to the Texas Public Funds Investment
Act.

A summary of the AEDC's investment securities at September 30, 2012 is as follows:

Weighted Average

Fair Value Maturity (Years)
Investments
LIS, Treasury $ 10,077,029 -
Money market mutual funds 8,750,000 0,44
Total investments at fair value 19,427,029 0.44
Deduct: Classified as cash equivalents for financial reporting {10,677.029) -
Net investments 3. 8,750.000 .44
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NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUED)
Economic Development Loans

As one type of economic development project, the AEDC has made a number of loans to industrial
enterprises under arrangements that waive up to 100% of the stated interest on such loans if job creation
targets are met. These maximum allowances are recognized as development expenses in the period in
which the loans are made. In addition to interest waivers, a provision has been made for uncollectible
loans, including amounts related to the individual credits based on managements’ analysis, as well as a
provision for unidentified risks.

An analysis of loans and the related valuations allowances at September 30, 2012 are as follows:

Principal balances $ 7,484,105
Allowance for uncollectible accounts —

Loans, net of allowances

Interest accrued and receivable on loans is $1,280,022 at September 30, 2012.
Direct Financing Leases

In August 1998, Bell Helicopter, the world's leading producer of helicopters, announced its selection of
Amarillo as the site for its new tiltrotor helicopter plant, based partly on incentives offered by AEDC.
The incentive package includes manufacturing facilities financed by AEDC sales-tax-backed bonds up to
a total amount of $34 million, as well as industrial revenue bonds up to a total amount of $8 million, plus
cash of up to $5 million for site acquisition and employee training and relocation. Bell's obligations
under a lease agreement are sufficient to service the construction debt, but if job creation goals are met,
the resulting incentive credits could fully discharge Bell's payment obligations. As of September 30,
2012, AEDC had increased the total funding capacity under the location incentive agreement to approxi-
mately $120 million.

In the 1999 fiscal year, approximately 65 acres of land adjacent to the City's airport were acquired for
Phase I of this project, and construction of a hangar and an aircraft assembly building was begun. The {irst
building was completed in May 1999, and the second building was completed in March 2000. The rental
term for this phase of the project is 20 years, coinciding with the term of sales tax revenue bonds in face
amount of $23,430,000 sold in order to fund the construction. The rental amount is to be the levelized debt
service on the bonds. The resulting annual rentals, in the amount of $2,163,503, were waived during the
first year and, as noted above, subsequent annual rentals could be fully waived if job creation goals are
met. At the end of the 20-year lease term, Bell Helicopter has the option to purchase the buildings and
underlying land for $1. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment in this lease was $11,360,551.

In fiscal year 2005, an expansion to the aircraft assembly building was completed for a total cost of
$10,570,000. The rental term for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the lease commenced.
The resulting monthly rentals, in the amount of $44,042 could be fully waived if job creation goals are
met. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment, less discount for jobs credits, in this lease was
$4,534,527.

The expansion to the Hanger was completed for a total cost of $14,234,368. The lease for this project
commenced on January 1, 2006. The rental for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the lease
commenced. The resulting annual rentals, in the amount of $711,718, could be fully waived if job creator
goals are met. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits,
was $6,587,364.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUED)
Direct Financing Leases (Continued)

Phase 1V of the project was completed for a total cost of $15,028,921. The lease for this project
commenced on January 1, 2006. The rental term for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the
lease commenced. The resulting annual rentals, in the amount of $751,446, could be fully waived if job
creator goals are met. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for jobs
credits, was $6,889,795.

In fiscal year 2009, Phase VI was completed for a total cost of $22,242,454. The lease for this project
commences on January 1, 2010. The rental term for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the
lease commences. The resulting annual rentals in the amount of $1,884,509 could be waived if job
creation goals are met. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for job
credits, was $21,640,044.

In fiscal year 2011, a project was completed for a total cost of $31,749,325. The lease for this project
commences on June 14, 20t 1. The rental term for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the lease
commenced. The resulting annual rentals in the amount of $799,314 could be fully waived if job creation
goals are met. At September 30, 2012, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for job credits,
was $30,772,360.

Additionally, in fiscal year 2006, AEDC acquired another 98.6 acres of adjacent land for future expan-
sion, at a total cost of $782,540. In accordance with the terms of the incentive package, this land together
with any improvements thereon will be subject to a purchase option at a nominal amount after redemption
of any bonds issued for related construction.

The AEDC has three’ other direct financing leases, with a total carrying value of $7,554,494 as of
September 30, 2012, Future noncancelable commitments of the tenants under these arrangements are as
follows:

Year ending September 30 Bell Helicopter Other
2013 $ 8,850.890 § 793,267
2014 8,850,890 795,267
2015 8,850,890 795,267
2016 8,850,890 671,272
2017 8,850,860 660,000
Future years 82.061.526 7,648,905

$126,315,976  § 11,365,978

As described above, the Bell Helicopter fease is subject to jobs creation credits that may result in a full
wailver of the lease payments.

Operating Lease Activities

The AEDC has entered into a number of arrangements in which it leases hangars and similar properties at
the City's airport and, with appropriate improvements and meodifications, subleases the propertics to
qualifying manufacturing or industrial enterprises at scheduled amounts sufficient to amortize the
AEDC's costs over the lease terms. However, the scheduled payments are subject to incentive discounts
and waivers based on job creation criteria. During the year ended September 30, 2012, AEDC recetved
rentals in the amount of $10,885 and paid $10.885 to the Amarillo International Airport to lease certain of
its properties for this purpose.

The AEDC entered into a lease agreement with the City to lease warehouse property on the northwest
side of Amarillo. They sublease the property to a manufacturing company al scheduled amounts



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUED)
Operating Lease Activities (Continued)

sufficient to amortize AEDC's costs over the lease term. During the year ended September 30, 2012,
AEDC received rentals in the amount of $248,049 and paid $113,222 to the City for lease of this

property.
Capital Assets

As part of its economic development program, the AEDC has constructed a number of improvements on
property leased from the City's airport for the purpose of subleasing to qualifying enterprises.
Additionally, it holds equipment needed for administrative purposes. At September 30, 2012, the
AEDC's property, plant, and equipment were as follows:

Buildings and improvements $ 190,548,931
Equipment 104,928
Construction in progress 2,267,200
Accumulated depreciation (6,998.658)
Total capital assets $_14.922.401

Employee Retirement Benefits

The AEDC maintains a money purchase pension plan for its employees, which is designed to meet the
requirements of Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a), and has adopted a current contribution rate of
10% of salaries. As the AEDC's policy is to fund credits as they accrue, there is no unfunded pension
obligation. A local banking institution serves as trustee. The cost of this plan for the year ended
September 30, 2012 was $78,592.

Long-Term Debt

In December 1998 the AEDC issued its taxable sales tax revenue bonds in the amount of $23,430,000 for
purposes of financing facilities being constructed for Bell Helicopter Textron. In Pecember 2007, AEDC
issued $48.915,000 Amarillo Economic Development Corporation Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Refunding
and Improvement Bonds Series 2007. These bonds were issued to refund the bonds issued in 1998 and to
finance construction of an assembly space for Bell Helicopter Textron and a processing facility for Pacific
Cheese and to pay costs associated with the issuance of bonds.

The 2007 bonds mature serially through 2027 and call for interest rates on the bonds currently outstanding
ranging from 4.35% through 6.25%. Scheduled principal payments are as follows: 2013, $2,625,000;
2014, $2,755.000; 2015, $2,895,000; 2016, $3,040,000; 2017, $3,200,000; and thereafter $22,145,000.
The principal outstanding at September 30, 2012 was $36,660,000.

In December 2009 the AEDC issued its taxable sales tax revenue bonds in the amount of $38,830,000 for
purposes of financing facilities being constructed for Bell Helicopter Texiron and Zarges Aluminum
Systems (Zarges). After issuance costs and funding a reserve fund, approximately $31 million of the
bond proceeds were used for Bell and approximately $5 million were used for the Zarges project.

The 2009 bonds mature serially through 2030 and call for interest rates on the bonds currently outstanding
ranging from 2.482% through 6.529%. Scheduled principal payments are as follows: 2013, $1,245,000;
2014, $1,290,000; 2015, $1,340,000; 2016, $1,410,000; 2017, $1,480,000; and thereafter $29,685,000.
The principal outstanding at September 30, 2012 was $36,450,000.

AEDC's bonds are rated "Al" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and "AA-" by Standard & Poor's
Ratings Services.
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NOTE 18 - AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUED)
Commitments

At September 30, 2012, AEDC had construction-in-progress commitments in the amount of approxi-
mately $1,900,000.

At September 30, 2012, AEDC had other outstanding commitments, not included above, to make grants
or extend credit 1o qualifying enterprises, generally effective for a five-year period, in the amount of
approximately $12.4 million. Subsequent to year-end, AEDC incurred approximately $1.3 million in
additional commitments to make grants or extend credit to qualifying enterprises.

AEDC is obligated to the City for leases of airport property and other property being subleased to various
development and manufacturing enterprises.

Financial Statements

Separately issued financial statements for this entity may be obtained by contacting the AEDC at its
offices, which are located at 801 South Filimore, Suite 205, Amarillo, Texas 79101.

NOTE 19 - AMARILLO-POTTER EVENTS VENUE DISTRICT
Significant Accounting Policies

The Venue District is a governmental entity created by enabling resolutions of the City and Potter County
(the County) in September 1997. In January 1998 the voters of the City and the County approved the
proposed project, which consists of constructing a livestock arena at the county fair grounds to be used for
livestock shows, sporting events, agricultural expositions and other civic or charitable events, together
with expansion of the City's Civic Center to provide additional exhibit hall space and meeting rooms.

The construction of the livestock arena has been financed by citizen contributions, together with bonds
serviced by a 2% hotel occupancy tax and a 5% tax on short-term auto rentals, both of which taxes were
approved by the voters on January 17, 1998. The City has agreed to pay lease rentals, if necessary, to
cover any shortfall in the tax revenues available for the debt service, and this agreement is collateralized
by the City's 7% hotel occupancy tax.

The Venue District is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors, four of whom are appointed by
the Mayor of the City and three of whom are appointed by the County Judge of the County. The budget
is subject to approval by both the City Commission and the County Commissioner's Court. The City
serves as fiscal agent for the Venue District, performing various administrative services under a contract
providing that it will be reimbursed for its cost of providing the services.

The Venue District is considered to be a component unit of the City's financial reporting entity because of
its oversight responsibility with respect to management, as well as its financial accountability with respect
to debt service.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Preparation
The Venue District's fiscal year coincides with that of the City. It follows the provisions of Governmental

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34.  Accordingly, it presents government-wide financiai
statements using accounting principles similar to those used by commercial enterprises.

o
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NOTE 19 - AMARILLO-POTTER EVENTS VENUE DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Preparation (Continued)

Taxes collected by hotels and rental agencies are due to the Venue District by the tenth of the month
following collection. Such taxes are recognized as revenues when collected by the remitters.

Depreciation is provided for on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the facilities.
The primary depreciable asset of the Venue District at September 30, 2012 was a livestock arena, and its
estimated useful life is 40 years.

Physical Facilities

A livestock arena and special events center (the Center) has been constructed on fairground property
owned by the County and has a total capacity of 10,000 persons. The total construction cost of the
facility was approximately $12.8 million. When completed as of June 1, 2000, the Center was leased on a
rent-free basis (o the local nonprofit fair association.

In January 2002 construction began on a 65,000 square foot addition to the City's Civic Center, together
with additional paved parking. The total construction cost of this facility was $9.6 million. Cost in
excess of the funds provided by the Venue District’s bonds and available revenues are 1o be paid by the
City with proceeds of its hotel-mote! taxes earmarked for this expansion.

Financing

In December 1998 the Venue District issued sales tax and lease revenue bonds in the face amount of $10
million, secured by a pledge of the Venue District's tax revenues, as well as by a lease agreement from the
City secured by its hotel occupancy taxes, to be applicable if there is a shortfall in the Venue District's
revenues available for debt service. In November 2000 the Venue District issued additional bonds in the
face amount of $6,750,000. On November 10, 2005, the Venue District issued $6,425,000 in Special Tax
and Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds for a refunding of $6,340,000 of outstanding Special Tax and Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2000. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over
the next 30 years by approximately $423,000 and resulted in an economic gain of approximately
$430,000. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore,
removed as a liability from the Venue District's financial statements. The principal amount outstanding at
September 30, 2012 on the 2005 bond issue was $5,750,000.

In July 2009, the Venue District issued $8,130,000 in Special Tax and Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds
for a refunding of outstanding Special Tax and Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, The refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 20 years by approximately $652,000 and
resulted in an economic gain of approximately $435,000. The debt has been considered defeased and,
therefore, removed as a liability from the Venue District's financial statements for reporting purposes.
The principal amount outstanding at September 30, 2012 on the bond issues was $7,410,000.

Commitments

The Venue District has entered into a management agreement with the nonprofit fair association to
operate the livestock arena and the City for the operation of the portion of the project connected to the
City's facility. In this connection, the Venue District is paying both the nonprofit fair association and the
City a management fee. The management fees are subject to annual appropriation of the Board. In the
2012/13 budget, the Venue District increased its management fee for operating the Amarillo National
Center from $24,000 per month to $25,354 per month and the management fee to the City of Amarillo
remains unchanged at $398,000 annually. The total management fees paid during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 were $686,004. The Venue District has commiited approximately $702,000 in
management fees in fiscal year 2013,
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NOTE 19 - AMARILLO-POTTER EVENTS VENUE DISTRICT (CONTINUED)
Commitments (Continued)

The Venue District's Board approved a motion to fund a project in the amount of $100,081 to install six
roof top exhaust fans to the Vance Reed Livestock Center.

The Amarillo Convention & Visitor Council through its partnership with American Quarter Horse
Association (AQHA) is contributing to the success of the AQHA Adequan Select World Show in 2012
and beyond. The District has committed approximately $50,000 toward fairground rental, $62,000 to
AQHA, and $10,000 toward ongoing economic impact research each year the event is held in Amarillo,
Texas.

Financial Statements

Separately issued financial statements for this entity may be obtained by contacting the Director of
Finance, City of Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amarillo, Texas 79105.

NOTE 20 - AMARILLO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

In 1996 AHFC issued bonds in the amount of $15,700,000 under authority of the Texas Housing Finance
Corporation Act, and entered into a trusteed investment arrangement in which the proceeds are to be
invested in GNMA and FHLMC certificates secured by the mortgage loans originated under a lending
program prescribed by the Act. On February 1, 1999 the AHFC refunded $5,500,000 and called
$3,260,000 of this issue. The remaining bonds are payable solely from the Trust Estate, and are not
general obligations of either the AHFC or the City. A similar issuance was made in a prior year in the
amount of $8,700,000.

On February 28, 2000 the AHFC issued $15,000,000 under authority of the Texas' Housing Finance
Corporation Act, and entered into a trusteed investment arrangement in which proceeds are invested in
GNMA and FNMA certificates. In 2003 the AHFC issued $10,000,000 under authority of the Texas'
Housing Finance Corporation Act, and entered into a trusteed investment arrangement in which proceeds
are invested in GNMA and FNMA certificates.

In December 2007, the Housing Finance Corporation converted its $5.6 million mortgage bond allocation
to $4 million in Mortgage Credit Certificates (MCC). MCCs allow first-time homebuyers to take a tax
credit of up to $2,000 a year on their income tax return for a portion of the mortgage interest paid during
the year and the taxpayer is still allowed to deduct the balance of the mortgage interest as an itemized
deduction. Also, MCCs work in any interest-rate environment. The program ended in December 2009.
In total, we utilized $2,730,817 of the $4 million in MCCs available.

Financial Statements

This organization does not publish separate financial statements, but its non-trusteed cash balance, used
for miscellaneous operating expenses. Further information regarding this entity may be obtained from the
Director of Finance, City of Amarillo.

NOTE 21 - TAX INCREMENT ZONE #1

The Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One (TIRZ) was created in FY 2007 pursuant to the

Texas Tax Increment Financing Act, Tax Code, Chapter 311. The purpose of the zone is to promote the
development of or redevelopment of certain contiguous geographic areas in the City.

o7



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

NOTE 21 - FAX INCREMENT ZONE #1 (CONTINUED)

The TIRZ has agreed to support the Potter County Courthouse renovation project with a debt issuance of
$1,234,605. The TIRZ participation agreement with Potter County was amended November 16, 2010 and
the funding obligation for the Courthouse was to be $745,426. On June 16, 2011, the TIRZ Board
amended the agreement to add $198,000 to the agreement. The TIRZ has agreed to do landscaping and
streetscaping around the new Courthouse. The City of Amarillo issued approximately $2.2 miilion
Certificates of Obligation in February 2011 using an unlimited pledge of TIRZ revenue for the
Courthouse project and other streetscape improvements in downtown Amarillo.

The TIRZ has agreed to rebate 90% of the taxes of the participating taxing entities paid by the owners for
20 years on the value of the improvements of the Fisk Building not to exceed 20 years or $1,657,716 and
the Double R Lofts not to exceed 20 years or $778,686. The Fisk Building opened as a new Courtyard by
Marriott hotel in December 2010 and was eligible for a rebate of $51,921 in 2012.

The TIRZ has agreed 1o support a streetscape project for Polk Street United Methodist Church. The
project will use the lump sum option not to exceed $203,124 payable only when the project is completed
as submitted to the TIRZ Board. $112,063 has been distributed for this project as of September 30, 2012.

The TIRZ Board approved approximately $2.7 million for the streetscape improvements for the Amarillo
Convention Hotel, parking structure, and multi-purpose event venue.

The TIRZ agreed to support the streetscape project for the Vineyard Manor Apartments project not to
exceed $48,425, payable upon completion of the streetscape improvement.

Financial Statements

Separately issued financial statements may be obtained by contacting the Director of Finance, City of
Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amanllo, Texas 79105.

NOTE 22 - AMARILLO LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORPORATION

In March 2011, the Corporation was organized as a public nonprofit corporation for the purpose of aiding,
assisting, and acting on behalf of the City in the performance of its governmental functions to promote the
development of the geographic area of the City, including the vicinity of the downtown area, in
furtherance of the promotions, development, encouragement and maintenance of employment, commerce,
convention and meeting activity, tourism and economic development in the City. The Corporation was
created under the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code and the Texas
Nonprofit Corporation Law, Chapter 22, Business Organizations Code.

ALGC is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors appointed by the City Commission of the City
of Amarillo (the City). ALGC's annual operating budget, as well as projects undertaken by it, is subject
1o approval by the City Commission.

The City of Amarillo has leased land to the ALCG to build a convention hotel and parking garage. The
ALGC entered into a lease and development agreement with Wallace Bajjali (WB) Development
Partners, LP on May 8, 2012. Under the terms of the agreement, WB is to construct a full-service
convention center hotel on land owned by the City of Amarillo. The hotel will have 270 to 300 rooms
and approximately 21,000 square feet of configurable meeting space. The ALGC will own the hotel and
lease the hotel for an eighty (80) year term to WB. WB will select the hotel operator subject to approval
of ALGC. WB and the operator will receive all revenue from the hotel and will be responsible for all
operating and maintenance costs. The ALGC, the City of Amarillo and TIRZ #] have agreed not to
incentivize another comparable property in the downtown area for 20 years.
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NOTE 22 - AMARILLO LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORPORATION (CONTINUIED)

The ALGC has agreed to construct an 84 1-space parking garage adjacent to the hotel. The hotel will have
300 spaces in the garage. The cost of the structure is estimated to be approximately $13.5 million. WB
will make an advance payment of $2.2 million to help with construction of the garage, and the hotel will
pay $360,000 per year for their 300 parking spaces. To complete the project, the City of Amarilio will
have to issue approximately $13 million in Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue Bonds and pledge the Hotel
Occupancy Tax Revenue.

Financial Statements

Separately issued financial statements may be obtained by contacting the Director of Finance, City of
Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amarillo, Texas 79105,

This information is an integral part of the accompanying basic financial statements.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Certain information that is not a part of the basic financial statements but, nevertheless, is considered to
be an important part of a governmental entity's financial report, must be presented immediately after the
notes to the basic financial statements. This information includes the following:

Budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund
that has a legally adopted annual budget. Under this criteria, the budgetary comparison
schedule of the General Fund is presented in this section.

Pension trend data: The funding progress of the City's portion of the Texas Municipal
Retirement System, as well as the Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund for City of

Amarillo firefighters is included in this section.

Postemployment trend data: The funding progress of the City's portion of the
postemployment benefit plan is included in this section,
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

UAAL asa

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets (AALY (UAAL) Ratio Pavyroll Pavroll
Date (a) (k) (b-a) {a/h) (c) f{(b-aYel
12/31/¢H 310,626,860 330,594,097 $ 19,967,237 94.0% 68,569,807 29,1%
12/31/10 294,844,927 t 320,290,615 25,445,688 92.1% 66,106,916 38.5%
12/31/10 152,320,989 @ 215,708,440 63,387,451 70.6% 66,106,916 95.9%
12/31/09 147,138,927 211,843,454 3 64,704,527 69.5% 66,629,414 97.1%
12/31/08 142,555,601 265,302,716 122,747,115 53.7% 63,322,278 193.8%
12/31/07 137,368,480 252,373,611 115,005,191 54.4% 36,938,843 202.0%
12/31/06 140,836,400 210,725,728 69,880 328 66.8% 54,443,156 128.4%
12/31/05 139,414,655 203,697,593 064,282,938 68.4% 51,564,577 124.7%
12/31/04 135,002,341 195,215,275 60,212,934 69.2% 49,363,360 122.0%
12/31/03 133,081,626 189,340,431 56,258,805 70.3% 46,144,235 121.9%

Source: TMRS actuarial valuation

Note:

(1) Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure
(2} Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund structure
(3} Valuation changed due to the City dropping the repeating Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
FIREMEN'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTEMBER 30,2012
UAAlL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrved Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets (AAL)Y {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Pavroll
Date (a) (b} (b-a) (a/by (c) [{b-a)/c]
01/01/12 ¥ 120,396,531 h 153,978,252 . $ 33,581,721 78.2% § 15,058,726 223.0%
01/01/11 Not Calculated
01/01/10 116,150,945 138,263,770 22,112,825 84.0% 14,340,679 154.2%
0L/61/09 Not Calculated
01/01/08 112,656,382 122,323,458 9,667,076 92.1% 12,568,747 76.9%
12/31/06 Not Calculated
12/31/05 08,689,048 107,868,069 9,179,021 91.5% 11,583,479 79.2%
12/31/04 Not Calculated
12/31/03 92,553,607 96,787,914 4,234,307 95.6% 10,401,659 40.7%
12/31/02 Not Calculated
12/31/01 87,450,494 84,852,411 (2,598,083) 103.1% 10,200,923 -25.5%

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

UAALasa

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Yaluation of Assets (AALY (UUAAL) Ratio Pavroll Pavroll
Date (a) (b (h-a) {a/h) () I{b-a)/cl
10/1/12 $ $ 267,069,036 267,069,036 .0% $ 94,400,488 282.9%
10/1/%1 250,000,875 250,000,875 0.0% 91,473,341 273.3%
10/1/10 203,259,604 203,259,604 0.0% 82,978,108 245.0%
10/1/09 190,216,284 190,216,284 0.0% 80,561,270 236.1%
10/1/08 203,630,675 203,630,675 0.0% 80,412,465 253.2%
10/1/07 188,899,159 188,899,159 0.0% 78,070,354 242.0%

) The 2010-2011 and 2011-2012 liabilities and annual costs are based on the same population as the 2009-2010 Jiabilities

and annual costs.

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure
for particular purposes. This category includes the following funds:

Grant funds: These funds are used to account for the receipt and expenditure of funds received under
various federal and state assistance programs.

Public improvement districts: These funds are used to account for assessments levied against residential
fots in various public improvement districts, the use of which is restricted for maintenance of

beautification and recreational facilities.

Seizures funds: These funds are used, to account for crime seizuare proceeds awarded to the City, the use
of which is restricted to law enforcement purposes.

Other: These funds include:

Court Technology Fund: Fees collected by the Municipal Court under state laws which restrict the
use of the proceeds to technological enhancements for the Court.

Court Security Fund: Fees collected by the Municipal Court under state laws which restrict the use
of the proceeds to court security activities and cost for the Court.

LLEOSE Training Program: Fees collected by the Municipal Court under state laws for the purpose
of providing continuing education for law enforcement and fire officers.

Homeland Security Program: The homeland security programs provide the Emergency
Management Department with professional services and equipment, which allows the City to be
operationally equipped and trained to respond to emergencies through the purchase of equipment,
training, and exercises with the goat of improving the preparedness of local responders.

Cable Capital Facilities Fund: Funds received and restricted for specific cable connectivity with
Amarillo Independent School District.

Photo Enforcement: Fees collected from red-light traffic violations that are restricted by State law
to be used only for traffic intersection improvements.

Public Library Bush Collection: Funds received and restricted for the purchase and maintenance of
items in the William Henry Bush Collection.

Library Trust: Various funds received for the sole benefit of the Amarillo Public Library.
Flood Hazard: Fees collected for playa lake development.

Centennial Plaza Trust: Funds received for improvements at the Amarillo City Hall/Civic Center
Complex.

Civic Amarillo: Funds accumulated and used by the Amarillo Civic Center for the in-house
promotion of events.
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Other (Continued):
Zoo Trust: Funds received and restricted for operations and improvements at the Amarillo Zoo.

Center City Trust: Funds received and restricted for improvements to the Amarillo downtown area
knew as Center City.

Rick Husband Memorial: Donated funds for the purchase and placement of a statue in honor of
Rick Husband.

Keep Amarillo Beautiful: Funds received for improvements to the Amarillo area.

Bonded Debt Service Fund
This fund currently accounts for ad valorem taxes assessed for purposes of servicing the serial debt

obligations of the 2001 general obligation bonds issued for library purposes, as well as special
assessments made for servicing certificates of obligation issued for the Public Improvement District.

Compensated Absences Fund

This fund accounts for the ultimate payment of termination obligations to the employees of the City.

Permanent Fund
Pavillard Endowment: This fund accounts for a contribution to the City's Library, which was to be held

to provide a lifetime income to the grantor and, thereafter, to use the income therefrom for purchases of
children'’s books.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEEY OF
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 36,2012

Special Revenue Funds

Housing and Other Public
Urban Development Grant Improvement Seizures
Grants Funds Districts Funds Other
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $  1,334.371 h 500,178 $ 117,313 $ 454, 827 § 2273731
Investments, at Fair values - - - - 999,845
Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles
Property taxes - - - - -
Accounts 100,448 207,941 - - (1,746)
Accrued Interest - - - - 33
Other accrued revenue 36,181 - - - -
Due from other funds unrestricted 24,351 - - - -
Due from other governments 338,560 769,487 - - 204,972
Prepaid items 642,434 - - 605 8,673
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,476,345 § 1,477,606 $ 117,313 $ 455,432 $ 3485508
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable k3 80,336 % 273231 & 2,181 % - 3 26,704
Accounts payable 177,270 87,159 - - 170,679
Accrued expenses - - - - 3,466
Deposits - - - - 1,268,954
Pue to other funds - unrestricted 275,075 814,000 29,000 970 175,000
Due 1o other governments 17,092 - - 22,110 -
Deferred revenues - other 105,790 - - - -
Deferrcd revenues - properly taxes - - - - -
Total liabilities 653,563 1,174,410 31,181 23,080 1,649,803
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Prepaid items 642,434 - . 605 8,673
Uneollected Laxes - - - - -
Restricted for:
Debt Service - - “ - -
Special purposes 1,146,705 303,196 86,132 431,747 1,827,032
Committed lor:
Compensated Absences 31,643 - - - -
Total fund balances 1,820,782 303,196 80,132 432,352 1,835,705
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 2,476,345 $ 1,477,606 $ 117,313 $ 455432 § 3483508

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Bonded Debt
Service
Fund

$  377.89¢%

T 389,233

6,509

373,156

381,605

£ 389233

Compensated
Absences
Fund

p 2,194,078

9,262,163

13,089

$ 11469330

11,469,330

11,469,330

$§ 11,469,330

Permanent
Fund

$ 17,652

$ 17,652

$ -

17,652

17,652

See Independent Auditor's Report.

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental Funds

3 7,270,049
10,262,008

11,334
306,643
13,122
36,181
24,351
1,313,019
651,712

$ 19,888,419

$ 385,472
437.851

5,466

1,268,954
1,294,045
39,202

105,790

4,823

3,541,605

651,712
6,509

375,156
3,812,464

11,500,973
16,346,814

§ 19,888,419



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes - for debt service
Intergovernmental revenues
Citizen contributions
Construction participation
Other entity participations
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Police protection
Other public safety and health
Staff services
Auditorium - Coliseum
Library
Parks
Participation recreation
Urban redevejopment and housing
Capital outlay
Debt service principal retirement
Interest and fiscai charges
Termination vacation and
sick leave pay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over {under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES,
BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCES,
END OF YEAR

Special Revenue Funds

Housing and Other Public
Urban Development Grant Improvement Seizures
Grants Funds Districts Funds Other

8 -8 .8 - -8 -
11,425,828 3,798,998 - - 904,910

- - - - 2,781

30,285 - - - -

- 808,345 - - -

26,493 31,709 780,334 - 546,571

- - - 375,190 830,133

3,589 - 266 441 4,673

68,755 - - - -
11,554,950 4,639,052 780,600 375,631 2,289,068

- 295,233 - F11,024 -

- 3,716,791 - - 1,108,508

- 317,221 - - -

- - - - 318,393

- 268,659 - - 5,812

- - 561,065 - 50

- - - - 20,719

11,942,850 - - - -

- 77,220 12,600 339,133 545,004

11,942,850 4,675,124 573,665 450,157 1,998,480
(387,900} (36,072) 206,935 (74,526) 290,582
13,807 52,646 - - 146
(13,807) - (299,764) (15,413) {127.345)
{387,900 16,574 (92,829) (89.,939) 163,383
2,208,082 286,622 178,561 522,291 294,984

- - - - 1,377,338

2,208,082 286,622 178,961 522,291 1,672,322

b 1,820,782 § 303,196 8 86,132 432,352 § 1,835,705

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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Bonded Debt Compensated Total
Service Ahsences Permanent Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Governmental Funds

5 2,846,831 b - b - 5 2,846,831
173,597 - . 16,303,333

- - - 2,781

- - - 30,285

- - - 808,345

- - - 1,385,107

- - 1,205,323

357 48,726 18 58,070
- - - 68,755

3,020,785 48,726 18 22,708,830

- - - 406,257

. ; . 4,825,299
6,905 - - 324,126
} - 318,393

- . - 274 47

] ] - 561,115

) - - 20,719

- - - 11,942,850

- . 973,957

1,706,708 - - 1,706,708

1,730,024

3,443,637

1,313,015

1,313,015

1,730,024

1,313,015

24,396,934

(422,852) (1,264,289) 18 1,688,104}

552,203 . - 618,802
- - - (456,329)

129,351 (1,264,289) 18 (1,525,631

252,314 12,733,619 17,634 16,495,107
- - - 1,377,33

252,314 12,733,619 17,634 17,872,445

$ 381,665 § 1146933 § 17,652 $ 16,346,814

See Independent Auditer's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
OTHER GRANT FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net of aflowances for uncollectibles
Accounts
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Due to other funds - unrestricted

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Special purposes
Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

See Independent Auditar's Report,

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Public Total
Iealth Justice Miscellaneous Other
Grants Grants Grants Grant Funds
§ 11,533 $ 3,359 485,286 $ 500,178
207,941 - - 207,941
499 881 104,641 164,965 769,487
$ 719,355 $ 108,000 650,251 $ 1,477,606
$ 35643 3 - 237,608 ki 273,251
78,712 - 8,447 87,159
605,000 108,000 101,000 814,000
719,355 108,000 347,055 1,174,410
- - 303,196 303,196
“ - 303,196 303,196
$ 719,355 $ 108,000 650,251 $ 1,477,606

P4



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
OTHER GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Speciat Revenue Funds

Public Total
Health Justice Miscellaneous Other
Grants Funds Grants Grants Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues § 2,516,349 $ 319,807 h) 962,842 $ 3,798,998
Other entity participations 808,345 - - 808,345
Charges for services 31,709 - - 31,709
Total revenues 3,356,403 319,807 962,842 4,639,052
EXPENDITURES
Other public safety and health 3,356,403 - 360,388 3,716,791
Libraries - - 268,659 268,659
Staff services - - 317,221 317,221
Police protection - 295,233 - 295,233
Capital outlay - 77,220 - 77,220
Total expenditures 3,356,403 372,453 946,268 4,675,124
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - (52,646) 16,574 (36,072)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES})
Transfers from other funds - 52,646 - 52,646
Net change in fund balances - - 16,574 16,574
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - - 286,622 286,622
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ - 8 - $ 303,196 $ 303,196

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds - unresiricted
Youchers payable

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Special purposes

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30,2012

Greenways

at Brennan The Point Quail
Hillside Boulevaril Colonies Tutbury Wesl Creek Total

$ 44,680 $ B3I $ 1,188 $ 3,359 $ 51.863 $ 4908 $ 117313
$ 44,680 § 11315 § 1188 § 3,359 $ 51863 $ 4908 5 117313
$ - b - $ 29,000 b - $ - $ - $ 29,000
795 - 551 835 - 2,181
795 - 29,000 551 835 - 31,181
43,885 11315 (27,812) 2,808 51,028 4,908 86,132
43,885 11,315 (27,812) 2,808 51,028 4,908 86,132
$ 44680 $ 11,315 51188 § 3339 $ 31863 $ 4.908 $ 117313

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDLED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Greenways
at Brennan The Point Quail
Itiltside Boulevard Colonics Tutbury West Creelc ‘Total
REVENUES
Charges for services § 374159 $ 14,008 $ 319998 $ 16,296 $ 52,000 $ 6,873 $ 780334
Investment carnines 148 17 84 11 - 6 266
Total revenues 371307 14,025 320,082 16,307 52.000 6,879 780.600
EXPENDITURES
Parks 269,891 15,133 223,633 14,885 31,453 6,070 561,065
Capital outlay - - - 12,600 - - 12,600
Total expenditures 269,891 15,133 223,633 27,485 31,453 6,070 573,665
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
aver (under) exnenditures 101,416 {1.108) 96.449 (31,178) 20,547 809 200,935
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer to other funds (144,861 - (154,903) - - (299,764)
Net change in fund balances {43.445) {1,108} (538.454) (11,178) 20,547 809 (92.829
FUND BALANCES,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 87.330 2.423 30.642 13,986 30,481 4,099 178.941
FUND BALANCES,
END OF YEAR § 43,885 $ 11,315 5  (27,812) § 2808 $ 51,028 $ 49508 $ 86,132

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
SEIZURE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30,2012

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Due to other governments

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Prepaid iloms
Restricted for:
Special purposes

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Federal Texas
SWAT Local Narcotics
seized seized seized
property property property Total
$ 2477211 $ 65,919 141,697 454 827
- - 605 605
$ 247211 $ 63,919 142,302 455,432
$ 675 $ 249 46 970
- 1,891 20,219 22,110
675 2,140 20,265 23,080
- - 605 605
246,536 63,779 121,432 431,747
246,536 63,779 122,037 432,352
$ 247211 $ 65,919 142,302 455,432

See Independent Auditot's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

SEIZURE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
lnvestment earnings
Seized property revenue

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES

Police protection
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer to other fund

Total other financing sources
and {uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Federal Texas
SWAT Local Narcaotics
seized seized seized
property property preperty Total
$ 275 $ 59 107 3 441
253,786 121,404 - 375,190
254,061 121,463 107 375,631
33,308 77.716 - 111,024
105,255 233,878 - 339,133
138,563 311,594 - 450,157
115.498 {190,131) 107 (74,526)
(15.413) - - (15,413)
(15413 - - (15413)
100,085 (190,131) 107 (89,939)
146,451 253,910 121,930 522,291
$ 246,536 $ 63779 122,037 $ 432,352

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
MISCELLANEQUS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

LEOSE Cable
Court Court Training Homeland Capital Pheto
Technology Security Program Security Facilities Enforcentent
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 7064 % 115272 0% 35208 % 2474 % 19,673 § 328,695
Accounts receivable - - - - - -
Accrued interest receivable - - “ - - -
Investments, at fair values - - - - - -
Due freny other governments - - - 204,972 - -
Prepaid items - - - 8,673 - -
TOFAL ASSETS $§ 77,064 % 115272 0§ 55208 % 215819 % 19673 F 328,693
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable 5 38 % - % -3 - 5 - % 29,666
Accounts payable - 3,532 - 4,359 - 162,788
Accrued expenses - - - - - -
Deposits ’ - - - - - -
Due to other funds - unrestricted - - - 175,000 - -
Total liabilities 38 3,532 - 179,359 - 162,454
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Prepaid items - - - 8,673 - -
Restyicled:
Special purposes 77.026 111,740 55.208 27,787 19,673 136,241
Total fund balances 77,020 111,740 55,208 36,460 19,673 136,241
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 77,064 % 113272 % 35208 § 215819 % 19,673 § 328,605

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Public

Library Center Rick Keep
Bush Libravy Flood Centennial Civic Zoo City Hushand America
Cotlection Trust Hazard Plaza Trust Amarillo Trust Trust Memorial Beautiful Total
$ 48,717 % 74,040 % 1,225946 % 12§ 282,073 ¥ 28944 % - % 1000 % 14913 % 227373
- - - - - - - - (1,746} {1,746)
- - 33 - - - - - - i3
- - 999,845 - - - - - - G99, 845
- - - - - - - - - 204,972
- - - - - - - - - 8,673
$ 48717 % 74040 0% 2225824 % 12§ 2824073 $ 28944 3% - % 1000 8 13,167 § 3485508
$ - % - % - % - 5 - 35 - % -3 - 5 - % 29,704
- - - - - - - - - 170,679
- - - 5,466 - - - - 3,466
- - 1,268,954 - - - - - - 1,268,954
- - - - - - - - - 175,000
- - 1,208,954 - 5,466 - - - - 1,649,803
- - - - - - - - - 8,673
48,717 74,040 936,870 12 270,607 28944 - 1,000 13,167 ,827.032
48,717 74040 956,870 12 276,607 28,944 - 1,000 13,167 1,835,705
$ 48717 % 74040 0% 2225824 % 12§ 282073 % 28944 § - % L0000 % 13,167 % 3485508

See Independent Auditor's Report.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

LEOSE Cable
Court Court Training Homeland Capital Photo
Technology Security Program Security Facilitics LEnforcement
REVENUES
Intzrgovernmental revenucs - operating $ - % - % - % 004910 % - % -
Citizen contributions - - - - - -
Charges [or services 142,803 - - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - 114,047 - - - 716,086
Investment earnings - - 71 - - -
Total revenues 142.803 114,047 71 904,910 - 716,086
EXPENDITURES

Other public safety and health 72,501 £20,109 32,954 329412 - 553,532
Auditorium - Coliseum - - - - - -
Library - - - - - -
Parks - . - - - -
Participant recreation - - - - - -
Capital outlay - - - 540,206 - -
Total expenditures 72,501 120,109 32,954 869,618 - 553,532

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 70.302 (6.062} (32.88%) 35.292 - 162,534

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Translers to other funds - - - - - (87.,839)
Translers from other funds - - - - - -

Total other financing sources and uses - - - - - (87.839)
Net change in fund balances 70,302 {6,062) (32.883) 35,292 - 74,715
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,724 117,802 88,091 1,168 19,673 61,526

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - - - - -

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, 6.724 117,802 85.091 1,168 19,673 61,526
AS RESTATED
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 77026 § 111,740 % 55208 § 36460 § 19673 § 136241

See Independent Auditer's Repart.
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Public

Library Centennial Center Rick Keep
Bush Library Flood Plaza Civic Zoo City Husband Amarille
Colleetion Trust Hazard Trust Amuarillo ‘Frust Trust Memorial Beautiful Total
A - - % - $ - % - % - & - % - $ - 5% 904,910
- 1,487 - - - 1,294 - - - 2,781
- - - - 364,439 39,329 - - - 546,571
- w - . - - - - “ 830,133
5 78 4248 - 241 21 - - 9 4,673
5 1,565 4,248 - 364,680 40,644 “ - 9 2,289,068
- - - - - - - - - 1,108,508
- - - - 318,393 - - - - 318,393
- 5.812 - - - - - - - 5,812
- - - - - - - - 50 50
- - - - - 20,719 - - - 20,719
- - - - - 4,798 - - - 545,004
- 3,812 - - 318,393 25,517 - - 50 1,998,486
5 (4.247) 4.248 - 46,287 15,127 - - (41) 290,582
- “ - - {14,506) (25,060} - - “ (127,345)
- - - - - - 146 - - 1406
- - - - (14,5006) (25,000) 146 - - (127,199
5 (4,247 4,248 - 31,781 (9,873} 146 - {41) 163,383
- - - - - - - - - 294,984
48,712 78,287 932,622 12 244 826 38,817 {146} 1.000 13,208 1,377,338
48,712 78,287 952,622 12 244,826 318,817 {146) 1,000 13,208 1,672,322
$ 48,717 % 74040 % 956,870 $ 12 $ 276,607 $ 28,944 % - $ Lo00 % 13067 % 1.835705

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

General Construetion — To account for traffic engineering and other misceilaneous construction funded
primarily by the general revenues of the City. This fund also accounts for costs of construction of various
improvements to the City's parks, which in recent years have been financed primarily by general
revenues, and in some instances by intergovernmental grants. The General Construction Fund is also
used to account for general revenues designated for replacement of existing buildings, improvements and
equipment, and for similar projects.

Street Improvement — To account for the construction of streets and alleys which are financed primarily
by property owner participation,

Street and Drainage Improvement Fund - To account for improvements being made to major
thoroughfares and the storm sewer system of the City financed by general revenues, augmented in some
instances by property owner participation.

Golf Course Improvement Fund — To account for the portion of green fees designated for
improvements to the public golf courses.

Solid Waste Disposal Improvement Fund ~ To account for costs of improvements to the City's solid
waste disposal facilities, which in recent years have been financed primarily by general revenues.
T-Anchor-Bivins Improvement Fund — To account for sales of City land, the proceeds of which are

designated for future betterments to the historic Bivins home, which is owned and rented by the City to
the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce and other community service organizations.

Civic Center Improvement Fund -- To account for improvements to Civic Center Convention Annex
facilities, financed by motel tax receipts.

Animal Shelter Improvement Fund - To account for improvements to the Animal Shelter facilities.

Park Improvement Fund — To account for various Parks projects funded by the General Fund and other
contributions and revenues,

CO Bond Contruction 06/07 Fund -~ To account for construction costs from the proceeds of CO Bonds
issued in June 2007.
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CITY OF AMARILELO, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCES
SEPTEMBER 36, 2012

Golf
General Strect Street Course
Construction Assessments Improvement Improvement
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8362691 § 720,283 $ 58,598 $ 334,658
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Investments, at fair values 8,825.885 - 852,015 -
Due from other governments 8.440 - - -
Accounts receivable (180} - - -
Accrued interest receivable 27.736 - 620 -
Prepaid items 1,000 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS § 17,225,572 $ 720,283 $ 911,233 $ 334,658
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable $ 212,969 $ - $ - $ -
Accounts payable 264,544 - 105,897 -
Accrued cxpenses 87,926 - 3.325 -
Due o other funds - unrestricted 1,320 - - -
Total liabilities 566,771 - 109,222 -
FUND BALANCES
Nenspendable
Prepaid items 1.000 - - -
Restricted for:
Capital projects - - - -
Assigned for:
Capital projects 16,657,801 720,283 802,011 334,658
Total fund balances 16,658,801 720,283 802,011 334,658

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $§ 17,225,572

o5

720,283 § 911,233 §  334.658

See Independent Auditer's Report.
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Solid Waste I-Anchoer Convention Animal
Disposal Biving Annex Shelter Park CO Bond
Improvement Improvement Imprevement Improvement Improvement Const 06/07
Fund Fund Fund Fund Tund Fund Total
$ 3,178,395 § 279,180 $ 2,970,700 $ 3,207 $ 701,796 $ 577 $ 16,610,085
- - - - - 3,671,462 3,671,462
7,185,706 - 1,251,425 - - - 18,115,031
- - - - - - 8.440
- - - - - - (180)
12,164 - 1.263 - - - 41,783
- - - - - - 1,000
$ 10,376,265 $ 279,180 $ 4,223 388 ) 3,207 § 701,796 $ 1672039 $ 38,447,621
$ 4,841 5 - $ 5,920 5 - $ - $ (1.473) $ 222257
8.834 - 21,462 - - 43,798 444,535
- - - - - - 91,254
- - - - - 126,000 127,329
13,675 - 27,382 - - 168,325 885,375
R R - - - - 1,000
- - - - - 3.671.462 3,671,462
16,362,590 279,180 4,196,006 3,207 701,796 {167,748) 33,889,784
10,362,590 279,180 4,196,006 3,207 701,796 3,503,714 37,562,246
$ 10,376,265 § 279,180 $ 4,223 388 3 3,207 £ 701,796 $ 3,672,039 $ 38447621

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Construction participations
Miscellaneous
Other rentals and commissions
[nvestment carnings

Total revenucs

EXPENDITURES
Parks
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from cther funds

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in [und balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPFTEMBER 30, 2012

Golf

Generat Street Street Course
Construction Assessments Inprovement Improvement

Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 5,028,497 $ - $ - b -
- - - 171,736
513,000 4.141.762 - -
(13,356) “ - -
63,519 70 6,589 104
5,591,006 4,141,832 ¢,589 171,840
10,706,687 4,141,762 2,233,335 4,683
10,706,687 4,141,762 2,233,335 4,683
(5115021 70 (2,226,748) 167,157
(181,238) - (362,974) (252,439}
5,951,427 - 1,200,000 -
5,770,189 - 837.026 (252.439)
655,168 70 (1,389,720 (85,282)
16,003,633 720,213 2,191,731 419,940
$ 106.,658.801 $ 720,283 § 802011 $ 334,658

See Independent Auditor's Report.



Solid Waste T-Anchor Convention Animal
Disposal Bivins Annex Shelter Park CO Bond
Improvement Improvement Imprevement Improvement improvement Const (6/07
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - $ - b - b - $ - $ - $ 5028497
_ R - - - - 171,736
- - - - - - 4,654,768
- - - - 1,200 - 1,200
- - - - - - (13,3506)
35,357 54 10,993 - 268 402 117,356
35,357 54 10,993 - 1,408 402 9,960,201
- - - - 458 - 438
390,884 224 1,358,928 - - 467,997 19,304,500
390,884 224 1,358,928 - 458 467,997 19,304,958
(355,527 (1703 (1.347.935) - 1,010 (467.595) (9.344.757)
- - - - (293) - (796,944)
1,250,000 - 1,020,739 - - - 9431,166
1,230,000 - 1,029,739 - (293) - 8,634,222
894,473 (170} (318,196) 717 (467,595) (710,535)
9,468,117 279,350 4,514,202 3,207 701,079 3,971,309 38,272,781
$ 10,362,590 $ 279.180 $ 4,196,006 $ 3,207 § 701,796 § 3,503,714 $ 37,362,246

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Municipal Garage Fund — To account for the revenues and cost of operations of a central motor peol
which includes all City-owned vehicles except fire trucks and buses. Vehicles are rented 1o using
departments at estimated cost of usage. The original equipment was contributed to the Municipal Garage
upon its organization on October 1, 1973. Effective with the 1994/5 vyear, the City adopted a policy of
financing additions, as well as replacements, out of the Garage's net earnings from user charges.

Information Services Fund — To account for the revenues and costs of operations of the City's data
processing system. Charges to using departments are based on estimated cost of providing the service,
including depreciation on equipment. This fund was established October |, 1979, upon transfer of the
necessary equipment from the general fixed assets of the City.

Risk Management Fund — To account for funds accumulated from operating transfers and from
assessinents of the various City departments for the purpose of self-insuring liability, workmen's
compensation, unemployment claims, and miscellaneous other risks.

Employee Insurance Funds - To account for self-insured medical and dental benefits together with life
insurance for employees, retirees and covered dependents. Additionally, employee contributions to the
flexible benefits plan and related expenditures are accounted for within these funds.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments at fair value
Receivables {net of allowances
for uncollectibles)
Accounts
Accrued interest
Due from cther funds
Inventory of supplies af cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current asscts

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Capital assets
Improvements
Accumulated depreciation
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Vehicles
Accuntulated depreciation
Construclion in progress

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIARBILITIES

Vouchers payable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Due 10 other funds

Estimated Liability for incurred losses
Current portion of compensated

absences

Total current habilitics
OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for compensated absences, net
Estimated hability for incurred
losses, net of current portion

Postemployment benefit
Net pension obligation

Total other liabilities
TOTAL EIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
lavested in capital assets, net

of related debt
Unregerved

TOTAL NET ASSLETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPFTEMBER 30, 2012

Municipal Information Risk Employee

Garage Services Management fnsurance Fotal
$ 2567593 713,514 $ 5317617 $ 6,093,828 $ 14,692,552
6,723,371 3,043,595 10,406,357 6,255,832 26,429,161
28 606 246,730 495,499 742,863
30,079 14,670 9.587 4,456 58,792
235 - - 162,450 162,685
384,809 - - - 384,809
- - 341,095 341,095
9,706,121 3,772,385 16,321,386 13,012,065 42 811,957
265,389 4,467,429 - - 4,732,818
(126,144) (2,718,382) - - {2,844,526)
304,548 3,920,253 53,196 10,115 4,288,112
(258,958} (3,466,988) {48911 {7,893) (3,782.750)
51,651,543 - - - 51,651,543
(35,560,664} - - - (35,560,664}
460,708 729,173 - 1,189,881
16,736,422 2,931,485 4,283 2,222 19,674,414
$ 26,442,543 6,703,870 § 16325671 $ 13,014,287 § 62,486,371
$ 161,342 49,467 b 141,307 $ 7,144 $ 359,260
23,082 - 755,097 342,720 1,126,899
67,451 72477 - 24,931 164,859
- - - 163,188 163,188
- - 3,303,994 2,630,876 5,934,870
40,515 32,504 - 327 73,346
292 390 154,448 4,200,398 3,169,186 7,816,422
180,952 415,251 47,5806 643,789
- - 8,075,833 1,688,894 6,764,732
- - 74,568,830 74,568,830
121,696 135,480 23,659 280,835
302,648 550,731 8,075,833 76,328,974 85,258,186
§ 595,038 705,179 $ 12276231 $ 79,498,160 $ 93.074,608
$ 16736422 2,931,485 $ 4,283 $ 2,222 § 19674414
9,111,083 3,067,206 4,045,155 (66,486,095) (50,262.051)

$  25.847,505

5,908,691

$ 4,049 440 $ (06,483,873

3

(30,588,237)

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services
Internal charges
Employee contributions
Miscellancous

‘Total operating revenucs

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages, fringes
Supplics

Fuel and oil

Coniractuaj services
Claims, net of settlements
Postemployment expense
Other charges
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income {Joss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

{EXPLENSES)

Interest earnings

Changes in value ol investments
Gain {loss) on property sales
Miscellaneous revenues

Tetal nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income {foss) before
contributions and transfers

TRANSFERS

TO MUNICIPALITY - CASH
FROM MUNICIPALITY - CASH

TRANSFERS TO/FROM MUNICI-

PALITY - CAPITAL ASSETS

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

CETY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

EXPENSES,

Municipal
Garage

[nformation
Services

Risk

Manapement

Employee
Insurance

Total

§ - $ - $ 46,598 $ 1177995 $ 1,224,593
11,228,015 2,973218 3,983,641 12,203,693 31,388,787
; . - 4,883,820 4,883,820

. 3.008 - 543 3,641
11,228,035 3,976,316 4,030,439 18,266,051 37,500,841
2,200,611 2,342,269 - 474,080 5,016,950
1,545,832 284,310 448,827 108,212 2,387,181
3,875,439 . - - 3,875,439
94,071 684,825 683,047 64,350 1,528,293

- . 2,460,293 16,446,326 18,906,619

- - . 17,615,147 17,615,147
911,106 133,273 861,445 379,270 2.285,094
4,389,939 731,673 332 400 5,122,344
13,016,998 4,176,350 4,455,944 35,087,785 56,737,077
(1,788,963) (200,034) (425,505) (16,821,734) (19,236.236)
43332 20,370 69,628 45,339 178,869
835 (3,601) (6,012) (1.322) (10,100)
282,111 {35.431) - - 245,680
13,111 - - - 13,111
339,380 (18,662) 63,616 44,217 428,560
(1.449.574) (218.696) (361,889) (16,777.517) (18,807.676)
- (18,000 - (2,400) (20,400)
567,254 53,712 . - 620,966
(882.320) (182,984) (361,889 (16,779.917) (18,207,110
26,720,825 6,181,675 4,411,329 (49,703,956) (12,381.127)
§ 25.847,505 $ 59980691 $4,049.440 $ (66,483,873 $ (30,588237)

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITEES

Municipal Information

Garage

Services

Risk
Management

Employee
insurance

Tatals

Cash received from other [unds $ 11,228,035 $ 3,975,710 $ 3,802,044 $ 18,160,447 $ 37,166,836
Cash payments for goods and services (7,279,680) (1,169,444) (1,218,764 (853,979 (10,521 867)
Cash payments to employces (2,204,243) (2,256,907) - (4537.349) (4,918,559)
Cash payments for claims and loss adjustments - - (2,733,349 (17,072,860 {19,8006,149)
Net cash provided (used} by eperating activities 1,744,112 549,299 (149,469) (223,681) 1,920,261
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 567,254 53,712 - - 620,966
Transfers o other funds - (18,000) - {2,400) {20,400}
Amounts borrowed from or repaid by
other funds - - - (29,974 {29,974)
Amounts Joaned (¢ or repaid to other funds {259) - - - (259}
Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities 566,995 35,712 - (32,374) 570,333
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assels (3,891,319 (1,232.493) - (5,123,812)
Insurance proceeds 13,111 - - 13,111
Proceeds from disposition of property,
plant and equipment 369,149 434,910 - - 804,039
Net cash provided (used) by capital
financine activities (3.509.05% (797.583) {4.306.642)
CASIH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of
investment securities 4,750,000 1,000,000 13,250,000 6,625,000 25,625,000
Purchase of investment seeurities (5,451,834) (1,545,910 {13,384,232) (4,753,061 (25,135,037)
Interest and gains (losses) on investments 89,014 30,572 106,914 71,602 298,702
Net cash provided (used) by
investing activities (612.220) (513,338) (27,318) 1,643,541 788,665
Net increase {decrease) in cash
and cagh equivalents (1.810,172) (727,910) (176,787) 1,687,486 {1.027,383)
CASIH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,377,765 1,441,424 5,494,404 4,406,342 15,719,935
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT END OF YEAR $ 2567593 $ 713,514 $ 3317617 % 6,093,828 % 14,692,552

See Independent Auditor's Report.



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (Joss)

Adjustments Lo reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operaling activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in invenlories
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) In vouchers payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
[nerease (decrease) in provision for

compensated absences

Increase (decrease) in estimated claims liabilities
Increase {decrease) in net pension obligation
Increase {decrease) in [BNR accrual

Net cash provided (used) by operating
aclivitics

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decreases (increases) in fair values of investments

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 38, 2012

Municipal Information Risk Employee
Garage Services Management Insurance Totals
$ (1,788,963) § (200,034 § (425,508 % (16,821,734 % (19.236,236)
4,389,939 731,673 332 400 5,122,344
- {606) (227.795) (105,604) (334,005)
(6,345} - - - (6,345)
- - (58,135) - {58,135}
(862,458) (67.036) 79,553 (28,296) (878,197
15,571 - 755,087 (273.851) 496,817
6,887 21,408 - 7,275 35,570
(1,251 63,060 - 9,292 61,101
- - - 16,988,673 16,688,673
732 834 - 164 1,730
- (273,056) - (273,056)
§  1.744.112 $ 549299 $ {149.469) % (223680 _§ 1920261
$ 835 $ 3,601y 3% 6,012y § (1,32) % (10,100}

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all unrestricled resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The revenues and expenditures of the Transit System, Solid Waste Department and the
Auditorium-Coliseum are accounted for in this fund.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Investments at fair value

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS

Receivables (net of allowances for uncoliectibles)

Property faxes

Solid waste and other

Accrued interest

Other accrued revenue
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory of supplies
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Pue to other governments
Peferred revenue property taxes
Deferred revenues other
Total liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Prepaid ltems
Uncollected taxes
Committed for:
Encumbrances
Unassigned

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

See independent Audifor's Report.
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$  3.312,730
39,661,593

475,511
1,345,421
141,217
1,378.977
1,534,198
4,411,310
1,546,717
7,742

§ 53815416

§ 1,188.182
2,070,187
2,936,667

76,182
672
780,308
404,544
94,109

7.550,851

1,546,717
7.742
70,967

295,059
44,344 080

46,264,565

$ 53,815416




CITY OF AMARILLO
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Taxes
License and permits
Interfund revenues
Intergovernmental revenues
Contributions - citizens
Charges for services
Fines and forfettures
Investment earnings
Other rentals and commissions
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Staff services

Public safety and health
Police protection
Fire protection
Other

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Streets, traffic and engineering

Culture and recreation
Auditorium-colliseum
Libraries
Parks
Participant recreation

Solid waste

Transit system

Information technology

Tourism

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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102,254,702
2,315.185
1,584,965
3,388,112

7,363
30,428,631
4,955,058
391,254
395,662
601,608

146,322,540

3,314,666
8,755,786

37,036,816
24,583,803

8,965,884
13,683,894

2,857,382
3,578,900
6,477,760
4,921,714

11,063,271
3,957,318
2,703,716
2,847,958

106,906

134,855,774

11,466,766

70,281
{9,080,216)

2,456,831

43,807,734

46,204,565




COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TAXES
General properly taxes
Ad valorem tax collections
Penally and interest on delinquent taxes
Water & sewer ulility
General sales tax
Mixed beverage tax
Fotel occupancy tax
(irpss receipts business taxes:
Eleetric utility
Telephene utility
Gas utility
Cable television
Water & Sewer utility
Total taxes
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Food and beverage establishmenis
Liguer, beer and wine licenses
Restaurant permifs
Food handler permits
Miscellancous occupational
Occupational and business
Transient bus licenses
Solicitation permits
Building and structures
Building permits
Electrical permits
Plumbing and gas permits
Heating and air permiis
Sewage disposal permits
Mabile home parls
Total licenses and permils
INTERFUND REVENUES
Aldrport animal control
Communication services
Sales to other funds
Other interfund reimbursements
Total interfund revenue
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
General government
Auditorium Operating Assistance
Public safety and health
Emergency Management Pasticipations
Other
State shared revenues
Transi{
Federa¥/state operating assistance
Total intergovernmental revenucs
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM CITIZENS
Donations unrestricted

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

Actual

Variance with
final budget

revenne Budget positive (negalive)
$ 29,216,987 $ 28,680,991 b 535,996
271,699 327,507 {55.808)
2,873,088 2,873,096 (8
48,256,664 46,000,000 2,256,664
533,375 600,520 {66,9495)
5,002,181 4,742,591 259,590
7,855,862 7,317,542 338,320
1,273,253 1,343,513 (70.260)
2,407,793 3,232,370 (824,577)
1,804,757 1,681,460 123,297
2,758,843 2,765,165 (6,322)
102,254,702 99,564,755 2,689,947
87,417 68,499 18,918
446,278 421,046 25,232
31,835 30,176 1,659
40,6935 31,631 9,604
875 781 04
3,775 2,833 442
1,108,259 050,756 157,503
107.557 65,000 42,557
291,670 188,809 102,861
78,114 52,000 26,114
72,210 69,662 2,548
46,500 36,450 10,050
2,315,185 1,917,043 398,142
14,004 12,000 2,004
781,811 807,532 (25,7121)
076,882 444,996 231,886
112,268 119,316 {7,048)
1,584,965 1,383,844 201,121
398,004 397,998 6
228,365 260,668 (32,303)
12,300 2,000 10,300
55,694 62,900 (7,200)
2,693,749 2,743.931 (50,182}
3,388,112 3,467,497 (79,385}
7.363 24,224 (16,861)

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENULES, CONTINUED

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

General government
Zoning, planning application fees
Sale of city publications
Staff services
indirect cost reimbursement
Business type fund administrative fees
Water & sewer administrative
Airport
Other administrative fees
Weed mowing contract
Weed bad debt adjustment
Wrecker service contract
Figcal agent fees
Public safety and health
Police liason officer
AECC participations
EMS Support
Warrant fees
Traffic accident reports
Alrport fire service fee
Fire inspections
Animal shelter fees
Vital statistics fee
Miscellancous health department fees
Culture & recreation
Auditorium rentals
Auditoriuin concessions
Auditortum advertising
Auditorium Box Office
Library late fees
Library copy charges
Nonresident library fees
Baseball feld rentals
Golf green fees
Goll membership lees
Golf other
Swimming pool fees
Tennis center fees
Zoo admission fees
Rifle range [ees
Entry and tournament [ces
Admission fees
Solid waste
Colleetion & disposal fees
Landfill charges
Recyclable materials
Forfeited discounts
Transit
Passenger revenuc
Demand respoense
Miscellaneous transit revenue

Total charges for services

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Variance with
Actuat final budget
revesnie Budget positive (negative)
39,864 45,280 (5,416)
881 635 246
1,360,133 1,313,503 40,630
1,260,096 1,260,090 6
222,057 222,057 -
204,940 367,848 (162,908)
(307,255) (368.870) 61,615
61,295 105,600 (44,305)
128,830 121,497 7,333
809,442 751,760 57,082
793,829 786,471 7,358
118,500 105,000 13,500
632273 352,840 79,433
46,515 50,000 (3,485}
1,503,888 1,503,887 1
34,155 21,200 12,955
99,024 139,291 (40,267)
283,529 322,615 (39,0806)
7,446 8.908 (1,462)
1,026,156 991,657 24,499
309,187 311,010 (1,823)
4,585 20,670 {16,083)
316,302 362,999 {46,697)
123,630 126,001 {2,371)
25,832 18,999 6,833
12,649 9,000 3.649
67,907 62,311 5,596
960,159 959,644 (99,485)
251,666 238,406 13,260
362,616 471,481 (108,8635)
172,597 169,211 3,386
4,168 5,299 (1,131)
172,910 192,500 (19,390)
109.501 72,000 37,501
402,195 465,694 (63,499}
- 3,560 3.,500)
16,616,253 6,936,000 {319.747)
1,541,988 1,450,000 91,988
122,110 57,000 63,116
372,923 335,000 37,923
150,124 114,002 36,122
24,609 21,999 2.610
39,116 27.000 12,116

30,428,631

30,770,993

(3423643

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENULES, CONTINULED
YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with

Actual final budgef
revenue Budget postitive (negative)
FINES AND FORFEI'TURES
TrafTic fines 3,260,160 3,187,601 72,559
Misdemeanor fees 702,183 550,800 151,383
Parking fines 185515 141,780 43,735
Court Fees 16,040 23,339 {7,299)
Qther court revenue 118,182 150,584 {32,400
Miscellaneous fines 177,952 171,001 6,951
State court costs 493,026 506,938 {11,912}
Total fines and forfeitures 4,955,058 4,732,043 223,015
INVESTMENT EARNINGS
interest earnings 391.254 528,423 {137,169)
Total investment earnings 391,254 528,423 {137,169}
OTHER RENTALS AND COMMISSIONS
Amusement park commissions 108.675 108,947 (272)
Municipal building rents 223,574 214,755 8,819
Surface land rents 15,100 14,600 300
Miscellaneous concessions 48,313 67,792 (19,479
Total rental/commissions 395,662 406,094 (10,432}
MISCELLANEQUS
Use of money and property:
Misceltaneous revenues 473,863 280,230 193,633
Discount card salcs 2,949 4,661 (1,712)
Sales to outside utilities 59,058 30,000 9,058
PID reimbursements 33,073 103,734 (70,661)
Appraisal District refunds 26,018 24,175 1,843
Discounts earned 2,173 5,060 (2,827
Sale of property and gains 15,705 29.797 (14,092
Bad debl/exp recovery (11.231) - (11.231)
Total miscellanecus 601,608 447,567 104,011
TOTAL REVENUES $ 146,322,540 $ 143,292,513 $ 3,030,025

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT (GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor and conumnission
City manager
City secretary
Municipal court
Judicial
Teen court
Planning and zoning

Total general government

STAFF SERVICES
Financial administration
Director of Finance

Accounting

Payroll

Benefits

Purchasing

Central stores
Information technology
Legal
Personnel

Human Resources

Safety and training
Communications
Occupancy

Custodial operations

Building maintenance

Total staff services

PUBLIC SAFETY AND HEALTH

Police
Police
Civilian personnet

Miscellaneous police programs

Total police protection
Fire protection
Fire operations
Civilian personnel
Fire support
Total fire protection
Other
Building safety
Animat control
Emergency services
ALCC
Envirenmental health
Vital statistics

Total other

Total public safety and health

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Salaries,
wages and

Contractual

fringe henefits Supplies services
$ 2,172 $ 8,942 ¥ 37,244
800,187 12,531 67,150
205,514 1,431 588
897,598 48,078 105,155
449,308 3,062 3,960
34,835 2,182 232
387,419 6,917 15,923
2,873,033 83,143 230,252
350,261 7,380 461,465
820,091 27,155 173,363
167,374 2,586 9,992
276,523 - -
403,831 16,047 30,250
287,386 4,788 15,082
819,067 43,429 7,872
340,923 139,061 126,801
294,297 7,983 19,635
367,058 24,944 487,787
802,180 413,942 24,615
1,224,343 25,843 415,914
0,153,334 713,158 1,772,776
29,319,693 1,225,673 2,027,976
2,138,924 - 1,717,910
20,402 200 505
31,479,019 1,225,873 3,746,391
20,864,391 50,319 43,723
1,090,667 14,208 6,692
387,994 1,145,435 §10,983
22,343,052 1,209,962 861,398
1,624,328 34,290 260,769
1,293,261 112,191 137,567
234,201 25,572 28,956
3,781,552 15,255 285,600
672,626 10,750 06,455
31,083 7,658 1,908
7,637,051 205,716 781,255
61,459,122 2,641,551 5,389,044

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Page Fof2

Total

Other Capital (GAAP)
charges Total outlay basis

38,271 $ 86,629 § - 5 86,629
21,013 906,881 - 906,881
10,125 307,658 975 308,633
45,737 1,006,568 - 1,096,568
1,823 458,153 - 458,153
1,910 39,159 - 39,159
9,359 419,618 - 419,618
128,238 3,314,666 Y75 3,315,641
9,408 828,514 - 828,514
12,263 1,032,872 - 1,032,872
953 180,905 - 180,905
1,697 278,220 - 278,220
5,305 455,433 - 455,433
(22,791 284,465 - 284,465
2,763,716 2,703,716 - 2,703,716
14,101 884,469 - 884,469
13,250 620,035 - 620,035
7,535 329,450 - 329,450
8,595 888,384 - 888,384
4,240 1,244,977 - 1,244,977
61,962 1,728,062 - 1,728,062
2,820,234 11,459,502 - 11,459,502
577,006 33,150,348 82,445 33,232,793
8,527 3,865,361 - 3,865,361
- 21,107 - 21,107
585,533 37,036,816 82,445 37,119,261
60,553 21,018,986 - 21,018,986
14,243 1,125,810 9,463 1,135,273
94,595 2,439.007 - 2,439,007
169,391 24,583,803 9,463 24,593,266
52,605 1,971,992 - 1,971,992
21,565 1,564,584 - 1,564,584
108,231 396,960 - 396,960
140,480 4228 887 (958) 4,227.929
8,33 758,108 - 758,168
4,644 45,293 - 45,293
341,862 8,065,884 (958) 8,964,926
1,096,786 70,586,503 90,950 70,677,453

See Independent Auditor's Report.

i45



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT (GAAP BASIS), CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

STREETS, TRAFFIC & ENGINEERING
Street maintenance
Traffic engineering
Traffic field operations
Engineering
Totat streets, traffic, engineering

CULTURE & RECREATION
Auditorium - Coliseum
Civic Center operations
Civic Center promotions
Box office operations
Civic Center sports
Globe News Center
Library operations
Parks
Parks administration
Park maintenance
Participant recreation
Ross Rogers Golf Course
Comanche Trail Golf Course
200
Swimming poois
Tennis center
Parks and recreation programs

Total culture and recreation
SOLID WASTE

Solid waste collection
Solid waste disposal

Total solid waste
TRANSIT
Fixed route

Demand response
Transit maintenance

Total transit
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Tourism support
Total economic development

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

Salaries,
wages and Contractual
fringe henefits Supplies services
3,620,194 219,173 4,667,624
470,087 1,731,367 104,705
766,506 21,063 468,781
1,354,797 79,000 51,275
6,211,584 2,050,603 5,292 385
927,414 582,218 93,448
185,663 40,754 26,104
202,938 3,390 60,468
79,975 141,657 49,384
124,266 124,545 17,694
2,590,183 758,567 118,959
408,551 31,699 18,175
3,234,326 1,583,615 1,145,531
707,450 825,930 416,722
656,359 243,321 340,342
240,472 85,191 25,883
258,199 102,469 62,302
4,486 26,607 40,016
633,419 64,634 96,366
10,253,701 4,614,597 2,511,394
4,531,336 260,255 2,965,361
1,396,314 96,808 1,464,954
5,927,650 357,063 4,430,315
1,458,068 633,666 §7,799
786,591 274,161 43,801
415,200 44 -
2,659,859 907,871 61,600
- - 2,847,958
- - 2,847,958
$ 95,538,283 § 11,367,986 22,535,724

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Total
Other Capital (GAAT)

charges Total outlay basis
51,978 8,558,969 - 8,558,969
26,116 2,332,275 - 2,332,275
23,031 1,279,381 - 1,279,381
28,197 1,513,269 - 1,513,269
129,322 13,683,894 - 13,683,894
114,845 1,717,925 - 1,717,925
24,844 277,365 - 277,365
28.369 295,165 - 295,165
2,231 273,247 - 273,247
27,175 293,680 - 293,680
111,191 3,578,900 - 3,578,900
11,661 470,086 4,345 474,431
44,202 6,007,674 6,792 6,014,466
8,554 1,958,656 153 1,958,809
7,888 1,247,910 - 1,247,910
619 352,165 - 352,165
16,685 439,655 - 439,655
1,409 72,518 - 72,518
56,391 850,810 - 850,810
456,004 17,835,756 11,290 17,847,046
37,840 7,794,792 - 7,794,792
310,403 3,268,479 - 3,268,479
348,243 11.063,271 - 11,063,271
271,078 2,380,611 3,691 2,384,302
45,999 1,150,552 - 1,150,552
10,911 426,155 - 426,155
327,988 3957318 3,691 3,961,009
- 2,847,958 - 2,847,958
- 2,847,958 - 2,847 958
5,306,875 $ 134,748,868 $ 106,906 $ 134,855,774

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CUTY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT - BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Capital Total Current Year Paid Prior Year
Net Current Qutlay (GAAP Basis) Encumbrances
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor and Commission % 86,629 $ - $ 86,629 $ -
City manager 906,881 - 906,881 -
City secretary 307,658 975 308,633 -
Municipal court 1.096,568 - 1,096,568 -
Judicial 458,153 458,153 -
Teen court 39,159 - 39,159 -
Planiing and zoning 419,618 - 419,618 -
Total general government 3,314,666 975 3,315,641 -
STAFF SERVICES
Financiai administration
Director of Finance 828,514 - 828,514 -
Accounting 1,032,872 - 1,032,872 830
Payroil 180,905 - 186,905 250
Benelits 278,220 - 278,220 -
Purchasing 455,433 - 455,433 547
Central stores 284.465 - 284,465 -
{nformation technolegy 2,703,716 - 2,703,716 -
Legal 884,469 - 884,469 -
Personnei
Human Resources 620,035 - 620,035 21,958
Safety and training, 329,450 - 329,450 -
Communications 888,384 - 888,384 -
Qccupancy
Custodial operations 1,244 977 - i.,244 977 -
Building maintenance 1,728,062 - 1,728,062 8,369
Total staft services 11,459,502 - 11,459,502 32,004
PEUBLIC SAFETY AND HEALTH
Potice
Police 33,150,348 82.445 33,232,793 13,476
Civilian personnel 3,865,361 - 3,865,361 -
Tabacco Senate Bill 21,107 - 21,107 -
Total police protection 37,036,816 82,445 37,114,261 13,476
Fire Protection
Firc operations 21,018,986 - 21,018,986
Civilian personnel 1.125.810 9,463 1,135,273 -
Fire support 2,439,007 - 2.439,007 26,855
EMS Support - - B -
Total fire profection 24 583,803 9.463 24,593,266 26,853
Other
Building safety 1,971,992 - 1,971,992 -
Animal control 1,504,584 - 1,564,584 -
Emergency services 396,960 - 396,966 -
ALCC 4,228,887 (938) 4,227,929 -
Envircnmental health 758,168 - 758,168 -
Vital statistics 45,293 - 45,293 3,079
Total other 8,063,884 (938) 8,964,926 3,079
Total public salely and health 70,586,503 90,950 70,677,453 43,410

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Encumbrances Tatal Actual Yariance with
at End of Year Budgetary Basis Original Budget Final Budget Final Budget
5 - b3 86,629 $ 121,289 $ 121,289 b 34,660
- 906,881 1,666,717 1,066,954 160,073
- 308,633 366,618 368,328 39,693
- 1.096.568 1,647,657 [,177,395 80,827
2.307 460.460 - 478,377 17917
- 39,159 39,010 39,296 137
- 419,618 503,348 510,726 91,108
2,307 3,317,948 3,749,639 3,762,365 444,417
- 828,514 835,152 836,580 8,066
- 1,032,042 1,165,801 1,170,768 138,720
- 180,655 181,115 182,260 1,603
- 278,220 288.041 289.504 11,344
- 454,836 517,307 520,162 65,326
- 284,465 314,616 317,896 33,431
- 2,703,716 2,703,720 2,703,720 4
- 884,469 934,961 937,997 53,528
10,000 608,077 724,944 706,467 98,390
- 329,450 351,580 352,915 23,465
- 888,384 947,645 950,592 62,208
- 1,244,977 1,362,133 1,370,666 125,089
- 1,719,693 1,927,447 1,920,257 200,564
10,600 11,437,498 12,254,462 12,259,844 822,346
78,336 33.297.653 32.608.802 32,556,583 {741,070)
- 3,865,361 3,849,243 3,870,426 3,063
- 21,107 8,300 8,300 {12,807)
78,330 37,184,121 36,466,345 36,435,309 {748.812)
- 21,018,986 20,948,983 20,945,983 {73,003)
473 1,135,746 1,194,691 £,226,203 90,457
50,938 2,463,090 2,969,518 2942518 479,428
51,411 24,617,822 25,113,192 25,114,704 B 496,882
- 1,971,992 2293812 2,301,976 324984
- 1,564,584 1,526,791 1,535,501 (29.083)
- 396,960 416,032 417,204 20,244
- 4,227,929 4,139,369 4,153,270 (74,659
6.224 764,392 1,030,482 1,035,237 270.845
- 42,214 53,044 33,330 11,116
6.224 8,968,071 9,460,130 9,496,518 528,447
135,971 70,770,014 71,039,667 71,046,531 276,517

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT - BUDGETARY BASIS, CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Capital Total Current Year Paid Prior Year
Net Current Outlay (GAAP Basis) Fncombrances
STREETS, TRAFFIC & ENGINEERING
Street maintenance 8,558,909 - 8,558,969 3,422
Traffic enginecring 2,332,275 - 2,332,275 -
Traffic field operations 1,279,381 - 1,279,381 5,081
Engineering 1,513,269 - 1,513,269 4,137
Total streets, traflic, engineering 13,683,894 - 13,683,894 12,640
CULTURE & RECREATION
Audiorium - Coliseum
Civic Center operations 1,717,925 - 1,717,923 -
Civie Center premotions 277,363 - 277,363 -
Box office operaticns 295,163 - 295,165 -
Civic Center Sports 273,247 - 273,247 -
Globe News Center 293,680 - 293,680 19,340
Library operations 3,578,900 - 3.578,900 -
Parks
Parks administration 470,086 4,345 474,431 -
Park maintenance 6,007,674 6,792 6,014,466 218
Participant Recreation
Ross Rogers Golf Course 1,958,056 133 1,958,809 -
Comanche Trail Goif Course 1,247,910 - 1,247,910 -
200 352,165 - 352,165 -
Swimming pools 439,055 - 439,655 2,765
Tennis center 72,518 - 72,518 -
Parks and recreation programs 850,810 - 850,810 390
Total culture and recreation 17,835,756 11,290 17,847,046 22,713
SOLID WASTE
Solid waste coliection 7.794,792 7,794,792 -
Solid waste disposal 3,268,479 3,268,479 -
Total solid waste 11,063,271 11,063,271 -
TRANSIT
Iixed route 2,380,611 3,691 2,384,302 1,i55
Demand responsc 1,150,552 - 1,150,552 -
Transit mainlenance 426,135 - 420,155 -
Tetal transit 3,957 318 3,691 3,961,009 1,155
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Tourism support 2,847,958 - 2,847,958 35,818
Total economic development 2,847,958 - 2,847 958 35,818
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDETURES b 134,748,868 $ 106,906 b 134,855,774 $ 147,740
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers to Other Funds 9,080,216 - 9,680,216 -
Operating Transfers from Other Funds (70,281) - (70.281) -
TOTALS INCLUDING TRANSFERS 5 143,758 803 $ 106,906 A 143,865,709 i 147,740

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Encumbrances

at Iind of Year

6,871

47,474

54,345

9,733
6,624
10,537

6,400

36,427

7,073
7,073

13,936

35,000
35,000

b 295,059

b) 295,059

Total Actual
Budgetary Basis

8,562,418
2,332,275
1,321,774
1,509,132

Original Budget

13,723,599

9,806,554
2,331,662
1,479,742
1,611,567

Final Budget

1,727,658
283,989
305,702
273,247
274,340

3,585,300

474,431
6,014,248

1,961,942
1,247,910
352,165
436,890
72,518
850,420

15,229,525

9,839,551
2,334,205
1.487.258
1,618.419

17,860,760

1,818,038
343,058
360,139
242,209
318,770

3.637,396

523,277
5,949,412

1,940,752
1,355,934
365,210
452,901
89,501
993 143

15,276,433

7,794,792
3,275,552

18,383,442

1,825,418
344,009
361,140
242,616
313,287

3,657,973

524,797
5,961,052

1,944,208
1,361,770
366,491
453,288
89,501
994,339

11,070,344

7.889.111
3,407,242

18,439,979

2,397,083
1,150,552
426,155

11,296,353

7,928,157
3,397,330

2,557,598
1.209.577
416,726

11,325,487

3,973,790

2,847,140

4,183,901

2,567,446
1,214,661
419.065

2,847,140

2,901,969

4,201,172

135,003,093

2,901,960

2,901,960

9,080.216
(70,281)

2,901,960

§

144,013,028

$ 139,038,949
9.812.107
(182.200)

§ 148,668,856

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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b 139,216,771

9,034,298
(182,200)

b 148,668,869

¥

$

Page 2 of2

Yariance with
Final Budget

1,277,133
1,930
165,484
109,287

1,553,834

97,760
60,020
55.438

(30.631)
38,047
72,673

50,366
(53.196)

(17,644)

113,860
14,326
16,398
16,983

143,919

379,219

133,365
121,778

255,143

170,363
64,109
(7,000)

227382

54,820
54,820

4,213,678

534,082
(111.919)

4,655,841
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STATEMENTS OF WATER AND SEWER FUND

This fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to residents and commercial enterprises
of the City and proximate area. Water is obtained from a number of city-owned well fields, as well as
from an atlocation of surface water from the Canadian River and underground water from the northeast
sector of the Panhandle, both provided by the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30,2012

ASSLETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents A3 13,337,634
Investments, at fair values 15,148,503
Accounts receivable 3,602,192
Accrued interest receivable 60,022
Other accrued revenue 3,788,401
Prepaid expenses 963,535
Total current assets 58,900,347
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 33,050,537
Other noncorrent receivable 343,950
Capital assets
Land 1,752,820
Contributed right of way easements 570,218
Underground water rights 56,700,214
Accumulated depletion - water rights (4,107,493)
Water supply contract 50,336,389
Accumulated amortization - water supply confract (19,053,650)
Pipelines and plant 545,610,923
Accumulated depreciation - pipelines and plant (150,524,679)
Equipment and vehicles 3,770,282
Accumulated depreciation - equipment and vehicles (3,151,223)
Construction in progress 36,349,481
Tolal capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 318,233,280
Total noncurrent assets 551,647,767
TOTAL ASSETS $  610,548.114
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable $ 1,753,994
Accounts payable 1,630,633
Accrued expenses 2,339,336
Deposits 32,740
Consumer security deposits 3,144,653
Share of Water Authority debt, current 4,860,248
Bonded debt current maturity 7,290,000
Current portion of provision for compensated absences _ 187,561
Total current liabilities 21,245,165
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonded debt, net of current 133,829,981
Water authority debt, net of current 93,936,101
Other accrued expenses 3,109,196
Provision [or compensated absences, nel 1,249,273
Net pensien obligation 635,209
Total noncurrent Liabilities 232.759.820
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 254,004,983
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debdt § 306,052,107
Restricted for debt service 5.329,320
Unrestricied 45,161,702
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 356.543.129

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Rents and miscellaneous
Tap fees and frontage charges
Utility sales and service

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies
Fuel and power
Contractual services
Water Authority charges
Other charges
Depteciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSLES)
Loss on disposal of property
Interfund reimbursement
Interest carnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers to other funds

Change in net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditor's Report.

155

$ 310,142
242,732
69,103,211

———

69,656,085

11,394,284
1,303,399
4,476,328
4,216,512
4,682,183
8,044,314

13,110,658

e 2 2 T

47,227,678

(O S Tl R v

22,428 407

PP soctont M M LSOO

(161,536)
577,802
170,434
(7,030,181)

(6,443,481)
15,984,926

4,587,476
{387,328)

20,185,074
336,358,055

$_ 356,543,129



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from third parties
Cash payments Lo supplicrs for geods and services
Cash payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (to) from other Tunds
Amounts repaid from other funds
Net cash provided (used) by nencapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acqguisition and construction of capital assels
Principal paid on revenue hond maturities
Principal paid on proportionate share of Water Authority debt
Noncurrent receivable
Proceeds from issuance of bands
Bond issuance cost
Capital grants received
Interest expense
Proceeds from sale of capital asscts
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturitics of investment sccurities
Purchase ol investment securities
Interest and gaing on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activitics
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR
{(RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments lo reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in other accrued revenue
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in vouchers payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease} in accrued operaling expenses
Increase (decrease) in customer depesits
increase {decrease) in net pension obligation
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decease) in other accrued cxpenses

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Increases in fair values of investments
Interest expense capitalized

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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$ 68,801,986
(25,151,729
(11,321,429
32,328,828

(387.328)
577.802

190,474

(82,224,385)
{7.216,000)
(4.386,366)

16,042
38.222.252
{473.755)
4,587,476
(7.799,662)
18,785

{59,249,613)

25,956,459
(31,693,280}
443,96

(4,692,860)
(31,423.571)

77,811,342

§ 46388171
§ 22,428,407

13,110,658
(954,343)
100,244
(939,039)
(774,430)
(1.843,033)
1,145,443
98,668
3,893
(6,836)
(40,804)

§ 32328828

b 165,943
14.463
603,538



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

UTILITY SALES AND SERVICE

Water metered sales S 46,807,157
Sewer charges 19,377,899
Industrial waste charges 188,625
Forfeited discounts 1,171,110
Sale of reclaimed water 670,041
Water service charges 1,176,520
Net loss on bad debts (502,057}
Lab fees 175,921
Liquid waste disposal 37,993
Total utility sales and service 69,103,211

TAP FEES AND FRONTAGE CHARGES

Water tap fees 130,810
Sewer tap fees 71,993
Water frontage charges 14,855
Sewer frontage charges 25,074
Total tap fees and frontage changes 242,732

RENTS AND MISCELLANEQUS
Rents and miscellaneous 310,142
Total rents and miscellaneous 310,142
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $ 69,656,085

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Salaries, Wages

& Fringe Fuel and
Benefits Supplies Power
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
DEPARTMENT
Water production $ 371,076 $ 22,958 § 1,516,702
Water transmission 355,008 20,480 1,582,760
Surface water freatment 1,585,527 328,811 120,126
Water distribution 2,303,608 47 802 905
Water - general - - -
Wastewater collection 1,240,700 160,241 157,413
Wastewater treatment 1,984,806 434 473 1,078,850
Environmental laboratory 1,052,096 153,688 19,570
Sewer - general - - -
Utility bilting 1,180,492 58.944 -
Director of utilites - admin. 1,320,971 76,002 -
Total operating expenses $ 11,394,284 $ 1,303,399 $ 4,476,328

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Water
Authority
Charges

4,682,183

§ 4,682,183

Contractual
Services

3 531,495
162,326
456,292
999,063
124,750
521,708
570,641
140,485

662,008
47,744

See Independent Auditor's Report.

$

Other

Charges

16,016
32,395
182,76
44,052
4,999.248
47,008
323,746
(23,795)
2,366,100
13,923
42,860

8,044,314

159

Depreciation/
Amortization

Total Current
Year

$ 3,433,039 $ 5,891,286
2,323,176 4,476,145
1,129,380 8,485,080
2,306,781 5,702,211

- 5,123,998

1,531,513 3,658,585
2,072,164 6,464,680
103,722 1,445,766

- 2,366,100

189,138 2,104,505
21,745 1,509,322

5 13,110,658 $ 47227678
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STATEMENTS OF DPRAINAGE UTILITY FUND

The Drainage Utility Fund provides for a dedicated funding source for the operations and
maintenance of the existing storm-water system.

6]



CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalen{s

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Capital assets
Construction in progress

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Vouchers pavable
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds

Totai current liabilitics

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
DRAINAGE UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2612

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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5 510
510

102,935

$ 103,445
$ 449
13,576

136,000
150,025

8

8

3 102,935
(149,523

h) {46,588)



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
DRAINAGE UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012

QPERATING REVENUES
Drainage utility assessments

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies
Contractual services

‘Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Change in net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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26,714
1,704
18,17C

46,588
(46,588)
(46,588)

b (46,588}



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
DRAINAGE UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services $ (19,425}
Cash payments Lo employees (13,130}
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (32,555)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amounts borrowed from or repaid by other funds 136,000

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 136,000

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (102,935)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (102,935)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 510

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR ¥ 510

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $  (46,588)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in vouchers payable 449
Increase (decrease} in accrued operating expenses 13,576
Increase (decrease} in net pension obligation 8

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (32,535

NONCASH INVESTING., CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in fair values of investments -

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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AIRPORT FUND

This fund accounts for the operation of the Amarillo International Airport. In addition to providing
runways, a passenger terminal and related facilities, the Airport includes improvements built by the
federal government for an air force base on land which was returned to the City in 1967 and 1970. These
facilities, together with later additions, are leased to commercial tenants for warehousing, manufacturing,
and aircraft-related activities.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,786,073
Investments at fair value 6,763,889
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Accounts 293,048
Accrued interest 5,833
Other accrued revenue 259,436
Due from other governments 1,349,345
Total current assets 11,457,624
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 373,430
Capital assets
Land 2,777,341
Runways, buildings and improvements 140,136,680
Accumulated depreciation (69,185,185)
Equipment and vehicles 4,665,779
Accumulated depreciation (3,387,546)
Construction in progress 7,99G,011
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 82,997,080
Total noncurrent assets 83,370,510
TOTAL ASSETS 5 04,828,134
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable b3 283,703
Accounts payable 197,496
Accrued expenses 420,713
Deposits 87.786
Bonded debt current maturity 1,330,000
Current portion of provision for compensated absences 38,322
Total current liabilities 2,358,020
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonded debt, net of current portion 11,958,789
Provision for compensated absences, net 177,616
Net pension obligation 124,596
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,261,001
TOTAL LIABILITIES % 14,619,021
NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets net of debt $ 69,708,291
Restricted for debt service 373,430
Unrestricted 10,127,392
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 80,209,113

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLQO, TEXAS
AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Alrfield fees and commissions
Terminal building revenue
Other building revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and fringes
Supplies
Fuel and power
Contractual services
QOther charges
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Passenger facility charge
Interest earnings
Change in value of investnents
Other miscellaneous revenue

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net loss hefore contributions
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Change in net assets
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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538,756
4,733,224
1,464,486

6,736,466

2,479,141
199,335
563,208
463,355

2,096,691

4,587,212

10,388,942

{3,652,476)

1,639,556
52,772
(6.179)
22,044

1,708,193
(1,944,283)
3,311,359
1,367,076

78,842,037

80,209,113




CITY OF AMARILLOQ, TEXAS
AIRPORT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from third parties $ 7,201,753
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,104,148)
Cash payments to employees (2,447,297)
Net cash provided {used) by operating activilies 650,308
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash payments received for passenger facility charge 1,639,556
Net cash provided {used)} by noncapital financing activities 1,639,556
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,643,683}
Capital grants received 2,139,643
Proceeds from sale of equipment 65,797
Interest expense (588,188)
Principal paid on bond maturities (1,280,000}
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (3,306,431}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities 4,000,000
Purchase of investment securities (4,004,724)
Interest and gains on investments 69,481
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 64,757
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (951,810}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,111,313
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR 5 3,159,503

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) § {3,652.476)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating aclivities:

Depreciation 4,587,212
(Increase) decrease in accounis receivable 530,612
(Increase) decrease in other accrued revenue (65,325)
Increase {decrease) in vouchers payable for operations (295,183)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payabie (768,084)
Increase {decrease) in accrued expenses 287,679
Increase {decrease) in deposits received 11,629
Increase (decrease) in provision for compensated absences 13,983
Increase {decrease) in net pension obligation 361
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3 (50,308

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{Increase) decrease in fair values of investments $ (6,179
Interest expense capitalized 303,595

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
AIRFORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

AIRFIELD FEES AND COMMISSIONS
Landing fees
Military fuel flowage commission
Fue!l and oi]l commissions--other

Total airfield fees and commissions

TERMINAL BUILDING REVENUES
Airline rentals
Restaurant commissions
Locler and vending machine commissions
Other terminal building rentals
Car rental agencies
Auto parking concession

Total terminal building revenues

OTHER BUILDING REVENUES
Lease rentals
Bell Helicopter
Krams, Inc.
Leading Edge
Fixed base operator
Other building rentals
Ground rentals
Advertising commissions

Total other building revenues

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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$ 402,009
131,814
4,933

538,756

1,444,765
163,856
1,442
118,696
1,128,201

1,936,324
4,733,224

508,322
304,948
285,021
86,012
52,754
190,209
37,220

1,464,486
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COMBINING SCHEDULLES

Grant Programs

The City participates in the following types of federal, federal-pass-through and state financial assistance
programs, many of which benefit the entire 26-county region known as the Panhandle of Texas:

HUD Programs: These grants, funded by the U. 8. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
include both block grants and housing and emergency shelter assistance grants for the benefit of low and
moderate-income persons.

Public Health: These funds account for grants received for nutrition, immunization, education, and
similar public health purposes within the city-bi-county public health district, received primarily through
the Texas Department of Health.

Justice: These grants are received from the Texas Criminal Justice Division for assistance in both local
and Panhandle area crime control, as well as from the Department of Transportation for traffic safety
purposes.

Other: The City's library administers grants received from the Texas State Library and the Texas
Committee for the Humanities for services as an area resource center, as well as for local purposes. The
City's transportation planning department administers grants from the U. §. Department of Transportation
and the Texas Highway Commission for both general transportation planning and for planning with
respect to the Department of Energy’s Pantex plant east of the City. The City's parks department
administers a summer lunch program for low-income children funded by the U. S. Department of
Agriculture.

Agency and Private-Purpose Trust Funds
The City accounts for the assets of the following other parties:
Agency Fund

Civic Center Operations: Accounts for individual events at the City of Amarillo Civic Center.
Funds are held in these accounts until events occur and are balanced and closed out,

Private-Purpose Trust Funds
Centennial Parkway: Donations for trees and landscaping along Airport Boulevard.

Indigent Dog Bite Vietim: Donations for health-related services for qualifying indigent dog bite
victims.

Amarillo Industrial Development Corporation: Promotion and development of commercial,
industrial and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage employment and the public
welfare.

Amarillo Healtlh Facilities Corporation: Facilitates the issuance of tax-exempt bonds to be
used for health care, research, and education, 1 order fo assist the maintenance of the public
health.



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT GRANTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCES
SEPTEMBER 39, 2012

Housing Home
Community Assistance Investment
Development Payments Partnership Shelter
Block Grant Program Program Plus Care
ASSETS
Cash and ¢ash equivalents $ - $ 1,218,328 Y 36,887 $ 1,402
Accounts receivable 19,999 3,537 76,912 -
Due from other funds 6,295 16,981 521 -
Due from other governments 223,072 - 18,765 26,188
Other accrued revenue 175 - - 24,116
Prepaid items - 642,434 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 5 249,541 $ 1,881,280 $ 133,085 g 51,706
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
LIABYLITIES
Accounts payable b 33,880 b 140,627 3 1,073 $ -
Due to other funds - unrestricted 132,001 3,191 7,615 50,685
Due to other governments 1,302 15,790 - -
Deferred revenue 5,000 - 77,012 -
Vouchers payabie 77,358 2,978 - -
Total liabilities 249,541 162,586 85,700 50,685
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items - 642,434 - -
Restricted for:
Special purposes - 1,044,617 47,3865 1,021
Committed for:
Compensated absences - 31,643 - .
Total fund balances - 1,718,694 47,385 1,021
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 249,541 3 1,881,280 $ 133,085 $ 51,706

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Supportive Affordable Emergency

Housing Housing Shelter HMIS Total
3 1,549 $ 74,273 h} 399 by 1,533 3 1,334,37)
- - - - 100,448
- - - 554 24,351
28,743 - 4 41,788 338,560
11,890 - - - 36,181
- - - - 642,434
b 42,182 3 74,273 $ 403 3 43,875 § 2,476,345
3 - $ - 3 - $ 1,690 $ 177,270
40,530 2,053 2,000 37,000 275,075
- - - - 17,092
- 23,778 - - 105,790
- - - - 80,336
40,530 25,831 o 2,000 38,690 655,563
- - _ - - 642,434
1,652 48,442 {1,597} 5,185 1,146,705
- - - - 31,643
1,652 48,442 (1,597) 5,185 1,826,782
$ 42182 3 74,273 $ 403 b 43,875 $ 2,476,345

See Independent Auditor's Report.

173



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT GRANTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Housing Home
Community Assistance Investment
Development Payments Partnership
Block Grant Program Program
REVENUES
Grants-in-aid - capital § 2,088,430 $ 8,049,128 b 741,128
Charges for services 14,228 - 12,265
Construction participations 30,285 - -
Invesiment earnings - 3,473 -
Miscellaneous revenues - 68,755 -
Total revenues 2,132,943 8,121,356 753,393
EXPENDITURES
Urban redevelopment/housing 2,132,943 8,453,700 739,880
Total expenditures 2,132,943 8,453,700 739,880
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (332,344) 13,513
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transter to other fund - - (7,615)
Operating transler {rom other fund - 13,807 -
Total other financing sources {uses) - 13,807 (7,613)
Net change in fund balances - (318,537} 5,898
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - 2037231 41,487
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ - $ 1,718,694 $ 47385

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Shelter Supportive Affordable Fmergency
Plus Care Housing Housing Shelter HMIS Total

$ 255,321 b 198,716 $ - - ¥ 93,105 $ 11,425828
- - - - - 26,493

- - - - - 30,285

- - 116 - - 3,589

- - - - - 68,755

255,321 198,716 HES - 93,105 11,554,950
250,892 197,181 75,022 1,597 91,635 11,942,850
250,892 197,181 75,022 1,597 91,635 11,942,850
4,429 1,535 (74,906} (1,597} 1,470 (387,900
(4,685) {1,507} - - - (13,807)

- - - - - 13,807

(4,685} (1,507) - - - -

(230) 28 {74,906) (1,597) 1,470 (387,500)

1,277 1,624 123,348 - 3,715 2,208,682

$ 1,021 b 1,652 k) 48,442 (1,397) $ 5,185 $ 1,820,782

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PUBLIC HEALTH GRANTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other governiments

TOTAL ASSETS

LTIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Vouchers payable

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Special purposes

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Women,
Publiec Infants &
Health Children Total
$ 7,784 b 3,749 $ 11,533
207,941 - 207,941
262,752 237,129 499 88|
$ 478477 $ 240,878 3 719,355
$ 48,63t $ 30,081 $ 78712
400,000 205,000 605,000
29,846 5,797 35,643
478,477 240,878 719,355
$ 478477 $ 240878 $ 719355

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PUBLIC HEALTH GRANTS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Women,
Public Infants &
Health Children Total
REVENUES
Other entity participation § 808,345 - $ 808343
Intergovernmental revenues 1,380,068 1,136,281 2,516,349
Charges for services 31,709 - 31,709
Total revenues 2,220,122 1,136,281 3,356,403
EXPENDITURES
Other public safety and health 2,220,122 1,136,281 3,356,403
Total expenditures 2,220,122 1,136,281 3,356,403

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers to other fund -

Total other financing sources and uses -

Net change in fund balances -

FUND BALANCES, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR -

FUND BALANCES, AT END OF YEAR b} -

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds - unrestricted

Total ltabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Special purposes

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

JUSTICE GRANTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Seleetive

Justice Traffic
Assistant Enforcement
Grant Program Total
$ 2,161 $ 1,198 g 3,359
82,839 21.802 104,641
3 85,000 $ 23.000 g 108,000
3 85,000 $ 23,000 k) 108,000
85,000 23,000 108,000
b §5,000 $ 23,000 $ 108,000

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

JUSTICE GRANTS

IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues

Tatal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Police protection
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other fund

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, AT END OF YEAR

See Independent Auditor's Report.

Selective
Justice Traffic
Assistance Enforcement
Grant Program Total
$ 211,767 $ 108,040 $ 319,807
211,767 108,040 319,807
134,547 160,686 205,233
77,220 - 77,220
211,767 160,686 372,453
- (52,646) {52,646)
- 52,646 52,646
- 52,646 52,646
$ - 3 - 3 -
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
MISCELLANEQUS GRANTS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES,

AND FUND BALANCES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Agcounts payable
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Vouchers payable

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Special purposes

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Texas Hazardous
State Urban Materials
Library Transportation Transportation
Programs Planning Planning
¥ 1,296 1.110 $ 268,952
9,088 56,537 -
3 10,384 57,647 $ 268,952
b3 - 6,647 $ -
8.000 51,600 -
8.000 57,647 -
2,384 - 268,952
2,384 - 268,952
$ 10,384 57,647 ¥ 268,952

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Pantex

Plant
Environmental
Oversight
$ 1,006

42,794
3 43,800

—_— 2

h 1,800
42,000
43,800
$ 43,800

Public

Assistance

Summer
Lunch

Program

3 212,922
56,546

3 269,468

$ -

237,608
237.608

31,860
31,860
b 269,468

—_— e

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Total

3 485,286
164,965

S 650251

§ 8,447
101,000
237,608

347,085

303,196
303,196

S 650251



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOQUS GRANTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Texas Hazardous
State Urban Materials
Library Transportation Fransportation
Programs Planning Planning
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues $ 271,043 $ 312,421 3 -
Total revenues 271,043 312,421 -
EXPENDITURES
Libraries 268,659 - -
Other public safety and health - - -
Staff services - 312,421 4,800
Total expenditures 268,659 312,421 4 860
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,384 - (4,800)
Net change in fund balances 2,384 - (4.800)
FUND BALANCES, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR - - 273,752
FUND BALANCES, AT END OF YEAR $ 2,384 $ - § 268,952

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Pantex
Plant
Environmental

Oversight

3 119,759
119,759
119,759
119,759

RS -

Public

Assistance

Summer
Lunch

Program

b} 259,619
259,619

240,629

240,629
18,990
18,990
12,870

31,860

$%

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Total

962,842

268,659
360,388
317,221

946,268
16,574
16,574

286,622

303,196

$ 303,



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
COMBINING SFTATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Amarillo Amarilio
Indigent Industrial Heaith Total
Centennial Dog Bite Development Facilities Private-Purpose
Parkway Victim Corporation Corporation Trust Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,466 $ 4,996 $ 23,271 § 2,443 $ 33,176
Accrued interest recetvable - - - 8 8
Investments, at fair values - - - 30,000 30,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,466 $ 4,996 b 23,271 3 32,451 b 63,184
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for private purposcs $ 2,400 $ 4,996 $ 23,271 % 32,451 $ 63,184
TOTAL NET ASSETS % 2,466 $ 4,996 3 23,271 ¥ 32,451 3 63,184

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Amarillo Amarillo
Fndigent Industrial Health Total
Centennial Dog Bite Development Facilities Private-Purpose
Parkway Victim Corporation  Corpoeration Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:

[nvesiment earnings $ 2 5 5 3 2 5 69 $ 78

Total additions 2 5 2 69 78
DEDUCTIONS:

Supplies - - - 140 140
Total deductions - - - 140 140
Change in nef assets 2 5 2 (7H {62)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,464 4,991 23,269 32,522 63.246
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR b 2,466 F  49% § 23271 § 32451 $ 63,184

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS
Assels
Cash and cash equivilents

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other agencies

Total liabilities

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

AGENCY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Balance Balance
Beginning End
of Year Additions Deletions of Year
775,739 3,161,586 $ 3,191,775 745,550
775,739 3,161,586 $ 3,191,775 745,550
$ 775739 3,161,586 $ 3,191,773 745,550
b 775,739 3,161,586 $ 3,191,775 745,550

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following schedules are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of
comprehensive annual financial report. The Tollowing types of information are included:

* A schedule of investments by funds

+  Schedules concerning ad valorem taxes

»  Schedules of outstanding debt issuances

»  Schedules for Waterworks and Sewer System

» Schedule of insurance coverage - all funds

» Non-Major Special Revenue Budgets
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS - BY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Nu-Load

Taxable Municipal Bonds

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Unrestricted:
General Fund
Housing Assistance
Affordable Housing
APD Seized Property
Federal APD Seizures
Greenways PID
Colonies P1D
Compensated Absences
General Obligation Debt
General Construction
Street Improvement
Strect and Drainage
Golf
Solid Waste Disposal Fund
T-Anchor Biving
Civic Center Improvement
Park lmprovement
Library Bush Collection
Flood Mazard
Keep Amaritlo Beautiful

Total Unrestricied
Restricted:
CO Bond Construction 06/07

‘Total Governmental Funds

Mutual Amortized Par Fair
Funds Cost Value Yalues
% 104,149 kS - $ - $ -

2,079
24,308
6,154

435
42,502
316
1,406,490
368,403
1,858,823
690,739
9,932
270,162
2,275,869
251,142
2,178,192
169196
47,595
696,190
2798

10,412,915

3,671.462

14,084,377

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Unrestricted:
Water and Sewer Fund
Airport Fund
Total Unrestricted
Restricted:
Waler and Sewer Fund

Total Enterprise Funds

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Munieipal Garage
Information Services
Risk Management

Employee Insurance

Tolal Internal Service Funds

Totals - All Funds

7,122,541
1,902,106

9,024,647

33,050,537

42,075,184

1,626,780 . . .

690,735 . . ;
4017337 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,001,990
3,159,325 ; . ;
9494177 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,001,990

% 65653738

$ 1000000  F 1000000 %

1,001,990

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Net

U.S. Government and Government-Sponsored Agencies Total Investments
Interest Bearing Obligations Discount Obligations Investments for

Par Fair rar Fair at Fair Add Time Less Cash Financial Total
Values Values Values Values Values Deposits Equivalents Reperting fnvestments

$ 032,750,000 % 32994027  § 3500000 0§ 3497470 % 365396546 % 3,169,196 % (104,149) &  39561,593  § 39661593

; . . . 2079 . (2,079) -
; - - 24,308 . (24,308) .
; . . . 6,154 - (6,154) - -
; . - . 435 - (435) . .
- . - . 42,502 . (42,502) N .
- - - . 816 . (816) - .
7,500,000 7,512,163 . - 8,918,653 1,750,000 (1,406.490) 0,262,163 9.262,163
- - - . 168,403 . (368,403) - .
5,750,000 5.825 885 . . 7,634,708 2,000,000 (1,858,823) 8,825,885 8,825 885
. - . ; 690,739 . (650,739) - .
850,000 852015 - . 861,947 . (9,932) 852,015 852,015
. ; . . 270,102 . (270,102) . .
5,150,000 5,185,705 - - 7461575 2,000,000 (2.275.,869) 7,185,706 7,185,706
- - - . 251,142 . (251,142) ; ;
1,250,000 1251425 - - 3420617 - (2,178,192) 1,251,425 1,251,425
- - - - 169,196 . (169,196) ; -
; ; . . 47,595 - {47.596) . .
. . 250,000 249,345 946,035 750,000 (695,190) 999,845 999845
; ; ) . 9,798 . (9,798) . ;
53,250,000 53,622,121 3,750,000 39471315 67,782,35) 10,666,196 (10.412.915) 68,038,632 68.038,632
- - - - 3,671,462 . (3,671,462) . ;
53,250,000 53,622,121 1,750,000 3,747,315 71,453,813 10,669,196 (14,084.377) 68,038,632 68,038,632
23,250,000 23,400,938 3,250,000 3,247,625 33,771,104 8,500,000 (7.122.541) 35,148,563 35,148,563
6,750,000 6,763 489 - 8,665,993 ; (1,902,106) 6,761,889 6,763,889
30,600,000 30,164,827 3,250,000 3247 625 42,437,099 8,500,000 (9,024,647) 41,912,452 41,912,452
- - . - 33,050,537 ; (33.,050,537) - ;
30,000,000 30,164,827 3,250,000 3247 625 75,487,636 8,500,000 (42,075,184 41,912,452 41912,452
6,611,000 6,723,377 . . 8,350,157 . (1,626,780) 5,723,377 6,723,377
3,000,000 1,043,305 - . 3,734,330 . (690,733) 3,043,595 3,043,595
7,385,000 7,404,367 . . 12,423,694 2,000,000 (4.017.337) 10,406,357 10.406,357
6,250,000 6,255,832 - - 9.415,157 - (2,159,325) 6255832 6,255 832
23246000 23427171 . - 13,923,338 2 000,000 (9.494,177) 26,429,161 26,429,161

$ 106,496,000 07214019 % 7000000 § 6994940 180864787 0§ 21169196 § (656537381 % 136380245 $ 136,380,245

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, FEXAS
AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE BY ROLL YEAR
SEPTEMBER 34, 2012

General Debt

Roll Year Fund Service Total
2012 $ 370,500 $ 35,225 $ 405,725
2011 186,790 19,022 205,812
2010 141,570 14,417 155,987
2009 100,601 10,245 110,846
2008 72,660 1,527 74,193
2007 57,757 1,322 59,079
2006 49,560 1,206 51,166
2005 40,876 1,025 41,901
2004 42,403 1,140 43513
2003 77,275 2011 79,386
2002 36,722 1,219 37,941
2001 34,058 - 34,058
2000 19,677 . 19,677
1999 & Prior 37,018 - 57,018
Total taxes receivable 1,287,873 88,429 1,376,302
Allowance for uncollectible taxes 812,362 77,095 889,457
Nef taxes receivable 475,581 11,334 486,845
Provision for deferred collections 404,544 4 825 409,369
Net taxes available for current expenditure 3 70,967 $ 6,509 $ 77476

Sce Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TAXES AVAILABLE
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TAXES AVAILABLE, BEGINNING, Net 5 87,645
REVENUES
Taxes levied 32,159.248
Adjustments (77,774)
Tax tevy net of adjustments 32,081,474
Decrease in allowance for uncollectibte taxes (159,665)
Increase in provision for deferred collections 171,901
Net revenues 32,093,710
COLLECTIONS (32,103,879)
Net increase {decrease) in taxes available (10,169}
TAXES AVAILABLE, ENDING, Net $ 77,476

TOTAL AD VALOREM TAXES:

Ad valoren taxes - property tax rolls $ 29,216,987
Penalty and interest 271,699
Payment in lieu of property tax 2,873,088
Total General Fund tax revenues 32,361,774

Debt Service 2,846,831
FOTAL TAX REVENUES $ 35,208,605

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT ISSUANCES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Final Inferest Rates on
Issue Date Maturity Date Outstanding Maturitics
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT:
Serviced by Tax Revenues:
General Obligation Bonds, Serigs 2009 09/03/09 08/15/22 2.00 - 3.00%
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of
Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 (9725/07 05/15/27 406 -525%
Recovery Zone Build America Bonds, Series 2010 0471510 08/15/30 5.81%
Serviced by special assessments and other revenue sonrces:
Public improvement Districls:
Combination Tax and Revenues Certificates
of Obligation
Series 2001 Greenways 12/20/01 08/15/16 4.45%
Series 2003 Greenways 11/26/03 08/15/23 3.70%
Series 2006 Colenies 05/24/06 02/15/26 4.75%
Series 20084 Greenways 07/17/08 02/15/28 4.28%
Scries 200813 Colonies 07/17/08 02/15/28 4.08%
Golf Course Supi)m‘lcd:
Series 2011A 02/03/11 0275537 3.50-5.25%
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 Supported:
Series 20118 02/03/11 (02/15/32 3.50- 6.00%
Total debt services by property taxes,
including special assessment aid other revenue sources
REVENUE OBLIGATION DEBT:
Serviced by Water and Sewer Revenues:
Waterworks and Sewer Revenue, 2003 12420403 04/01/12 3.38%
Waterworks and Sewer Revenue, 2005 09/07/05 04/01/19 4.00 - 500%
Waterworks and Sewer Revenue, 2006 12/28/06 04/01/32 4.00-450%
Waterworks and Sewer Revenue, 2006A O1/18/07 04/01/27 4.25-4375%
Waterworks and Sewer Revenue, 2011 08/30/11 04/01/3] 2.00-4.125%
General Obligation Bonds, Serics 2011 08/30/11 04/01/23 2.00-3.125%
Combination Tax and Revenues Certificales
of Obligation
Watcrworks and Sewer Tax and Revenue, 2009 04/01/09 05/15/28 0148 - 3.018%
Walerworks and Sewer Tax and Revenue 20098 12729409 05/13/29 0.021 - 2.587%
Waterworks and Scwer Tax and Revenue 2609C 02/02/10 (3715731 (.00%

Tatal bonds serviced by Water and Sewer revenues

Alirport Tax and Revenue, 2009A (9/03/09 02/15/20 3.00-5.00%
Serviced by Airport Revenue

Total bonds payable”

* Does nol inclade the City's proportionale share of (he Canadian River Water Authority indebtedness.
#+ Tolal interest of $74,949 less 45% offset subsidy from the Usited States Treasury.

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Bond Issaances 2012-13 Maturities

Authoerized Issued Retired Outstanding Principal Interest ‘Fotal
b 4,825,000 % 4825000 § 695,000 5 4,130,000 $ 345000 § 158,438 3 503,438
24,575,000 24,575,000 2,955,000 21,620,000 1,020,000 1,084,013 2,104,013
1,392,000 1,392,000 102,000 1,290,000 59,000 41,221 ** 100,221
600,000 606,000 400,000 200,000 45,000 8,900 53,900
620,000 620,000 215,000 405,000 30,000 14,985 44,985
585,000 585,000 129,790 455210 24,860 21,086 45,946
600,000 600,000 80,000 520,000 25,000 21,721 46,721
1,500,000 1,500,000 205,000 1,295,000 60,000 51,612 111,612
3,750,0C0 3,750,000 85,000 3,665,000 85,000 166,313 251,313
2,210,000 2,210,000 706,000 2,140,000 70,000 103,300 173,300
40,657,000 40,657,000 4,936,790 35,720,210 1,763,860 1,671,589 3,435,449
9,180,000 9,180,000 9,180,000 - - - -
13,650,000 13,650,000 5,030,000 8,620,000 1,670,000 420,300 1,490,300
0,120,000 9,120,000 - 9,120,000 305,000 383,087 688,087
9,370,000 9,370,000 - 9,370,000 - 401,531 401,531
16,300,000 16,300,000 845,000 15,455,000 G0Y,000 524,638 £.124,638
5,605,000 5,605,000 85,000 5,520,000 450,000 133,575 583,573
38,885,000 38,885,000 4,010,000 34,875,000 2,003,000 624,317 2,629,317
47,400,000 47,400,000 3,910,000 43,490,000 1,955,000 744,726 2,699,726
18,075,000 17,015,000 BR0,000 16,135,000 905,000 - 903,000
167,585,000 106,525,000 3,940,000 142,585,000 7,290,000 3,232,174 10,522,174
16,140,069 16,140,000 3,675,000 12,463,000 1,330,000 542,675 1,872,675
$ 224382000 % 223322000 § 32,551,790 $ 190,770,210 $ 102383860 § 5446438 15,830,298

See Independent Auditor's Report.

193



CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

General Obigation Bonds and Tax

Revenues Certificates of Obligations Tax and Revenues Certificates of Obligation
(Serviced by Tax Revenues) {Serviced by Special Assessmealts)
Treasury
Principal Interest Subsidy Total Principal Interest Total

2012-2013 S 1424000  § 1317399 % (33727) 0§ 2707672 5 33980 % 38197 § 27977
20132014 1,485,000 1,256,071 {32,184) 2,708 887 356,067 374,479 130,546
20142015 1,541,000 1,193 609 (30,616) 2,704 293 362,331 360,483 122814
2052016 1,607,000 1,127,966 (29,021) 2,705,945 383,659 346,150 729,809
2016-2017 1,684,000 1,051,014 (27,400} 2,707,614 340,051 330,979 671,030
2017-2018 1,750,000 078,445 {25,726) 2,702,719 356,509 317,717 674,226
2018-2019 1,832,000 897,769 {24,027) 2,705,742 368,037 304,001 672,038
2019-2020 1,919,000 808,914 (22,275) 2,705,639 379,643 289,748 669,391
20202024 2,005,000 715,742 (201,472) 2,700,270 401,325 274,596 675,921
2021-2022 2,102,000 617,065 (18,641) 2,700,424 418,088 258,250 676,338
2022-2023 1,703,000 512,367 (16,759) 2,198,608 434,936 240,868 675,804
2023-2024 1,790,000 422,551 (14,850) 2,197,701 401,875 222,601 624,476
20242025 1,882,000 128,155 (12,590 2,197,265 423 909 203,858 627,767
2025-2020 1,978,000 228,920 {10,876) 2,196,044 413,920 183,419 597,339
2026-2027 2,081,000 124,638 (8.837) 2,196,801 420,000 163,387 583,387
2027.2028 83.000 14,932 (6,720) 01,212 445 000 142,138 587,138
2028-2029 86,000 10,109 (4,550) 91,559 305,000 122,875 427,873
2029-2030 88,000 5112 (2,3001) 90,811 320,000 105,800 425,800
2030-2031 - - - - 340,000 87,750 427,750
2031-2032 - - - - 360,000 68,362 428,363
2032-2033 - - - - 200,000 53,025 233,025
2033-2034 - - - - 210,000 42,203 232,263
2034-2033 - - - - 220,000 30,975 250,975
2035-2036 - - - - 235,000 19,030 254,030
2036-2037 - - - - 245,000 6,432 251,432

Totals b 27,040,000 $ 11611078 $ (341,872 $ 38306200 $ 8080210 $ 4937104 $ 13,617.314

Note: Does nol include the City's proportionate share of the Canadian River Water Authority indebtedness,

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds Adrport Bonds

{Debt Serviced by Water and Sewer Revenues) (Debt Serviced by Airport Revenaes)
Principal Interest Tatal Principal Interest Total

b 7,290,000 ¥ 3,232,174 % 10,522,174 $ 1,330,000 3 542,675 $ 1,872,675
7,360,000 3155412 10,515412 1,380,000 495,125 1,875,125
7,460,000 3,061,747 10,521,747 1,440,000 433,650 1,873,650
7.570,000 2,952,984 10,522 984 1,510,000 362,025 1,872,025
7,680,000 2,830,322 1,510,322 1,580,000 290,775 1,870,775
7,830,000 2,694,380 10,524,380 1,655,000 213,900 1,870,900
7,985,000 2,537 991 10,522,991 1,740,000 131,025 1,871,025
8,195,000 2,361,763 10,556,763 1,830,000 43,762 1,873,762
8,370,000 2,189,084 10,559,084 - - -
8,580,000 1,996,620 10,576,620 - - -
8,785,000 1,787,131 10,572,131 - - -
§,720,000 1,357,775 10,272,715 - - -
8,950,000 1,329,863 10,279,863 - - -
9,200,000 1,086,119 10,286,119 - - -
9,465,000 827,892 10,292,892 B - -
8,330,000 557.420 8,887,420 - - -
5,930,000 332,090 6,262,096 B - -
2,450,000 176,262 2,626,262 - - -
1,780,000 105,262 1,885,262 - - -
655,000 29,476 684,476 - - .
142,585,000 $  34.801,773 $ 177,386,773 § 12,465,000 $ 2,514,937 $ 14,979,957

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM -
BOND PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2612
Principal Bonds Remaining Percent of
Fiscal Year Repayment Unpaid at Principal
Ending 09/30 Schedule End of Year Retired
2013 § 7,290,000 b 135,295,000 5.11%
2014 7,360,000 127,935,000 10.27%
2015 7,460,000 120,475,000 15.51%
2010 7,570,000 112,905,000 20.82%
2017 7,680,000 105,225,000 26.20%
2018 7,830,000 97,395,000 31.69%
2019 7,985,000 39,410,000 37.29%
2020 8,195,600 81,215,000 43.04%
2021 8,370,000 72,845,000 48.91%
2022 8,580,000 64,265,000 54.93%
2023 8,785,000 55,480,000 61.09%
2024 8,720,000 46,760,000 67.21%
2025 $,950,000 37,810,000 3.48%
2026 9,200,000 28,610,000 79.93%
2027 9,465,000 19,145,000 86.57%
2028 8,330,000 10,815,000 02.42%
2029 5,930,000 4,885,000 96.57%
2030 2,450,000 2,435,000 98.29%
2031 1,780,000 655,000 99.54%
2032 655,000 - 100.00%
3 142,585,000

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services
Supplies
Contractual & Other Services
Total expenses
NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES) ¥
NET AVAILABLE FOR
DEBT SERVICE
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
Principal
Inlerest
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

Coverage

(1) Excludes depreciation

(2) Includes CRMWA interest expense, but excludes bend interest expense

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
OPERATING STATEMENTS

Fiscal Years Ended September 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 1006
$ 69,656,085  $69.118868  $54601904  §$50251220  $48492400 § 42,708,719 § 41487297
11,394,284 11,204,778 11,812,936 11,688,167 10,509,419 10,267,666 9,930,200
1,303,399 1,340,547 1,223,082 1,265,460 1,252,065 1,230,636 1,151,333
21419337 21,593,837 21,300,695 21,487,366 22,039,131 20.148.372 20,793 207
34,117,020 34,139,162 34,436,713 34,440,993 33,800,615 31,646,674 11,874.749
{3,665.377) 4,695,784 {2,272.491) (1,789,663) (1,207,585 (304,399 238,573
$31.873.688  $39.676400  § 17.802.700  $ 14,022,564  § 13484200 % 10760646 § 6,851,121

$ 7,290,000 % 7210000 $ 5350000 § 1,290,000 § 1245000 $ 2770000  $ 2,850,000
3,232,174 2,998,168 2,884,844 2,017,904 1,765,242 1,626,605 1,626,919

$10,522,174  §10208168  $ 8234844  § 3307904 $ 3010242 $ 4395605 $ 4476919
3.03x 3.80x 2.17% 4.24x 4.48x 2.45x 2.20%

[nvested in Capital Assets, nel of related debt

Restricted for Revenue Bond Debt Retirement

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

NET ASSETS

(As of SLPTEMBER 39, 2012)

See Iadependent Auditor's Report.
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Waterworks and sewer
system in service

Reserve for depreciation

Net plant in serviee

Plus construction in progress

MNet plant in service and
coming on line

Plus restricled assels and
other noncurrent asscts

Plus working capital

Total assets

Other noncurrent liabilities
Plus liabilities payable {rom
restricted assets

Total ebligations

City's equity in system

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
CITY'S EQUITY I[N SYSTEM

Fiscal Years Ended September 30

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2086

$ 658,740,846

$ 596,302,019

$507,674,625

$491,036,495

$471,959 370

$455446.116

$434 428,709

(176,837,047) (163.814038)  (153617.168)  (143,615988)  (134,149,886)  (124.874,763) (116,181 884}
481,903,799 432,487,981 354,057,457 347,420,507 337,809,484 330,571,353 318,246,825
16,349 481 16,228 356 10,597,915 11,655,875 21.367.938 17.046,285 20,249 931
518.253,280 448.716.337 384,655,372 359,076,382 359,177,422 347,617,638 338,496,756
13,394 487 65,230,180 87,258,165 44 080,326 4,655,463 5253485 5,498,508
44,945,182 37,846,956 28518711 29,781,899 29,575,921 40,661,784 43 36,597
506,562,949 551,793,473 500,432,248 432 938 607 393,408,806 393 532,907 387,356,861
232,759,820 208225418 190,492,089 139,031,888 102,971,513 107,268,456 102,488,387
7,290,000 7,210,000 5,350,000 1,335,000 1,290,000 1,245,000 2,770,000
240,049,820 215435418 195,842 089 140,366,888 104,261,513 108,513,456 105,258,387
§ 356,543,129 % 336358055  $304,500.159  $292571,719  $289.147203  $285019451  $282,098.474

See [ndependent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEMS
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
WATER AND SEWER FUND OPERATIONS

Fiscal Years Ended Sceptember 30

OPERATING REVENUES 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Water sales £ 46,807,157 § 4732227 $ 35062958 % 32260187 0§ 31,678,129 % 27911290 & 27224086
Sewer charges 16,377,899 18,555,334 16,295,031 15,132 268 13,493,693 12,202,722 11,714,386
Industrial surcharges 226,620 187,398 114,904 70,470 95,630 113,610 94,372
Farfeited discounts - water 1.171,110 1,114,010 923,777 842,068 800,837 677411 744,025
Sale of reclaimed water 670,041 767,589 772,639 761.885 839,581 697,706 73253
Water service charges 1,176,520 1,109 047 883,873 847.347 84R 657 855,963 509,102
Waler tap [ces 130,810 129,425 136,410 133,100 190,450 154,027 231,962
Sewer tap fees 71,993 30210 59,387 50,509 76,825 74193 110,643
Water frontage charges 14,855 7,123 15,920 17,214 30,240 4,592 24,094
Sewer frontage charges 25,074 9,723 13,345 3.750 27,354 7,348 27,634
Net loss on bad debts {302,057 (552,113} (258,377 (284,457 (254,360) {243,740) (131,599
lLah fees 175,921 157,710 118,412 86,264 78,110 70,907 88,446
Miscellaneous 310,142 261,140 464,625 332615 587,254 182,690 139,893

Tolal operaling revenucs 69,656,085 69,118,868 54,601,904 50,253 220 48,492 400 42708719 41487297

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and fringe benelils 11,394,284 11,204,778 11912936 11,688,167 10,509419 10,267,664 9,930,209
Supplies 1,303,399 1,340,547 1,223,082 1,265,460 1,252,065 1,230,636 1,151,333
Fuel and power 4,476,328 4,896,302 4,013,217 4,535 483 6,553,099 5,281,354 6,551,303
Surface water 4,682,183 4,772,154 3,949,399 4,000,658 4,314,844 4,432,158 4,724 879
Other contractual charges 4,216,512 4,271,613 6,046,353 4,803,561 4,577,276 4,029,217 3,542,077
Other charges 8,044.314 7,653,768 7,291,726 8,147,664 6,591912 6,405,643 5,974,948
Depreciation 13,110,658 10,492,183 13,097,129 9,505,120 9.348.296 8,718,244 8289913
Less: interfund reimbursements (577.802) (509,369) (487,504) (412,222) (449.141) (408,145) (402 .845)

Tolal operating expenses 40,649,876 44,121,976 44 046,318 43,533,791 42,699,770 39,956,773 39,761,817
Operating income 23,006,209 24,996,892 10,555,566 6,719429 5,792,630 2,751,946 1,725,480

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

Operating grant 4,587,476 4,206,347 6,657,116 353,948 1,106,357 1,828.471 386,018
Interest earnings 170,434 191,138 398,055 R81,453 1,590,376 2,804,084 2,398,869
Disposition of property (161,536) 6,974,932 14,646 20,351 30,888 25548 22,438
Inicrest expense & fiscal charges {7,030,181) {4,600,102) (5,568,544) {4,459,891} (4,303.033) (4,298,916) (3,507,300}
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (2,433.807) 6772315 1,501273 {3,204 130 (1,575412) 359,187 (699,975)
Total income betore
transfers 20,572,402 31769207 12,056,439 3,515,290 4217218 3,1EE133 1,025,505
TRANSFERS FROM (TO)
OTHER FUNDS (387,328) {1.311) {38,400) (90.864) (89,376} (190,156) 92 337
NET INCOME $ 20185074 $ 31,767,896 B 12018439 % 3424426 % 4127842 % 2920977 % 1,117842

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments - at fair market value

Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):

Accounts
Accrued interest
Cther accrued revenue
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
NONCURRENT ASSETS

Feestricted cash

Restricted investments at fair value

Other noncurrent receivable
Capital assets
Land, easements and
water rights
Accumnulated depletion
water rights
Supply contract

Accumulated amortization

Pipelines and other improvements

Accumulated depreciation

Equipment

Aceumulated depreciation

Construction in progress
Total capital assets, net

‘Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
WATER AND SEWER FUND NET ASSETS

Fiscal Years Ended September 34

2012 2011 20140 2009 2008 2007 2006
13,337,634 § 12,941,154 2815848  § 1735136 % 8528047 % 8500435 0§ 4854600
35,148,563 30,501,543 28,323,250 36,579,772 23,442,437 38,441,471 49,013,124

5,602,192 4,647,840 4,400,223 3,560,005 3,716,402 4,052,683 2,636,748
60,022 74,346 250,099 166,365 150,298 291,451 363,305
3,788,401 3,888,645 1,079,289 2,820,006 2,581,211 2,628,454 1,715,287
963,535 24,496 99,534 93 060 21,535 22,836 8,800
58,900,347 52,078,033 33,068,243 44,963,524 38,439,930 53,937,330 58,591,954
33,050,537 54,870,188 59,213,925 44,080,326 4,655,463 5,253,485 5,498,508
. - 28,044,240 - . . .
343,950 350,092 - - . - .
59,023,252 41,513,892 38,622,957 38,459,728 37,961,382 37,934,912 37,523,862
(4,107,495) (3,390,564) (2,582,654) (2,393,228) (1,903,803} (1414701 (920,648)
50,336,389 50,326,389 50,336,389 50,336,389 50,336,389 50,336,389 50,336,388
{19,053,650) (18,287,542} (17.523,528) {16,759,513) (15,995,450 (15,229,295 (14,465,232)
545,610,923 500,590,181 414,863,547 308,448,386 379,991,136 363,671,746 343,247,188
(150,524,679) (139,607 092) (130,173,118) {121,455,798) (113,326,071} {105,355 484) {98,019,324)
3,770,282 3,861,557 3,851,732 3,791,992 3,670,463 3,503,069 3,321,271
{3.,151,223) (3,128,840) (3,037,868) {3,007,449) (2,924,562) (2,875,283) {2,776,680)
36,349,481 16,228 356 30,597,915 11,655,875 21,367,938 17,046,285 20,249,031
518,253,280 448 716,337 384,655,372 350,076,382 359,177,422 347,617,638 338,456,756
551,647,767 513,946,517 471,913,537 403,156,708 363,832,855 352,871,123 343,995 264
610,548,114  § 566,024,550 SI0,881,780 § 448120232 5 402272815 § 406808453  §  402,587.218

See Independent Auditor's Report,
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LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Securities lending collateral
Deposits
Consumer security deposits
Compensated absences, current
Propartionate share of Water
Authority indebtedness - current
instatiments
Due to other {unds
Revenue bonds - current malturities

Total current Habilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Revenue bonds - less current
maturities and unamortized
issuance costs

Proportionate share ol Water
Authority indebledness - less
current instaliments

Other accrued expenses

Provision for acerued sick and
annual leave

Net pension obligation

Tatal noncurrent liabilities

Total habilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capilal assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestrieted
Tolal fund equity/retained
CAMINgs

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
WATER AND SEWER FUND NET ASSETS, CONTINUED

Fiscal Years Ended September 30

2012 2011 20140 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 1753994 % 2528424 % 1238357 % 1133500 % 1291941 § 1827014 & 1595947
1,630,633 3.473,670 705,089 305,704 639,793 246,083 606,560
2,339,336 1,193,893 1,063,363 1,341,568 1,079,137 573476 1,280,810
- 230,595 . 6,375,189 - 5.028,928 6,221,516
32,740 31,662 31,348 30,512 37,67} 31,774 32,994
3,144,653 3,047,063 2,948 420 2 866,114 2,814,605 2,623,664 2,451,521
187,561 168,340 148 137 134,195 - - -
4,866,248 3,557,430 3,414,608 2,994 841 2,980,862 2,844,607 2,531,314
- . - - . - 509,605
7,290,000 7,210,000 5,350,000 1,335,000 1,260,000 1,245,000 2,770,000
21,245,165 21,441,077 15,799,532 16,516,625 10,154,000 14,520,546 18,000,357
133,829,081 139,432,250 118,201 627 73,360,035 35,820,349 37,012,208 29,139,783
93,936,161 €3,736,522 67,501,999 62,686,378 65,799,502 68,901,455 71,916,110
3,109,196 3,150,000 2,718,836 1,316,942 - - .
1,249,273 1,275,330 1,305,751 1,340,334 1,351,662 1,334,793 1,432,404
635,209 631,316 763,876 328,199 . - -
232,759,820 208,225,418 190,492,089 139,031 888 102,971,513 107,268,456 102,458,387
254,004 985 229 666,495 206,291 621 155,548,513 113,125,522 121,789,002 120,488,744
306,052,107 294,303,599 272,063 445 258,921,318 253,286,700 237,614,368 232,139,549
5,329,320 5,444 724 31,857 2,524,136 3,365,462 4,008,485 2,728,508
43,161,702 36,707,732 312,494 857 31,126,265 32,495,121 43,396,598 47230417

356,543,129

336,358,055

304,590,159

292,571,719

289,147,293

285019451

282,098,474

$ 610,548,114

$ 566,024,550

§ 510,881,780

$ 448,120,232

$ 402,272,815

$ 406,808,453

g

402,587.218

See Independent Auditor's Repot.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE--ALL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Self-
Insured
Property Covered Type of Coverage Retention Limits of Liability

General Fund Departments:

Buildings & Contents Fire and extended coverage $250,000 $367.786.967
Water and Sewer Utility:

Buildings & Contents Fire and extended coverage $250,000 $147,164,700
Alrport:

Buildings & Contents Fire and extended coverage $250,000 $184.,405,780
Amarilfo Hopital District

Buildings & Contents Fire and extended coverage $250.000 $736,694
Polvgraph Examiners Bond $5,000
Police Officer's Liability Insurance Police Liability Coverage $100,000 $ 16,000,000/16,000,000
City Commission, City Manager,

City Attorney, and Selected

Division Directors & 24 hour accident protection

Department Heads for business travel $ 250,000/1,250,000
Boiler and Machinery Explosion and damage $10.000 £50,000,000

(Included with 1ire and

extended coverage policy)
Worker's Compensation
All City Employees Injury to City Workers $1.,000,000 Statutory
Individual Stop Loss
Health Plan Participants Health Insurance $750,000 $4,250,000
SURETY BONDS OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
BONDS REQUIRED BY CITY CHARTER:

Amount of
Official Title Surety Bond

W. Jarrett Atkinson City Manager $5,000

Curtis D. Bainum City Auditor $5,000
OTHER

Excess of $5,000 and all other prinipal city officials and employees are covered

under the City of Amarillo Self-Insurance Pian $1.000.000/3.000,000

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detatled information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Firancial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City's financial information and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the City's ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to
help the reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services
the City provides and the activities it performs.

Waterworks and Sewer System Information
These schedules contain information about how the City's Waterworks and
Sewer System financial information relates to services and activities provided.

Page

212217

218-224

225-229

230-231

232-236

237-240

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement No, 34 in 2002; schedules

presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

R



<iT

poday sJoupny juspuadepu] 20g

£81°011°00¢ 988°L81°T0C £EO°C8R'66T 80T'990°T67 LLG'TOILET 1LE'8P0'$0E SEFOPSHLOC I€8°68L°LOE §  396'0S6L1E § SETHOFFIE
SLETEOEST SECTIL'06T 146 086'TLE SFLIILSLT $6L°6647T8T TSEI81°0ST LBT695 78T 809 1LL°6LE T9L1SL°06T 185°TLE°$6T
- - FET0S 10408 FoL'LE SLOTLLYIT o'z 994°660 11 TIT9sE’S LLYLIOT
16£°€TL] 61989t §ST'R0OLL T8T6F8 ObP'HTL €CC'P8L £99°759 509°098 TLLIF90°L 189°6L0°1
FLEFST 0L 660'68L°6 6LIGFI'ST 8LE°L8S°ET L09F0L'SE T8F08TTT SEELE0'OL  §  T8RSLLPL § 0TEOFEEL
91T 6L5°CEH 66610199 11E'LET'TLO LSLOTE'TE 091°F90°8 1L 9FL'TE9 L 016076 1L 6LIGSR'SPL § 986'TLO99L S LBCFCT'OLL
LEE1E1°0ST 990" FL9° 591 L107666'85 T £87°981°T51 8C8LLLLEY 696 F1L°eEl SOL CFE' T CETELSTI FOTTE6'98 6860TL 1L
- - - : - - - - - POFTISE
- - - - C6LOLFFT 69L°985LY - - - -
LOTFRTT TO6'CO6 FE9CO0'T £1TL80°C 001°¢5E's 620°1T6'C 9LEFED'S F16°TIE ] 00" LTLL 019'99F L
TLETOUHOE LCTIGE st OLEOLI I 1O0'LEYLES 6089t 156 6LEBEF GRS 629'TI6 TG 0CO'0LEFES & TOL066'1L9 § FTCFST 969
ST 08E6TE FOELETLES STOGITOFE 1T858 IFE PRTFSE OFC Y5 TOTOPE 958 CON'ESE CLETISE'89F §  PECTEESO0F S SRYLOLSIF
906'€80" L iezeces COITFL'EL FEO°LE9'8S LPSE9TLS CEOTTLTY SFOI81°6E 9LESOTCT 089°6LE 1L 209'169°9¢
£9T°620°C 06191 FTOCOL 30€°9TLT o8r'800°F el £10°¢89°C €OC9¢F T69°0T0'9 08L°T0L'S
SLO'EYTCS 160°11£°T8T 66T 11£4°69T 6L1°06% 08T TSTTRY'S8T LELSLT00E $85'6E1°01E FILG0T'STE §  TRETL0E9E § £EETCOR°¢LE
$96'861 1T $66' 1987608 €81 S IITTEL 9CF FBO1SE QLGOI TLE £05'66E'86E YSE'L16'88E 90ZF0008E §  TEY'BEI99C § 70L'980°19¢
1LO'9F09L CCLBEES FIGTETO8 6F8'8FSCH LLIEFLCT08 9E4°T66'06 LSYTOL'CE BLTLIL69 FI9SLE'SS LBEBLTCE
- - - - - - - - - POFTIRE
- - - - C6L'0LEPT 69L'GRE LT - - - -
000°55T 60C°06¢ 000'00€ S0L'3T¢ C15°FrE 995°55% £OC 1LE'T LIO'SLES 80L°90L'1 098°€GL
POR LGS LPT OFT081°TFT 1LTCOF CFT 789'90T25T LS FLLEIT TECRST6RT PEO'ERLILOE 91091608 §  OI€L66'80C § [66'068°0T¢
({174 FOOT T 900 LT 8607 §007 10T 1167 107
{paupreun)

1-V 3Hqiyxy

(Bununosoe Jo siseq [eniose)
SUVAA TVOSIA NHL XSVT ININOJINOD A4 SLASSV LAN
SYXAL ‘OTIHIVIAY 40 ALID

SJOSST 39U SOIIAROT SIIUN Jusu0duwios 1810,

(NBL7aR) parysauny
sasodund 130y
2214198 193(]
I0) PAN2ENSAY
1P pateral Jo 19U siasse eudes ul paisaau]
s31u) Juduoduro))

S13551 12U ewuIsA0l Auwind (o]

{3101]3p) PaoLnsalu
sasedind yaupQ
Azpno jenden
201AI128 1627
10] PeIdAISaY
1G3P PIIB|AL JO JOU ‘SIOSSE [BUMED U1 Palsaau]
FAWBIIA0E) AICEL]

SIRSSE 10U $3111A 1108 ad-s5ouIsng jmo ],

{aa1jop) paoLsoIn
sasodind 10
Aenno ppndeny
201AI8S 1G3(]
10] pA2LISY
1aP pAIYial JO 1ou ‘spesse penden vy pasaau]
S3NARY 3ddl-ssauisng

S1955E 10U SIIHATIOE [BIUBWUIAA0E 810
(1121J2P) PAIQELSIUL
sasodind aaig
AgjIno jeide])
D1ALISE R
10} PRIoLASAY
1Gap PABRI JO 1ou ‘s1asse [ended ui pa1saau]
SIIALIDY [BIUIUILIFAON)



eie

‘woday sdonpny juspusdapuy 294

065°65L°08 CREBEE'8E SITHELFS 6E0°6TL'99 LFO18T'ES £887T9CT9 S LET'89 89T TS0 OTHFLR'SS SHFFLSSL
CETCLE'S G6ELFICT 09°TITE SRLOFOFL CIL6ISE FiF 1889 LTSLTT'S 907'86C'L LEPPE'E F6S189°C1
FSOTISEN CEO'GIO7LY 0L9°Coc 0l SE1SPELI CrIEFLSE OFO'FEERT 90¢°¢E1'0L 05t 6EH 1T ZFE858 AL 90L CTL BT
SLTLER SCLDDY Ter'ec LOL7 1T CLTE9T ol SE9 P11 ZHER81 $LO96E 85t CH
156'L6¢ 0CL'lEe SO 16E 6E0°€1T F26'10T S0E°161 9L1°681 CLUE0T €99 p1T 6r87CIT
1282101 CTLFLS'TE 15T'6EE ) 019°589°F1 SLEFLLGT 826701191 €987 1RL 9L 089°9CT'LI CLLFETRL 6P FFISI
CLTEHCE EFrOE FLERIEE FOL606F 18C°68L'Y 016 0LEY 63E°BHTC 80LRE0'S ££9°68T°¢ I CIs’s
366'CoF 990°FSY £8FCse 69F°LEE CTE LY 9TLTLY X% 8944 665819 SI0°8TL 988'r08
ISy 900°069'+ SIC08LYF 619°0T1°¢ TEOCITE L567998°S (2R AN TIEFOLL 66T TSEL LOFEOSL
1£6085"L §  6ITI6L S 1L0'8T0°8 §  BLE'BETH § IFERSS® g SIS $ 0SEPSE0L § 9LUSELOL 0§ SELGSTOL $ 880'cC00l
9L GIOIT  §  FRIOCI0E S BLEESKFST § IOCTOLLE § TSKFSOPBT § 808'BISTT  § SEL0DGLSE  § GELIO0NIE § TOO9IRRT  § 99L7990°CL
- - - . - - - - - 00¢'1 $8606
- - - - 066°0T 1TF 01 8T8 FIFTE 315'%0T LTS DLTT
€In'es &t5°T o0r'| 16CF 7561 99F'T 00¥'11 £65°1 9181 -
SLO'CRT SO9°TEIT £ELe8T'T 9T8L60T OF6'SLET CLEOPE'T 9rI*108°T 12T°E9ET PESCHET 018°T0L'e
SEOFIF L 26£°C8C°L CLETEL Il GETESH'ET F15'TE9°S1 FLEEOFS 95£'688 'L 155'¢0L'g1 8EC°6E6°01 LET160°0T
QCO'RTTET S LGFSIZOl S CLOSRFIL § SEEORLTIL § 0S0'RAEDl § SEFI06DI § S0E08Y0I § 06F9s6's  § SRSEECs § LhL0Ics
068STFLS] S 89T6LCLOl §  9COFSIILI §  910'61FS8l §  CPODOF'SSL $  LIBEOEEIT §  SBITLEZPET S SGOIGFRET § C9SSEDTFT § bIF'S8LULST
LGSO IE LE6E66LTE 867 CISCr §TECELIE 186°LFSIE 104995709 0€0°TIL'8S 009F0T 19 §68°7SE°10 SC1I9ZL89
128°0E€°g 8ST'80TL GFOT169°% P60 CT6'L 7699108 688°CISS 8RC°C65°8 SoF'C08'] 668°6LF'8 Th6'88S
- - - - - - - - - 8350
[S5'8TLFE 6E1T165°6C GrITIR LS FEFTIR'E 63T 1ES°ER TISEL8'1S Iro'sLL'0s SEIIOFTE 666'TLETS 9T9'06T°85
BIR99C0E 1L67GESFTI 8LLDRYETI SREFER9ECT 190°T169¢1L 9Tl'L667C91 CSI°68LoLY CEFORT'LLI $90°TOL 18T 86T L0681
- - GTETEL TELoLE CONOrE cig'oce €1E68E'T $19°2851 S L9L°L1T'T
6L8°F81°01 oS 16t 01 886°C66'6 BEET66'6 SP9LLE 0L FE0FOTOT £66'896'11 92911911 S16°29911 66L6LLLL
7867981 98¢'65L°1 8126681 0657556 SFYLIOT 629'08T'T 0I8'86L°T T16'985°C 808°697'¢ §56°2L68°T
4SL°TTLE 08CF9S'E =laalad TEE69T'F 10T 450"y SIOQTE T SITRFE'Y 616167 9e8 TOLF AT TANN
FR5°09¢°8 FEFGEFR SrE'pce’s 1811501 65T'LOIG S0T'848TIL GEEZ00°EL €E6096°TL LOFTITE 8LOFELEL
OLE989°FL £T09LEal T9reNLE LETLEC'ST 60571881 +66'CLYTT PEETIGET S8 L6TFT TOE08LTE CER'LOB'CT
$88°91¢°C1 866'T08°C1 §T65LL9t ROGTIL'LY 86506T LI PFI'E95°0T §SHBT00T re681°0T $OTLSEOT $01'089°1T
P CCE0s 00C'g1Ees A TS HSY FTCRPRLE TLELEL'TD PIS'LSLEL THOLE9'9L CTOFEY'08 QLL'EE1'T8 TRTCFO'LE
SSOSOFIL S LLSORSLL S FSEUISTI S 1E8SIETI $ 696TCYEl §  SSPO86'S] §  LSL°800°RI 8 9EETECS'® § 89C'R9CLL § TLODET®I

£00T FOOT £007 9007 2007 2007 600T 030t 1197 T10T

aBay [Basi
(payrpneun)

7V HqIyXT

(Sununoaoe Jo sIseq [ERIOOR)

SYVAX TVISTA NAL LSV ‘SLASSV LAN NI STONVHD
SYXAL ‘OTINEVIAY 40 ALLD

$ANUIAZL WRIFOU S211AN0R [EILSWNISAOR 210

SUOBRQILIIUO? pur suelf peude)

SUOLNGLIUO? puE suedd Sunelado
Suisnoyuawdoraiapar ueqin
usuBIL
298EM DIHOS
LOITEAINL PUB IR
FulasmEus pug SRl 's1anllg
Yieay pue 412185 21qnd
UONEHSIUIWIPE PUB JUSWUIaA0T |RI1auary

1S0IAISS 10} S9FIBYY) puUE SS3UL] 'S33]

ISIEILALIDE [BIUDNINIAAOL)
SINUIADY Werdelg

sasuadxa samanoe syun Juavodwos jejo)

uonRIOd107) JUSUILAA0L) [BI07] OjjLIRWY
3 UOZ TUULSIAUIY TUSWIIU] XBL
uonelodio]) soUBUL{ BUISNOH offLIBWY
IDUSIT SIDAT JSN0J-0]| LIy
uoneiodio)) uswdoaaa NWOU0ag ojlLIBUY
1ILI51(T [IASOH OfjlIetY

spun Jjuduodwo’)

sosuadxe Judwuinaod Liswsad je1ef

sosuadxd sanialoe adAl-ssauisng (B0 |

nodity

Anpn a8ewmrig]

IIMDG PUB IDIE A
saNIANI AdA1-ssousnyg

$93UadND SIAIIOER [RIUDWUISAOE [e10 ]

1qap uuol-§uo] uo Jse1au|

Supsnoyauswdopaspst ueqiny

judopAsp drwouoos

HsuRig

3158a ﬂ__Om.

io,_.nwnﬁuuh ﬂﬁm Dpwzm:U

fFulrapuIfua pue dijjel ‘sloong

B2y pue 12128 Mjqng

UOHENSITHUDE DHE JUBUILIZA0T [RI2U0
ISDTHATIRE (B EEIIAOLY

sasuadx



TIGTIE'S
69 ricE
S0Z'58E
SLLEBICE
OFFT0%

FITEEFIT S

CRETLOL0!
THFO0F'S
IToanty
F6L°0LE°CE
LEESIY
GEEFFIET §

LT1860°1 L
SLLbES'E
618°9TF
LFIQ98°LE
9eC'iEg
NI AT A v Y

156°598°11
LETHITE
SOETLE
LE0'S00F
zi6'9Ts
TLFO6IFT 8

FOSFF8'TL
OF99Tsy
£65°0z¢
TLEFLLLE
¥8L'6ZE
CIOTLLST S

yIT

-podey sloupny juepuadapu] 2ag

FFOFFEOL

6P LY
FECOLS
SFE090° Y
60€°TES
F10'1908C §

9zE"IC Tl
0SE'CEey
$68'635

8T IFICH
TEE90LT
cI9'69¢’6z S

S06°TOESL
L3RG6E T

6TL SRS
SERILI'Th
TLOLEL'T
£E58EY0E §

STOTIE'ST
898°T8LY
SLOT09
LT9EE0'Gr
L91°0SL'T
10g'665°0¢ §

305700191
181°200°%
SLE'EES
FO9'9ST 8y
1€8°9¢8°C

110°887°¢E 8

[ETGET TS

lere’ceoz) g

{ore'gzeee) ¢

{sc0'esze) §

oo 1+svT) 8

(T3FLT9'31) 8

(coc'sgg’oe) s

(£80°89°LE) §

(09'9L8° 17} §

{(Faczeet) 8

SAR I
(L69'+8T°1)
(168'96L°¢)
(c6$'pE6'LL) §

S60°T

98+ ZE1°E
($86°968"¢)
(ereopo'e) ¢

98E°L
(eeL'e8t'e
(065°168°6)
(606'0500L)  §

{165'y)
(928°260°7)
(665" 1£2°07)
(ece'szooL) §

(066'02)

1L
(9r6'cLe'T)
(889°066'C1)
(L9LFS6'8) 8

(zror

(069

(TL8 s
(180°2LL'9)
(814868 S

{(gzs's)

9£¢°1T
{ov L 105°T}
(Er1'6rr6l)
(y80716278) &

(Fiyve)

6LE'TT
(177°59€°T)
(eLe008'sH)
{(zso'e0s's) 8

(00" 1)
T86°LT0T
(gs1°1)
HOTHE T
(FTEC61TL)
(1L5°¢906)  §

(cg6'06)
{Lzs'oL't)
geg
(819"¢e0'c)
(FSSTOLTE)

(geTeoT's)  §

(Tee'tri'os) s

(s18%0Te'g9) §

(s¥E'ire'69) %

(00'2rr'89) $

(1L0'050°TL) S

(psegog'enl) §

(6¥E'gTerTOI} §

(6z<°20¥°16) 8

[TV TS

{egt'cre'se)  §

968'+9FC
(898°909°¢o) ¢

1LSFLRG
(og€'109'¢L) s

8LT €351
(€Te'9Ts1L) §

(resicorl)
(60F'FE6'99)

Fr6085"|
€1o'1e9'ce) ¢

(11E'7L8D)
(6stres'onl) §

16£'51¢"
(orL'er6'Lol) %

868°95C° 51
(Lzz'eoL’ont) §

OLE1087%T
(stsgzgell) s

TES'FORLL
(S18LFSElT) §

ORFOSFT  § STFTOST S SRS § OpTOFFY §  TZ8WROF § LRLIOEF $ $68°0I1S $  099°LIF'E $  LerereL $  9RGTEIR 3
- - - TTLGEE - 998°01 181°6 18€'9 LEB'GT £99°8T
LILTET TETFO0"! 998°bL 11 60L°65E1 8TEIE | 158°165°1 or0'0ze 't LSO FE LELTGET I8'8LT
- - - - 066'0T {ZF ol 8T5'8 FIPFE G0STETT -
0888 FRLY 9868 - Tz SLL1 9E6'T¢E TE9+T $8¢ gee
BLE 0zl - - - - - - 0zt 1Lk
LeLLINT CIF'88Y] grense’l 0ELIELE TR IPOE £E8°989°C cIZort's 921506 SIHCPL'Y LPGLLLL
8€L°08 $  ul6F ¢ 86TIT §  S$80°61T $ - $ - § - § - g - g - g
BI6°C8T'L6 §  £CETlORe $ IGLTSTIOL 8 EIO'IL6'011 §  TLEGOFOIT §  LLTSSRGIT §  FEEFOPTEl S 99L°CR0°LPI S 88FBTLTIST S ISTSRDIO! S
§96'¢ISOF $06°CLY 6 SLEBGOLE FLETFTOC CTERTIEC 06ET6Y LS ITH LITF9 86+ 195 9L 99C°+68°C8 28/°065°08
691°LL8T FECTILE'E ST I0L"E 6£1°005°C £8¢'976°C 205'CRFT SIEVEr'D Teb'cos'e! FOS0IT'S $E'363°L
LTEEROS Tor0Ls's 9L0'CLS’S €69°1¢8°¢ 896809 GFETLO0'g 99F°LTIL 859°99¢°L LIBCIRL 9908658
TLF198'RC TLFTEOTF S10P9T'8E Irioes’ly o891 1 IFS'LF6'8T TFE'69%'0¢ 207'630°6% LETRT9'69 L88'ECT 0L

£00Z £00Z $00T 2007 2007 8067 600Z 0102 119z T10T

B3 Y [BISI]
(paupaeu(])

panunuo) ‘T-v NqQiYxy

GAINLLINOD ‘SHVEA TVISIA NAL LSV ‘SLASSY LAN NI SAONVHD

(Bunumoosoe Jo siseq [BRIe)

SYXAL ‘OTIRVINV A0 ALID

saNEL $saUisNg 51d10201 §5040)
saxz} Aouednado Aoy
SANT1 25RIBABQ PAXIIA
SONE] SajEg
S2VIAIIS 1GOP 10J PAAD] Sax®r AUadold
sesodind resauad 1of patas) ‘saxe Auadolg
ISITHANOE [BIUSULINAOD)
s398SY 19N i safuryD 1) pus
SINUIAFY [RL2UD0)

asuaixa 3ou $1un jusuodwod w30y,

UOTRIOAI0T) TUSWTIBA0D (8207 OflIBuy
BLOF TUAWISIAUIDY WALZ0U] X ],
uonelodion) aoueuty Susnoy ofjlenry
IS IC] SHRAT 1110 J-04[ LI Y
woneiodio)) Jwewdopang 210u00y ofjLIBWY
s [eudsol ofjuBmY

snun uauedwory

asuadxa yau JuaweL2A08 Atwead [B10]

sai}ialoe od.Q-ssausng
STLIALDE [BUOUIISADD
onuoady (asuadxy) Jan:

InudAdL spun Juauodmod (v10],

SUOUNQIIUOD pue spueld pide))
suonngues pue sield Suneiado
uoneIodIo)) JUBLILIAA0DN (2207 ORI
|# SUOZ JEHNSIAUIY U] XB]
uonriodio?) asueul SuIsnoL] o[BIy
TRHNSICT S1URAT IINOJ-O][LBUIY
uetieIotio]) Wado[eAa(] J1CUeDT] o]jLeLY
1010813 1eudsoH ofjuewy

sy Juduadures)

SIMUIAIL JUIWELIIA0G Lrpunid [e10)
sanuaasl werford samanoe adG-ssauisng feio]

SUOHTIGLIU0D PR sluws reuden
SEORRYIILOD pue st Sunmadn
unodiry
Apun efeureig
IBMBG PUB IDIEM

SINEANDE 2dA)-SSIMISRY



-podayf stoipny juapuadapuj 29g

Sic

99F°909°C S E0LLL0T S (FSTTOST) S (PIFSISTL)  § 69L°960°C S FAECESOl §  (0T4E6S) g 98l'sg IR IR §  leTeer
OLSOLIEY S E80°0FEL S TIGLITHL  §  9rSE0L0T  $ G0TTTIST  § 986L6S9T 5 (9STIRLT) S 69T°CE69 S OL08I8LL § £90RDT1I
CCOLROL CSULLLL TTL 190" COTLEYL 69L°960°C (19169} CI0'1FLY Al 18€°189°1¢€ PEETEOLL
CLO'8BU'S {0L679¢5] 061°9¢1°8 [SE'990°61 OFP' 200 LT9'68T' LT (6vT' T8t 6) (8r0°Cl68) (FLSH98°C 1) (89T°0<t'9)
T8L'9S1TT T LILs) T6£°970°0T 1€9°2F0°CT 68E°3EH 6T QLYTIS ST 6E9°F60°0E 692°610'8T THE'LEL'ST CLECER'GT
SELPRES TEL6EEG SISETLS SHE'5L8'6 Tig'ner'cl §90°FTCTI FOLPOEEL €OR'FIS T OFItLL L FE1'698°L
TFE'60S 10T°89¢°t 0080491 £97°308"1 110'250'C S81°0L0'T 65756 [8Z°600°C COTBSLT EPSET'T
TEEHOG T €9T06LEL 8FO0L9°TI OFCCHEE] 8E6FTHE 182°989'F1 CRLCIFEL GLTLSHP] TS PHESL RS I)
€19t 90T°¢1 1£L°11 606°¢1 20801 PP CEP'PLE 9rg'LEE 160097 SEL68S
TFERICTL 263799194 L61'651°18 6rS 15168 FLYSLE LG 9ES'001 0L CI1'169°66 865 THE86 788°¢r1'60L 9PE LEE 901
BE0CTY 1 I8FTO6 FEFGLE 6PE 0L GLOLISE 0L9°T8IT TT9CTT! 6IF 16t TEE'6LTL {TocoLl)
{eg'08) (zog'zoe) losT'yl 65968 {9s1°061) (9i¢'68) (+98°06) {6rt6¢) (12589 {8TC'28¢)
(Lei'ed L90°91 (€or'i6) CLO'PT 67CCE $88°0C 65T 9F9t L IE6'FL6'S -
699'659° L1L°881°T LEITLE LEF9T0C 978°199°¢ 351°14T T LTTTHTL TTT'9EC 058°€LT LT0°LIT
£817C69°0L 9P FOTEL C14° 28964 00L70T0°58 £55°959°CH 998°CTH LTL 166°59%°36 6417168726 126'€96° 101 LESLEELOL
£8+°0¢ TOL'T0E - (689'68) 951°061 STEETE'LT ¥98°06 SHLI9T I96'F5r §TELYE
FE9F09 oL L0g {Lovel) SEEICl {re9's) 01LF6T LEE°8%1 18C08Y {6r8'TLT) -
8C190LT D090 TIL'ERLT OLS'TLO'S LOTLOL'L 2E1'900'9 LEF'R9CE 650'88TL ol HEtSEL
£00T HHT S007 9007 LOOT 2007 G007 DE0zT 1107 TEOZ
EBaX 18351,
{paupnsury}

panupuo) ‘Z-¥ HqIyXy

(Bununosoe Jo siseq |Bnidde)
AANNLINOD 'SHVIA TVISL NHL LSV 'SLASSY LAN NI SHONVHD
SVXAL'OTIHVINY 40 ALID

spioday [BRULUL] [ERuUY dalsuayaniui0]) (920G

spun puauodwod Teyo,
JuNOUIA0E Arswiad Jep0]

sa1aoe adAl-ssaulstg
SAANIN [RIUIUIDAON
5188V N Ul aSuey))

SOINANDE S)En JEarod o ju10 L

Auadord jo uopisodsip

pue asn woly (osuadys} dwooug

STURIIED JUIUISSAUL PAOLISSIUTY

SONE] S$UISTHY 5113031 §S0U0)

saxe] SRS

S2IIATIS 1P 10) PAIAS] “saxel Aladolg

sasodand e1ousd 10] pa1ad] ‘saxe) Auadoiyd
$11un) wwauoduo)y

juaureiaaod Lienned [eyo
salALdE u&.ﬁ-mmm:mm:a 0]

BT
Apodoid jo uowmsedsip
pur 2511 w0y (asuadxay swoouf
SHUIUIED UBLNSIAL PHIOLISaIN[Y
santanoe addl-ssauisng

STALOE TEIUAUIIZAOS (910 |

=iy
Auadoid 3o uotusodsp
pue 350 uol) {asuadxa) swoou]
SHUIULED JUILISAALU PAIDLAEIINS
(PanuIILO2) SANTANIE [EIUIUILLIDADT)



91¢c

uoday stonpny juspusdapuj 229

‘spodsy [roueul] [BRULY alsuayaidwior 5,010 241 wol PUIBIG UOHELIGIU] (32IA0E

863 TH O S CLROFILE § 0TS SLE L SOLRTE IS § 168 E0LP8 § CLTILYLL § SIEEVIIE TTOSFE'LE §  98R7L9LFC S 090B06ES §

- - - - - - - - 1847 1LT°8E FRL63REE

- - - - - - - - 19L°6LL°T1 CLE00E L

. ) " - - - - - 8L9FTR'T FOF'TISE

COF'LL9°C

- - - - - - - - FLE G 9e1'gLE

- - - - - - - - otL's 6089

- - - - - - - - FECEE9 CLL'TSO

- - 19601k 891 1T w1 LLL099'FL £2L7058' %1 09T €80°S I 98E°TTE Y1 - -

TLeCET G90°TELT 6L9°€6LT OvTL81C FTTTELE 8CI°LE0 9b6'089°Z PLE9EOT - -

8CR°OFOCC CEYESOIE 0e8'c61°0¢ £81°%TLEE ELE'ETLCY FOSLEV'LS 96€°55E°8Y LBL8FE6E - -

FO6°EF £TSElL 99¢'T 5T 12871 L91°01 657°101 180°01T - -

rg6Ice’sl § 8r9'6E8¢l S BLELTIHL TOFSCTT 8 960'CLLt % Pl % FEELIOY S PEFOIOT S - § - $

5160CCE § 26F896LE § FL6FESLE FHOELIRE § 6FOFLILE § 188°161°LE § 659°TLELE § FIS009 1K §  FELZOBEF &  SOSFOTOF &

696°L86CE 008°€0SLE LFEOILE PGFOFS L LOFFOCLE CLLELYOL TLVEOTLE FE6 10E 1F TOUL9LTF 00 FFC Y

- - - - - - - - (A 650°S6T

- - - - - - - - S06718 £L96°0L

- - - - - - - - SFCF08TI LEL9PETL

- - - - - . - - rLe il

0S8 1CE g 869F9F & LIS T 051EEE S THOE9E S g0I81s  § L8160 S 089'86¢  § - § - 3
£00T F00T S00T 9002 L00T 800T 6007 010z TE0T 7107

(payipneumn)

£-V nquyxy

{Sunjunodoe Jo SISEq [RILII0R PaljIpour)

SUVAA TVISI NAL LSV'1 ‘SANNA TVINTAWNITIAOD ‘SEONVIVE ANNA
SYXAL ‘OTIIVIAV 40 ALID

SPUNJ [RIIBWIEIIA0S 2110 [jT BIB L,

s10sloxd penden
107 paudissy
$30U9sqe paesuadiue)
10} PANIWWOD)
sasodind meiaodg
s0afoxd rendey
puRny 3314135 192(]
10} Paldtnsay
SINE] PILIB| [0
swall predaid
Bjgepuadyauon
paIeuBISSpUn)
puny 533U2sqQE pajesuadiio)
SpUT} anu9Ad: [B12edg
saford [endeny
puny 2014135 192
‘uf papedal ‘pasiasalun
pasiasay
Spuny [EJUSIIUIA0L) 1310 IV

pung jesduas jeye ]

POUSISSBUR PIAIRSAIU(]
$20URIQIINILUY
1G] PR
Saxe] paloe|jonn)
A0uaan]
swial piedaly
spgepuadysuon
PoaAISSIY
punj [eaauar)



L1E

Hoday sJoupny juepusdapuy 29g

%0LE0 %1250 206850 9%ETS0 2%E25'0 %6310 25066'1 %E86'1 %190°C %I1ZLE
(0OF0G8E01)  §  FSOLEET LT $  SI9TIDC S 1eTEETEE logeriis) & Toiczolol) (ficTissy § ET0Eiw $  59970TT B
(Tr190L7F) (20272040 (S16920°F) (§+Z560°¢ CEOLOSTE 611001 (izecn) 860°850°1 [ RINAN foreele)
- 000009 - 000704 000°SLE P CIFFI0T - 000°29¢1 000096S -
- - - - I - 000°SZ8F - - -
- - - - - - (000'sFL) (0os'2L) -
- - - - - - (006089 - -
- (en0Tal) - - - - - - - -
(s6t'arL'81) (929°788°L1) (6zL'orest) {€ge'g01's 1) (I84°$L0ET) (10'8g6°L1) (ozT'iot's) (g8t s L) (0L0'SLE01) (sgF'cec’ol)
LEuEro Tt TL6°05L9! FITFIC LT SO1'E8K LI PEOGEGEE 0RLFLF'O1 66T 8FF6 185 FLTL TTF95C01 SPT0TI0L
(8T FLES) 194°090°¢ 6LRLEDF £98°990°8 996°689'L (8L6°61L°8) (635768001} {igoLso) (£9879+T9) C06'EEr
129028921 0LSEHEBIL 19T°+81°6T1 S08SOLCH] STUEFTLFI FSUEREBIL SBIETESLL 10670147621 069756651 999°LC5BLE
£94°0807 0985°61EN SELTT06 9SL 8T G80°90¢1 FITESL STR6LE L TSULstT 69€7168°T cHOCe
0609t SEOTLTE 6LETEE TET9EE £90°0k< £18797¢ TIE6$ET STOZEST $06°799'1 FTO0SL
000'cFE 000°08C 00006 61$° 108 SOL'8TE S19PFE 995°65¢ [ PR 119'90F' 804790471
1TFEs0°eE £80°96€" SELTBEEE E63L01T SHE6ELR] 61T66F 1€ 6L6°068°9T TLOIBET 0EH 0581 £0858E°0T
TEBTORL 08§°6EL71 RIT'65ER 065755671 SFO'LIOT 629'08T°T 01886147 T16'986'C 898'69C°S RSELIE'T
£8¢'zTIool 961°CHF 01 £S8°C06'6 0LO 666 168°CLt 01 916'600701 S8TT6I SFLF69TL 96L'8L8 11 0SETPE1L
BEOILETT 950°C86°C 568 S0T'E £59°CTHE 009°L89°C 90I'LESE 061°190°F LOTTOLE LTE'908°C BIELEEC
CHOPGLL TE99T6 L LOLTPE'S 75879656 SLE'LOE0I £89'188°01 £6L°96T°11 08€°046°0L 165°7E5°01 LLTE90 T
9EOESLTT PIPOGEC] FLETEL L 6657116751 178°61¢°91 10$'9TF LY FBE'L09°LI 896°69L°L1 FIO'FSL81 160106
F6OELLE CI8EIET9 BIESLE'TO 1LR°S6T'8Y 168707 1L 1PO'788LL 96166918 L80°597°E8 050'F+8 98 £66°105°68
FI809t'6 162°+L96 FIG'LYEOL TOLELE T E S65°6TETI L1HLOET SHRTSTSI LEO'STEFL OI8'CL8FI FETB60°G1
LEET06 T OFEZITEE] 1L9°TLLIEL T8OBEE FS] 949699091 96L°EEEEO1 065 0F T LOE CERRTLLGT 128716681
1567288 990°CoT 1F87086 6l676FL BELPEI FEF 6L L01°9Ts [P £98° 1LY
989°6£T 899°+IT 26168 60F 6T 1960 0017498 1$6'858 0LI'6E8 90¢'T8E
DSEEISE 35E€°80E'T $16'950°F £8L°T06°S OFLLY T BIL599'T 109°200°T 96Z°068 089'995
FIFTOST 08F916°C SPL'86EY 1857661 EFEFOLS TFS'Pe9'e $TO°SET9 STTO¥E'S 18€°091°%
968 11E1T G6BECH6'ET PLYGEE'ST BELTTHLT LOLFPIS'LE TE9TLY'ST $95°5T0°0E TTHU6TIE FLFS86°IE
FEELTY 128°S6L GEB'S6S [XAsRaa] 8069 0L9°08L 12L7958 STFY6 SHLE08
F66'T6T SLETSTS'E CLCOPS 1T FPSEEL'S 9$5018°¢ THO'TFEO LLE°018°T SBETIOL) £C0'E8YF
0065 rL0'Q 0005 0000 00€°L 000°1€ 000°9 868 1701
£9FI90°91 £OF'6IELL £19'¢54°21 9£9'058°61 LEO'EERLT 66Z°189°81 961°€69°0T 266°96£°ST T08°615°0 THE'6LLFE
8085 1FT 891°86LT LECULFET 050'1£7°1 1+6'0LT S6E°0ZE" I1FE'ELE'] TELBLEL CCO°LESTI S06°¥8E |
OFTSGE] LF0'95T'1 $1€°0847% 6679161 9E8°LTL SEL'SI0T £0£'85L"1 66K 09T ¥9SFSTT SBIEIET
QEUSBTLY  § CETCSFTL S SI9LIE9L S L658I0TIS 8 TETRSL'ss 019296 & 859°0LSTS 000°TL9S6 $ LOPPBET00T S CESTTOISOI S
€002 FOOT <607 9007 L00Z 8007 6007 018z 1167 7107
(paupneUun)

POV quxy

(Zununoaoe Jo S1SBQ [BIODE POLIPOW )}
SHVIA TVISLA NEL LSV 'SANNA TVINZANTAAOD ‘SHONYIVE AN Nf SHONVHD
SANTA TY INTANTIAOD
SYXAL ‘OTIRIVIAY 40 ALID

saagrpuadxs prndeauou
30 23Emyu0aaad ¥ sk 3314328 JgaQ

S2QUB[R( puny oI 35uvyd 13

{s25n) 5001005 TUIUTUY IS0 RI0L

Q2P UU-FUO] JU SOUBNSST WOL] SPAADOILY
QO TUPBNIBI JO AOURNSS]
1503 22UBNSSL §53] (WInliad puog
JUaBE MOI053 PUCH PAPUNYAT O} JUALINE Y
SIIBUNSDAL YO (ssof) wed pazieauny
SPUT IDYI0 03 SIRISuL )
SPUNJ JOLPO WO SIDYSULL ]
:($2811) sanuanog Sunueul] 190
samupuadxa
(48pun) 1040 SINUAAAT JO $8IONT
soanpprEadNg o |
Autd oae9] XS
PUL UONEIBA HOURUTLLG |
SOTIBYD {2351 PUL 18D
st jediourg
FOLLIS 102(]
Aepno jeideny

WSLINO §,
Suisnol) plie uawdo[aAepal ueg
L2588 rsuea L

JSEM PO

UOIIEDIDST PUR SNy

ieat] pur Gages ongng
UOTIELSIULtpE
pUR JUSUNLIZALS [RIsUSD
saempuadx;y
SOMUSASI P10,
SNOPUL[[IDSETY
SUDISSIUILIOS PUR 5{Riusl 197)30)
sfunues uaunssaug
SUNIDLIG] pUR SoU1Y
SEBLASE 03 SoRaBYD)
suonediomed Auua o
uonedonrd vonsnnsuo)y
SUOHRLINGD USZNT)
Pre-Ul-SHILD
$3NUSAAT PIUSLULAOTIDIN]
SBNUAADT PUNISIUG
siiad pue asuzory
saNE),
SINUIAIY



g1¢

‘woday sJonpny Juaptadepu] sag

9~y nquixg 295} sanjea xez Auadord vl yismo:d epueisqns Jo asnessq 2qels Arey satel xey {uadord si doay o1 ajqe sem 1D oyl .,

130N
2%7°9¢ %16 %6°0¢ %S 8¢ % SF VIN %%k 1€ Z10T-£00T
ub:NJU
€ee 101601 $05°001°91 181°700°¢ cregee ¥99°9¢T 8y 1£8°948°C FLLIOETE 710%
LOFFR6°001 $THTI6°SI 898°78LF €L0'T09 LTYELOOY LOTOCLT TPO'C06°0¢E 1107
BO0TLY'CH CO6'T0ECl LB866CY 6TL7CRE 98 1LY TY TLOLELT 1LEFLFOC 010z
8€9°0€S '+ 9TSRIETI 08T TET ¥68°68¢ 8TTIFTEY ZSE0LT R0V TFF6T 6007
BIOTLLOTEE FrOPET9I 6VFIEEY FECOLS EPE0I0 Y 60E7CES 1£1°6£0°8T 800T
TET'CLCR FOSHHETI 0r9'9zE £59°0¢¢ TLSPLL 1Y ¥8L'6TS 6LV T9LST L00T
LEE'SI0' 18 [€6°598° 11 LETHIRE SOETLY LEO'9E0 0T 716'9T¢ CCr'eEnEye 9007
S19°L16°9L LTIR60°1 SLI'PES'E 618°9TF LEIT098°LE 78¢'929 €9L1LECT £00T
CTTEST L €8€°L01°01 [A A 010°T 1Y 16£°0LE°¢E LET'SED 39 o) e +00T
DE9'86TLY  § TI6Tere  § 6PO'FiCe § £0Z°c8e ) SLLEBIEE  § 9P T09 $ CPO'sLE1T % £00Z
$ANE | |¥10 | SaNE| saxg] saxey. $IXE] $9)ES 2014198 puny Tawagy wasiy
ELE HEY P+ LHurdnazg agerarag 193(1 [[AELIETS]
spdoay [210H paxI LSaxe} Guadoag
§50.11)

{paupneun)
(Sunutodoe JO SISeq [BNINOR paljipour)
SAVAX TYDISIA NAL LSVT ‘SANNA TYINTNNATAOD “ADUN0S A SAINTATI XVL
SYXAL ‘OTHAVIAV A0 ALLD

$-V 1GIHXH



61C

-woday soupny epuadopu] 999

anyBa J[qEXR JO 001§ Jad are saver xe ], -Auedoad axeiss [eal 10y 05001 pue Auadold [pucsiad ssouisng Jof anfEa [BRIOE JO 04001
Aperewrxoldde e Auadold ssasse sanunos an ], AENLUUR PISSISSEAI ST AUN0D) [[BpUy PUB Ajuno)) moned ur Auedolg

sy esieuddy [jepuey-onog  :adaneg

600780 6TE9PE LST01 0L8'C8L8ERT 661°TELITIT] LGSV 6LET LTY9CTLELOI z1oe
6001670 TELTLOLSE0'01 [91°L86F6S'T £68° 7690691 1 661 P8TISE°1 FE 01 66T 01 1107
600170 695187 166°6 F1ETOL'696°] £89°7S0°T9¢'11 0647911 Co0° L8G9 LFT 0 010z
6001£°0 FP6LEEDOL'G TLETES LESTI 916'LZ6°LFT 11 FEOPSR66E°T TOTCLOBER'6 6007
1LEBTO SIEH88°0F16 P P TE9 95668 ELLOT €6T99F9¢E ] £O0GEETLERS 200¢
1LERT0 099°[9€°655°8 O1E69LTHE L OLL'OST'TOR'G CLFSC0PRT L L6T'TO0RICS L00Z
TILETD £O1'6LE CFSL 087 118°SECY £3€°068°8L1°6 Cr6°30S°0FT’ 1 OFtF 18E8E6°L Q06T
906870 6TELTYTTCL FRECCCOLTY CITE8IT1088 096°$L8°T9T°1 LFELOTRESL 06T
LEPETO LTOFLOCLO L 00 SFOTTT Y LTF 6009678 1E1E8R°690°( 067°G1T9TT L +00T
COL6T0 CETIOCPSL9 § 0657178+ § CTLTTEBS6L  § 969°6LL360°1 § LTOEPS008'0 €007
ey XE anje A IYEXEB], Aaadoag AN[BA PISSISSY [BUOSIdJ NEIST |BIY aeay

12248 uaEuzm_n.ﬁwh‘ je10]. ssauisng kLI |

el ], 18897

(psyrpueun)

9-V MQIYX

SUVAA TYISLL NIL ISVT ALYAJOHS ATIVXVL A0 AATVA TVNLOY GILVINLLSE ANV H1'TVA GASSISSY

SYXAYL ‘OTTINVINY 40 ALID



‘poday stoupny wapiadapuy ssg

0T¢

SIINVIS Hlim

3DUBPIOIIE W 0401 0F 24¢ JO Arpeuad e snyd 15100 wnuue 13d 2481 019471 01 1930gNs a1 saxe; Juanbutpa] T AlENIq,] uanbuijap JWodag PUB | 18GOI0() aNp A8 SINE] SHIBPUNOq T34 UM Saus
112 10] $a11q15uadSar MONO]I0D PALINSSE SINURCT) [EPUBY PUE 1710 USYM ‘9661 ‘| AIN[ [1IUN SAXE] MO S17 PIdA[0d Of LBy JO AN oL 19181 [esteddy [mpuey-1ono ay £q possasse alk soxe]

sasodind syiomazes Jof {ue pasn aq Aew g¢ § Sururewal ay; sasodind [R1aUsE 10] PAIA] 3Q ABW 0L [§ UIHM JO 09° 1§ §1 J815BYD A1) £q papraoid 21g: xe) woulINew 2yt

096710 68CLYT QELLED 08£E9°0 000¢€°L 000671 BEGR10 000LT'% 00T 0 6LLTOD 0T 0 oz
THR9T' 1 TETBI' 0689¢°0 116650 0009¢°1 000671 966810 000L1°1 6001E0 0CLT00 6LT8C0 HIOT
056+T 1 811 90970 LT96E 0 00LIC] 0006Z°1 CIF8I0 000LT'1 6001€°0 0LLTCO 6£C8T0 010z
00£81°L 180611 790980 FLOGED 00ETEI 0006T°1 SOLRID 000L1°8 GOO1ED 998700 EFI8T0 6007
CELBTL 1eréi'l LE6FE D FL96E0 00ETET 000671 £F091°0 00TLLI [LE8T0 F8E00°0 L8LLTO 800¢T
SHOLE'L 995681 9L D £L66570 086F9°1 860¢°1 &H091°0 00LLT' I [LEBT0 SE90C'0 QELLT D L00T
o191 09L9°1 BICHFE0 F0L09°0 086LL"1 [F169°1 SHO91°0 00LT9'l TILBTO LLOOG0 SEORTO 900¢
0T80F'1 0E1Le] EF9EC0 F0L09°0 0€TLS ] 6165L 1 €r091°0 00819°1 9068¢°0 L0L00°0 6618T0 S00T
00Tee'| 8eIse| 1TLEE°0 £0865°0 0ETLS L L1691 TF651°0 C006¢°1 LEFET0 152000 9898T 0 F00T
001SH1 OFTEE| 8IFEE0 [A:TASY 0ceLet 096091 129810 0006¢°1 £956C°0 9820070 LLEBTO €T
PLUSE] 3I13181(] funo)y Luno)) PISI] 11881 FRIRICI e | 07 Vusiq ary WMWIALG 3By JMSEg deax

[BUTRIN jooyag Hepuey 131104 10028 10028 s3I0 UOLEINPE g 1821 [easty

juapuadapuy  uapuldapug juapuadapuy apuadapuy ofjliBUY uno’) pue [E10 uonE3Ngo
pugjysng NiBd PEOY 12AN nofue)) FILLSI( [0OYIS [BIIUAD)
pueiySIH yuapuadapuy
OffLERIY
sarey surddejiaQ SAIRY 12201 A1)
{paupneun)

L=V nqiyxy

(ongea passasse Jo 001§ +od 21v1)

SAVAA TVOSH NAL LSVT ‘SALVY XV.IL ALIAdOAd ONIAIVTIIAO ANV LOFYIA

SYXAL ‘OTTIHUVIY 40 ALID



8-V HqQuixy

0007001

%BE0F'9 TOLSI9' I
949¢T 0 ol 196 HIE L
%EFE0 8 8L1°681°€T
%ELE ¢ 65T°L96°1€
%E98'0 £ 8FYOSHRC
YLST0 6 FSI 18561

L TE1L66'6T
%19t 0 G LEO'BST LE
%L 1L I §61°6L9°CT1
H%TIOL T 168°LLE°89
%3090 v SHF960° I $

AN A Huey INTEA IGRNE]
squxe ], Q1)
1¥10 1 JO Ju3adiad
€007

OOV SUVIA b

uodsy sI0Upny 1uspusdapul 995

rd

-191doo1[ap {1og 01 AUadold $8583] puk suMo uoleI0dIo)) WoWdo[aAR(] MWCUOST OfjLIBUWY .

9000001

6TEORGLS

%606F 6

060°LOL T696

wINsi [esteiddy [epuey 1ancd ¥3IR0§

S1a4BdNE] [[B JO 20BA |QENE] {10

ssakpdxe] L0 O B0EA BIQEXE] [ElO]

20158°¢ HETHETEOC s1adedxe: 159518] UD] JO DR{BA D|QEXE) [BI0L
- - 7 SISIPUBYSIA]Y UOSIBPLY
- - "HUT SUDHEIIUNUILO) X0}
- - O[[HEWY J2POIYDY
- - Auedwioy) suoydaa] j|og WANSIMIAN0S
%ITE0 ol $88°9r5'TE 07 sedzaugydio) souny
%0FE 0 6 TrG'Re8re 41 Hodman aseD
%09¢0 2 FEYLESGE qUEE [BUONEN Of|HBWEY
%L8E0 L CTITL9SAC Luoneiodio) 1uswdeRasg Juouody ofjHey
Y8LF O 9 SLYTLH6Y Huel J u=g
218570 < aFRTEC 9L peoljley 3, BIUES UIRyIoN uoiSuijung
%tC80 ¥ 6SUTOFS'E9 OT1 B olRuy
Yt6L 0 £ 6TCLEE 1R 2D(AIDG D1[qNd UINISIMUINOG
%ZT8°0 4 9687L5E 18 SIBOUIBE SENIL ISIMULION
%¥E80 | RERTPSCR QU] $31015 LB {BAL
anjey quey AN[E A IABXE] Aadedxe ]

sgexe)] Q1D

610 30 YHIIId]

10T

(paupreun)

ANV ¥VIAX INTHIND ‘SHAAVAXVL ALYIJ0US TV IIIONIUS

SYXAL ‘OTIMVINY 10 ALLD



[r&4

oday s i0upny wopuadapuj 305

SOOLJO) XB] SIUR0D) [[EPURY PUE 10N 5304108

69°86 £R1°8EL°1€ - 6986 £81°8¢L°1€ FTHS1TE 10T
£+'66 0EF0LY 0 LEL'TH1 78'86 €69°LLT O 8L8°6£9°0¢ 110z
7866 L6 10T°0¢ F6Z°88C LE86 COTC16'6T OLL60F0E 010z
1€66 197°8LE°6T TTeoce 0£'86 656°120°6T £ELETS6T 6007
LE66 TLOTTRET 6S6°70€ 6£°86 CIL1S'6T C09°€E6°6T 800Z
£9°66 0Or88THET 7L€°65T 6¥'86 BOF 6SE'ET [0F91L°ET L00T
£C66 LILFIFTT PEO'ELE 186 £Z79°101°CE 116%61¢°CT 900
FL'86 TOE9LY (T 866'0T1 31'86 FOECCE LT 069°0EL°1E 00T
00001 LEL'9TSOT L00'86% £5°86 LSYHTS0T LEL'9T80T FO0Z
LT 66 186°128°61 & 098°L€€  § 8¢°L6 T 0£5°896°61  § £00T
.h.,wwd .*O unomy’ SIBI X .ﬂ>@1~ ,*c JUNGUIY ELEDY ,om LonEowﬂow

vmﬁ_:uu._u& unms_uumn:m 11} uwmw—.ouhmm tedsiq papuy
Aeq Q] m:c_wua:ou _Nwoh.. mﬂo_wov:oU h>@1m 3] JOo dga X _NUm_wm A3 10} ABD L

Y] UIYyjim —uoﬁuu:ovu PalAdT] XB Y {B3s1

(papneun}
SUVAA TVISIA NAL LSVT ‘SNOLLDATIOD ANV SATATT XV.L ALHAd0dd
SVXAL ‘OTIMVIAV A0 ALID

6V QXY



tec

noday spoupny uspusdapuj 29g

ds{ sojeqisifucneoolE/sn Xy a1ms edoedaanoysdiny  sexo | jo ;ipIg 1301108

Tes K JEPURT T1G7 SU) 10J S[QEIIBAR 10U S| UDNEULCHE S3]T5 {(BI9Y 910N,

%% %L %l T %T %L %7 %L
CECTEIT & IOFFRIC § SERTEAEE $ 0LREOFT § I0L'C6F'T § 10929 § 1S6°9HF'E §  6SFSISE §  STLHST § 0 -
papodas 105 pauedar N pauodar 10N panodai 10N papodal 1oN pauodal 10N payzodal 10N payodai 10N pauodal 10N
ﬁmﬁcamh 10N ﬁotcamh MOZ ﬁmﬁoavm 0N Uvﬁoamt 10N Uuﬁonu._ 108 uuton_u._ TON ﬂuﬁcao._ JON ﬁutoamh TON nu.to&o._ JON
816°99 o9 LES'TL LEGFL 11T°4L oL 18 696°8L oF6'08 05’98
LIFTTST 079197 18T 1SF66T TET'ELE OreTes Tro'6zE 006'6E€ LLE09E
TELOT oul'ze ¢TETL 188°1C £SFET OFg¥T L81ET 6E6TT TLECT
[a=rale 6F8°t 6TTE STO'F 1LL'F 08¢y T06'T 29¢'L 9L87T
60F°¢ QULE clI8'c 90 FST 08¢y 98 995°¢ £ree
987°¢¢ FO0'8E Sor'lE 6LE'EY oS £86°5tH £C8'Cy sy C8Ser

- gCLL St 69°E 68TE 606°C 91T F90°1 1
$89°CT g88'8L 6TELT 681°6C BLY°CE FLETE FETSE I1CFE 9¢E3¢
0£s 0T 065°1E P6STT 6L9°9T 8LO°LT 00862 95797 80T°6T §TELE
FGE'9 9r1'g L9T°L P66 10Z°11 I LTFOL AN SorEL
£00'81 1 859°8L LEG'ES i 658759 67189 SRO L £8T'FL 978°T8
org’l 016T 19t 90TT 0EF T 200°¢ £98°T 0£0°E 601°¢
Log6lt ! 861°LET) 988°¢8L’| 9L0°1£€71 SITZIFL FLEIOF'L 6L6'T6E L FOOOTF 1 LET'LLE ]
Co1'rs FLOOTI 09¢°8¢1 9eTEST £8TtHL 0L0'ESL g1¢'8zi [+8°5¥! 8TCI91
1EF'sL LEL°€D GOLFL 86134 £85°0L 2T96L 0sTiL (3 2sy] 6£5°0L
R18°09 5+9'99 FLO'LO LLO'LL 916'8L SLL'GL 8LE(CY 0999 798°¢8
IT98r! 09F 8F 1 69579¢1 T 1Lt IPF'891 £66'661 §L8'L81 FEO'0C] 009811
TTel FO6'T FoT Y €18 33 FLO' £5F'L 8788 €668
6651 L e 3 6lgT 0 1Ll R i PO AN § L6l §  LITH $  pEel 3 -
€007 F00T <00T 9002 LOOT L8007 6007 0102 1102 =T10T
IB3 4 AEDUIEDY
(panpaeun)

01-v¥ nqiyxy

{(S000° 1§ un)

SHVIA AVANATVD NEIL LSVT ‘AMODILYD A4 SATVS TTIVXVL
SYXAL ‘OTIEVIAY 40 ALID

21E4 XB1 S2[ES 10311p AU

1E10 ]
20

UOTIBNSTHUID Y 2ijGnd

SEBLAIRS 1AYID)

592IA19S POOJ/UOHEPOWOIDY
UOIBIIID N AU LBHN U /SU Y
QDUEISISSY [BII0S/21E]) L1[EIH

S201AIRS [BUCHEINPT

LONRIPAW WS 152 eddnguiupy
sasudiaugysaiuedwior jo jusupdeaely
SAMAIAG [EIUYID /S TIUSIIS/ RUOISS ALY
Suisea piuey/aesy ey
SOUBMSUL/ADUBLL{

LOTIBULOIUY

FuIsnoyDIE N sHORRHedsURE L

apel] ey

ApPEI] fBSIOUM

Fupmierinuey

UOTIMISUAD)

SR

Sery puB 1O/SuLiuEnd)y/Suigy
SUBUNH/BUIYSE[/ANS20 42N nousy



¥l

"1i0dsy] 5100pnY juapuadapu] 2ag

“xe1 Sares uaosad /1 Yl papuny 1 uoneIodio)) uadopasg SHEOLODT OJEWY 3Y] .
“2In3B|S139] 21218 241 Jo [Bacadde ayz o A[uo poSueye 2q ABWL 391 XB] $31RS AU AL NON

aueULy 30 uawitedad] pue 22130 195png AU 15931nog

579 0T 7107
5T9 0t 110¢
) 0 016¢
$T9 0T 600Z
£T9 e 2007
€9 0T L00T
$C9 0T 9007
5T 0z €o0z
§T9 0T 00T
€T9 0T £00¢
BEGE ooy iy [edsiy
39241
AN
(poapneun)

SUVAA "TVISEI NAL LSVT‘SELVH XV.L SHIVS ONIddVTIIAO ANV 103HId
SYXAL ‘OTITAVIAY 40 ALID

[1-V Nqixy



TI-¥ Hgixy

gee

-uodoy solpny 1epiedapuj 29g

"$99°1§$ 50 SI2SSE puny SUTHUIS 558 01 T8Y'8E JO 2nUAZ
ISY10 PUT JUISWSSISSE [e10ads g paolalas 1G9P PUE (0O DF( LTS JO Saniaaat Xy Aq paoiaias 1qop Sepn|dut 1gap SUIPURISING OfjUBWY 30 30D .«

uatuiaA03 Jurddejroac

or2 JO 192p oy Suidedar 10J a|qIsuodsa: ‘210JeIay} Pue JUAPISai € 81 Jofedxer {raas 1y Ajdu 1ou ss0p sy

SI2ARMO] “TENODOE O1UI UaYE! 8 PINOYS SOSSOUISTG DPUE SIUSPISRI 913 £Q SUIOQ UDPING 1G2p 210U Y1 1Gap Wis-Euoj

Ardal pum ansst 01 A1jiqe 5,417 241 SULISPISUD Uaym ‘e seziudeosi sseo0id sty ] -epjuemny Jo A1) oy 3O $3850U1Sng

puB S1UAPISAI U} AG SUIOG ST 181 SluatiuisA0s Surdderoao ssohl Jo 19ap SUIPUBISIRG 241 JO UCEIOd 9U1 $9BUINSS 2[NPIYIS
syl -Anpy 21 Jo sonepunog siydesSoad ayy ypm “wed ul 15e9] 1B “SPIOUI0T 1BY) 950U ok sjuswiieaos Suiddeiza() sajoN

IUn [eluswrunIsAod yoes Aq papraod viep SuipueIsine 1go¢] "g107 124000

aUn0,) A10s1apy Tedruma oz Aq papiaoid seBejusosed oqeol[dde ojewWwiIso 01 PIST BIBP AN{EA PISSISSY  1S2AIN0G

FOBLECE
FEOTLOCT[IE
064708 2%8EET
6S6°S60'F Yoleg
cRL1es %ot 1799
6E8'F8L%9 Yel6FL
P AN YlSET
LEC'098°LT %LLYE
- 200601
FL1T6169 %00°001
LOL'EBS LG § %R80°66
Supuersing syqenpddy
192 spgeanddy ILERALE |

$L6'850°C
L6666
96.L'66L°T
0£€°8S0'6
LTEOLYFI
060°8T1°08

FLI'TOL69
g0C°68Y'86  §

swipugsing
Wad PN

(paupreun)

3qap Buidde)a.40 pue 32.21p jRIO ],
LO[[HBIY JO A1

192p Suldde|1oao [©lo}
PIsK] feoyos juspuadspuy pugysng
1LSI] 100Y0g uepuadapu] Nled puejusig
Aunoy) |[epuey]
Auney) Janoed
19LSI(E [00YDS Juapuadapu] pecy] Jaalg
PLISIT (004§ 1Uspuadopu] UoiUR)
PLISIC [eidsoy ofjirwy
12181 283{[0)) O|jHEIEY

10LISI(] (0042 1uspuadapu] of[URWY

7102 ‘0¢ YAGIWALLAS A0 SV “1L43d SAILIALLDY TVINFANBIAOD ONIddVTHIAQ ANV LDHAIA

SVYXIAL‘OTINHVINY 40 ALID



9Tc

‘uodey sJoipny uapuadapu] 228

"SJUOLLSIBIS |BISUBUL} DU1 01 $910U S U] PURQ) 2¢ UBD 1G2p SUIpumisno s A7) ayi SuipieBas s{imia(] 1$310K

FT 691 %ll'E 16T PBE'E8T 000°¢91°TH 180°F18'¥6 000°¢8S°THI LLESL %EE0 0120898 000 0F0°LT 1oe
e I3 %l6'T T1£'9£0°C9T 000°CHL'EY FECF99°C9 000°00Z° 81 8TI6l %%LE°0 216°800°6 000°811°8¢ 10T
018971 %689°C £T6H61E1PT 000°CLE'F1 96£°101°69 000°008°FT1 TAA %EC0 GTCTITE 000 TEL6T 0i0c
9T’ 186 %S1'T 00t wn@ L81 000°0F1°91 20C'120°E9 000°0¥§' <L 1671L1 %P0 760'89¢€°C 000°€£C76T 6007
CO'CTL %8571 8T808SLET - 0L1°T00°99 000°S¥T'8¢ 0FSL1 %90 269816 000°C18°6T 8007
SLEFL %9L°1 180°C16°6E1 - RLLIOYE'RG 000'06F°6¢€ Te891 %8E0 €LT'86F 1 000°080°0€ L00T
CLZ09 %Csl FOLG6E T - G LLETL 000'069°ZE o6t %6070 RLETLE 000°09L'C 9007
66'ETE %01 089°'809°¢6 - 089°810°ES 000°0FSeE Po8¢ - %6070 000°SFD°L 000°600°9 (SHire
clehy YolT'l 0S0°9TE08 - 050'952°5¢€ 00C0E6°LE 6L0F %010 000°001°1 000°0FT'9 ¥00T
TL0Th %ST'L CO6'6TFSL § - $ £06'P90°LE § 000°¢95° 1S § YO6E § %010 0o0cee % 000°59%°0 $ £00¢
endeny 194 wodu] JUIHLHLIIA0S) 193 Moday 193 DuoyIny 303(¢] INHIAIY endey) 194 Ayadosg jo 393 3y 193 A3 N

[BuBsI3 g AMBUILLY [0, e JIMIG 2 INIBAN INJEA IQEXE]  J(/FUIMSSISSY partoddng-xe ] [eIsL)

JUEF LU ALY | [ENDY eraadg
Jo a5e1u3243
SIMALIY 2dA}-SSIUISnE 142( Papuoy [BIUID

{paspoeun)
SUVAA TVIOSIA NAL ISVT ‘HdAL A9 L93d ONIINV.ISLNO0 40 SOLLVY
SVXAL ‘OTIHVINY AO ALID

SV uqIuxy



LTT

110dsy s1ouphy wapuadapuy s8¢

SIIDUIALEIS [EOUTILE 2 0F $310L SU L PUNOY 3 18D 1P Blipuising $.A10 e Dwpiehos spEing sei0

UGl | %9E'E 1 %3981 2564 1 %L6'T 2%10°€ o5 i¢ EOINS
CEF 196'88L OOOTIOCTIS 5 060E0ITELE L91°85C7016  §  SELLFOREE 008°090°PEYT 8§ BE6LFE'OE0T  § TROCOYERS C83'66'C96 b3 SLOESTIION  §
CLTTEECOL CHG' 009618 17E'811°088 BEOE8YLI6 LLOSIT086 965 T8ELLY] 0L FTIL B8TCOL9511 ERF690°¢HT] OTTSLOTITE
LIS0LES THEL0LTL 1€E010°L FLETOEC'L TPELesTis 96471 TEEE CEICTELR 909°108°CL1 FOS 611661 CFCEBL06!
£81°6L LEQFE G9L7BE 01 1£6°01 9811 656'701 CT691C FIETST $99°18¢
68 620t £9°8¢ F9'6¢ TE891 ot'sil 8LT0F BECERL 186
%0t 0 250170 o068 0 %60°0 %SE0 %9€0 %160 %861 25981
000°000°L 000°0FE L 000°080°L 8L6'1EE°L CLT'RLEIE 8C9'CELEE T60'8F6'LY GIESILTLY $16°1LE661 QLT0LL°061
- - - - - - 000'0F1791 000°5L6F| 000'S¥PLET 000°69%'F
- - - - - - 000°588'8S 000008 FT1 000007 8! 00058 TEL
TS 00000+ DOG'SF0' 8L671LET SLTRGF | 2CORISE T60'898°C 6TEIITE 216'800°6 01Z°089'8
000°69F9 0O0T0FT'Y S DOOSO09 000°09L°¢ S 000°080°0¢ Q00'S1876T S 000°658°6T $ Q00 TEL BT Q008 1F 8T S DOOTOFY LT b3
€007 +007 $007 2002 L00T 8007 6002 010z 110z e
LB R EOSI4

F1-V HqUIXyg

SYVAA TVOSEA NIL LSYVE

{paypreun)

LAAG TVOIT ANY ONIGNYISIAO0 LIId aAaNCd TVIANTD JO SOLLYYH
SYNAL ‘OTHIVIY 40 ALID

sarmyspuadya jendesuou jo
afwuansad v se 314038 13

urdava jgap (g3

1937 R

nuny 1gp o1
ajquoydde 1qop 10U [E10 ]

1qp jr1auad Audar
0] aPIST 195 SIUNOWY (507

endes 1oy
anz Ayadord
{EMIDE POIEUNISD JO STEIUANIDY
[B10],

spuog uodiy

SPUOY JIMAG TR 10,

Kop hon_,_c..gﬁn:.ﬁmmuqmwn —ﬁﬁuu&m

102p papoddns Ne ]
Fuipueisiig WOp papuog [BIoUD)



87¢

oday sio0pny juapusdspu] 93§

‘snsuay [E1opag Surpssead 1) Ut 3yl o) SuIpiosae 210w 10 g)gng9 1o vonedod w Suziey sous o) Sjue soydde vonciiu sy ey s3pLaodd L9671 "L ] YIIREY 210310 'SAIBIS [IA1D) SEXD | JO SIEIS 2 Jo deog A[MIy 0N

TSR 10688, S OO0 IOSTIS S ODGDBOLELE &  LDI8SS0I6 §  SLLir0BF6 §  O0RO090FFDT S GEECECLEOTT S TSYELEBIOT §  S8R6GLOIONL §  SL9BHEES0T § udIew §GIP 1833] VULIGY 01 ]
LIZ0LED Cr6C0CL £T010°L 1L870ECL THELYSIE 96L12EEE £51°095°28 909°188°9€1 F09°69T 151 STSETRLY] T 1gp 01 Aqeoldde 1999 Jo nowe w10y,
CRIPGETIE LEOFO6'LE 69L°6L8SE 1017169728 1£6°006'6E T98'95T'8E 6E6'LLOLE £76'9¢8°¢E FLETOLSY S99 O¥e T
000" 9eLE 000°0E6°LE GOU'DFESE Q00069 TE 00006+ '6E 000°$FT'8E 000°5$6'9¢ 00°0TYEE 000°058 F 0005982y . SPEOQ PN SHIONIAM Ay,
£81°6T I60°FE 60L°6E L0171 1£6°01 o8'H GE6'TOY £T6'91T FIETST £99°18S (130} SPUN S 20LAIBS 1GACG L1 S9SSY 1SS
00008 000°0LT ST 000068 T SL6°1T0°0F SLT'RO0TIL §COBLE 1L T60°'819°FZ1 GES'BILTLE 816712661 GIT'OLL'06E 192p papuod felo ],
) 1gap o1 apgqeondde 3gap jo unoun
TLTTCES6L S SHE009%T8 S ITESIT08S S SCTOESSLl6 §  LLOSIEO8S § 0 96STTRELLUT S TEOCELFEI $ BRTCOUISITL § 6BTGO0SOITL § (TTELYIITI S 1103 PESSIssE JO G001 - 11N K20

LTF690796T8 S

CITE8T 1088 S

LS008 BLI TGS

OLLOS1TO86S

916056 LFT TS BRSNS

CH8TEI0ETIIS

61 TELOIITTL S 1104 X} “IRJUA PISSISEY

(109 Xr 4 £067)
FOOTAOERG

(1o Xe1 7007}
£O0T0C/

S1-v HgQIyxy

{0y xe L F007)
SO0TAL/G

{0y X8 3. €007}
900T/0£76

1oy XeL 9002)
LOOT/OL/6

(noy xey go0z)
HOT/GE/6

110y X1 8907}
600710516

(HOY XL La07}
$00Z/0E/6

{paupneun)

{oy el 9InT)
L10Z/0g/6

SUVAA VIS NAL LSV ‘NOLLVIWNHOANI NIDUVIN LIAd TV DHT

SYXAL ‘OTTEVIAY 40 ALID

(100 ¥ T§07)
T10T08/6



62T

‘poday s lonpny juepuedapu] 2§

'sasuadxs UoHIBZIHOWE 10 uoneaidap
“$2.23U1 Spnjou; 10U op sasuadxa Funeiadg SILSWLIEIS [BIOUBUL QY 03 S2}0U 2] Ul PUNOF 39 UBD 1qap SupuRIsIng $,4110) o3 Suipredas suz1e(] 1$910N

£0°¢ FLITETE 000°06T°L 880°¢L8° 1€ LLD'TETF 0TOLIPE €L TFT 0L TIoT
68'¢ 891°866°C 000°01TL 061°9L9'6€ CEO'BLET COT6ET FE LOE'TEL 9L 10T
61T T IERT 000°0¢€’S 00L TEY'LE 969°TLIE C1L9ErvE 601°206'¢¢ 010z
FTF +06°LT10°T 000°06Z°1 ¥95°TT0°F Y 68L°EOT°E €66 0FF T ¢ Sr ATl 4 6002
8t THT'C9L] 000°srT’1 Q0T P8V EL 066°LLT'C €19'008°¢¢ S08'ToL 08 800T
¢z €09°975°1 000°0LL'T 9+9°09L°01 9LT6ES'E FLOOFY'1E 96+ 9F6 S L00T
0T 6167979°1 000°058'C [Z1°158°6 6L8°$85°C 6L BLRIE SFFTIE Y 900t
TP 18€°209°1 000°028°C 9C0'RLE'6 FOC989°1 LIS I16'LE LLTILE6E cont
89°C COF°LOS 000°€19°7 F96° L9811 LI9'TLL'] 80¥°€19°9T 986°CSTOF FOOT
I8¢ geieLo’y § 000°010°T § £EC998°T1 6F9°168°1 § SI6°661°6T § LIEE1E6E $ £00T
ow«.—m;oU JREREI] _Nn_u:mhn— SNUIAIY wmu..vw—: mmwﬂumxmm INUIAIY] _Nuc,—. hﬂm?
3NAIIS 192 S[GRITEAY JaN VAIAD sunesado [¥asig
"mw@.._ 18837

SPUOY] ATUIANY INBAN

(paupneun)
SUVAA TVISIA NAL LSV “ADVITAOD ANNAATH-AAOAT 1d
SYXAL ‘OTTVIAY 40 ALLD

O1-v MqIuxy



0Lt

‘yoday stolpny luepuadapuy sog

‘s1ga4 953Y) 10] S{qe{ieat 10U Sem a5k UBIpOJN .

A[uo 710z oquoidss ysnonpy Lenuef wodg a8eioan
UE U0 paseq §1 7107 0] 9181 9U ] "SONSNEIS JOqeT] JO nEaIng §Ioqe Jo justupeds] 'S Wolp pauleigo sajel wawiojdwaury ¢
IS [00yog uspuadapu] Of|UBLY A PIpTaoid sEa JUSWIOIUD [00YDS
"£oAINg ATUNWWOY) UBdLISWY 0107 PUB ‘SOGT ‘00T SNSUI) WoL) pauleqo ade ueipapy "¢
sreas 0a\ snotaald am
WIOLL $2582L0UI JO 38B10AR UE Pash jyeis wualupeda(] Suruueld ‘sonBlf 7107 pue 110 AB[NO[ED 0L “AlRWIWNG SWO0U] B3IV VSN
‘S1sdjUY SIUCUCOT JO nEamg §a01awoy) 0 wawieda(] "§ ) WOy paurelqo saundy swodur viided 1od pur swioouj [suosIa T
("A[enuue 04,7 10 9 [ JO 2FrI2AR UR AQ Sm0IB O[jUBILY)
{0107 snsuayy Aq papiacid 10g) wewpeds(] Fuuueld ofjuewy Jo A1 Aq patedaid sazewmss vonemdod {

1§32UN0§
% 90LieE #® €SILE FEYO6LE'6 SLEF6] At
%< r0'ES * 35H°6E 051°501°6 999°¢61 [1oe
%Ll’¢ POLTE tee 856°CE 000°S10°6 £69°061 010T
%T¢ 0T6'1€ * 9976 000°'LYL’8 FIE161 600T
%G € 69670 LTE 0F9°ce 000°T1L'8 Tr0'061 200C
%' £19°0¢ x 1£8°7E £66°156°L 609°L81 L00T
%L € 05£°0% * €L6°0¢ 0€T'EEE’L Ir6F81 2002
%0t 901°0¢ 9ge 0SL°8T SFIErs9 Tot°Z81 £00T
%tr 656°67 * £68°9T Sy RN €ZLI81 F00T
%8F 0086 * cLR'eT  § 6ST'8I0°0 § LRT6LL £00T
(s) orey (+) () (7} 2woduy (5000°1$ (n SLEVN
juanwAojdmaun SLELHALG | 23V URIPIIA [eu0SI3d un) (7) sweduy uonendod ARPUIED
100125 eyrde) 194 jeuosaag

(panprieun)
SQUVIA YVANFTVI NAL LSVT ‘SOLLSILV.LS DIWONODHE ANV JIHIVIDONWAd
SVXAL ‘OTINIVINV 10 ALID

L1-V HaIYXy



[€€

Woday sJoupny juspuadepuy 2ag

BB TOF 1SNENY ySnong gloz Senuel Jo oeiaan

sy st a3y 7107 “(eoue]D B 1B Lwouood} sonsels 10geT Jo neaang ') Ayl wiog paureiqo amnsiy uewdoidwa (VS BaLY [2o1SNEIS UBH[0dONI Of[UBLY

"90JALILIOD) JO IaqIBY)) OfILIBUY 3} Ag paplacid sem uoneuuojur siadojdws jediound uay 2y :s9vunog

swAodw? L VSN OBy (210
ssafopdurs sayie yo soafojdwa [s10]

sipfopdws [edound agy Jo saadojdwa eo]

OV

852{310q1,] BUluoD-suamO
sunsey

WO U, 001

3 BUUBS UJBUMON uolzuiling
SDUBINSUL 341 [BOUNRN HINSIAN
LS1oug 190%

s1ajusdtadng MEWE A

Spood paieligy

oul “1mdooteH jed

BIBDULIRAH STXD [ 1SANILION
SWIISAS YeaH sAuoyiuy 15sudeg
SPO0J UOSAT

%000°001 188°611
%668°L8 7LEC0]
%1011 LOSF]
%91S0 01 009
YeLlPS O 6 9co
%0650 8 LOL
Yol6l] ¥ CErl
2600070 - -
Yol L0 L [#44)
26L68°0 ¢ CLOL
%06L 0 9  ¥ZOI
%690¢ 1 £ <8l
%OIET [ 9LLT
%6606'T [ L8F°C
ypwiojdmy Hury saakepdmy
VSIW A1)
[B10.L JO Ju3203J
£607

S1-V Hqiygxy

%0007001 165°6T1
Y%16L°88 SO0'CTI
60T 11 9LErl
%0F< 0 01 004
%% 1F9°0 6 0€8
2%ELLD 8 00°1
%ELL0 L [
%880 9 660°1
%9C6'0 ¢ 00Z°1
%0860 ¥ 04T
9%CL0E £ €6¢°1
%86l 1 [4 0£ET
%6CE8T I 00L°C
justAopduryg uey  saedojdmy
*VSI L1
{10 ], J0 JUIDIRJ
10T
{panpneun)

£afopdury

OOV SUVIA ANIN ANV AVIA INTIEND ‘SHTAOTINA TVJIDNITHd

SVXAL ‘OTITAYINY 10 XLID



T

woday s Jolpny juspuadapu] aag

“ z < € £ ¥ t ¥ 4 t
0T €T £z jac 2 £T €< £T pora £
e oy s P T xa 1z 1T IT 1z
e ot T 7 T Tc i P oo fare
T t sk =4 & 9 oF S o 9r
Lb LG L6 00t act 301 801 801 S0 66
1 [ t 1 t 1 s i i 3
11 It Ul ii it €l i 1 1 ¥i
- - - - - - i 39 £9 YL
- . . - - . - . 1 -
ot o e LT Lt LT LT 8T 9L >
Ll &C GT 6L 6T e e oL e e
1 21 1< < 8T 8T S Sl 81
1T gi< 12T o 17z 617 e o tre 1§%
16 86 <ol ol <ol 604 0] il ES A
F8e 08¢ oot ol 0L clg Lig L1g Lig Fe
brs £z £ e 2 T +C T T T
€T &L T §c T £T s¢ £T £T it
11 ol ot Tl A ¢l <l Tl £1
L1 8l g1 1T <z cl <l cl <1
L L L L L b3 H] 2 § &
i3 3 r ¥ ¥ £ € € £ -
& 6 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 L
9 9 9 9 G 8 8 8 8 )
- - - M - - g 3 4 €
- - - - - N £ € £ <
9l ! i &1 Gl ¢l ! t1 ¥l 9l
9 & G ] 9 Ed S ¢ < 3
ol 4] g 8 8 3 L L L L
SC 9L ST 8< 8C 8T 6L 6T 6T T
- - . - - - B - - +
£ £ < € T T 4 c < T
€ [ ¥ + B € 9 9 9 9
€ ¢ £ 3 9 < € S & €
€00T T 00T SHGE £L00T 8002 00T o10¢ 8 1ira TIeT

61-V HAiyxy

0¢ 1aguapdag Jo su suanisog pataapeg

(peypneun)
VEOOUd/NOLLINGA AT SNOLLISOd 2139008 INTWNYIAOD LLD
SYXNAL ‘OTIRVIY JO ALID

SYVIAX TVISIA NAL LSV¥T'

suoneWoId IS UMD
suonesado 1uaD) NI
LUNASI[O7) WINLHD
NOILVIYDTA ¥ 39N1L710D
Sureamfugy
suotieade pjal oygeL
SuisewAua oyjel ]
FVUBUITLBUE 1931
ONTYTANEONT P DEAEVAL SI3TULS
SOUSHEIS [EUA
IEDY [RUBIHOART
19)U8D) "UMRLOTD ASUSHIawrg ojjLeuny
sa01ATS Aousiiows
JOIROD RUINY
Liages Supping
I
Tauuosiad uesy
24
U101, 20114
foutossed ueyLa

20710 ]
310
HETVIH ANV ALFIVE D1T7d0d
aoweEAIEL Fuipimyg
suaneiade |BIpoIsn)
Lourdnoag
SUQTIEDIUNEILO,) PUE JUSWdFeReI Aaudiiouiy
JuauRSEIREY S0 DU [AUUOSI
eday
SOOIALS 2010 [BAIDTUNTA]
52105 [EIURD)
Furseyoing
s3ljalag
jjo1ied
Fuyunoaoy
2oHRUL] JO J0J021N(T
UONEJISILIIPE [RIDUBULY
SAMNAYIS 44V LS
Suruoz puw Suuugg
UNod 133 pue unod fedizungy
[EIRIPR{
Algjaioes A1)
sefruew A
LOISSILEIOD PUE J0 SB[
INAI AAO0D TVUINTD

w50, J/U0HUN ]



o0day sJoupny juspuadapu] 295

suoisod swn-ved pue sway

GEI'T 6FI'T BGT'T 9:T'T €607 19T 6TT

1Tt 31 ST1 SIL 488 £I %]

r 9 9 ) 9 L B L

e 0T 0Z oz 81 81 81 81

- z T o z T T z

1 gL FL P PL €L TL 7L

9 ! 9 9 9 L L L

i - - - - - L

3 L L L 9 9 9 S

- - - - - - 8 b 8

S 15 i< 1€ 15 13 29 € £g

= 9z LT LT Lz LT 3T 43

oF GF 5t 6t 0s 9 bl

9FT 3ri ST €57 £8T k52 reT

5l 91 91 91 51 B Ll Gl

5T [ 6L 6T &z T 4 &%

o 0z 1z 1< 1z jora 61 0z

0¢ s 0s 08 0% s s s

s Tt 23 133 2 FE PE +<

8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 39 8% 8¢ 8%

%2 8T &2 4 6T 6T T

z 8 g 8 [ [ 6

L L L L L L L

R 199*1 EDTAR 171 00L'T 86L°1 GLL'T

19 19 1% 19 19 3 6%

tg s of 9% 9c 9< g€ 9¢

e 101 £01 £01 £01 L01 201 £

¥& 5t 8 8t 8t ¥ Ly

SLT £LT FLT §LT €57 857 8¢ LET

LA LL LL 8L 8L 8L 8L 38

- - £ £ 13 < € <

o € T T T T Z H

ol b it Tl Tl Tl Tl T1 f
£007 0T 00T 9007 LoDT $00T

panEuo) ‘61-V NqIyxy

SUVIAA TVOSIA NIL ISVT ‘WYADOE/NOLLINNA A% SNOTLISOd GALADANE LNAWNTIAOD LD
SVXIL ‘OTHIVINY 20 ALID

0¢ Jaquiaidag o §E SIE011IS0J pataspng

nj yoq Jo dn spew am suorisod patafipng isajeN;

sIsSpng [enuuy AN i9sanog

kg,

anuaAy [R123ilg (B30 Y,
ustaoiienep Souafoury
Susnoy pue nawido]saag] AUNTHKOT
pun, Aanaag unoyy
SIELD) fIfEa
SWLI dygel | AUy usgn)
BLD) 200
Lz
TIANIATH TVIDALS
DINITD 38V ALLD
ADVHYD TVAIDININ
SEDIAYIS NOILVINYOANY
ALFTELDY IDVNIVEG
LIOJAIEV
WHSAG JANIG TP JDIRAL IO
SN JO 101028
Surg AN
AI0IRI0qR [RIUSLILCILAUT
USUERI ] I2IBMBISE A
UOTR]|0D) IIEMBISE N
GOHNQLESIT 3L
JUBUNBAL ] JAR A DOBING
UOISSIUSUERL | 131
HOUINPOLY 1D1B A
INALSAS HIMES ¥ ALY

punj [RIdUIN [L10 ]

asucdsay pueurdc] pue N0y PaxL]
LISNVHL
[Esodsip a1sem pijog
UOHDR|0% SISEM PHOS
HESVAL QITOS
300
UOLEAIIDY PUB S
suoneado Auesqry
121837) SMIN 2q01D)
suodg Jeuay 2t
suoneiado 201]J0 Xog
WS04 J/uondun,y



Pee

yoday s 10upny Jjuspuadapuf 228

- - - - 000008 000008 000°008'T 000°008°C DOD00ST 000°008°C afeloNg
- - - - 0000000 1 0000001 000°C00'0 00000001 000'000°01 00000001 Surdum
JPEOY UapSY
000°Goa"01 000000701 00000001 D0G'000°01 0000000 000°000°01 000°C0G'0L 000000701 000"C0001 003000701 adeiong
DO0000'SE 000°000°¢S 000000°$¢ 000 000°SE 000'000°¢S 000°000°SS 000°CO0'SS 000'000'SS 000°000°¢S 000°000°SS fudung
1288 WIrE
000 GON'E 1 000000 [ 000°000°¢ 1 DOOO00EL 0000005 | 00G'000°S | 000000°¢ 1 B00°D00'EL H00°000°¢ 1 000°000°¢ [ oTel0lg
DO G0 LE 000" 00LLE 000°000°LE D0O'600°LE 000'000°LE 0OUT000'LE 000000 LE DOO°000'LE 000 GO LE 0000007 € Furdamg
10318 T
000006 S 1 000 000S ! 000000 000'000°¢ 1 000°000°S [ GOO000°S [ 000°000°S 1 000°000°51 D00 000°SL 000000751 ofniong
D00'000'FS 000000 S 0007000 7S 000000778 000000FS 000°000°FS 000'000°'+S D00 000" FS 000" 000°tE 000000 S Surdung
uByueg
suo(ed--Anonde 1ue)g
086'T9%'9F LEB'GEHST SLE'BES Y LLFLOL'LY 1F0°T90° 11 000°TSL SR 960 19T 8167 ITE'Er 01L'80871E FEORPIOF suopef--uoienpaud Aiep o¥e1aay
TE8'Te TITt9 £90°¢s ££8'99 TSHLS 90¢'89 $8¢°89 8569 PSL69 16104 STUNODE 133EM DALY
L3NG PUE 3338 4
T1§°EL £rLST SFE6T 104'8C ST RV TTEED 60L'6T TOL'gE FLLGL sa0fuassed asucdsal punwag
SEFGFE 8T°0rE STETEE 961°69¢ I POREPE S09'8TE L¥90EE 08°L9¢ THODSE 5301ALDS NG PANY--PAAILS sJoTusssey
PELESO LEFEED 1607089 BEF'9S9 LLO'BSY 069°159 9E0'E%9 LOEFLY §11'989 FTSTLD O[T UI--31N01 Psei paxi g
suer
c01sIz 0LY'LET TOF KT 00088 009°LET 000°+ET 000'€CT 00g'ELT 0sETIT 000°0TT HIIPUE} 9158 JO SUO .
R:CR< £96°T91 BOL'ESI 000°+91 000°881 000°891 CO0'LST 00008 t 006'FS 1 05L991 P2192][00 21SEA [0 SUO |
ST PHOS
- - - *08'L 861°¢ £99°C 68T 89PF 59 LEgL aouzpuenE ABuRs Ay
ol 300l 006 FO1 9O1El 1 I8¢ %01 9TLLOT £86'¢01 LL198 530°88 i6T06 {sas1n02 ¢} fpenuue padeld 1108 fo spunoy
Llgee 9LL 1€ 159°¢E SEITE 191°0F £611e {Zete 960°0E 658°TE SLOTE 2IUEPUIIR 1DUDTY $HUUD ],
Lot'eL nQ( €9 891°CL SE8'TL 6E9CL ££1°99 £86°LE C8F'8S 186709 £eog aauepusyE jood Suiiuitms fenuny
T0TER6"] o SPEES0T C05'LF1T 59501 1T 99¢°C08" 900°TSL' 501°6E°t 900°TEL] LOCTFET L AlENUUE PIUTO] SILTION ArRIQT]
ST oﬁ,w% BEFLEL 00G'8EL 000°00L S15°00L £55°CEY SLITLY £T5°9¢9 0b6'LOS PIUTPUANE [ENULE J]) I1A1)
1891 SO8'1 0802 0902 69€°T 826°C 6TL'T PFTT 986 1 5381 SABP WIAD JAIUAT) NAID
uoizeatdal pur uunxﬂu
CEFREDFS £8L°0P6'EE 969°68L71 1 809'66L°C TETErEL ¥9LTIES SIG'CI6L 900°TEL' TISTiLT'S Jooy
CEETLITE SFTTEOT oOreTEas'e TLR'9BTE LELHIC'Y EFSISSTE 0EL°96T'1 88TSLS SCLTERGT SUIOY (10}
SOFOLE LY 1ZE8nIel 189°TFET 1 1T LrI98 SI5°TOr'89 08016+ LT1 LLE6T1796 EYTITE6L TE6'L80°08 siedal 39 suotpps - [EdaRILO]
004 LI LL BLY1SE'LE CCET06PE] STRLEGTIT PTELO0TES §66°056'06 FE6ESS S 1P 9857601 FEE LSSt FFOGIL0E M3 - [B1213WWOT
1€9°010°T! £CO0SRFI 106°TSLY 1 £66°855°91 GLE 1HE8T FI8'69T €T SrPESTOET GOL9ET YT £TRTSLST PSE9LYS] saedas oy SUCLIPPE - [213uapisey
SO6°LIFSEl FLOPGT LI 198 IF] IS8 FrO0L £E1°805°981 901 L0S 68 | L9L°166°FT] 191TFO'STI 60 FLE D £80°CHO'9E] MU - [RIHUDPISEY
UOIOTUISUDD JoonEs
FELil 989 BLE'T 68171 9Lg o6 LEG j=:1 381 62E' 898 jo0y
1Ot 0% 18 9¢ 19 ¥ 6€ iy 8T 6¢ S2UIOY TGO}
£Fg 1zg £1g 99¢ 1zg Bee 68 $ee GSE 96T snedal 39 SUCIUPPE - (R1213(UNI0))
9Tt f ol 91t L T or ¥ 1s 58 DU - [B1212WWE)
807 Lias css 8T9°1 FEFL 0% 00T eLlc o sHEda 1P SUOIIPPY - [BPHUapISay
AT CLL TLL [+9 L8 915 (339 o009 ise DU - |EILDPISY
SHULIS [
FECG £9¢°01 9LL0 L91°T1 FLLTL E1E°CH £67°91 TEE'8Y 55661 0014135 211 Ja] S[|BD |50
099°9¢) 86T r<1 GFOTEL 686°CEH 0586'LT1 9L1°9T] T98°0EY jovi X! B05TEN 185°8¢E 20112 391jod o) §[|e0 [2nuuy
Hi[eay pLe ..Apu.*ﬁ.m 310 L:&
EEY 608°¢ 553 8L c09°¢ 353 £64°T oo 8SLT sJapie aveyosd 3o Jaqus
SIITAIDE JI0IS
wridesyuenaun g
£06T +007 €007 s00C 2007 8007 6007 0107 1102 7107
A3 g [EISLY
(panpneun)

SHUVIA TVISLY NAL LSVT WVHOOUL/NOLLINNA L4 STOLVIIANE ONLLVHALO
S¥XAL‘OTHEVINY A0 ALID

07V 3quxy



‘Hoday sJoupny wepuadapu] a9g

£LT

Co8T1Z1 18711 BLT 601 LTEL6 <C888 849z ori'eg oS TF9°0L
ree ot 66T 2 3 9T¢T 9eT 67T BLE
LEPTT8E c1e'cor rgOrE 219°5Er FISFSE 1 19% LY SLLEE TEOROT
L9 oS 1< o 8¢ 8¢ oF ir T
< < I3 ¥ q 13 < 3 <
00086476 L6E159'8 LLFISEG 79$°LEETL 05t E6LT1 CIE 1901 HOFTHT! 10£°829°21 FRI0STEL TEF0SL0I
000'6TE ] SITOS0L ££8°888°91 L9608E7L1 TSHI09'ET SFO'STE Ll 960°6EF L] 099'L597L 1 OO0 LT LY SOLTTI9E
000°000°C1 000'GO0°T1 0000001 000000 0000001 000000l 000°000°T1 0000001 000000°TE Q00000
0007000 DL 00000691 20000091 00000091 00000091 00060091 00000091 00000079 1 0O0'D00'G 00000091
09L°0% 15719 63529 £6°'r9 £i5'59 F6T'99 65599 1829 PEO°LY 07089
. N 000°LESH6T'E 000 LESTFRE GO0 L61819°G [y aria ReIv: N 000°LLE9EE'S 000'010°088L OOO'LEL LTSS 000'9§9°¢09'8
0006 LLLE U00'SSTONEF 000965 LEDY 000'065°L£0'9 GOO'SSE9TEF £68°T8K'T99°C 000'S8E9IT'y 000 LFERIDE 000 PSS | -
0OIODs™ aliaNels T 000 0eES 000°005°9 Q000089 000°005°8 000°005°S 000°005°8 0000058 LOU008'S
000°000°S [ [MVREDRN 000°000°S 1 000°000°S 1 000000 00D°000°¢L 000°000°S [ G00'000°S | D00DOOET 000000761
LOGH00 D 00000091 00000091 006000511 000'000°9E 0000009 00000051 000000 L 000000011 DOUTCOH0 0T

€007 FO0T 0T 9002 £00T 8007 6002 0102 110z TIot

ECCER o |
(panpneun}

panUNUO) ‘OT-V WYX

SUVAAL TVISH NAL LSV WVHDOREI/NOLLINNA A4 SHOLVIOIGNI ONILVHILO
SVNAL'OTIEAVINY 40 ALID

SRR BTAUL AY) F[GR)IEAT 10U SEM UONELL

sjuaLepndap Q1) snoue A 12IN0Y

(1m0 [QHU0) YA SINOY $7) SUONRINAD famdl [Blog
aTeIaAR--ATiRD PaIRats saueidny
paueldus siaduassed suny
s3ySy tep pajnpayag
sauliE olepy
saodary
Suoj[ed--ANsnput 01 PlOS Jsem paLUIR(Ial JO aberaae Aleg
suQ[ed--pateal; afemas jo aBesase Aneg
Aep jad--JusubEan 1SEAINOS
Aep 1ad--1usunE2 YUON
.suo[ipH--An10edeo UB)g
SIUNODIT ISMDE DAY
UoiEaC] Py (W N0} ALNOY) sUsqey
SUQ[JRF--UeTIEdD!

DIEA DOBLIS

ABRIONG PRS0
sitamg
Furdug
UR]] UOREA LAY
wulSolj/uonaun ¢



‘poday saoupny juapuadapuy 93

9¢

[

ww—pﬁ_nm WDWERLE IJIVMIISTA JO JqLINN

[EIDIDUILIOD “SIDWOISND 2158 PHOS JO Joquin

s [ T z T [ c z T T
FL19S 687898 89FLE 78588 00116 ££9T6 GE6L6 06'LE6 9LEHG 9T FFS
001 001 66 16 6 46 901 901 L1 ozl
OF Ot gETH 00°950°L 64/080°1 00°£90 00 080°t 00'E80°1 00'780°1 00901 99°601"1
£9°811 £9°811 £9811 £9'811 DOOEL 0001 60'0T! 00°0¢1 00°3€T DO'BEN
¢ 9 L L L i <l ] i
Ll Ll Li L1 Ll Ll 3 L

* N 199 199 9% 799 799 799 99 99
* x 10£7¢ 108°¢ Fig'e £59°¢ 769°€ gl LEL'S 30L°C
N * FIERS FTE8C P6E6E ££0°09 70509 L9Z'19 651G 616°19
T ¢ ¢ 1+ it ir L€ Le L <
i L 0 il 0 0¢ o€ 0¢ 0t ¢
0£¢E 8CLE 8 iy $C 1 g LEEh LY'LE [$°5:13 [$4:3 Fl6g
9 <9 99 €9 9] [ 9 59 €9 ¥
T [ z [4 Z z z 4 3 A
! T T z [ 4 4 z T T
i + ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ £ < ¢ £
66L'T L787¢ L8'e L1787 1787 6ERT LO6'T LT6'T LEG'T $E6T
09 19 9 9 % ¥ 9+ 3] 9 9
5 * 008°'L08 CECTLOR [aif CEO'S0L ¥IL'TO% 182°91% GLLERS QL +EY
< < < < < ¢ < < ¢ <
006 EE D00 0FE 000°0FE CO00IE 000°01 000°01 ¥ G00°01¥ G0001F 00001 E
98ETL 90 81°L T L8€°E LPFL SIEL 656°L £67'8 SLER
05T 5% bST F5T T o4 092 192 197 FOE
il 8LE01 STED1 16801 065701 L£9°01 L5901 THLOH £9L°01 96401
Lienl 00'%01 00'604 GLTLL 95°Z11 00911 L8911 46811 9t 811 (4|
CLOFF ity LOECE 98'85F LY'E9% 00°89% THTLY 10'9Ly 65°9LY 0L708F
T6'68 €988 96'F8 r8'cg £1¢8 008 cIes £Ies £1¢8 AR
6LLES GLESR LETLS $9¢88 L6688 00206 08506 s 98216 66'GT6
* N 8L €8 S} 8 [$:1 98 68 06
0Iet FEEE [$:13 3243 69F'E L86°€ 869°c L9 ELE 19L¢
0! ol ol o 0l o1 o1 i1 ol it
I 1 ; 1 i 1 { 1 1 1

€067 FO0Z ST 9007 2007 8607 6007 OHIT Ti0T Z10Z

aeIy RISy
{pa3:pneun)

13-V nqiuxy

SYVAX TVISIA NIE LSVT WVHDOUI/NOILINIA A9 SOLISILVLS LASSY TVLIdYD

SVXAL ‘OTIRIVI

A0 ALD

'SIERA 250U 10} DIQBIINAL JOU STA UONEBULIOJU] |,
spuawnedsp H1) snolw s, tadanog

S13MAS ATBINIES JO SOHN
S]|BAL 2D7RAL JO 3GINN

UOSINGLISIC]

UOISSILISUR |
SURILL 101EM JO SN
IDMOT PUR A
HOLAIDS Ul SUEA JC Iaguin

ATLAIAS W SISNIG JO IDQUINY

Jsueay
aBuoioe fypusy

[ERUDPISII “SI9TWOISND 2)STA PI|OS JO IBGUININ

1DISEM PIOG
SO SILUs ],
SPIaY [eqyes pue [Eqaseyq
{sa2puwr) spien Smifop
Sp[aY 132305
ISOUTINE] [LUOLEDLIVL DI
$2{0Y §[--535000 110 JO 1aqLun

$2[0Y g¢--$2sIn0D o8 JO Taquuny
sjood SumIunms JO 18qUn

S3I2¥ JO I2qunuU--53IEd
spunoeaiieyd pu symd jo Jaquun

sfusp[og Aaeiqy [e10],
SSLIHYL JO ADQUINN

139§ aJenbs ui--{ 15U “XaUUR HONUIAUOD
.t.:uMm.w_Ou .Fmﬂ,EOw,_mu:Mv 1237 2T

[uonuEALIRL PUE AN
pa|feIsul SUSIS O1JRA JO NN
SUDIIEZ0] PILRBUSIS JO 1BGUINN
SIUSY 102118 JO RGN
SI2M38 _.—COF.LHO ,nnu_—H‘/
{saqu) 82y
{5911} poaedun - 510205
{sepu) pasnd - s1sang
Bunaawifiua pue B $1001g

suanS S M 100PIR0 JO 100NN

SWERIPAY 34T JO 1aGIn

SUDHEIS 2414

SUONIEIS 3210
YyEeH pue A3 ongnd
L IE0.E /01 |



Exhibit A-22

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL INFORMATION
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF TOTAL CUSTOMERS
{(Ustaudited)

Fiscal Year
Ended Number of Customers
September 30 Water Sewer

2003 62.832 60,760
2004 64,112 61,451
2005 65,065 62,489
2006 66,833 64,939
2007 67452 65,513
2008 68,306 66,294
2009 68,586 66,539
2010 69,358 67,281
2011 69,754 67,654
2012 70,151 68,020

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Exhibit A-23

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL INFORMATION
AYERAGE DAILY WATER CONSUMPTION AND SYSTEM INFORMATION
(Unaudited)

Average Daily Maximum
Fiscal Year Water Daily Water
Ended Consumption Consumption Miles of Mains Number of
September 30 {Gallons) {Gallons) Water Sewer Hydrants
2004 45,939,936 74,800,000 1,029 868 3,359
2005 44,558,978 77,500,000 1,036 875 3,385
2006 47,707,877 80,200,000 1,051 885 3,441
2007 41,062,000 72,000,000 1,063 011 3,469
2008 43,752,000 83,000,000 1,080 926 3,587
2009 42,461,096 82,000,000 1,082 929 3,698
2010 42,921,918 79,300,000 1,691 932 3,671
2011 51,308,710 88,700,000 1,106 943 3,732
2012 46,148,634 92,100,000 1,110 944 3,761
Maximum Water Production Capacity (from Water Plant and Wells) 15} mitlion gallons per day
Maximum or Peak Usage to Date 92 million gaflons
Overhead Storage Capacity 8.5 million galtons
Ground Storage Capacity 74.25 million gallons
TEN LARGEST WATER CUSTOMERS AND AVERAGE MONTHLY USE
1. Tyson Fresh Meats 096,315,000
2. Texas Department of Corrections 36,636,503
3. City of Canyon 17,098,350
4, Owens Corning 14,472,500
5. Xcei Energy 12,626,250
6. Asarco 9.817.000
7. Baptist Saint Anthony's Hospital 7,543,830
8. Plains Dairy 7,116,330
9. Northwest Texas Healthcare 6,340,000
10. Veterans Hospital 2,711,580
CAPACITY OF SEWER TREATMENT PLANTS
(Two plants combined) 28.00 million gallons per day
Average daily sewage treated 16.12 million gallons per day

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Source:

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM

WATER RATES
SEPTEMBER 30,2012
(Unaudited)
Minimum Meonthly Billing for
First 3,000 Gallons Consumed: Rates Per Month
Meter Size Insice City Outside City
5/8" 5 11.89 $ 17.84
" 15.95 23.92
1-1/2" 20.44 30.67
2" 31.76 47.65
3" 116.85 175.28
4" 148.29 22244
6" 221.70 332.55
8" and larger 305.65 45848
Additional Charge by Volume
{per 1,000 Gallons): Inside City Outside City
Residential
3,001-10,000 2.12 3.18
Over 10,000 2,717 4.16
Over 30,000 4.10 6.16
Over 50,000 4.34 6.51
Commercial
Over 3,000 242 3.61

City of Amarillo Ordinance Number 7295 effective October 1, 2011,

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Exhibit A-25

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM
SEWER RATES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

Base Rates

Amount Per Month
Meter Size

3/4" $ 1347
" 13.90
1-1/2" 14.27
n 15.49
3" 17.51
4" 25.60
6" 37.68
8" and larger 49.79

Additional Charge by Volume

Commercial accounts are charged on total water used with a rate of $1.74 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed
over the initial allotment of 3,000 gallons. Residential accounts are charged bhased on the average water consumed
in December, January and February, but in no event shall residential customers be charged for more than 20,000
gallons of sewage. The volume charge for sewer accounts is $1.61 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed over

the initial allotment of 3,000 galions.

Source: City of Amarillo Ordinance Number 7295 effective October [, 2011,

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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